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COMPANY PROFILE
A R

Beijing Energy International Holding Co., Ltd. (listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange) is striving to be a leading global
eco-development solutions provider, which is principally engaged
in the development, investment, operation and management
of power plants and other renewable energy projects. As of
31 December 2021, the Group owned 97 solar power plants
and 7 wind power plants with aggregate installed capacity of
approximately 4,168.02MW, and has generated approximately
3,879,751MWh of green electricity for the entire 2021. Our
power plant network covers various provinces/autonomous
regions including Beijing, Hebei, Inner Mongolia, Shaanxi,
Qinghai and Guangdong, etc.

Under the rapid growth of the renewable energy industry,
the Company has attracted many strong investors, including
BEH (an integrated energy service enterprise of Beijing City),
CMNEG under CMG, China Huarong (one of the four major
asset management companies in China), QCCIl (a state-owned
enterprise) and ORIX Corporation (an international large-scale
group providing integrated financial services).

The Group aims at building the most efficient and advanced
renewable energy operation and maintenance platform, and
establishing a green ecosphere by employing a low-carbon and
sustainable development model, so as to bring clean energy into
millions of families.

In the future, the Company will seize the opportunities emerging
from the transformational changes in international energy
industry. By adhering to the development concept of “focusing
on main business, national layout, developing worldwide” and
with rapid quality development as the core, the Company will
accelerate the construction of clean energy industrial ecosystem
dominated by green energy, complemented by multiple energy
sources and characterised by smart collaboration, in order
to become a first-class international clean energy ecological
investment operator and strive to maximize the value of the
Company and the interests of Shareholders.
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Non-Executive Directors
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Ms. Li Hongwei (Chairlady)
Mr. Zhao Bing
Mr. Zhu Jianbiao

Remuneration Committee

Ms. Li Hongwei (Chairlady)
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Nomination Committee
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Risk Control Committee
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SOLICITORS
Bermuda

Conyers Dill & Pearman

Hong Kong
Ashurst Hong Kong

Mainland China
Zhong Yin Law Firm

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Jiangsu Co., Ltd.

Bank of Shanghai Co., Ltd.

China CITIC Bank International Limited

China Development Bank

China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd.

Hua Xia Bank Co., Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Natixis

Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd.

Societe Generale

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN BERMUDA

Ocorian Management (Bermuda) Limited

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1012, 10th Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

WEBSITE
http://www.bjei.com
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Dear Shareholders:

Great achievements originate from small steps. The year of
2021 is destined to be an important year in the development
history of Beijing Energy International Holding Co., Ltd.

Over the past year, arduous efforts converged into a force.
Conforming to the development trend of the renewable energy
industry, the Company moved forward and made certain
achievements. In 2021, BJEI sharpened its strategic direction.
With a firm belief in fight for every inch, it gave full play to
the advantages of mechanism, successfully achieved the
established goals, and delivered a satisfactory answer in terms
of installed capacity and profit indicators etc. We continued
to advance the handling of historical issues and successfully
completed the implementation of ICBC equity financing, credit
loans and US-dollar convertible bonds. The enhancement
of financial management and optimization of debt structure
safeguarded the interests of investors. While consolidating
the foundation of safe production, refining cost control and
strengthening marketing, we carried out engineering construction
in an all round way to continuously improve operating efficiency.
We insisted on efficient decision-making, optimized management
standards, and strengthened risk compliance awareness, to
build a strong legal defense line.

On behalf of the Board, | am hereby pleased to announce the
results of BJEI for the year ended 31 December 2021:

In 2021, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB2,825 million and profit of approximately RMB650 million.
The total assets amounted to approximately RMB46,159
million. The aggregated installed capacity of clean energy
which was controlled by the Company and in which the
Company had confirmed rights was approximately 12GW. Green
electricity produced throughout the year reached approximately
3,879,751MWh.
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IN OUR FURTHER DEVELOPMENT ON THE MISSION OF
“CARBON PEAK” AND “CARBON NEUTRALITY”, WE SHALL
TAKE ADVANTAGE OF THE FAVORABLE ENVIRONMENT,

TO TACKLE CHALLENGES AHEAD, WITH OUR TALENT &
WISDOM, FOR A BRIGHTER FUTURE.

Based on the experience and lessons learned in modernization
development since the Industrial Revolution, human beings has
gradually realized that: the reliance on the high-carbon growth
model dominated by fossil energy has changed the environment
on which human beings live, and the existing development mode
is increasingly showing an unsustainable trend. To achieve
sustainable and healthy development, human beings must
take a green and low-carbon development path. China is still
in a critical period of industrialization and modernization. Its
industrial structure laid particular stress on heavy industry, its
energy structure is biased toward coal, and its energy utilization
efficiency is too low, which makes China’s traditional pollutant
emissions and carbon dioxide emissions at a high level,
seriously affecting the green and low-carbon development and
the construction of ecological civilization.

The proposal of the goals of “carbon peak” and “carbon
neutrality” has global leading effects and proposes a systematic
approach for China’'s green and low-carbon development. The
achievement of the “carbon peak and carbon neutrality” goal
requires a new low-carbon development transformation strategy,
which will greatly accelerate the pace of China’s construction
of a modern energy system, break through the status quo of
energy use, subvert existing technologies, and break traditional
industrial ecology. The realization of the huge transformation
of social and economic system, energy system and technology
system may require investment in an amount of hundreds of
trillions and continuous efforts for decades, which will also
shape economy and employment of higher quality, a more
beautiful ecological environment, and more advanced science
and technology.
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We firmly believe that electrification will be at the heart of
carbon neutrality and that the green transformation of electricity
is fundamental to achieving carbon neutrality. Therefore, building
a clean, safe and reliable new power system dominated by new
energy will be the most severe test that China’s energy industry
will face in the next few decades, and it is a huge challenge but
also an unprecedented major opportunity.

According to statistics, in 2021, the increase in the installed
capacity of wind power and photovoltaic power generation in
the PRC exceeded 100GW, including an increase in wind power
generation of approximately 47.57GW and an increase in
photovoltaic power generation of approximately 54.93GW. As of
the end of 2021, the installed capacity of renewable energy in
the PRC exceeded 1,000GW, including approximately 330GW of
wind power generation and approximately 310GW of photovoltaic
power generation, and the installed capacity of offshore wind
power ranked the first in the world.

The innovation and cost reduction of the whole industry chain
of photovoltaic power generation and wind power generation
will be the most important driving force for the rapid growth
of renewable energy power generation in the future. During
the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, the boundary conditions,
development logic and development mechanism of renewable
energy development will undergo a series of major changes, and
will enter a new stage with the following characteristics:

Large-scale development. At the state level, relying on nine
clean energy bases and four offshore wind power bases,
the focus will be placed on accelerating the planning and
construction of large-scale wind power and photovoltaic base
projects in deserts, Gobi Desert and desert areas and the
cluster development of offshore wind power. It can be noted
that in the future, the development idea for areas rich in wind
power and photovoltaic resources including the Northwest China,
Northeast China, and Southwest China will be scale expansion
and base-centered development, and the electricity will be
transmitted to load-concentrated areas through stable, safe and
reliable extra-high voltage lines. At present, the construction of
the first batch of large-scale base projects of approximately 100
million kilowatts commences in an orderly manner according to
the principle of “commencement of construction immediately
once conditions fulfilled”, and the second batch of base projects
will be officially released in the near future.
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High-quality development. The intermittent characteristic of
wind power and photovoltaic power generation determines that
it is necessary to accelerate the improvement of new energy
consumption and storage capacity, to achieve large-scale
development of renewable energy and high-level consumption
and utilization, which can more effectively guarantee the reliable
and stable power supply and achieve high-quality leapfrog
development. As the proportion of renewable energy power
generation increases, problems in terms of consumption,
transmission and distribution, and fluctuations appear and the
rigid demand for energy storage gradually emerges. Energy
storage will become an important support for the construction
of new power systems and will see explosive growth in the next
decade.

Market-based development. The market will play a decisive role
in the allocation of renewable energy resources. In this process,
in the future, horizontally, a comprehensive energy supply
system will be formed in the form with collaborative supply of
a number of energy sources including “electricity, heat, cooling,
gas and hydrogen” and complementation and coordinated
development of energy sources; vertically, the interactive
optimization of “source, grid, load and storage” will be realized
to give full play to the characteristics of source-side coordination
and complementation, grid-side efficient consumption, load-side
flexible adjustment, and real-time balance of energy storage,
to meet users’ personalized energy consumption needs. Only
by accelerating the construction of a power market mechanism
that adapts to the transformation of the energy structure and
building a unified national power market system can the power
market further play a supporting role in the clean and low-carbon
transformation of energy.
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Digital development. Technological innovation continues to
accelerate and empower industry development. The changes
brought by new technologies to the industry are beyond
imagination. In the future, new technologies will bring more
earth-shaking changes to the energy industry. Digital and
intelligent development of energy is an inevitable trend.
Technologies including “Cloud Computing, Big Data, Internet
of Things, Mobile Internet, Smart City and Blockchain” will be
adopted to break through the data barriers in all parts of the
power industry chain, strengthen the multi-directional interaction
of “source, grid, load and storage”, and use massive data to
drive intelligent regulation and structural transformation of
power supply.

Being committed to becoming a first-class international clean
energy ecological investment operator, the major focus of
BJEI will be on achieving the goal of carbon peak and carbon
neutrality and building a new power system. The Company
will also get rid of the dependence on existing mindset and
traditional path, and earnestly study the new development model
that conforms to the construction of the new power system;
it will be brave to carry out the second reform. Based on the
development logic and characteristics under the new normal
of China’s economy, the Company will organically combine
investment drive and innovative development and put it into
action, and achieve differentiated competitive advantages by
promoting strengths and avoiding weaknesses in clean and low-
carbon development of energy.

IN THE FACE OF FIERCE COMPETITION IN THE FIELD
OF NEW ENERGY, WE, BEING WELL-EQUIPPED AND
DETERMINED, WILL SEIZE THE OPPORTUNITIES TO
ACHIEVE PROSPEROUS DEVELOPMENT IN THE END.

At present, the renewable energy industry of the PRC has
entered a new era: Firstly, the industrial structure is gradually
solidified. The upstream equipment suppliers in the industry
are in a situation where the strong stays strong, the industry
concentration is getting higher and higher, and the bargaining
power of leading companies is getting stronger and stronger.
At the investment and operation level in the midstream and
downstream of the industry, central enterprises of energy
industry have increased their investment scale, and non-
traditional central enterprises of energy industry have also
accelerated their entry into the industry. As a result, the
market space has been gradually squeezed. Secondly, the
integration of the industrial chain is intensifying. The policy
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orientation of the state’s encouragement of the development of
renewable energy is very obvious. The downstream investment
is gradually extending to the upstream manufacturing end such
as large-capacity wind turbines, high-efficiency components,
energy storage, and hydrogen energy. The trend of industrial
chain integration is obvious. Thirdly, the construction of the
energy Internet is accelerating, which will become the biggest
development trend and value-added space for China’s economy
and China’s energy in the future and also an important carrier
for future urban renewal and rural revitalization. Cross-industry
integration will become its important feature.

The year of 2022 is an important year for the “14th Five-Year
Plan” of the PRC to link the past and the future, and it is also a
year for BJEI to set off from a new starting point and set sail.

For the rapidly developing BJEI, the most important thing is
how to continue to give play to our mechanism advantages and
answer the key question of “what kind of BJEI should be built
and how to achieve high-quality development”. Considering
the overall situation from a global perspective, the efficient
execution under the overall situation will release the vigorous
energy and huge potential of the entire team, achieve new
breakthroughs in the Company, and reward all Shareholders.
We will determine the direction to unswervingly implement the
first-class strategic goals of the Company; we will lay a solid
foundation, continue to conduct reform, and comprehensively
optimize the basic management system of the Company, to
achieve high efficiency and compliance; adhering to value drive,
we will exert efforts on the key points to enhance the core
competitiveness of the Company, and promote the Company
to accelerate its transformation and upgrading; we will make
steady progress, and be busy and orderly and plan ahead in the
fierce market competition, to achieve sustainable and healthy
development.
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Acceleration of scale up. We will insist on independent
development and leverage on the advantages of enterprises in
the capital, to proactively promote the project planning of “Green
Power into Beijing” and the upgrading and transformation of
structure of BJEI; surrounding the national large bases plan,
the layout of large-scale wind power and photovoltaic power
generation bases in “Northeast China, North China and Northwest
China” will be accelerated; the stress will be laid on building
photovoltaic clusters in Hebei, Shandong, Shanxi, Guangxi,
Guangdong, Hainan and other regions; efforts will be made to
achieve breakthroughs in offshore wind power projects. We should
think about how to achieve breakthrough in overseas business
from the perspective of capital operation, study the path of
innovative listing of assets, and convert assets holding into equity
holding through asset securitization, so as to ensure the flexibility
of capital inflow and outflow and maximize the value of assets.

Development of integrated energy. The focus will be placed
on “big cities, large parks, and large enterprises”. Market
expansion will be expedited in the central and eastern and
coastal areas which are economically developed with good
consumption capacity through the comprehensive energy use
solution of “source, grid, load and storage, and multi-energy
complementation”. The development focus will be on photovoltaic
power storage and charging, combined cooling, heating and power,
waste heat utilization, energy saving optimization, etc. Refined
and in-depth development will be conducted in the subdivision
fields to form comparative advantages; energy storage will be
the key investment direction of the Company’s integrated energy.
The Company will start the layout of key regions in line with policy
orientation.

Improvement of technical capabilities. We will speed up the
promotion of the light asset service business layout dominated
by electricity market trading, carbon assets and carbon trading,
design consulting, survey and design, and intelligent operation
and maintenance, and form the consulting service capabilities
for the whole process from the requirements analysis, planning
preparation and scheme design in the early stage to the
equipment selection, engineering construction and operation in
the later stage, to provide technical support for the heavy asset
segment. The establishment of a professional team will be
quickened to study the “operation and maintenance + trading”
integrated plan for the trend of new energy trading. Model
innovation and business breakthroughs will be mainly made in
green power trading and carbon trading, to improve the production
and operation level of the Company.
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Construction of industrial ecology. Based on the supporting
models of new energy investment industries in various regions,
strategic cooperation with enterprises of advanced agriculture,
high-efficiency components, energy storage and hydrogen energy
will be strengthened, striving for projects through the overall
advantages of “energy + industry”. Centering on the digital
transformation of the Company, the layout of strategic emerging
businesses will be sped up, focusing on the value increment in
the upstream and downstream industrial chain of clean energy.
The research will be mainly on the investment and incubation of
new technologies in energy storage, hydrogen energy, etc., and
the Company’s valuation will be enhanced through creating new
core competitiveness by building an industrial ecology.

Intensification of equity financing. While accelerating the
introduction of strategic investors at the listed company level,
the Company will simultaneously promote the introduction of
strategic investors at the project level to further reduce the
asset-liability ratio. The research focus will be the securitization
of existing subsidized assets, to revitalize the existing arrears
of national subsidies receivable and reduce capital costs; the
existing project financing structure will be optimized and the
financing replacement will be expedited to further reduce the
interest rate of project financing.

Acceleration of digital transformation. The Company will rely on
its business development to tap its scientific and technological
innovation points, intensify the independent research and
development of applied scientific and technological innovation
based on business scenarios, and jointly explore, develop and
research original technologies in the clean and low-carbon
energy field with external professional institutions, to enhance
the Company’s scientific and technological content.
proactively promote the integration of digital economy and
business, use new technology products to improve the efficiency
of business scenarios, and focus on building a big data energy
service platform. With the accumulation of the Company’s data
assets and intensified digital application of the Company’s
management system, the Company has formed the productivity
that can improve management efficiency and provide reference
for analysis and decision-making, which becomes the Company’s
most valuable core value.

It will
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Consolidation of basic management. The Company’s overall
management system framework will be formed through
acceleration of the construction of a flexible, concise and
efficient management system, improvement of standard
construction, optimization of the management system and
workflow, and organic links with clear business interfaces. The
Company will improve the mechanism for integration of five
systems of standards, compliance, internal control, risk and
legal affairs, and perfect the “five-in-one” management and
control system, strengthen the study and publicity, effective
implementation and execution of the standard system, to realize
closed-loop management of work and promote the continuous
improvement of basic management level.

Shaping of brand culture. By virtue of the release of the
Company’s new logo, the Company will speed up the shaping
of corporate brand and corporate culture, create a working
atmosphere featured by “simple and efficient, active and
harmonious, and strive to be the first”, cultivate a corporate
character of “born due to responsibility, set a strategy according
to the situation, pull together, and work hard”, and spread the
brand image of “delivering bright, warming life”. The Company
will attract talents through market-based remuneration and
incentive mechanism and retain talents through diversified and
international career development paths, to continue to build a
highly combative, united and reliable business team with strong
executive force.

Maintenance of investor relations. In compliance with
the Listing Rules and relevant regulations, the Company
will standardize information disclosure, establish a public
opinion crisis handling mechanism, and unblock the publicity
channel. The communication with Shareholders, Directors
and partners will be further strengthened to consolidate the
community of long-term interests. The value concept will be
practiced to form a normalized communication mechanism to
strengthen communication with industry analysts, investors,
securities media and other market entities, carry out investor
relationship management by category to fully demonstrate the
Company’s intrinsic value and development momentum, allow
more investors to understand and comprehend the Company,
continuously enhance investor confidence, and effectively
improve the Company’s valuation to maximize the interests of
Shareholders.
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In 2022, challenges and opportunities will coexist. Although
the pandemic has not disappeared and will affect all aspects
of social life in a more profound way, and despite the turbulent
international situation, in the long run, win-win cooperation and
balanced and inclusive benefits are the consensus of global
development and the background of economic globalization will
not be reversed. Facing all kinds of uncertainties, we need more
courage to face the future. In terms of photovoltaic and wind
power generation, the Company will firmly forge ahead towards
the goal of “becoming a first-class international clean energy
ecological investment operator” and persist in accelerating
the increase in installed capacity to gain an important right
of speech in the new energy industry, while speeding up the
entry into the comprehensive energy business focusing on
the user side, attaching great importance to the huge market
space for auxiliary services brought by the construction of a
new power system, and empowering development by means of
accumulation of technology and data.

Last but not least, |, on behalf of the Board, would like to
express my sincere gratitude to the Shareholders and investors
for their trust and support.

THE ERA IS STILL PROMISING, AND WE WILL MOVE
FORWARD WITH GREAT STRIDES. BJEI WILL WORK HAND
IN HAND WITH YOU TO FORGE AHEAD!

Zhang Ping
Chairman of the Board

29 March 2022
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2021 HIGHLIGHTS
20214 K H5d

JUNE 758

Successfully implemented equity financing
business of RMB3 billion.
R Ih& M A R IE30R TR B FE TS o

Successfully issued US$50,000,000 3.8%
convertible bonds due 2024.

BRINET R 2 _MERHR50,000,000% 7T
3.8% P BB 5 o

Won the tender for phase |l rooftop
distributed photovoltaic project in Qianhai

JULY ‘l: Bonded Logistics Park.
ﬁ IR RAERRYAEERTED R

Jiaxing 17MW building-integrated —HIEE -

photovoltaic power project commenced

construction. Won the tender for the 6.5MW distributed
=EHI7IKEMNAEE — 2B R photovoltaic power generation project of
Lo Fengtai Station of Beijing Railway.

PRI AR IE R 8 5 146.5 K R 0 Bt
ABBEE -

Yantai Qixia 112MW photovoltaic power
generation project commenced construction.

BESEEI112KRCAREEEEMI -

AUGUST /\ H

Obtained agricultural and photovoltaic complementary
power generation project with a quota of 200MW in
Xigu District, Lanzhou City, Gansu Province.
EHREL2MNTARE2000k RN EHMES
HBEHER

. o
r’v“‘-\.‘ F gt ."L"-"h "‘H

e
I TR e e B




OCTOBER + 8

Successively obtained new energy projects
with a quota of 600MW in Shanxi Province,
Inner Mongolia and Guangxi Province.
EENFLUAE ARG EAE600KE
WAERIER IR

2021 HIGHLIGHTS
20214 K Hid

NOVEMBER +—H

Obtained new energy project with a quota of
282MW in Shandong Province.
EELRE282KEMEREBIER

DECEMBER +—_18

Obtained new energy project with a quota of 200MW in Hainan Province.
ERBEAE100KRHEREE IR

Gaoyou South Economic Zone 100MW agricultural and photovoltaic complementary
photovoltaic power generation project commenced construction.

SEHHELENERI00KRENXNEMCAEEEBML

Jiaxing 17MW building-integrated photovoltaic power project got grid-connected.
EEITIKRARER—RBCIEB BN HAY -

3.4MW distributed photovoltaic project in the International Land Port of Mafang Town,
Pinggu commenced on-grid generation.

THEDHEBEREEANESHANREEEAHBEESE -

Shunyi Yanjing Brewery 7.6MW distributed photovoltaic project commenced on-grid
generation.

B &R EER7 .6 R DA NKRBEE ERHEES -

Zhucheng 50MW agricultural and photovoltaic complementary project commenced on-
gird generation.
#IMS0JK LR BB E E AR E o
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GREEN ENERGY #:ffE]R

Green future promoting low-carbon clean energy and
responding to global climate change

EARREESEHBRER BHE2KREET

N
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Thousands Tons
Saved Standard Coal
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EAEVEEA

N

2,587

Thousands
Households’ Electricity
Consumption in a Year

258.7=
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J

176,391

Thousands
Trees Planted

17,639.1=
IR B
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The total electricity generation volume for 2021 is 3 8 7 9 7 5 1 MWh equivalent to:
2021FREEJD , 7 KEFFAEER

|
3,228

Thousands Tons
Reduced Emission of
Carbon Dioxide

322.8=m

—SEHORBEE

N4

2NN

Reduced Emission of Soot

1,940

Tons

1,940
EE R E

116

Thousands Tons
Reduced Emission of
Sulphur Dioxide

11.65%
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N
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

AR B2

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Ping, aged 54, was appointed as the executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board of the Company on
21 February 2020. He is also the chairmen of the nomination
committee and the risk control committee of the Company. Mr.
Zhang served as the assistant to the general manager, the
secretary to the board of directors and group office director of
Beijing Energy Holding Co., Ltd.* QL HEREBERSEAT),
which is a controlling shareholder of the Company; the deputy
director of the party-masses work department, the director of
the general manager work department, the assistant to the
general manager, the secretary of the discipline inspection
committee and the chairman of the labor union of Inner
Mongolia Daihai Electric Power Generation Co., Ltd.* (R&
588 EAMREEAT); the manager of the comprehensive
management department and the vice president of Beijing
Jingneng International Power Co., Ltd.* (1t R R AEEE PR AE TR AR
BBR/AE)); the secretary of the party committee and the general
manager of Inner Mongolia Daihai Electric Power Generation Co.,
Ltd.* (REEHNEEEBREMTELE); the general manager
of Beijing Jingneng Thermal Power Co., Ltd.* (bR RAEZNTE /G
BBEPRAT); the deputy chairman, the secretary of the party
general branch and the general manager of Beijing Jingneng
Power Co., Ltd.* QERREBIRINBRAT), the shares of
which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600578); the executive director and the general manager of
Beijing Jingneng Coal-fired Power Asset Management Co., Ltd.*
ERZREEEEEEEBRAT); the chairman and general
manager of Beijing Jingneng International Power Co., Ltd.* (1t
RAEEEBERARD ABR/A ) ; and the non-executive director of
Datang International Power Generation Co., Ltd., the shares of
which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 991) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
601991). Mr. Zhang has over 30 years of extensive experience
in the energy industry. Mr. Zhang obtained a master’s degree in
business administration from Fudan University and a doctorate
degree in management from North China Electric Power
University.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lu Zhenwei, aged 51, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 10 June 2013 and is a member
of the risk control committee of the Company. Mr. Lu is also
a director and the chairman of the board of directors of each
of China Merchants New Energy Group Limited and China
Merchants Technology Holdings Company Limited, the deputy
general manager of China Merchants Innovation Investment
Management Limited* EEBAIHKEEEEREIT AR,
the general manager of Shenzhen China Merchants Yinke
Investment Management Ltd.* CFYIHHEEFERNKESE
BR/AT), and the director of New Energy Exchange Limited.
Mr. Lu previously served as a director of Beijing Huahuan
Electronics Co., Ltd.* (JtREIREFRMHBIRAE])and China
KZ High Technology Co., Ltd.* (FEIRHBEEMEBRAE).
From May 2003 to May 2008, Mr. Lu served as a director of
Shenzhen GuoHua Network Security Technology Co., Ltd.* (&
EEFLZ R RID B RAS) (formerly known as Shenzhen
CAU Technology Co., Ltd.* (EIIFEEARILBHERAR)),
whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 000004). Mr. Lu possesses profound understanding and
unique insights in project financing and business operation and
has more than ten years’ experience in financial management,
business management and project investment. Mr. Lu obtained
a bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai Maritime
University and a master’s degree in finance from Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law.

Mr. Wang Heng, aged 35, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 27 January 2022 and is a member
of the risk control committee of the Company. Mr. Wang is also
a director and deputy general manager of Qingdao Chengtou
Industrial Investment (Group) Co., Ltd.* (EEWMEEX£KEE
(2E) BIR/AT)), which is a subsidiary of the Company’s
substantial shareholder, Qingdao City Construction Investment
(Group) Co., Ltd.* (BEEETERKSE (@) AREEAH),
and a director and general manager of Qingdao Chengtou New
Energy Investment Co., Ltd.* (EEMEHERKEBRE QD).
Mr. Wang served as a non-executive director of the Company
from June 2019 to June 2020; a business manager of Qingdao
Urban and Rural Construction Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.* (B &
WAELBEREBRAT) from May 2014 to February 2017.
Mr. Wang has extensive experience in the renewable energy
industry. He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in economics from
Qingdao Agricultural University.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Bing, aged 44, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 29 January 2021 and is a member
of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Zhao also serves
as a director and general manager of Beijing Energy Investment
(Hong Kong) Co., Limited QEREREEER (FH) BRAR),
which is a direct controlling shareholder of the Company; the
head of finance department of Beijing Energy Holding Co., Ltd.*
(UEREBREBBREF(EAE), which is an indirect controlling
shareholder of the Company; the chairman and the general
manager of Beijing Jingneng International Power Co., Ltd.* (1t
RAEEERAE RGN B PR/A T ; a director of Bank of Beijing Co.,
Ltd.* GERIRTTIRIDBIRAE), the shares of which are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601169); and a
director of Beijing Haohua Energy Resource Co., Ltd.* Jt R R
BERRE 12 B FR/A ) (“Haohua Energy”), the shares of which are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601101).
Mr. Zhao served as the deputy general manager and the chief
accountant of Beijing Jingneng Power Co., Ltd.* QbR RAEE
2R B BR/AF), the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600578), successively from March
2018 to July 2020; the financial controller and the director
of Haohua Energy, successively from March 2017 to May
2018; the head of strategic investment department of Beijing
Jingmei Group Co., Ltd.* bR RIEEEBREMERE) from
June 2016 to March 2017; the head of securities department
of Haohua Energy from June 2013 to June 2016; the deputy
general manager and the financial controller of Erdos Haohua
Clean Coal Co., Ltd.* (SIBZHTRERBEERSTLE)
successively from June 2009 to June 2013; the deputy head of
finance department of Haohua Energy from November 2007 to
June 2009. Mr. Zhao has extensive experience in finance and
management. Mr. Zhao is a senior accountant who graduated
from Heilongjiang University of Science and Technology with
a bachelor's degree in management, and received a master’'s
degree in finance from Queen’s University in Canada.
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Mr. Su Yongjian, aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 25 February 2022. He is also the
members of the remuneration committee and the risk control
committee of the Company. Mr. Su also serves as the head of
energy investment department of Beijing Energy Holding Co.,
Ltd.* GEREETFREBEBREMEAE), which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Su served as the secretary
of the party committee and the executive director of Jingneng
Dongfeng (Shiyan) Energy Development Co., Ltd.* (RAEE &
(+18) sERZE BB R/AT); the executive director of Jingneng
Shiyan Thermal Power Co., Ltd.* (REEHIEHEBIRAF); the
deputy general manager, the general manager, the secretary of
the party committee and the chairman of the board of Ningxia
Jingneng Ningdong Power Generation Co., Ltd.* (EE RAEE
BEAHEEEAT); and the deputy general manager of Inner
Mongolia Huaning Thermal Power Co., Ltd.* (N& HIZEZEE
BIR/AT)). Mr. Su has considerable technical expertise in the
electric power industry and extensive experience in operational
management. He has received many awards including the 2020
China Advanced Entrepreneur, the 2021 Science and Technology
Innovation Leader, as well as the Model Worker and the Quality
Contribution Award of Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region. Mr. Su
is a professorate senior engineer, and received a master’s
degree in electrical engineering from North China Electric Power
University.
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Mr. Li Hao, aged 40, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 20 March 2017, and is a member of the
risk control committee of the Company. Mr. Li is concurrently
the executive officer and responsible for Greater China Group at
ORIX Corporation, a diversified financial services company and
whose shares are listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange (securities
code: 8591) and on the New York Stock Exchange (trading
symbol: IX). Mr. Li has been with ORIX Corporation since October
2007. He is also the director and president of both ORIX Asia
Capital Limited and ORIX (China) Investment Corporation* (EX/]
+ (hE) BB BRAF), which are wholly-owned subsidiaries
of ORIX Corporation. Mr. Li has been serving as a non-executive
director of Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd., since 27 August
2018, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2255). Mr. Li has also been serving as a non-executive
director and a vice-chairman of Shoucheng Holdings Limited,
since 27 September 2018 and 15 February 2022, respectively,
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
697). Mr. Li graduated from the Graduate School of Finance,
Accounting and Law at Waseda University in Japan with a
Master's degree in business administration for finance. He has
more than 14 years of experience in the fields of investment
banking and finance.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Jin Xinbin, aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 31 December 2020. She
is also the members of the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Company. Ms. Jin served as the
general manager of Huaneng Energy & Communications Holding
Co., Ltd.* (FEREERRBEETRAERALQE); the chairman
of the board, general manager and deputy general manager
of China Huaneng International Economic Trading Company*
(PEEMEFREEE F AT ; the general manager of Hebei
branch of China Huaneng Group Co., Ltd.* (PEZEFER AR
‘A7) ; the deputy general manager of Huaneng Raw Materials
Company* (ZEFERMEI/AF]); the vice president of Hebei
Product Enterprise (Group) Company* CHIIE¥IETE (EE) A
@) . Ms. Jin also served as an external director of Beijing Energy
Holding Co., Ltd.* (JtREEREEBREEAT), which is a
controlling shareholder of the Company, from March 2015 to
March 2019. Ms. Jin has extensive experience in management
and the energy industry. Ms. Jin is a professor-level senior
engineer. She obtained a bachelor's degree in metallurgical
machinery and equipment from Northeastern University and a
master’s degree in economics from Hebei University.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Li Hongwei, aged 60, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 18 June 2021.
She is also the chairladies of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company. Ms. Li currently
also serves as an independent director of China High Speed
Railway Technology Co., Ltd.* (MW SEEMKRNDERA
&), the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000008) and an independent director
of People.cn Co., Ltd.* (AE#HEKRNHERAE), the shares of
which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
603000). Ms. Li served as the chief financial officer at deputy
general manager level of Beijing MTR Corporation Limited* (3t
REUBHEEAR/AT); a deputy general manager and general
manager of finance and accounting department, a general
manager and the chief financial officer (financial controller) of
the securities clearing department of Beijing Securities Co.,
Ltd.* Ut RFBEHHBREEAT); a supervisor of China Asset
Management Co., Ltd.* GEEESETEERAE); a member
of financial accounting committee of securities industry of
Securities Association of China (SAC); a manager of taxation
department of Beijing Xinghua Certified Public Accountants;
the chief financial officer at deputy general manager level of
Beijing Heguang International Jewelry Co., Ltd.* (35 &A% R
kEABBR/AT); and a consultant of MTR Technical Consultancy
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.* (B#F1irs5:8 (b)) BRAR). Ms. Li is
a senior accountant, certified public accountant of China (CPA)
and certified tax agent of China (CTA), with extensive experience
in financial management and accounting industry. Ms. Li
successively studied political economics in School of Economics
at Beijing College of Economics and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics, and studied industrial economics in
School of Business at Renmin University of China and obtained
a doctorate degree in industrial economics.

TS NS P )

B ANtHR R_E_—FA+N
HEZTAXRADBILIERNTES -HINA
ANBBEZEZEGRFWEETER =L
TR AENSEEMRAEBRAR (HRERMD
LERIEESF R ZEr L BREADS 1 000008)
BUBERARERMDEBERAD (EHRERHMV L
BESRZHM LT REMRE ¢ 603000) &
UBEF - FuITEFERTEBEHBEAERAT
B4R IE - B R ARES IE RS ARERE LT
Mt IRl 4B ACIE 4B ASIE ) B A AL B AR
KIEBE-HaT AR EEEASEE
BRABBS, PES5ERIESEME
EHEXELESRRE I RBEEGHMNER
FTi &R ; LR CEHBRHKEERA S
BI4RASIE — BAFS 4RSS LU G R B R T4
(R BARABETEBE -EXTAES K
GETET s PR ot R P B s AR RS EW
EEEENUEEER I RERK T
TEAERIIRKESREESKEZRBA
RESHZE NWERKESZS2 L824 UK
BARAZIBHEESRBEEERESRSR
EOWERESKESIE LS.

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JustfETRBRE%AE A PR 23 )

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 — % ——4E4E#)

25



26

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

O TS NS Pl )

Mr. Zhu Jianbiao, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 18 June 2021. He is
also the members of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Zhu currently also serves as a
non-executive director of China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial
Group Limited* (FEILESREMEBFRAE), the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 412)
and a responsible officer of Sunfine Asset Management (Hong
Kong) Limited* (B2 & EEIE (F8) BR/AT), a corporation
holding Type 9 asset management license under the SFO. Mr.
Zhu served as the chairman and the chief executive officer
of Longfine Capital Management (Henggin) Co., Ltd.* (E&
EAEE (BZE) BRAT); the chief operating officer and
members of the investment decision committee and the
investment management committee of CITIC Private Equity
Funds Management Co., Ltd.* (REEXKEESEEF/RAL
Tl); the executive deputy general manager and the chairman
of the investment decision committee of Changsheng Fund
Management Co., Ltd.* (EERESEIEAEMRAST); the chief
inspector of Golden Hawk Fund Management Co., Ltd.* (£
E&EEAEMRAFT); an assistant manager of the investment
banking department of Guangzhou Securities Co., Ltd.* (EE M
BERMBERAT); and a lecturer of faculty of investment
and finance of Guangdong University of Business Studies. Mr.
Zhu has extensive experience in private equity investment,
secondary market investment and financial management. Mr.
Zhu graduated from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics
in planning & statistics with a bachelor’s degree in economics,
and holds a master’s and doctorate degrees in finance from
Jinan University.

KRYEEE O+ N\E RZIBEZ—FXA
TNBEZERERTVBEILFAITEST K
NRAENBDEZEZEGRIELEZETERE -
REEBMTATBEURSERERERAR
ANE (HRMGIREIFr LT RMOASE : 412)
FRTEFKIESEEERE (FE) ARQF
FERBEISRPERABENEEEEE
MEIRBVEE) MEBAB REEBREEEE
AEE BB ARRFDESEREFENTE;
P EEXREETCEERFARLABEFES
BE-RERRZEELZENKREEEELZET
%8 REESEERRATBHABEE
RERARRZEGIF , EBESEEARRA
AERE; EMNESRNERATDKRERT
HMEE, RERARERRETMAHEN R
TEEESENALERERE - “HHHERE
UhEmMEBESER - KRAERXNIAM
RARBSERAS BRREHESS LB

THEEEEABEMBBETRELRM-

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JtstRETRBIRER A R A ]

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —- % ——4E4E



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Zhu Jun, aged 54, was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company on 18 September 2020. He is also a
president of the Group and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Zhu joined the Group in March 2020. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Zhu served as a manager of equipment
maintenance department, an assistant to general manager
and the secretary of party branch of Shanxi Zhangshan Electric
Power Co., Ltd.* (WFAAEWLEEZEBREEAQE) (“Shanxi
Zhangshan EP”) successively from April 2003 to December
2004; a chief engineer and deputy general manager of Shanxi
Zhangshan EP successively from December 2004 to March
2009; a deputy general manager of Guodian Power Dalian
Zhuanghe Power Generation Co., Ltd.* (El&E & AEIT A2 E
BIREEAT]) from March 2009 to March 2010; the secretary
of the party committee, executive director and general manager
of Beijing Jingfeng Gas Fired Power Co., Ltd. * (JbRTE LR
REBARSEAT) and an executive director and general
manager of Beijing Jingfeng Thermal Power Co., Ltd.* QbR R
WHEFARSEALT) successively from March 2010 to June
2018; a deputy general manager of Beijing Jingneng Clean
Energy Co., Limited* (bR RAEFZERBENRMNBRLRED)
(“Jingneng Clean Energy”), the shares of which are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 579)
from June 2018 to February 2020, and served as an executive
director of Jingneng Clean Energy from June 2019 to May
2020. Mr. Zhu has extensive experience in the energy industry.
Mr. Zhu is a senior engineer in power engineering technology.
He graduated from Electric Power Division of Shanxi Taiyuan
University of Industry* (IULFARKFETEKREEN D) with a
bachelor's degree in power plant thermal power and received
a master’'s degree in engineering from School of Power and
Mechanical Engineering from Wuhan University in industrial
engineering.
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Huang Hui, aged 49, was appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company on 21 February 2020. He is also a vice
president of the Group and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Huang served as an executive director of the
Company; a deputy head of management division of finance
department and head of price control division of Inner Mongolia
Power (Group) Co., Ltd.* (REHEBE (EE) EREEAE);
a deputy manager of financial department of Beijing Jingneng
International Power Co., Ltd.* (b R RBEE R EERRD BIEA
T]) ; a chief accountant and a secretary to the board of directors
of Beijing Jingneng Power Co., Ltd.* Gt RFBEB HKRMHER
‘ATl), the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600578); a chief accountant of Beijing
Jingneng Clean Energy Co., Ltd.* QLR RFEEZBERE IRD
BIR/ATE]), the shares of which are listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 579), a chief accountant of
its Beijing branch and a supervisor; a deputy department head
of financial management department of Beijing Energy Holding
Co., Ltd.* JtREERERBREE LT, which is an indirect
controlling shareholder of the Company; a director and deputy
general manager of Beijing Energy Investment (Hong Kong) Co.,
Limited QEREERIEEEE (F8) BIRAE]), which is a direct
controlling shareholder of the Company; and a director of BEH
Finance Co., Ltd.* (REEEEMFFBRAF). Mr. Huang has
extensive experience in finance and management. Mr. Huang
graduated from the Department of Finance of Inner Mongolia
University of Finance and Economics with a bachelor's degree
in economics majored in monetary banking, and received a
master's degree in business administration from North China
Electric Power University.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
Diversification of Investment Locations and Portfolios

During the Year, the Group, striving to be a leading global
eco-development solutions provider, was principally engaged in
the development, investment, operation and management of
power plants and other renewable energy projects.

Power Plant Projects

During the Year, the Group accelerated the pace of scale
expansion development of clean energy by actively expanding
the management scale of the solar power and wind power
businesses through self-development and mergers and
acquisitions, as well as continuously improving the management
of its existing solar power business. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group had 97 solar power plants and 7 wind power plants
(31 December 2020: 55 solar power plants) with aggregate
installed capacity of approximately 4,168.02MW (31 December
2020: approximately 2,070.40MW). As at 31 December 2021,
all of the power plants of the Group were located in the PRC.
The Group has well-diversified its solar and wind power plants in
21 different provinces during the Year (31 December 2020: 17).

The Group strategically develops, constructs and acquires power
plants to achieve predetermined minimal rate of return and
selects its power plants based on a combination of factors,
including solar irradiation of the site, wind velocity of the site,
applicable FITs, government subsidies, conditions for local grid
connection, electricity transmission infrastructure and demand
for electricity.

Other Renewable Energy Projects

The Group owned development rights mainly in hydropower with
an expected capacity of over 5GW. The Company indirectly holds
75% of the equity interest in the project companies while the
remaining 25% is indirectly held by the People’s Government
of Tibet Autonomous Region. The Group is waiting for the
planning of the PRC government’s ecological red line before the
construction of any hydropower plants.

In the short run, the Group will focus on the development
of solar and wind power businesses, while diversifying its
renewable energy portfolios in order to supplement the
multi-type energy supply in the long run.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB i L B

Electricity Generation

During the Year, the total electricity generated by the
power plants of the Group has significantly increased from

%E

REFE AEB#ES

’LS E/J I\Vué;%a% = g

—EFEMLN2,795,834K LI KIBIE NEL

approximately 2,795,834MWh in 2020 to approximately 3,879,751JKF B> EIE438.8% - FTE &%
3,879,751MWh, or by approximately 38.8%. All these power ZBIEHEHMEL —BHZFEES-
plants are grid-connected and are generating electricity steadily.
Table 1: Summary of Power Plants x1: HEULHE
Year ended 31 December
HE+-A=+-HLEE
2021 2020
ZEI-F “22%f
Weighted Weighted
Number  Aggregate average Number  Aggregate average
of power  installed Electricity utilisation ~ of power  installed  Electricity  utilisation
plants  capacity generation hours plants capacity  generation hours
A Bk L3 mETH BB L mETs
g8 RE B¥EE  NANE #E RE B MANE
(MW) (MWh) (Hours) (MW) (MWh) (Hours)
(kE)  CKER) (1K) GkR)  CKRE) (1E)
Solar power plants AEREEEBIS 97 3,841.72 3,797,021 1,404 552 2,070.40 2,795,834 1,311
Wind power plants BAEE 7 32630 82,730 N/A RERW - - N/AFERE
104 4,168.02 3,879,751 55 2,070.40 2,795,834
Notes: B 5

(1) Since the electricity generated by the newly acquired wind power
plants was only recorded starting from their respective completion
dates of acquisition, and the period was less than one month,
the weighted average utilisation hours were not comparable and
therefore not applicable.

(2) In order to meet the actual operational management needs,
the Group has made necessary aggregation and adjustment to
the number of power plants under its management, which does
not affect the installed capacity of the power plants under its
management.

The details of the electricity generated from each province
for the Year are set out as below. For accounting purpose,
the volume of electricity generated by the newly acquired or
constructed power plants during the Year was only recorded
starting from their respective completion dates of acquisition or
construction, as the case may be.
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Table 2: Information of Power Plants by Settlement Type

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2

At 31 December 2021
RZE--#+-B=+-H

B PR i B 53 A

BEFHEEZS N BEEEH

Year ended 31 December 2021
BEZZ--E+"A=1-HLEE

Number Number Approximate Average tariff
of solar of wind  grid-connected Electricity per kWh
power plants® power plants® installed capacity generation Revenue  (net of VAT)
§TRE
AR bl Vit e THER
Bi#HB® BEHE RERY RE8 A (® qui‘”fEﬁ)
Settlement type (MW) MWh) (RMB’ million) (RMB
GHEY Location & (kE) (kE®) (AE%EET) (AE’ﬁ%n)
I. Total capacity on-grid
. 28tHY
Hebei, China 15 - 838.49 88,584 72 0.81
Inner Mongolia, China 22 - 655.00 966,377 735 0.76
Xinjiang, China 6 2 419.50 488,365 256 0.52
Shanxi, China 2 4 336.80 251,123 164 0.65
Shaanxi, China 1 - 300.00 312,432 207 0.66
Qinghai, China 4 1 240.00 290,669 241 0.83
Ningxia, China 1 - 200.00 285,360 218 0.76
Guangdong, China 3 - 190.00 127,314 100 0.78
Shandong, China 4 130.00 94,116 80 0.86
Hunan, China 2 - 120.00 115,859 98 0.85
Anhui, China 1 - 100.00 121,975 80 0.65
Gansu, China 1 - 100.00 149,957 113 0.75
Hubei, China 1 - 100.00 111,819 99 0.89
Tibet, China 5 - 95.00 142,199 127 0.89
Guangxi, China 2 - 80.00 86,790 73 0.84
Yunnan, China 2 - 54.80 84,058 60 0.72
Sichuan, China 2 - 50.00 91,334 61 0.67
Zhejiang, China 2 - 30.92 - = =
Jilin, China Bl 1 - 15.00 - - -
Henan, China FEL 3 - 10.29 = = =
Sub-total N 80 7 4,065.80 3,808,331 2,784 0.73
Il. Surplus capacity on-grid
Il tRELA@
China (no partition) HEER
(FRHE) 17 - 102.22 71,420 41 0.57
Sub-total N 17 - 102.22 71,420 41 057
TOTAL &t 97 7 4,168.02 3,879,751 2,825 0.73
Notes: fft =%
(1) In order to adapt to the business development needs of the Group, (1) AT EEREREBBRER SLEDEHR

the classification of power plants has been adjusted according
to different types of settlement. The total capacity on-grid mode
refers to the settlement of all electricity generated by a power plant
with the grid; while the surplus capacity on-grid mode means that a
portion of the electricity generated by a power plant is sold directly
to the end-user and the surplus electricity is settled with the grid.

In order to meet the actual operational management needs,
the Group has made necessary aggregation and adjustment to
the number of power plants under its management, which does
not affect the installed capacity of the power plants under its
management.

BTREHRNEE 28 PR 258
FEBE2NRBOLETRY BB LBE
SEBEAMUEE — S5 ERNERBET

= 0 E AR B2
AR e EEBRERETER

RmEEREE » AR EE B H PR B Uk
E’J%{EL’T?T%KE’J E,.h )S’z.ﬁ” > ZEAB R
BARERMEBUNEREE-

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JustfETRBRE%AE A PR 23 )

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 — % ——4E4E#)

31



32

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB i L B

Financing

The power generation business is capital intensive in nature.
The Group has been exploring various financing channels to
enhance its financing capability and reduce its finance costs.
During the Year, the Group has raised funds by means of debt
financing and issue of convertible bonds. As at 31 December
2021, the effective interest rate for bank and other borrowings
was approximately 4.40% (31 December 2020: approximately
4.70%).

On 7 May 2021, a capital increase agreement was entered
into by two indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
and UP Changzhou (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as at the date of entering into the capital increase
agreement) with ICBC Financial Asset Investment Co., Ltd.* (T
EEMBEEKLBABRAT) (“ICBC Investment”) in relation to the
deemed disposal of no more than 29.43% equity interest in UP
Changzhou to ICBC Investment for a consideration of RMB3,000
million (the “Capital Increase”). The transaction was completed
in June 2021. The Capital Increase not only was structured
for the purpose of financing where the Company would obtain
funding from ICBC Investment, but also would enable UP
Changzhou to raise funds to repay its debts and reduce the
reliance of UP Changzhou on the financial support from the
Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 29 June 2021, the Company successfully issued three-year
convertible bonds in the principal amount of US$50 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB320 million) due 2024 to high-
quality institutional investors, which marks the affirmation from
international capital market and confidence on the Company’s
future development. The convertible bonds bear coupon rate of
3.8% per annum and are convertible into shares of the Company
at a conversion price of HK$0.33 per share. The market price of
the Company’s shares listed on the Stock Exchange on 22 June
2021, being the last trading day before the date on which the
terms of the subscription agreement were fixed, was HK$0.275
per share. The net proceeds from the issue of the convertible
bonds amounted to approximately US$49 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB316 million), among which approximately
US$40.5 million is intended to be used for repayment of
offshore debt, approximately US$2 million is intended to be
used for offshore projects and approximately US$6.5 million
is intended to be used as general working capital. Based on
such net proceeds and assuming the full conversion of the
convertible bonds, the net price per share is approximately
HK$0.326. As at 31 December 2021, approximately US$38
million and approximately US$3 million of the net proceeds
had been utilised for repayment of offshore debts and general
working capital respectively, which were used according to the
intentions previously disclosed by the Company. The remaining
balance of approximately US$8 million is expected to be fully
utilised by 31 December 2022. According to the plan, the
remaining balance of approximately US$2.5 million will be used
for repayment of offshore debt, approximately US$2 million will
be used for offshore projects and approximately US$3.5 million
will be used as general working capital.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Year, the Group recorded a net profit of approximately
RMB650 million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB262
million).

Revenue and EBITDA

During the Year, the revenue and EBITDA were approximately
RMB2,825 million and RMB2,397 million, respectively
(31 December 2020: approximately RMB2,149 million and
RMB1,967 million, respectively). The increase in revenue
and EBITDA of the Group was attributable to: (i) expansion in
aggregate installed capacity from approximately 2,070.40MW
to approximately 4,168.02MW or around 101.3% by way of
acquisition and self-development of projects; and (ii) effective
operation and management of power plants.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB i L B

The net profit increased during the Year was mainly due to the
combined effect of the increase in EBITDA and bargain purchase
gain arising from business combinations.

The average tariff per kWh (net of VAT) for the Year was
approximately RMB0.73 (31 December 2020: approximately
RMBO.77). Table 2 above summarises the details of the
breakdown of revenue generated by settlement type.

Finance Costs

The total finance costs for the Year was approximately
RMB1,110 million, which was approximately the same with the
year ended 31 December 2020. It was mainly attributable to
the arrangement that the Group has taken various new financing
or re-financing activities during the Year and has successfully
monitored certain finance costs.

Income Tax

During the Year, the Group’s operations in the PRC are subject
to the corporate income tax of the PRC (the “PRC Corporate
Income Tax”). The statutory PRC Corporate Income Tax rate
is 25%. Certain subsidiaries of renewable energy projects are
entitled to preferential tax concession. Income tax on profits
assessable outside the PRC has been provided at rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions (31 December 2020:
Same).

Impairment Charge on Property, Plant and Equipment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 97 solar power
plants and 7 wind power plants (31 December 2020: 55
solar power plants) with aggregated installed capacity of
approximately 4,168.02MW (31 December 2020: approximately
2,070.40MW). During the Year, there was no substantial change
in the operating conditions for most of the Group’s power plants
and there was no indication for further impairment as compared
to 2020. Therefore, no further impairment test was required for
the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, the Group recognised an impairment charge on
property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB7 million
(mainly construction-in-progress) for abandoned projects (31
December 2020: approximately RMB3 million).

Write-back on Other Receivables

The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of its financial
assets. During the Year, the Group did not recognise any
write-back on other receivables (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB5 million for a recovered receivable).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Management was
not optimistic about the recovery of certain financial assets and
recognised a write-off of approximately RMB4 million.

Impairment Charge on Financial Assets

Management of the Company (the “Management”) performed
impairment assessment on other receivables and recognised an
impairment charge of approximately RMB65 million for the Year
(31 December 2020: approximately RMB1 million).

Loss on Disposal of Subsidiaries

During the Year, the Group recognised a loss on disposal of
subsidiaries of approximately RMB6 million (31 December
2020: approximately RMB1 million) mainly in relation to the
disposal of an indirect non-wholly owned power plant subsidiary.

Trade, Bills and Tariff Adjustment Receivables

The trade and bills receivables will usually be settled within one
to six months. For the tariff adjustment receivables in the PRC
during the Year, there was a further delay in settlement in the
Tariff Subsidy Project List or Others.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B PR R LA b
Table 3: Breakdown of Trade, Bills and Tariff Adjustment 3 BUHRIE - Z1E R BB/ A B AR IEBE
Receivables #
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Z2_-H4+ZR=+—-H IZZZHE+ZA=+—H
Installed Installed
capacity capacity
BURE EHER
(MW)  RMB’million (MW) RMB’million
(kR) ARKEER KR) AREBHSET
Trade and bills receivables EUERIBRZE 265 229
Tariff adjustment receivables EEfALE R
PRC #
Tariff Subsidy Project List TAMIEE B8 2,680.47 6,882 1,785.7 3,846
Others (Note) Hith (f&H) 1,4817.55 405 264.7 269
Total Wt 4,168.02 7,552 2,050.4 4,344

Note: Mainly representing the power plants to be enlisted in the Tariff [zt | TERIEEWIAFBIBEE SEMNE T
Subsidy Project List.

Bank and Other Borrowings RITREMfERR

The Group is actively seeking opportunities of financing/ AEEBEHSRME,  BrlSKBMUEFEE
re-financing to lower the cost of funds and to improve liquidity. BERARNEERRE L

As at 31 December 2021, the maturity and currency profile of W _Z_—F+_A=+—H > xEEZET

the Group’s bank and other borrowings are set out as follows: REMERZEPARREEASEHINNOT -
Within Over
1 year 2nd year 3-5 years 6-10 years 10 years Total
—ER EE —Eif NETHE TE# EeH

RMB'million RMB'million RMB’million RMB'million RMB’million RMB'million
AREEET AREEERT AREEER AREKEER AREEER ARKEER

RMB ARE 5,675 5,875 11,665 4,125 485 27,825
Us$ e 2,145 789 1,516 - - 4,450
7,820 6,664 13,181 4,125 485 32,275
Less: Unamortised loan HRBHETRNE
facility fees ER (42) (35) (80) (76) (3) (236)
Carrying amount REE 7,778 6,629 13,101 4,049 482 32,039
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Key Performance Indicators

The Group measures the delivery of its strategies and manages
its business through regular measurements of several key
performance indicators, particularly on the following ratios:
EBITDA margin, debt to EBITDA ratio, funds from operations to
net debt ratio and interest coverage ratio. The changes in the
key performance indicators for the Year were mainly attributable
to the expansion of the Group’s business scale.

EBITDA Margin: EBITDA margin is a measurement of the Group’s
operating profitability and is calculated as EBITDA divided by
the revenue. The Group’s EBITDA margin has decreased by
approximately 7% from approximately 92% to approximately
85% for the Year. This was mainly due to additional operating
expenses caused by business expansion.

Debt to EBITDA Ratio: Debt to EBITDA ratio is a measurement
of the number of years that will take the Group to repay its
debts assuming net debts and EBITDA are held constant. This
ratio is calculated as the net debts divided by EBITDA. Net
debts is calculated as total borrowings less cash deposits.
Total borrowings include current and non-current bank and other
borrowings and convertible bonds as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The ratio has increased
during the Year to approximately 11.1 (31 December 2020:
approximately 7.4).

Funds from Operations to Net Debt Ratio: Funds from operations
to debt ratio is a measurement of the Group’s ability to
pay its debts using its operating income alone. This ratio is
calculated as the EBITDA net of cash interest paid divided by
net debts. The ratio has decreased from approximately 7.9% to
approximately 5.7% for the Year.

Interest Coverage Ratio: Interest coverage ratio measures the
Group’s ability to pay interest on its interest-bearing debt. The
ratio is calculated as EBITDA divided by net interest paid (actual
interest paid minus actual interest income received during
the Year). The ratio was approximately 2.74 for the Year (31
December 2020: approximately 2.41).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB i L B

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES, GEARING
RATIO AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded current assets
of approximately RMB15,671 million and current liabilities of
approximately RMB11,323 million.

The Group has established a treasury policy with the objective of
lowering cost of funds. Therefore, funding for all its operations
have been centrally reviewed and monitored at group level. To
manage the Group’s exposure to fluctuations in interest rates
on each power project, appropriate funding policies will be
applied including the use of bank and other borrowings, issue
of convertible bonds, issue of senior notes, medium-term notes
and corporate bonds or issue of new shares. Management will
continue its efforts in obtaining the most privileged rates and
favourable terms to the Group for its financing.

The Group monitors its capital structure based on the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts divided by total
capital. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position plus net debts.
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The capital structure (including its gearing ratio) as at
31 December 2021 was as follows:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R EL oy B

R_EB_—F+_"_A=+—HBNEXEE (8
BHEABRLER)WNT

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

—E—-F ZBIEF

+=A=+—8 +=A=+—-H

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBBEETRT ARBEBETT

Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMAERR 32,039 17,589
Convertible bonds AR ES 346 S
Total borrowings and convertible bonds BB R R E S 32,385 17,589
Less: Cash deposits B IREER (5,844) (2,972)
Net debts FEE 26,541 14,617
Total equity T m AR R 9,284 5,655
Total capital ER 35,825 20,272
Gearing ratio BARBBLEE 74.1% 72.1%

Except for the US$50 million convertible bonds and certain bank
and other borrowings with aggregate amounts of approximately
RMB8,805 million which were carried at fixed rates, the
remaining borrowings of the Group bore floating interest rates.

During the Year, the increase in gearing ratio was attributable to
the Group's acquisition of power plants during the Year, which
resulted in a corresponding increase in net debts. The Group will
use its best endeavour to lower its gearing ratio in the future
by deleveraging its liabilities, including but not limited to co-
investing in power plants with strategic business partners to
reduce the capital expenditure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB i L B

As at 31 December 2021, the cash deposits were denominated
in the following currencies:

N _E_—F+_B=+—H JReEFEFTU
Ty EHEEHE -

Cash

Pledged and cash
deposits equivalents Total

RER
BIERER REEEY 4zt
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARKEEET ARKEEET
RMB AR 1,030 2,988 4,018
HK$ el - 537 537
uss$ ETT - 1,276 1,276
GBP R - 1 1
AUD BT - 12 12
1,030 4,814 5,844

Representing: UTHEBERR .

Non-current portion FEREBED 939 = 939
Current portion nEE D 91 4,814 4,905
1,030 4,814 5,844

The Group did not have any financial instruments for hedging
purposes.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitment
in respect of property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB1,793 million.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the Year, the Group had the following acquisitions and
disposals:

(a) An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into a conditional sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to purchase the entire equity
interest of a company established in the PRC (the “Target
Company”) for a consideration of approximately RMB1,178
million. The Target Company is principally engaged in the
operation, maintenance and management of a solar power
plant with aggregate installed capacity of approximately
300MW. During the Year, the Group has also completed
47 acquisitions of subsidiaries in the PRC with aggregate
installed capacity of 1,676.27MW. None of them is
individually material to the Group.
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(b) The deemed disposal of no more than 29.43% equity
interest in UP Changzhou to ICBC Investment for a
consideration of RMB3,000 million was completed in June
2021. Please refer to the section titled “Financing” in
Business Review above for further details.

Save as mentioned above, the Group did not have any other
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during the Year.

PERFORMANCE AND FUTURE PROSPECTS FOR
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND FUTURE
PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no significant
investment. The Group will keep abreast of the changing
market conditions and proactively identify suitable investment
opportunities with good prospects to enhance its future financial
performance and profitability.

MATERIAL RELIANCE ON KEY CUSTOMERS

The key customers in the PRC for the sales of electricity were
subsidiaries of the State Grid and Inner Mongolia Power, which
are PRC state-owned electric utility companies that transmit
and distribute power in the PRC. As at 31 December 2021,
the receivables from the subsidiaries of State Grid and Inner
Mongolia Power were approximately 77.2% and 22.4% of the
total trade, bills and tariff adjustment receivables, respectively.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R EL oy B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB i L B

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, approximately 59% of bank and other
borrowings of the Group were secured by the pledge over certain
power generating modules and equipment, guarantee deposits,
the fee collection rights in relation to the sales of electricity
in certain subsidiaries and/or pledge over the shares/equity
interest of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 752 full-time
employees (31 December 2020: 436). Employees were
remunerated according to the nature of their positions,
individual qualification, performance, working experience and
market trends, with regular remuneration review to reward and
motivate individual performance. The Group offers competitive
compensation and benefit packages to different levels of staff,
including additional medical insurance, discretionary bonus,
various training programmes, sponsorship for further study, as
well as share option scheme for the benefits of the directors
and eligible employees of the members of the Group. Total
employee benefits expenses (excluding share-based payment
expenses) for the Year amounted to approximately RMB201
million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB101 million).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group operates mainly in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
For the operations in Mainland China, the transactions are
mostly denominated in RMB. Minimal exposure to fluctuation
in exchange rates is expected. For the operations in Hong
Kong, most of the transactions are denominated in HK$ and
US$. Since the exchange rate of US$ against HK$ is pegged
to each other under the Linked Exchange Rate System, the
exposure to fluctuation in exchange rates will mainly arise from
the translation to the presentation currency of the Group. The
Group did not resort to any currency hedging facility for the
Year. However, Management will enhance the monitoring on the
Group’s foreign currency exposure, should the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no significant
contingent liability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INFORMATION UPDATE ON THE INCIDENTS

References are made to (1) the annual reports of the Company
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020; and (2) the
announcements of the Company dated 19 July 2020, 31 July
2020, 28 September 2020 and 30 March 2021.

During the Year, NEX Group transferred (i) equity interests
of a company operating solar power plants in the PRC with
valuation of RMB40 million and (ii) a medium-term note of the
Company held by NEX Group with maturity date on 17 April 2021
amounted to approximately RMB161 million (including both
principal and interest) to the Group for purpose of settlement.
Management considered there is an increase in credit risk on
the remaining balances due from NEX Group. Accordingly, an
expected credit loss of RMB43 million was recognised for the
Year.

On 28 March 2022, the Group entered into an agreement
with NEX Group, which was an extension of (i) the settlement
agreement signed on 24 August 2020 and (ii) the first revised
settlement agreement signed on 29 March 2021 between the
Group and NEX Group (details are set out in the Company’'s
2019 and 2020 annual reports respectively), on certain new and
revised settlement arrangements in relation to the outstanding
net balances due from NEX Group of approximately RMB174
million as at 31 December 2021 (“Second Revised Settlement
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Second Revised Settlement
Agreement, NEX Group agreed to transfer (1) equity interests
of certain companies operating solar power plants in the PRC
in which the fair value of those equity interests amounted to
approximately RMB39 million; (2) cash of approximately RMB32
million upon disposal of certain subsidiaries and investments
held by NEX Group; and (3) approximately 274 million shares
of the Company held by NEX Group amounted to approximately
RMB57 million as at 28 March 2022, to the Group for
settlement of the net balances due from NEX Group (“NEX
Settlements”). The NEX Settlements are expected to complete
on or before 31 December 2022. In addition, NEX Group
agreed to pledge approximately 460 million shares (including
approximately 274 million shares as mentioned in (3) above)
of the Company held by NEX Group as collaterals to the NEX
Settlements to cover any remaining unsettled balance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB i L B

During January to March 2022, NEX Group transferred (i) equity
interests of certain companies operating solar power plants in
the PRC with valuation of approximately RMB4 million in total
and (ii) cash of RMB12 million to the Group for purpose of
settlement.

The Company commits to keep its shareholders and the public
informed of all material information to appraise the Company’s
position by way of announcements on the websites of the
HKEXnews and the Company, including but not limited to market
updates of all material information where applicable.

EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

Except for those disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not have any other material
events occurred after 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this annual report.

PROSPECTS

At the start of the year of the tiger, we are full of hope that we
will forge ahead with the courage and strength of the tiger and
the new year will be a year of thriving and flourishing. Having
entered the period of replacing the old growth drivers with new
ones for energy consumption, China is firmly determined to
accelerate the implementation of the goals of “carbon peak and
carbon neutrality” and to pursue the energy security strategy.
Meanwhile, the transformation of global energy consumption
structure is faster than expected and moving towards the clean,
low-carbon and diversified energy consumption pattern, with the
rapid development of new energy segments such as solar power,
wind power, ocean energy and energy storage and the balanced
development of centralised power and distributed power. It is the
major energy trend in the future that information technologies
will be widely applied in the energy sector and “digitalisation”
will gradually break the barriers in different types of energy.
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The report on the work of the government states that in
2022, the Chinese government will advance the planning and
construction of large-scale wind and photovoltaic power bases
with supporting power sources that are adjustable and boost
the capacity of power grids to absorb electricity generated
from renewable energy sources. To our understanding, China
will further strengthen efforts to promote the large-scale
development of renewal energy and will also act more swiftly to
address the issues of volatility and intermittency of renewable
energy sources that hinder power grids from absorbing more
electricity generated from renewable energy.

The trend of scale expansion development is unstoppable.
China’s first batch of 97GW large-scale wind and photovoltaic
base projects that focus on regions of deserts, the Gobi
Desert and desert areas have commenced construction, and
the second batch of 455GW large base projects are expected
to have their plans finalised soon. It is expected that the total
installed capacity of wind and photovoltaic power bases to
be constructed in the “14th Five-Year Plan” period will reach
approximately 200GW. China Electricity Council anticipates in
its latest forecast that in 2022, new installed capacity of wind
power and photovoltaic power will be approximately 50GW and
90GW respectively, and the total new installed capacity will
reach approximately 140GW.

The energy storage market that addresses high electricity
consumption is growing continually. Under the direct application
of renewable energy, deeper electrification of terminals,
market-oriented development of power trading and large-scale
connection of user-side load and distributed power generation
equipment, the power system demands for energy storage
and other resources of greater flexibility, in order to meet the
development requirements for low-carbon, reliable, efficient and
cost-effective energy. In the middle and long-term development
plan for pumped storage, China states that the total capacity put
into production will be over 62GW by 2025 and approximately
120GW by 2030, and that the construction scale and speed will
be enhanced significantly. China proposed the implementation
plan for promoting the development of new energy storage in
the “14th Five-Year Plan” period in January 2022, to recognise
new types of energy storage including electrochemistry as
independent markets and to set the clear goal that the markets
will achieve the transition from initial stage of commercialisation
to scale expansion development by 2025, with the installed
capacity reaching over 30GW.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B PR i B 53 A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB i L B

Currently, the global geopolitical situation is fast changing with
intensified conflicts and tensions, and China is undergoing
major changes unseen in a century. We believe and eagerly
expect that in the future, China will become an important model
and play a leading role in the world in the low-carbon economic
development. China’s energy revolution will continually promote
the increase of natural capital investments and natural capital
investments, green and low-carbon transformation will become
new pillars of China’s economic growth in the future.

The Company firmly supports China’'s strategic direction of
“accelerating the construction of new power system based on
new energy”, and is making unremitting efforts to build “a first-
class international clean energy ecological investment operator”,
forging ahead courageously and resolutely with swift but steady
steps in the path of green and low-carbon development and
braving winds and waves with every hope and chance cherished
in the wave of energy transition. We will work together and grow
with the times!
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REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance to protect the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole. The Company believes that rigorous
standards of corporate governance enhance the sustainability of the
Company. To this end, the Company has established and maintained
a framework of corporate governance policies and practices to apply
the principles of good corporate governance in daily operation. This
framework is built upon principles of accountability and integrity.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions of the
CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of corporate governance. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
under the CG Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. It is responsible for developing, reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Company. In the corporate governance framework of the Company,
other key participants, including Shareholders, senior management
and other stakeholders, have a role to contribute and interact in the
process of decision making and they set us in motion of continuing
improvement in our corporate governance practices.

The diagram below shows the current corporate governance structure
of the Company and the relationship between key participants:
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Overall Responsibility and Delegation

Members of the Board are individually and collectively
accountable for promoting the success of the Company and
achieving sustainable development of the Company. The Board
provides leadership and supervision of the Company, overseeing
businesses and evaluating the performance of the Group. It
focuses on formulating the overall strategies and policies with
particular attention paid to the growth and financial performance
of the Group, and make decisions on significant acquisitions and
other specified matters reserved for the Board.

Day-to-Day Operations
HEEE

The implementation of the Group’'s strategies and policies
and the day-to-day operations of the Group are performed by
the Chief Executive Officer and senior management under
the regular monitoring and supervision of the Board and its
committees. These arrangements will be reviewed periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the
Company.

All Directors have separate access to the management of the
Company and are provided with full and timely information about
the conduct of the business and operation of the Group. Upon
request by the Board, independent professional advice will
be available to the Directors to facilitate the decision-making
process. Appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
has been arranged for the Directors.

EXg
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The Board has also delegated certain functions to the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee,
Risk Control Committee and Strategy Committee (dissolved from
29 January 2021), further details of which are set out in this

report of corporate governance.

Key matters reserved for the Board

Strategy &
Operation

BB EE

+ approve the strategic
plan and annual
operation and investment
plans of the Group
A S O BB
R REEES N
RiGE st &

* approve major investments
and transactions

HEEARERRS

- approve issue of Shares
and other securities
within the authority

given by Shareholders
TERR RV IR EE E
AHEERITIRD K
HAthzs

- approve other material
corporate activities

HEEME R D EES

Monitoring
of financial
performance

EBEMBRER

+ approve and monitor
the annual budget and
annual financial plan

HERGEEEER
HERFEFFHE

- approve the selection
and appointment of the
external auditor

HEESNEE X BLETRY
B R B ME

- review and approve
the annual and interim
financial results
and approve their
publication
et Rt EEE K&
RERRA S A
HOEETIEE

REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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EFETRETHRESRTERZEE H
MEEE RLEZET RARENZEETRE
KEE® (BB -_—F—A-t+AHABER
B BEFBHNAEEELRRS

FHEFCEZZHMRER

Organisation
& succession
planning
AR
HE1EstaE

- decide the Group’s
organisation

RESEEBABMEE

+ consider the
appointment of
Directors

EZEEENEE

- approve the
remuneration policy
and incentive schemes

HEHEF BN B B T
S Enst B

- approve the
appointment or removal
of Chief Executive
Officer

HEEEANTERN
REHE

+ review and monitor the
training and continuous
professional development
of Directors and senior
management
BREKGEEESER
BAREEABN
BillRFEEEERE

Governance
& risk
management
&a

B EE

+ develop the corporate governance
structure and policy

HIE R FERRBRIER

- approve and review the terms of reference of
board committees

HERBNEEEZERHREEE

- establish and maintain risk management
and internal control systems, review and
monitor policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements
PRI R 4T R B S 1B Ry Y P 1
B R EBBERRIB AR &5 R

BEERE

+ establish and review shareholders’
communication policy

IR IR N R BB

- review the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and relevant disclosure in this
report of corporate governance
B A ABERMEEEATRIZER
BERRAEEE RS 2 BERE

- develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual
for Directors and employees
FlE B REEEEREEZ
TRTFURERFM

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLntfETRBIFEPER A B 23 )

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —-%& — —4E4E

49



50

REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

R IR

Composition of the Board

EFGHEM

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, including three ZEFZHANRESAN > SFE=LHTE
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three FE =L FERTEEL="LBIIIFERTES-
independent non-executive Directors. The Directors who served HE_T_-_—F+_HA=+—HLEEE=S
the Board during the year ended 31 December 2021 and SBHESTEREIRBEEAETREHENES
changes in Directors up to the date of this annual report are as  EEHUIT :

follows:

Name of Directors

Exnn

Changes in Directors up to the date of this annual report

BEXFHRAPNEZEH

Executive Directors
HITES

Mr. Zhang Ping (Chairman)
RESRE (FFE)

Mr. Lu Zhenwei
EiREEE

Mr. Wang Heng

FrEE

Mr. Xu Jianjun

REBRE

Appointed as an executive Director with effect from 27 January 2022
B-E - T HFE—FH At HEEZTENTEE
Resigned as an executive Director with effect from 29 December 2021

TE T F+ AT ARERETRITEF

Non-executive Directors
EHRITES
Mr. Zhao Bing
i

Mr. Su Yongjian
BROKRITE
Mr. Li Hao
=k

Mr. Sui Xiaofeng
e Rzl ST 4
Ms. Xie Yi
Bt

Mr. Chen Dayu
BRARFHIE

Appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from 29 January 2021
CE T HF AT N HEEETRIFHITESE
Appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from 25 February 2022

B - —HF A AHERSHERIFHNITEE

Resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 25 February 2022
H-E - HFE A+ AHEFTHRTESE

Retired as a non-executive Director with effect from 18 June 2021
BZZEZ—F A+ /\HERAIIFHTESE

Resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 29 January 2021

B-E - —F—F -+ NAERTIFHNTEE
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Name of Directors

REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
R IRH

Changes in Directors up to the date of this annual report

Exps BESFRAPNESEH

Independent Non-executive Directors

BIFERITES

Ms. Jin Xinbin

LI g

Ms. Li Hongwei Appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 18
June 2021

Bt B-E - —FNA+/\AEELZERELIFNITEE

Mr. Zhu Jianbiao

KRB RE
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong

RARS 4%
Mr. Yen Yuen Ho, Tony

Appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 18
June 2021

HBZEZ—F XA+ /\HEESF R ETIFHITESE

Resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 18
June 2021

B-E - —FX A+ HEFTETIFHNTESE

Retired as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 18
June 2021

BoTERE B_E-—FXNA+/\HERFELIFHITESE

Mr. Chen Hongsheng Resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 18
June 2021

BRAEESTE CE T —HFE AT /\HERTETIFBITESE

Directors’ biographical details are set out in the “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report
on pages 20 to 28. The Board believes that its composition
is well balanced with each Director having sound knowledge,
skills, diversity of perspectives, and experience and/or expertise
relevant to the business of the Group.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
its members. Updated list of directors and their role and
function has been maintained on our website and that of the
HKEXnews. The names and identification of the Directors
are disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman provides leadership and governance for the
Board so as to create the conditions required for effective
performance of the Board as a whole and effective contribution
by individual Director. He also ensures that the Board performs
its responsibilities and all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chief Executive
Officer has the delegated power to manage the Company and to
oversee the business activities of the Company.

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer are held separately and fulfills the requirement under the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

EEEEFBHNAEREBE20E288TESE
REMEBEABZBE —H - EFGREH
ERERTE SRESFHARGEAERE
BEBZRBEN# K ZTCBRE - KR
R/ REHEMH

MEFGAAN EXIREMLEMH X
HoRBREMEBAHREMGR - BHMENE
FRERHABNRBECNARBRIERE
BRZFBEZRAETH -EF2HBRE
MERBLHTRINRERTDTEZRBERT
AP EE -

ITRRERFVITE
IENBENREENEREFTE  UAE
EFEERANMMRARANESF(FHER
BERMFMBENRB TRFARESTEITRAR
ENEFERFARMAEERGENS
H EHEATEREBRENEERARTRK
EEARENEEEH-
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1RRE -
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors,
representing one-third of the Board. The Company has
complied with the requirement for appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors under Rule 3.10(1)
of the Listing Rules and the requirement that at least one of
the independent non-executive directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rules 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
throughout the entire year. The Company has also complied
with the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board. With such a
weight of the independent non-executive Directors, there is a
strong independent element in the Board, which can effectively
exercise independent judgement. The independent non-executive
Directors contribute by ensuring due governance process,
reviewing and providing independent advices to the management
performance. They also bring in objective and impartial
considerations for connected transactions and other issues of
the Group.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual written confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers
that all independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines
for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent.

BIEMITES
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company follows a formal and considered procedure for
the appointment of new Directors. Details of the nomination
policy of the Company are set out in the “Nomination Policy”
section of this report of corporate governance on pages 64
to 66. The Nomination Committee identifies suitably qualified
individuals for directorship to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and makes recommendations to the Board
on proposed appointments. A new Director may be appointed
by the Shareholders at general meeting or by the Board after
the recommendation of the Nomination Committee, either to
fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the
Board. In accordance with Bye-law 83(2) of the Bye Laws, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting after his appointment,
and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following AGM and shall then
be eligible for re-election.

Every Director is appointed for a specific term and should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
In accordance with Bye-law 84(1) of the Bye-Laws, one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years at each AGM.

Each Director has entered into a service contract or a letter
of appointment with the Company. All the non-executive
Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
are appointed for a specific term of one year subject to the
retirement and re-appointment provisions of the Bye-Laws.

REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. Jin Xinbin and
Mr. Zhao Bing had retired from office and been re-elected as
Directors in the SGMs held on 26 January 2021 and 31 March
2021 respectively. In the AGM held on 18 June 2021, Mr. Xu
Jianjun and Mr. Li Hao had retired from office and been re-
elected as Directors. Ms. Xie Yi and Mr. Yen Yuen Ho, Tony had
retired as a non-executive Director and an independent non-
executive Director respectively at the conclusion of the aforesaid
AGM and did not stand for re-election due to their need to
devote more time to their other commitments. Ms. Li Hongwei
and Mr. Zhu Jianbiao had retired from office and been re-elected
as Directors in the SGM held on 28 October 2021.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Upon each appointment, an induction briefing and a Directors’
induction handbook were given to each of the newly appointed
Directors. Such briefing and handbook primarily introduce
the laws, rules and regulations to which the Directors
should observe and adhere during their tenure, as well as
the Company’s policies, codes, compliance manual, and the
business, operations and development of the Group. The new
Directors appointed during the year 2021, who were Mr. Zhao
Bing, Ms. Li Hongwei and Mr. Zhu Jianbiao, had all received
an induction briefing and been given a Directors’ induction
handbook.

During the year 2021, the Company has arranged trainings
which were presented by professional firms to the Directors.
The Directors also recognise the importance of keeping abreast
of the business activities and development of the Company,
and developing and refreshing their knowledge and skills and
thus continuously attend seminars and/or briefings to refresh
their knowledge. In addition, a number of reading materials in
relation to the amendments or revision of applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards and policies of the countries and regions
in which the Group operates, such as guidelines, newsletters,
reports, consultation papers and interpretations issued by
regulatory bodies or professional firms, are also circulated to all
Directors from time to time.

RBEE_Z-_—F+"BA=+—HILFE>
MWt REEEESR 2 - —F—
BZ+ARBERZIZEZ—F=-B=+—H%17
ZRERIRKRGLEFTUHEESEAES -
fivi—fﬁ/\ﬁ‘f’/\El;‘i TZREEFK
CREBEBRERFTELAERTULBES
%%%%%ﬁiwﬁi&fﬂﬁm?ﬁil = 1 )
FELEBREMER REEN LMRESR
FREERFDNBREFRITESRBIIF
HITES UABEBEE FLABRL T REE
RERZEZ—F+AZ+N\BET 2K
BRAAE L RTIWEEEEAEE -

EEABAKGESEEER

BREREFR GRENEZEZEFREM
MBEREREEARTFM - ZFHRI K
FREENBESFNEHANRET LR TH
ERNRAEGER M&$ A B R S 1R B
ERFMEREEENEB - BEERIER -
T FRBEZNESHILE  FARK
RERKRBERECEEZNBBRETLERE
SESHBMFM

NZE I —F AR ERHEXERAHE
EETEN -EFNFHERBAQNTERE
FRER URERKEFHEMNARFEEZ
EENFEIL FESEER SR, HERY
EHEMB LN AR AEEEEERS
BEHAERESEMERR AENER L
BRI ER B RBERNEERETN
%%1ﬂ BINMEERBREEAT TN
BB RS B R
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The Company has maintained record of the continuous
professional development participated by the Directors. A
summary of the Directors’ participation in the continuous
professional development during the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this annual report is as below:

REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
R IRH

AN EES2HTET XL EMNRHR-
R8EE_ZE-_—F+"“A=+—HULEFEK
BEAFROPES2HEFESZELERENH
ZHEHWT -

Reading
materials/
Attending regulatory
briefings/ updates/
seminars monthly reports
REME
2HEMRYE BEERWERNS
EEE SARE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhang Ping RFEE v v
Mr. Lu Zhenwei ERESE v v
Mr. Wang Heng (appointed with effect — E#i&4d (B _E_-_&F—H
from 27 January 2022) Z+t HEEZ(E) V v
Mr. Xu Jianjun (resigned with effect REERE (HF-FE-_—F+_H
from 29 December 2021) Z+ N HEEFFE) V v
Non-executive Directors ERITES
Mr. Zhao Bing (appointed with effect WERE (F-E_—F—H
from 29 January 2021) T+ HEEET) v v
Mr. Su Yongjian (appointed with effect  BxENRE (H-_ZFE_-__F_H
from 25 February 2022) A+ A AREEEE) v v
Mr. Li Hao FE s v v
Mr. Sui Xiaofeng (resigned with effect  [EBEIGSE (H-FE_-_F_H
from 25 February 2022) —+ A HEET) V J
Ms. Xie Yi (retired with effect from HELtLt (H-FE——FNH
18 June 2021) +/\ HEEE1E) v v
Mr. Chen Dayu (resigned with effect BAFRE (HBZEZ—4F—H
from 29 January 2021) Z+ A HEFE) v v
Independent Non-executive Directors JHIIIEHITES
Ms. Jin Xinbin %%Wﬁi ol v
Ms. Li Hongwei (appointed with effect A/t (B=F=—4A
from 18 June 2021) —/—/l HEEEZ(T) J v
Mr. Zhu Jianbiao (appointed with effect R&IfE5hE (H-E_—FH
from 18 June 2021) +/\ HEE#ZE(F) v v
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong (resigned with REESRE (BEZF=—4&FNH
effect from 18 June 2021) +/\ HAEFHE) v v
Mr. Yen Yuen Ho, Tony (retired with Bt (EZE - —FNH
effect from 18 June 2021) +/\ HEEE(E) v v
Mr. Chen Hongsheng (resigned with BORERE (H-ZE_—FA~H
effect from 18 June 2021) +/\ HEEFHE) v v

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JustfETRBRE%AE A PR 23 )

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 — % ——4E4E#)

35



56

REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

R IR

BOARD PROCESS

Key Features of Board Process

- 14 days’ notice of
regular board meeting or
reasonable notice in timely
manner with agenda
KEERZEE 148
EHEFgeZRNNSE
BA

- all directors are invited
to propose any additional
matters included in the agenda
FRAEEEBIEZ2EM
EETEENGEINER

- proper briefed on issues
arising at meeting
MERIELNETE
BEBR

- prompt and full response
to queries raised

RIE 2 E O FER AR RE

- access to the management
MEEREEH

- independent professional
advice in appropriate
circumstances at the
Company’s expenses
BRBERKEIREERR
BERMAHARBZM

- record in sufficient details
on the matters considered
and decisions reached
SHA A B S EC B AT S R A
ZEHRIBREMRZIRE

+ record any concerns raised

SERELNEAREER

- records are open for
inspection by directors

AR EUREEER

with sufficient time

EFEER

EEEREFER

Formal notice

& 5955 A RY
IETVER]

Adequate
information

TREH

- board papers with reliable

- sufficient materials to

information accessible to
all directors are provided
in advance
RAIEHEELBES
BRI Rz A R E R
gEME

enable the board to make
informed decisions
FEEZELAERTE
N EE R

Support & advice
ZRREE

- promote a culture of

Active
participation and

contribution
AR 2 B K 5 K

Proper records
BE RS

- have meeting at least 4

+ encourage all directors

- allow sufficient time for

times a year and have

meeting when required
BERGELORKRR
FERRG

openness and debate

HEAR X

with different views to
voice their concerns, if any
HEPTBEEEREAR
BEANER WA)

discussion and ensure
board decisions fairly
reflect board consensus
46T R S B0 57 5 BRF
BREEFGRRIATR
BRESE T
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Other Key Features of Board Process

REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
R IRH

EEEREFHNHEMER

The Chairman held a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors.

FRENRAEMEFHRENER TABUFATEFTRITER

Transactions where any Director is considered having a conflict of interest or material interests shall be
dealt with in a physical meeting with presence of independent non-executive Directors who have no material
interests.
ARNESHEANEPEFAENRERREARANRSZ BERUBREARA 2 BYFRITEETLEREE
b

Any Director having conflict of interests or material interests shall disclose his/her interests in accordance
with the Bye-Laws before the meeting and shall abstain from voting on the resolution(s) approving such
transactions and shall not be counted in the quorum.

EAEEN DERNEAEENEFTAN TR REERMAREE D R ARERILERRRZZ0RE

EZRE BARAEEAH-

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established its Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Risk Control Committee and
Strategy Committee on 14 March 2000, 28 September 2005,
23 March 2012, 23 July 2013 and 20 March 2017 respectively.
The Strategy Committee was officially dissolved from 29 January
2021. Details of authority, role and responsibilities of each
committee are set out in written terms of reference which are
available on the Company’s website under the Investor Relations
section and the website of the HKEXnews. The Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk
Control Committee reviewed its terms of reference at least once
a year to ensure they remain in line with the requirements of the
Listing Rules. Amendments to the terms of reference shall be
submitted to the Board for approval and adoption.

EFXELEY
EEZgHNR_EEEF=A+TBE =
ZEEZERFABRZ+NB-ZE—ZF=H
—_+=H- 22— =%tB+=HKRZZT
—tEZRB+HRUBZREEET HFMNE
EE REZET AREHEZEGREEKE
Eg-HEKEZEEER _T-_—F—HB=Z+h
HEEEABH BSZEGZHN -BERHE
EXFHNHEERESE IR A28 H
IR EERGR AR EARZMIKE S AL
TR -BRZEEE - FNEZEG RREZESR
REBESEZEESFR VW — B ER
B BERMOTE EMERENER - BESEE &
FTIARREBEEGHLE IR o
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The Company Secretary acted as the secretary of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee,
Risk Control Committee and Strategy Committee. An agenda
accompanying board committee papers are sent to the
committee members at least three days prior to the meeting.
Sufficient resources are made available to the committee
members when required. The secretary prepares full minutes of
the committee meetings with details of the matters considered
by the committee members. The draft minutes are sent to all
committee members of respective committee for comment
and approval after each meeting and the final version of the
minutes are sent to the committee members for their records
within a reasonable time after the meeting. The chairman of
the respective committee summarises the activities of that
committee and highlights issues arising and reports to the
Board after each committee meeting.

Audit Committee

Audit Committee currently consists of three members, including
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Li Hongwei
and Mr. Zhu Jianbiao, and one non-executive Director, namely Mr.
Zhao Bing. The Audit Committee is chaired by Ms. Li Hongwei
who possesses relevant professional qualification and expertise
in financial reporting matters.

The Audit Committee acts as an important link between
the Board and the Company’s auditor. It is responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor.
It is empowered to review and monitor the external auditor's
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards. It reviews,
makes recommendations and reports to the Board on findings
relating to the financial statements, reports and accounts,
financial reporting system, internal control procedures and
compliance issues.

NEMEEEEREZET FHEET R4
ZEg RAREFNZEGREBEZEGTZN
EREMENEZTGZEIXHNERSE
TREL=ZAEREEGHE -EEERK
EEHERHEZEEMERRA -NERBZ
BEEggENTRERCE ETHIEES
HEZENEEFB - EBREZR M
REEENEREZETNEHHERLHY
B HREFEERRRME TEERERSE
HEANANEZEEMEELRBRAHNFZHC
o MREFCHR 2B - ASREECETR
B RELEEEIFERELZEGEY  RHARK
ARFEE LREEGER-

“EEE

EREZECRAZANE BEMLBIUIF
HITES  AIFARU T RERRAFILE UK
—2IFRITESF MBEAE -FARLEA
BERZECIR NEERBEXERRY
BREFEEEMH -

B

i

EREZEEREESFTRARTIREMZME
NEZRR BENZERENZEINEBZ
FEMESSRLESR TEMIMNSZHE
ZHERERBGR EREEGERTED
RE R ERINE MM Z B IR FE ML
REREREARS AEREZBREZN
M- BREZEEEBERAMBRER RERKRE
MHERERK AREEBEFREREEZ
HEER TRESSFHEZERRS
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(156 {31e8: 1ot
The Audit Committee held 3 meetings (2 of which were with the Z—Z_-—F > BREEGHRITT=Xg5x (H
auditor of the Company) to deal with the following matters during MK ER AT ZEE—F B RHE) LUEELUT

the year 2021: £I15:

SUMMARY OF WORK DONE DURING THE YEAR OF 2021

"R -FAFRMIGZHBE

c reviewed and discussed with the external auditor of the Company about the audited annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 as well as the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group;

ARNBIIEZHM—AER R mAERHE S EFE+ A=+ —HILFENEEZFEEE
UEAEEMBREABERER ;

c reviewed and discussed the structure and composition of finance and internal audit staff of the Group;

Bt e wmEEBM B RN EZE THERERIBN ;

0 reviewed and discussed with general manager of audit and supervisory department about the internal
audit work of the Group;
HERGTEESREE—ARs R mAERREE T LF;

reviewed and discussed with general manager of legal and compliance department about the risk
management and internal control matters of the Group;

A OB REE— AR R A ERRREEERABEREE ;

c reviewed and considered the independence, retirement, re-appointment and remuneration of external
auditor of the Company;

BEt E B A RBIINBLBENHB I RE S ERERERF

o reviewed and discussed the unaudited condensed consolidated interim results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2021; and
BRMmAEESE S —FAA=THIENEANRKEZEBEGASTHRZES &

reviewed and discussed with the external auditor of the Company about their annual audit work plan in
relation to the results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

HEAANTIINBRBM—AER RN RERAERESaE T _—F+ A=+t —HLEVBEEXENE
EEZIIFstEl-
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The external auditor performs independent review or audit
of the financial statements prepared by the management of
the Company. Grant Thornton has been re-appointed as the
independent auditor of the Company by Shareholders at the
AGM held on 18 June 2021 for a term until the conclusion of
the next AGM. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
remuneration paid or payable to the auditor of the Company
(including their affiliated firms) for their services rendered is
summarised as below:

BB &=

NEZBAEAAREEER UM FIR
RETHEIERIEZ - BRERZZTEZ—%F
AATNHETHREEFATLEERE
EMETAARBBILZEN FHETE
REBFAGEERER BE_T - —F
+ZB=+—HIEEE A ATZEEM (8
EREHBAD FIIRERFENHESESE
Z MR T

2021 2020

—ET-F g 2.2

RMB’ million RMB’ million

ARBEET AREBEET

Statutory audit ETEEZ 5 7
Non-audit services® JERZ B AR TEW 1 =
Total =i 6 7

@ The non-audit services represented the services relating to the
financial review, tax consultancy and issue of convertible bonds.

The responsibilities of the independent auditor with respect
to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in the section “Independent
Auditor’'s Report” on pages 117 to 126 of this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

Remuneration Committee currently consists of three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Jin Xinbin and Ms. Li Hongwei, and one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Su Yongjian. Ms. Li Hongwei is the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

O JFRERFIEERMBER RBEARET
AR EZFBIARTS ©

BIZBMEBMBEE_ZT_—F+2A8
—t+—HEFEZGEUBRERZEEHT
RAFRBLI7TE1268 B ZHBENRS ) —
&7 o

HNEEE

HWEEERA-RME BEMLEILIF
HITES AW T RFABL L Uk
—RIFATES BIFOKRBEE - FTAHRLE
mEMEEE IR

%ﬁ@‘ﬂé%@ZIEHﬁ&f&%%ﬁ%%@T%
JJL@E’J“TEF RE AL RE
%%&T—] ﬂ)\ﬁﬁ’]%ﬁ?ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ&’ﬂﬁﬁﬁ
FSERHEZR URBENRATESRSK
BABZHMEBRRNESTSRHES-

L\
]|
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BB IGHS
The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting and passed 2 @_—ZE_—F > HNEETRTT —RIH T
written resolutions to deal with the following matters during the BEMPEZE RZZEUEEBEUTEIE !
year 2021:

SUMMARY OF WORK DONE DURING THE YEAR OF 2021
TR ITEZME

0 made recommendations on the directors’ fee of a newly appointed non-executive Director and newly
appointed independent non-executive Directors;

M EERTEERNMAEBIULIFRTESNESHSREES
o reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages of
Directors and members of senior management; and

Bt ke mEERENFHMBERUAKRESTREREEASHFHFMETE &k

0 made recommendations on the remuneration of the key senior management of the Company.

MERBDETESREEASNFMIELEZE-

Nomination Committee

Nomination Committee currently consists of three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Jin Xinbin and Mr. Zhu lJianbiao, and one executive Director,
namely Mr. Zhang Ping. Mr. Zhang Ping is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is authorised to formulate
nomination policy for the Board’s consideration and implement
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
to select and recommend candidates for directorship and
senior management. The board diversity policy which has been
adopted in 2013 outlines the Company’s commitment to ensure
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives which are appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. It also sets out that all Board members
will be appointed based on a merit basis with due consideration
to the board diversity. While selecting candidates for
directorship, the Nomination Committee has taken into account
of a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge.

RHZEEE

RE2EZEECHRA=-ZLME BEMLBIUIF
HITES MW LT RARRIFERE UK
—RPITES BIRFERE - RFEERRES
ZEEXR-

RAZEGERENERABRHTESTES
B RTRREF KRB WERARKER
RREFREMEEABRUAEZCHRMR
BRE-R_Z-—ZFERMZEFITZ LK
REBETARDZ A IRFREFTEER
READEBMABBEEMERE ERK
ZRHCBREZENSFH HITREMBE
SHERETETFTURE AREEESE
ZREHNER - EREEFAER BRES
ZERZTLAEFHERE  BEEFRRR
MR Fl - XERBEE R K (EXHH
fth) ~ BREER A
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In reviewing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
shall give adequate consideration to the board diversity
policy. The Nomination Committee believes that the current
composition of the Board is balanced and diversified with
the high-calibre members from different cultural backgrounds
and possessing professional expertise of various industries,
which indicates that the board diversity policy has been well
implemented.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and length of service) of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to implement the Company’s corporate
strategy, and identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Directors and make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships and chief
executives, the appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee is
also responsible for assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting and passed 3 written
resolutions to deal with the following matters during the year
2021:

EEREFGAAR RLZEGARDE
BEFEZTIEHR-RREZEERR EF
ZHREENAEBEIAXCERILES R
TEEXENANSERAT BEEHER
ERE BTEFEZALHREERDE
i o

RLZEGZIBREAELEBFRAESR
GZRBE RER AR (BERAE R~ K5,
RBRBERSE)  WRARTEEEER
EETRUAEMNFRERZ URYEEE

BERBAEENAERUIERRESTK
RETHRABGREA ZEAENEZEES
UREFHEAEDEZTTRUEZ RS
ZEETAENEBIUIFRTEST 2Bt

SR RABESRITTRNEH I
BB HEERBRUEELUTEE

SUMMARY OF WORK DONE DURING THE YEAR OF 2021

“ECFERMIFZHBE

made recommendations on nomination of candidates for the positions of a non-executive Director and

independent non-executive Directors;

MIERIFRATESFTRBIUIFRATESFREARHES

discussed and made recommendations on re-election of retiring Directors in the AGM for the year 2021

and in the SGMs held in March and October 2021;

MR B —FERFRBFAGURNR _ZE_—F=ZARTAETZRRFIARE LEERETEFENT

s am IR 2

reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board and the board diversity policy of the

Company; and

BENEFENRE - RE Bl RS URERTNEFTESTIEHR ; &

0 assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

SHEBILIFATESREILE
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An analysis of the current Board composition: HERMEZEFTSHEEN DM :

Directorship with
other public
companies

Nug‘fbef Skills/industry NEMATRAT
people Designation Gender Region Age experience E(ERYEfth
AH B {1 1451 & FHe 2R MTEKR EZE i
9
8
Executive
Director 2
HITES
7 Expertise in
finance/
management
B%5,
6 BEEAL
41-50
5
4
3
2
1
0

Details of the directorship in other listed companies are set FHEEM T ASESHEZHBEHNEER
out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” [EERSHEEASZERE —Ho
section of this annual report.

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLRAEHBIREER A B2 7
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Group adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
on 18 December 2018 and it is disclosed as below.

1. Objectives

1.1 Nomination Committee shall ensure the Board to
have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business and strategy during nomination
process.

1.2 Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable
candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to Shareholders for election as
INEDs at general meetings or appoint as INEDs to fill
casual vacancies.

2. Selection Criteria

2.1 The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate as a Director: —

0 Reputation for integrity;

0 Accomplishment and experience in the relevant
industry, in particular, in renewable energy;

e Commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest; and

0 Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, experience (professional
or otherwise), skills, knowledge and length of
service.

2.2 These factors are for reference only, and do not mean
to be exhaustive and decisive. Nomination Committee
has the discretion to nominate any person, as it
considers appropriate.

2.3 Retiring INEDs, save for those who have served as
INEDs for a period of nine (9) consecutive years, are
eligible for nomination by the Board to stand for re-
election at a general meeting.

B R
AERR-Z-N\F+TZATN\BHEM—
RAHR (RRERY) - KEWMT o

1. HH®
1.1 RIREBRET R4 L E9ARR
EREERBALABDERREKM
EREBEEMERE - BB ARSI
EREL 2 B ENIS T o

12 RRZEEARNEFERLEEBA
BEUMEEEEE UMNREREK
CEEEMATETBUIFNGTE
EREEEILIFRNTESZLURMER
R TR M AR ERIE B ©

2. EIEEE
2.1 R EHRLESTHNAEZRSE
B RAE EQ%%%TK%%ﬁ
.

oif

MIEBE

M

REBITE (LHEBRABESE
) Z TR R AR

AR ARBREEEFEEN
A &

EFSERHEMNZ T 81
BARRIMER] ~ 8 (1857
b XEREEER KR (F
FIHEHM) I MBRRE
FHES@E

THREEHZEZ - WIIFBIMRE
l%’WTE$EEW%O%%§%
ERNBERERBEDBAHBENE
fAIALe

2.3 FEEERBN(NFRBEILIFANIT
EFI BRENBIUIFATESTY
FERESFTERVAERRAE L
BEBE
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2.4

2.5

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the
necessary personal information, together with their
written consent to be appointed as Director and to
the public disclosure of their personal data on any
documents or the relevant websites for the purpose
of or in relation to their standing for election as a
director.

Proposed candidates might be requested to provide
additional information and documents, if considered
necessary by Nomination Committee.

Nomination Procedures

3.1

3.2

Ehe)

A meeting of the Nomination Committee will be
called, and nominations of candidates will be invited
from the Board member, if any, for consideration
by the Nomination Committee prior to its meeting.
Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

In case of filling a casual vacancy, Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval; in case of
proposing candidates to stand for election at a
general meeting, Nomination Committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation.

Until the issue of the Shareholder circular, the
nominated persons shall not assume that they have
been proposed by the Board to stand for election at
the general meeting.

REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

R IR

24 BREBEANRBEZERERILEN

2.5

3.1

3.2

oS

BAEKR BRHEEZEIRESFL
MESESERHEZERMREM
XESRERELE A ARKREREBEAER
HREERES-

RLZEGUNGERERZLEE
ARBENERNRXH (HERRHL

E) e

mRBERF

RRPZEEREARGR LN TR
RIBFEFENE A RARE
N UHREREZEGER - RBEE
ENARANIFAEFEMERS
ZIREAN

HEBEMERTHR RREEEA
FHiEEREZHEFTEET B AL
S HEREEARRRAESE
RAZEERNEFTGIFHERU
HEZRERER-

RERERZ FHBR T A B
BFALFARRAKRECEEFTER
BRREAGEBE-
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3.4 In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the Board to stand for election
at a general meeting, a circular will be sent to
shareholders. The names, brief biographies (including
qualifications and relevant experience), independence
(applicable to INEDs), proposed remuneration and
any other information, as required pursuant to
the applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the
proposed candidates will be included in the circular to
Shareholders.

3.5 A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature
at any time before the general meeting by serving a
notice in writing to the Company.

3.6 The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand
for election at any general meeting.

Risk Control Committee

Risk Control Committee currently consists of five members,
including two non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Su Yongjian
and Mr. Li Hao, and three executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Ping, Mr. Lu Zhenwei and Mr. Wang Heng. Mr. Zhang Ping is the
chairman of the Risk Control Committee.

The aim of the Risk Control Committee is to strengthen the
risk analysis, judgement, and decision making of the Board.
The main responsibilities of the Risk Control Committee are
to assist the Board in evaluating and deciding the risk level
and risk appetite of the Group in achieving its strategic and
business objectives, in identifying, mitigating and control of
risks associated with significant investments, material operation
and financial matters and other major activities of the Group,
and in making recommendations on improvement of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.
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During the year 2021, the Risk Control Committee held 9 —E_—&F > EAREZEHEESLETTARXE

meetings to review and conduct risk assessment on acquisition F>HWEXZRIE - RERERIBERET
transactions and engineering procurement construction projects, ERIK R EH THESSEHHEER
and made recommendations to the Board for consideration HEZESUEMARNAEAERATEEREBEL
or otherwise make suggestions to the management of the EZ - WNEE_ZET_—F+_F=+—HI1E
Company. Transactions reviewed by the Risk Control Committee FE > KEEIEHZEGERITEIREN
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and have already 5 E¥E :

been disclosed include:

SUMMARY OF WORK DONE DURING THE YEAR OF 2021

TR -FAMIGZHBE

c acquisition of 100% equity interest in a project company which owns an operating solar power plant with
the grid-connected capacity of 50MW in Inner Mongolia, the PRC;
WiE—RBIEE A 100%K# Z AR R FPEAR G#EE —BEHAERSEA0KRNEERGEZEETL ;

acquisition of 100% equity interest in a project company which owns in total 6 solar power plants with
total installed capacity of 115MW in Inner Mongolia, the PRC;

WiE—EIEE AT100%K#  Z AR RHFEAXR G HEE S H/NERIGEZBIL MBI E 511508
&

acquisition of 100% equity interest in four project companies which own one photovoltaic power project
with the capacity ranging from 30MW to 400MW in Hebei Province, the PRC respectively;

WHEPY T B A Bl 100%M# » 2 EF R BN EIIE & DRl #HE —EARE2 N F30IK R E400JKE LI FE R
EEBIEE ;

acquisition of 100% equity interest in four project companies which own one operating wind power plant
with the grid-connected capacity ranging from 40MW to 50MW in Shanxi Province, the PRC respectively;
WeBE N I8 B /A B1100%R 1 > ZF A BN RIS 25 E —EH RS EN F40K R ES0IKENE
& B

acquisition of 100% equity interest in a project company which owns a wind power project with an
installed capacity of 50MW in Xinjiang, the PRC;
WiE—RIEE A B100%K# > Z AR N PEMEES —EREAER50KEMNRENEEIEE ;

c entering into an engineering procurement construction contract relating to the parking shed photovoltaic
power project with planned construction capacity of 63.05MW in Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, the PRC;

and
SUARMUNTE IAREE Mt ERAE=463.05 B AREMEEEE > TE - HRERERS
4

c deemed disposal of no more than 29.43% equity interest in UP Changzhou.

RIEHEB SR EMNTEBiB29.43% 1
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Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee was established in March 2017. The
aim of the Strategy Committee is to further facilitate and guide
the research and implementation of the business development
and the strategic planning of the Group, as well as to enhance
the decision-making procedures of the major matters of the
Company and strengthen the corporate governance structure
of the Company. The main responsibilities of the Strategy
Committee are to assist the Board in formulating and evaluating
the development strategy and implementation plan of the Group
in achieving its medium-term and long-term strategic goals and
make recommendations to the Board in relation to any other
significant matters affecting the development of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Strategy
Committee did not hold any meeting. For the purpose of
enhancing its decision-making efficiency, the Strategy Committee
was officially dissolved with effect from 29 January 2021. The
functions and duties of Strategy Committee shall be taken over
by the Board.

The attendance records of each Director at Board meetings,
committee meetings and general meetings of the Company in
2021 are set out below:

BIREEE

BREEEEN _E—tF=ZARL -BRE
EEMENAE—PHERIEELERXD
BRNEBEEENMERER U B
ARERFENRREFRMBERBEE
EARB - BREEENTIEZERERHHE
FERERMEFIEENZERRBRE M
B UBRATRAYRBRER UHEMEM
FEANBDERNEARFEONESERHE

2
A% ©

REE-_E-_—F+_-_B=+—HLEEE"
HELZEGUBRBTEAN IR BIRARSK
ME - BREEEE _SZ_—F—HF_+h
HEEXHEH HLEE T HERBSEE
HESETRE-

BEER_ZT_—FHRARADEEFEZ
F LETEERREAGHCHERIAT

Attendance Record of Directors and Committee Members in 2021

CEC-FEEREEEHENERLRRLS

Audit  Remuneration Nomination  Risk Control Strategy

Board General Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee

meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings

BRZRE HMWERE RAEZRY RREEN  BRZERE

Exge3 RRAE &3 &3 &% ZREEE e

Number of meetings f-F ¢ 17 4 3 1 1 9 5

Executive Directors HTEE

Mr. Zhang Ping RERE 17/17 3/4 - - 1/1 9/9 S

Mr. Lu Zhenwei BRELE 13/17 4/4 - - - 5/9 -

Mr. Wang Heng (note 1) TRE W) - - - - - - -

Mr. Xu Jianjun (note 2) HRRERE Wi2) 11/17 3/4 - - - 0/5 -
Non-executive Directors FHTEE

Mr. Zhao Bing (note 3) WERE W23) 6/16 0/3 1/2 0/1 S 2/3 =

Mr. Su Yongjian (note 4) BokBRSE (Hata) - - - - - - -

Mr. Li Hao FERE 8/17 3/4 - - - 6/9 -

Mr. Sui Xiaofeng (note 5) WERELe L (H/its) 9/17 2/4 0/1 - - 4/9 -

Ms. Xie Yi (note 6) HELL (H6) 7/8 1/3 - - - - -

Mr. Chen Dayu (note 7) BAFRE (Hat7) 0/1 1/1 = = = 0/1 =
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Attendance Record of Directors and Committee Members in 2021

CEC-FESRZAEHENERNRLS

Audit  Remuneration Nomination  Risk Control Strategy

Board General Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings
BiZ8E HMZE¢ ReZEg BB  BRZEQ

FES REXE e S g% 8993 g3

Independent non-executive Directors  BLHEHTEE

Ms. Jin Xinbin (note 8) st (s) 15/17 4/4 = = = = =

Ms. Li Hongwei (note 9) FELT (WHa29) 8/8 1/1 2/2 = = = =

Mr. Zhw Jianbiao (note 10) REIMSE (Wat10) /8 01 2/2 - - - -

Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong (note 11) BREBRE (H#11) 9/9 3/3 11 1/1 1/1 4/4 =

M. Yen Yuen Ho, Tony (note 12) Bovisks (Wi#12) 7/8 23 11 1/1 1/1 - =

Mr. Chen Hongsheng (note 13) BRERE (HH13) 5/9 1/3 - - - - -

Notes: Mok -

1. Mr. Wang Heng was appointed as an executive Director and a 1. Ef ?‘EEQ:%E:E—H “t+tHIEEZRE
member of the Risk Control Committee with effect from 27 January BITEEREARIZENEZEGRE
2022.

2. Mr. Xu Jianjun was appointed as a member of the Risk Control 2. HEBELLEE_T_—F A+ /\BEERE
Committee with effect from 18 June 2021. He resigned as an PERIEFZEEME HE-_FT_—F+—
executive Director and ceased to be a member of the Risk Control BZThAHERERTESETHEERARE
Committee with effect from 29 December 2021. FIEZES GRS

3. Mr Zhao Bing was appointed as a non-executive Director and 3. HMEELEB_T_—E—F_+NBEESE
members of the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Control BIIEPTEEURFNEE G REKRENZE
Committee with effect from 29 January 2021. He resigned as ERE- KRBT —F A+ /\HEHEH
members of the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Control MEEERARITEHNEZEGNE  TEZEIS
Committee, and was appointed as a member of the Audit BREEgME-

Committee with effect from 18 June 2021. L N

4. Mr. Su Yongjian was appointed as a non-executive Director and 4. EXKEAELEE_F__F_A_+H El\tﬁﬁgé
members of the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Control ERIFRITERURFINEE G R EEIEGE
Committee with effect from 25 February 2022. ERga= . _

5. Mr. Sui Xiaofeng resigned as a member of the Audit Committee and 5. [FBEELEE"T——F A+ \QRHESR
was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee with ZEEEME TEZADFNEZEENE
effect from 18 June 2021. He resigned as a non-executive Director BT __E_H_+HBEREIFATE
and ceased to be members of the Remuneration Committee and EEFABRIFNEZESRARIZEFZE TN
the Risk Control Committee with effect from 25 February 2022. %i .

6. Ms. Xie Yi retired as a non-executive Director with effect from 6. #HELZTE T —FA+/\HIEEEFEHR
18 June 2021. TEE- R

7. Mr. Chen Dayu resigned as a non-executive Director and ceased to 7. BRAFHEB_T_—F—A-F+NHEHTE
be members of the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Control FHTEERTBETHFNEZE S REARZES
Committee with effect from 29 January 2021. REGHB- )

8. Ms. Jin Xinbin was appointed as members of the Remuneration 8. WL ITE_T_—F; A+ /\QRESE
Committee and the Nomination Committee with effect from AEMNEEERREREEENE -

18 June 2021.

9. Ms. Li Hongwei was appointed as an independent non-executive 9. FAML+BE_T_—F A+ /\BERESE
Director and the chairladies of the Audit Committee and the ABUIERTEEURBREEGRENES
Remuneration Committee with effect from 18 June 2021. BFF- . N

10. Mr. Zhu Jianbiao was appointed as an independent non-executive ~ 10. KEIESEEB T _—F A+ /\HEESE
Director and members of the Audit Committee and the Nomination RBEUFNTEEUREZEZEGRRELES
Committee with effect from 18 June 2021. BmlBEe . -

11. Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong resigned as an independent non-executive — 11. BARREStEB—ZF_—F/ AT \HEHTE
Director and ceased to be the chairman of the Audit Committee, VATEE BTBRAEREEETE
and members of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination UERiMEZE g RLTEGMRARBEFIEZE
Committee and the Risk Control Committee with effect from 18 =15 9=1
June 2021. . . .

12. Mr. Yen Yuen Ho, Tony retired as an independent non-executive  12. BIL/EAELEBR T _—E 51 /\HEREE
Director and ceased to be the chairman of the Remuneration VRGTER BT BEEFNEEEER
Committee, and members of the Audit Committee and the UERBEZEZEERIEREEEHE
Nomination Committee with effect from 18 June 2021. R . ~

13. Mr. Chen Hongsheng resigned as an independent non-executive — 13. BRMHASLEBH—F——F A8+ /\HEFHIE
Director with effect from 18 June 2021. IIEHITES
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DIVIDEND POLICY EEEE

The Group adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on ZH®EEWR _Z—/N\E+_A+/\BEHAKRE

18 December 2018 and as below. g

1. Objectives 1.

1.1 The Dividend Policy is designed to set guidelines
on dividend distribution that maintain the balance
between appropriately rewarding Shareholders through
dividends and retaining necessary capital to support
future development of the Company.

1.2 The Board will recommend dividend distribution based
on various internal and external factors while striving
for fairness and sustainability.

1.3 The Dividend Policy shall be in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, laws and rules in the jurisdictions that the
Company has operations and the Bye-laws, as in force
and as amended from time to time.

2. Parameters to be considered while declaring dividends 2.

2.1 Dividend distribution is contingent upon various
factors, and their combination thereof, which are listed
below and the Board shall consider these factors in
the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders
as a whole before deciding the dividend.

0 current and prospective financial performance of
the Company;

0 growth and investment opportunities;
o other macro and micro economic factors; and

other factors/events that the Board may deem as
relevant.
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Utilization of retained earnings

3.1 The Company would employ the retained earnings for
conducting activities in normal course of business,
including but not limited to funding the Company’s
future business growth/expansion plans or such other
purpose the Board may deem fit in the best interest of
the Company and its Shareholders as a whole.

Circumstances under which shareholders may not expect
dividend

4.1 The Board may vary or not recommend any dividend
if the criteria for recommending of dividend has not
been met by the Company, including but not limited to
events/factors listed below:

loss or inadequacy of profit or cash flow;

decision to undertake any acquisition, amalgamation,
merger, takeover that will result in significant capital
outflow;

the Company has been prohibited from declaring
dividends under any contractual obligation or by
any regulatory authority; and

any other extraordinary circumstances.

Provisions regarding various classes of shares

5.1 The provisions contained in the Dividend Policy
shall apply to all classes of shares of the Company.
Currently, the Company does not have any other class
of shares (including shares with differential voting
rights) other than ordinary shares.

Amendments

6.1 To the extent any change/amendment is required
in terms of applicable laws or rules, the laws or
rules would prevail over the Dividend Policy, and the
provisions in the Dividend Policy would be suitably
modified to make it consistent with the requirements
of the law. Such amended Dividend Policy shall be
placed before the Board for noting and necessary
ratification.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements of the Group. We
recognise the importance of integrity of financial information
and endeavour to present to the Shareholders a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of the performance, position
and prospects of the Group. The Board also acknowledges its
responsibility for preparing the financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the Group’s affairs and of its results and
cash flows. The Board receives from the management of the
Company such explanation and information as necessary to
enable it to assess the financial information and position of the
Group.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs. The accounting policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
estimates. It also requires management of the Company to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving high degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in the Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Company has used appropriate accounting
policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates, and that all applicable
accounting standards have been followed.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Group and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

EFARUBHRRZEME

EFTANRFREETESERRTERZ
MBRER RFAEIMBZEN BN ZER
Mo ERNBREAEERRE R RKRETR
REEE AWK FZEZTE - EFGIRARA
HEERNAITEBRATRMAERES
FERBEEREZMBRR AR EERE
EREFERHOCBZAFBEERERM U
BEMAERZMBER AR R EHR TS

REMBRECERETBEVYBRSERR
HofRFARBIN Gt BRE—ERARFA
EEREN -RESBYBRSENRRY
BRE BEREAE THRMGS - HTFERA
ABEEBERAEAEE G BRBRERT
EFE W RS EHERER M AHEEH
BREMEBEEZZRRRMGEFZER ®
REMBRRWEARE -

EXERNRUMBERRE AR EBERE
EESHER UUBESENHE RGFE
WER RERFMBEBERZ G5 ER-

EFAEAEREFREZ GBI N EME
BEEERMNESEBM BN > L HE
REATREOYBERGTEEBABMRIKR L
MR ZEK

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JtstRETRBIRER A R A ]

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —- % ——4E4E



INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of risks that the Group is willing to take
in achieving its strategic objectives, and establishing and
maintaining sound and effective risk management and internal
control systems. On an on-going basis, the Board performs
supervision and annual inspection on the effectiveness of the
internal control system and risk management.

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group on an annual basis and reviewed the works done by
the audit and supervisory department which has a primary role
in assessing and evaluating the effectiveness of the internal
control system and acts independently and reports to the
Board and the Audit Committee. The Company has engaged
KPMG Advisory (China) Limited Beijing Branch (the “Internal
Control Consultant”) in the year of 2019 to conduct internal
control review of the Group. The Internal Control Consultant
has established an internal control evaluation mechanism for
the six risky business areas and 28 sub-business processes
through system review, interview survey, sample test and data
analysis conducted within the Group. During the year 2021,
the Group actively followed the suggestions of the Internal
Control Consultant to revise and improve the internal control
management measures, so as to restrict the risk management
and internal control from the perspectives of internal control
management activities, internal control system construction,
organizational structure, internal control evaluation and defect
identification, and the online office automation system (OA
system) is adopted as the supervisory systems of the risk
management and internal control. Meanwhile, the Group will
regularly engage external and professional internal control
consultants to conduct internal control evaluation on the core
areas of the Company’s risky business and make suggestions
for improvement and optimization of internal control defects. The
Group will ensure that these suggestions can be implemented
within a reasonable time. The Board and the Audit Committee
conducted an annual review on effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended
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31 December 2021. After consideration of the reports from the
relevant departments, the Board and the Audit Committee have
satisfied that such systems are effective and adequate. The
Board also authorized the Risk Control Committee to manage
and implement risk control procedures.

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” published by the Securities and Future Commission
in June 2012 to ensure inside information remains confidential
until the disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved, and the dissemination of such information is
efficiently and consistently made. The Company regularly
reminds the Directors and employees about due compliance with
all policies regarding the inside information. Also, the Company
keeps Directors, senior management and employees appraised
of the latest regulatory updates. The Company shall prepare
or update appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure the
compliance with regulatory requirements.

Dealing with risk is an integral part of how it protects
and creates value. Our business is principally engaged in
development, investment, operation and management of
renewable energy plants. Understanding emerging risks in the
energy industry and establishing effective mitigation measures
shows our commitment to a sustainable development of
business. We have identified a number of risks associated with
our business, which include:

Weather and climate risk — renewable energy plants depend on
the amount and intensity of natural resources, which is affected
by weather and climate conditions. Adverse meteorological
conditions can have a material impact on the plant’s output and
could result in production of electricity below expected output,
which in turn could adversely affect our profitability.
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Our response — We select renewable energy plant projects
based on criteria such as geographical and meteorological
conditions of the site as part of our main inspections. During
the development and maintenance of our renewable energy
plants, we cooperated with the leading suppliers in the PRC to
create and develop equipment which can be adapted to different
latitude, topography and climatic conditions. At the same time,
we built up a professional team in respect of operation and
maintenance of our existing renewable energy plants with strict
operation and maintenance policy and risk prevention measures.

Policy risk — The Group’s results of operations could be affected
by tariff and government subsidies for renewable energy which
depend, to a large extent, on political and policy developments
relating to environmental concerns in the PRC and overseas
markets in which the Group operates.

Our response — The Company selects renewable energy plant
projects with applicable feed-in tariff or government subsidies,
and strong demand and consumption for electricity in the
locality. In the meantime, our operation and maintenance team
pays close attention to the changes of local and national energy
policies, gets timely feedback and takes related responses.
The Company also proactively communicates with the local
governments, grid companies and electricity consumption
enterprises to provide more electricity transmission
programmes.
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Development and construction risk — When the Company
develops and constructs renewable energy plants, it must first
obtain the relevant local grid company’s consent to connect
our renewable energy plants to the local grid and appropriate
government approvals and registrations. Obtaining such
consent for on-grid connection and government approvals and
registrations may depend on a number of factors, including
but not limited to the availability and the reliability of existing
grids, the progress of construction and the quality of these grid
connection facilities, efficiency of the administrative bodies
and the regulatory framework. Failure or delay in obtaining
such consent, approvals or registrations may hinder or prevent
the development of its renewable energy projects as planned.
Besides that, the construction quality is also an important factor
to affect the power generation efficiency of renewable energy
plants.

Our response — The Company employs a strict and systematic
approach to evaluate potential development projects. The
Company maintains an updated list of qualified and reliable
suppliers and third-party contractors with a proven track record
to provide EPC services, through a bidding process or through
our affiliates or other cooperative arrangements, to ensure the
qualities of their services. Throughout the development process,
the procurement and construction departments organize and
collect bids, communicates with bidders and coordinates with
our development teams to meet all local technical and legal
requirements for on-grid connection and the construction
of our projects. In the meanwhile, we also build up on-site
management team to inspect the construction quality and make
sure the construction quality meets the Company’s standard and
requirement. The Company will assess location of development
sites and secure site control for project development. We
believe that its methodical approach to potential development
of renewable energy plant projects, together with its deep
industry knowledge, strong and long-standing relationship with
other stakeholders will lend it an advantage in development of
renewable energy plant projects.
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Operation and maintenance risk — A majority of the Company’s
existing renewable energy plants are scattered across different
regions in the PRC. The area in which the Company’s plants
are located is large and the number of devices is huge. The
ongoing operation of its facilities involves risks that include the
breakdown or failure of equipment or processes or performance
below expected levels of output or efficiency due to, among
other things, wear and tear, latent defects, design error,
operator's error or force majeure events. Any curtailment of
electricity we produce in the PRC could also have an adverse
impact on its results of operations.

Our response — The Group has built up and maintained
professional operation and maintenance team to provide
preventive and corrective operating and maintenance service
on site. At the same time, the Company regularly maintain
its renewable energy plants with an intention to enhance
the utilization rate, rate of power generation and system life
of its renewable energy plants to the utmost. The Company
engages ground contractors who are on call to promptly remedy
any issues that may arise. The development of transmission
infrastructure and our participation in more power market
transactions, including inter-provincial renewable energy
transmission, help to mitigate loss from any curtailment.

Overseas investment risk — The Company exposes to various
risks in overseas expansion and investment, including overseas
policy risks, transaction risks of overseas project and post-
acquisition management and operation risks.

Our response — The Group chooses those locating in countries
with stable policies, good relationships with China and relatively
high internationally recognized ratings when selecting overseas
projects. The Company also engages intermediary team familiar
with local laws and policies and with rich similar experience in
such transactions to provide services. The Company will select
experienced teams to operate and maintain the acquired project
thereafter.

Competition risk — The Company faces competition from local
and international developers of renewable energy plants, many
of whom are integrated with upstream manufacturers. We
also face competition in circumstances where large local and
multinational corporations operating in the PRC establish their
own distributed renewable energy projects.
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Our response — The Company has an established track record
in acquiring, developing and operating a high quality and well
diversified portfolio of renewable energy plants across the PRC.
Our leading market position and extensive experience in the PRC
renewable energy industry give us the opportunity to participate
in renewable energy policy discussions and enable us to have
significant influence in the development of renewable energy
industry related policies and standards. In 2013, the Company
collaborated with state-owned enterprises to establish the
Photovoltaic Green Ecosystem Organization, which was the first
organization in the PRC that sought to connect and encourage
collaboration among the numerous photovoltaic companies
distributed across the value chain of the PRC renewable energy
industry, and is believed to have significantly expanded the
development and construction of renewable energy plants in the
PRC. The Company believes that its significant scale and leading
position in the PRC renewable energy industry provides us with
economies of scale, a broad base of operational experience and
resources, bargaining power with EPC contractors and suppliers,
and significant industry and regulatory relationships, which
will continue to provide the Company with attractive renewable
energy plant acquisition and development opportunities.

Finance risk — Renewable energy business requires intensive
capital investments. Significant amount of capital is required
to meet our capital requirements and fund our operations,
including payments to suppliers for products, equipment
and components and to contractors for design, engineering,
procurement and construction services. Our ability to meet
the payment obligations of our outstanding debt depends on
our ability to generate significant cash flow in the future and
obtaining external financing. This, to some extent, is subject
to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative and
regulatory factors as well as other conditions that are beyond
our control.
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Our response — Our leading position in the PRC renewable
energy industry, the support from the Shareholders and the
strong relationships with our lending banks provide us with
access to a variety of tailored financing solutions, including
onshore solutions, such as financial lease and project finance,
and offshore solutions, such as equity financing issue new
shares allotments, and debt financing through the issue of US-
dollar convertible bond, etc. The Company plans to actively
reduce its financing costs and further diversify its channels of
financing. The Company believes its stable cash flow profile,
the long-term nature of its operation of renewable energy plants
and its ability to raise equity and debt capital to finance growth,
provide it with flexibility to optimize our capital structure.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions
by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry to each Director,
all of them have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and our own code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zhang Xiao was appointed as the Company Secretary and
the Authorised Representative on 30 July 2019. Ms. Zhang is a
senior manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong)
Limited (FEITZ2REER (F8) BRAF), a professional
services provider specializing in corporate services, and has
over nine years of experience in the corporate secretarial field.
Ms. Zhang has been admitted as an associate member of
both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The
Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom in 2019.
Ms. Zhang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Computer Science
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2010 and a
master’s degree in corporate governance from The Metropolitan
University of Hong Kong in 2018. Mr. Zhang Ping, the Chairman
of the Board and the executive Director, is the primary contact
of Ms. Zhang at the Company. All Directors have access to
the advice and services of Ms. Zhang to ensure that board
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations, are
followed. During the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. Zhang
has taken more than 15 hours of relevant professional training
according to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION

Publication of
financial reports,

The Company adopted a shareholder communication policy on
26 March 2013, which stipulates the objectives of the Company
in communicating with its Shareholders, both individual and
institutional, and, where appropriate, the investment community
at large. The Company aims to provide its Shareholders timely
and clear information, and allow the Shareholders to engage
actively with the Company in exercising their rights.

Information is communicated to the Shareholders mainly through
general meetings, the Company’s website (http://www.bjei.com)
and corporate communications including interim and annual
reports, notices, announcements and circulars which are
available on websites of the Company and the HKEXnews and
hard copies of reports and circulars that are despatched to the
Shareholders.

The Board is dedicated to maintaining an on-going dialogue with
the Shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to participate
in general meetings or appoint proxies to attend and vote at
general meetings for and on behalf of them if they are unable
to attend in person. Directors will make an effort to attend and
the external auditor will also be available at the AGM to address
Shareholders’ queries. In case of any general meeting to
approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that is
subject to independent Shareholders’ approval, members of the
independent board committee of the Company will also make an
effort to attend to address Shareholders’ queries. Pursuant to
Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of the shareholders
at general meetings are taken by poll.

Websites of the

announcements, Shareholders’ Company and the conferences and
cwcularls and press meetings HKEXnews roadshows
releases N
R FAFK DEMERE
FIBBITSIRE « A - é%igﬁﬁmg«% BEREE
BRI FEA

IRREE

Analyst briefings,

ARBNR_E—=F=ZAZ+ARMEE
BABR STAARTEERR (BEFEAR
W Uk (MER) KEREERE) ETES
WER-ARTAEERNHERREHAFES
ERHER WASFRRITERSNERN |
B2RKXAF]ER-

EHNFEEBREAREG - AQAF ML
(http://www.bjei.com)& (& 2@ (15 A
REEHRS BE5 A5kBR (ZETYH
RAEAABREBRZFAPEZMBLETRBER
SHBRVEIRI AR HFEFTRE)) PETR
%o

EFERNHEARRERFEHZ TR H
BRRSERTRATHAEZERERAD/ERE
RRAGLENE LRE (HRERERS W
) BEERBNAHFERIEZBEDTELE
RRBFAGHMERREHD - UBBRBEER
SREMNEACEHILIRRAENEMZZHE
HREAEME  ARBABIEFEZEE TN
ENNRBHHFEARGURERRESN - BRI
EHRRIFE13.39(4) % RERIRRAE LAY
FTIBRRAUKRESNET-

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JtstRETRBIRER A R A ]

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —- % - —4E4E



Shareholders’ rights

Calling and putting forward proposals at a general meeting of
the Company

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-Laws, Shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require a SGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
written requisition must be duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned and to be verified by the Company’s share registrar.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

To request to convene a SGM, the requisitionists shall deposit
their requisition in writing, together with the proposals to be
considered at such meeting, at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong as announced by the Company
from time to time and for the attention of the Chairman of
the Board and the Company Secretary. The requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars. If it is in order,
the Company Secretary will pass the requisition to the Board
for consideration and a SGM will be convened by sufficient
notice to all the registered Shareholders in accordance with
the requirements under the Bye-Laws. On the contrary, if
the requisition is invalid, no SGM will be convened and the
requisitionists will be advised of this outcome.

To put forward proposals at a Shareholders’ meeting of the
Company, a Shareholder should lodge a written request setting
out the proposals duly signed by the Shareholder concerned at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
as announced by the Company from time to time and for the
attention of the Chairman and the Company Secretary. The
request will be verified by the Company’s share registrars. If
it is in order, the Company Secretary will pass the request to
the Board for consideration. The Board will decide whether it is
valid and appropriate to put such proposals at a Shareholders’
meeting.
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Proposing a candidate for election as a Director at a general
meeting

Pursuant to Bye-law 85 of the Bye-Laws, no person other
than a Director retiring at the general meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election as a Director at any general meeting unless a notice
signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting for
which such notice is given of his intention to propose such
person for election and also a notice signed by the person to
be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the registration office (as defined
in the Bye-Laws) provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven
days and that (if the notices are submitted after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election)
the period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on
the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

Accordingly, to nominate a person for election as a Director,
a Shareholder shall lodge a written notice duly signed by the
Shareholder concerned at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong as announced by the Company from time
to time and for the attention of the Company Secretary. In order
for the Company to inform all Shareholders of that proposal,
the written notice must include the following information: (i) the
full name of the person proposed for election as a Director; (ii)
his/her biographical details as required under Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules; and (iii) the candidate’s written confirmation
on his/her willingness to be elected as a Director and written
consent to the publication of his/her personal data as required
by the Listing Rules. The notice will be verified by the Company’s
share registrars. If it is in order, the Company Secretary will
pass the notice to the Nomination Committee for examination.
The Nomination Committee will assess the suitability of
the candidate proposed by the Shareholder and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorship if it thinks fit and appropriate. If
such notice is received by the Company after publication of the
notice of the Shareholders’ meeting concerned, the Company
will publish an announcement or issue a supplementary circular
setting out the particulars of the proposed Director and may
need to adjourn the Shareholders’ meeting as and when
required by the Bye-Laws.
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We have posted on the Company’s website the procedures for
Shareholders to convene and put forward proposals at general
meetings including proposing a person for election as a Director,
and to vote by poll at general meetings.

Enquiries

Shareholders may directly enquire about their shareholdings
to the Company’s share registrar. To the extent the requisite
information of the Company is publicly available, Shareholders
and the investment community who have enquiries in respect
of the Company may write to the Company Secretary by
post to Unit 1012, 10th Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong or by email to
csd@bjei.com.

The Board has reviewed corporate governance practices of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 and this
corporate governance report. It will continue to review, monitor
and improve the policies and practices of the Company for
the purpose of ensuring the compliance of the CG Code and
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and
operates its business through its subsidiaries. The Group is
principally engaged in development, investment, operation
and management of power plants and other renewable energy
projects.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021, and discussion of important events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 are provided in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. A discussion
on the Group’s likely future business development are provided
in the “Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report. Our risk
management system and description of the principal risks and
uncertainties the Company may be facing are provided in the
“Report of Corporate Governance” of this annual report. An
analysis of the Group’'s performance during the year ended 31
December 2021 using financial key performance indicators is
provided in the “Five-year Financial Summary” of this annual
report.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are contained in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report to be published by the Company in due
course.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss of this
annual report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: Nil).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets
and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 295
of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company and its movements
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws,
or Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company is incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

In February 2021, the Company repurchased certain 8%
guaranteed senior notes due 2022 (the “Senior Notes”) in
the aggregate principal amount of US$33 million at a total
consideration of approximately US$34 million (including accrued
and unpaid interest) in the open market.

All outstanding Senior Notes in the aggregate principal amount
of approximately US$79 million were redeemed in full on 3
September 2021 at a redemption price of equal to 100.5%
of the principal amount of the outstanding Senior Notes plus
the accrued and unpaid interest pursuant to the terms of the
indenture. All the redeemed Senior Notes were cancelled on the
same date.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the Year.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had no reserve (31
December 2020: Nil) available for distribution as computed
in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
However, the Company’s share premium account in the amount
of approximately RMB9,128 million as at 31 December 2021
(31 December 2020: approximately RMB9,128 million) may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

POVERTY ALLEVIATION AND CHARITABLE
DONATION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had made
poverty alleviation and charitable donation of approximately
RMB14 million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB6
million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and five largest customers accounted for approximately 23%
and 98% respectively (31 December 2020: approximately 22%
and 98% respectively) of the Group’s total revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2021. Besides, the total amount of
purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of items
which are not of capital nature was less than 30% of the total
purchases of the Group.

None of the Directors or any of their close associate(s) or any
substantial shareholder of the Company (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors owns 5% or more of the number of
issued shares of the Company) had any interests in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up
to the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Ping (Chairman)
Mr. Lu Zhenwei
Mr. Wang Heng
(appointed with effect from 27 January 2022)
Mr. Xu Jianjun
(resigned with effect from 29 December 2021)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Bing

(appointed with effect from 29 January 2021)
Mr. Su Yongjian

(appointed with effect from 25 February 2022)
Mr. Li Hao
Mr. Sui Xiaofeng

(resigned with effect from 25 February 2022)
Ms. Xie Yi

(retired with effect from 18 June 2021)
Mr. Chen Dayu

(resigned with effect from 29 January 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Jin Xinbin
Ms. Li Hongwei

(appointed with effect from 18 June 2021)
Mr. Zhu Jianbiao

(appointed with effect from 18 June 2021)
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong

(resigned with effect from 18 June 2021)
Mr. Yen Yuen Ho, Tony

(retired with effect from 18 June 2021)
Mr. Chen Hongsheng

(resigned with effect from 18 June 2021)

In accordance with Bye-law 84 of the Bye-Laws, at each AGM
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third), shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years. Mr. Zhang Ping, Mr. Lu Zhenwei and Ms. Jin Xinbin, being
one-third of the Directors, shall retire from office by rotation and
be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
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None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM has
entered into any service contracts with any member of the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has assessed their independence and considers that
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent
in accordance with the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Company are set out on pages 20 to 28 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed below in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions”, “Continuing Connected Transactions” and
“Related Party Transactions” in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 December 2021 or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2021 had the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, its holding company, or any subsidiary of
its holding company was a party entered into any contract of
significance with the controlling Shareholders or any of their
subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance been entered
into for the services provided by the controlling Shareholders
or any of their subsidiaries to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, other than disclosed in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” below, none of the Directors
or the chief executive or their associates had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Bye-Laws, every Director is entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions
and losses which he/she may incur or sustain or in or about
the execution and discharge of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto, to the extent as permitted by law.

Furthermore, during the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company has taken out and maintained appropriate directors’
and officers’ liability insurance to protect the current directors
of the Group and the directors of the Group who resigned during
the Year against potential costs and liabilities arising from
claims brought against them. The permitted indemnity provision
is currently in force and was in force throughout the year ended
31 December 2021 for the benefit of the Directors as required
by the provisions of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

RELIEF FROM TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HH WY

EFREFETHRASRKRG 18R
PREEERZED

R TET—F+ZRA=+—H 'BRTIXER
HE S —EFIREEIN EENETETHA
ERRFNHMBAMEEALALDREEM
BEEE (BB R FRPAEHRMBEXVERFT R E
ZHE) 2ERRM RO SERE A
AR RBIRERFRIBERG F3521%F
BEZECMzEMERNXE  HRBELS
RAMEIOFF 2 RETABASTHNEELAR
B R Bt P 2 AR R m Bk A o

EHEFFRERX

RESEMEA TEEAFNEEN  RES
ERMEBTRATHRBNALBEAZER
TMAEBEARTZ — A RBRREE
AENEER N TESHEE-

o AR RBEZ2-_—F+ZA
S+ HIEFEEBRERMFEENESER
THRABSRERE WREXFAEBRIES
REEBERAFEREIZEZTRERARE
PREEZBEERRBEHERE -ENESFH
m R EE SR E R XRB QB (BB ES
$£6228) MRENRBRNBE T —4F
+TZR=+t—HLEERFEN-

MRERR
75 72 B) 3 7 0 7 £ 100 81 B B 2 9 B 7 B 4 4R

EREANRERR

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JustfETRBRE%AE A PR 23 )

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 — % ——4E4E#)

89



90

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
WY

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2021 was the Company, its holding company, any of its
subsidiaries, or any subsidiaries of its holding company a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors
or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any rights
to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such rights during the year under review.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in (i) the sections headed “Share Option
Scheme” and “Equity Incentive Scheme” below, (ii) the issue
and/or movement of equity/convertible securities as described
in the section headed “Fundraising Activities Through Issue of
Equity/Convertible Securities” below and (iii) as set out in Note
25 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group during the year
under review, or subsisted at the end of the year under review.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the AGM held on 19 June 2012, the Shareholders approved
the adoption of a Share Option Scheme. On 8 January 2015, a
total of 64,500,000 share options to subscribe for 64,500,000
Shares were granted under the Share Option Scheme. On 28
January 2016, a total of 36,568,319 share options to subscribe
for 36,568,319 Shares were granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

EFREERMNGEESEZEF

PR T TRERRESHEl) —EIPTIREE & Ih > IO
E_E_—F+_A=+—HLEFEEME
B xR HERATB -BEEANEBAST K
HERABDZEMNMBARLIFREEEH
BUEERRBHEAEMEARRENRD N
BREEESH aNEAZIHNTNSL MR
CEFER EFRRFZEBITNAEU
TFUBEREEARNIBEEALTESE
AT EE R L F R -

AR R D 17 52

PRIER D) N TEE AR 5181 LUK TR 122D
SR BH D ()P EBETRE AR
EHFETEEES) — AR E AR E
HFEITR/ RBBLUR(iEEMHREME
25FEE SN AEBRNOBFEEANRES L
ERAREHBGER TEARABENLBES

i ]|
NZE—CEXBTAHRBTZREBBEKX
gL oREAERA—IEBRESTE PN
—HEFE—BN B EREEBEREFIRER
58H564,500,0008% i {7 2 & $£64,500,000173
BRE-R_ZE—XRE—B_-+N\H ' BRE
MBS RE St 8192 H TR 836,568,319/ ik 0 =~
5 3£36,568,3191) BEAGHE -

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JtstRETRBIRER A R A ]

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —- % ——4E4E



As the original scheme limit of the Share Option Scheme had
been almost fully utilised, the scheme limit of the Share Option
Scheme was refreshed by the Shareholders’ approval at the
AGM held on 26 May 2017. After the refreshment, a total of
589,250,000 share options to subscribe for 589,250,000
Shares were granted on 16 June 2017, and 80,000,000 share
options to subscribe for 80,000,000 Shares were granted on
12 September 2017. Details of the share options granted under
the Share Option Scheme to Directors and employees of the
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Changes during the year
FREE
Closing
price of
shares Outstanding
before the at 31
date of grant  Outstanding December
Exercise (HK$/share) at 1 January 2021
price  HE AL 2021 R_E_-F
(HK$/share) ~ AiZRfy W_B_—%& +ZB
Grantees Date of grant 6@ Wi fE -B-8 Granted  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed =+—H Exercise period (Note)
EBA RiHAS (BREY) (BRE® HRTE it 7 ENDE 3 WARTE ATERE ()
1. Directors
B%
Mr. Lu Zhenwei 28 January 2016 0.564 0.54 3,000,000 - - - (3,000,000) - 28 January 2017 to
EiREILE ZE-R"E-AZtNH 27 January 2021
Z3-tF
—-AZ+N\BE
E_-F
—-BZ+tH
16 June 2017 1.076 1 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000 16 June 2018 to
Z2—tE/A+RHE 15 June 2022
“2N\F
RATRRE
EoCE
~AtTEA
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong 28 January 2016 0.564 0.54 1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) - 28 January 2017 to
(Resigned on 18 June 2021, —F—A~E—-B”+/\H 27 January 2021
his share options lapsed “E—tF
on the date of his resignation) —BZ+N\RE
BRERL ZET-F
RZBZ-ExBT\B# —BZ+tE
B EBRERERAEZAX
M
16 June 2017 1.076 1 3,000,000 - - - (3,000,000) - 16 June 2018 to
ZE—tERATAH 15 June 2022
Z2-0\%
RATREE
ZE_CF
~ATEA
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Changes during the year
FREY
Closing
price of
shares Outstanding
before the at 31
date of grant  Outstanding December
Exercise (HK$/share) at 1 January 2021
pice REHAH 2021 RZEZ-%&
(HK$/share) ~ RiZRf? W_E_—% +Z8
Grantees Date of grant 78 @ -B—-H Granted  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed =+—H Exercise period (Note)
EBA BiHAE (BRER) (BRER HERTE g F  ENNE P31 WARTE FERE ()
Mr. Yen Yuen Ho, Tony 28 January 2016 0.564 0.54 1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) - 28 January 2017 to
(Retired on 18 June 2021,  “E—"E—B-+/\A 27 January 2021
his share options lapsed E—tE
on the date of his retirement) —-BZ+N\BE
|-k -k
RZBZ-F/AT\BE —BZ+tH
£ ERRERRRIEER
i) 16 June 2017 1.076 1 3,000,000 = 5 - (3,000,000) - 16 June 2018 to
B +EXAHAH 15 June 2022
Z2-0\%
AATAREE
ZEICF
~ATEA
2. Other officers and employees 28 January 2016 0.564 0.54 3,319,000 - - - (3,319,000) - 28 January 2017 to
HitSHREEABREE —Z—7F-A-TN\H 27 January 2021
E—tE
—-BZ+N\BE
BT
-BZ+tH
16 June 2017 1.076 1 186,500,000 - - - (3,500,000) 183,000,000 16 June 2018 to
ZE—tERBTRHE 15 June 2022
Z2-0\%
AATREE
ZEICF
~ATEA
3. Others 28 January 2016 0.564 0.54 700,000 - - - (700,000) - 28 January 2017 to
Hitr “2-"F-AZtNH 27 January 2021
E—tE
—-BZ+N\BE
B2-F
-BZ+tH
16 June 2017 1.076 1 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000 16 June 2018 to
ZE—tERATRHE 15 June 2022
Z2-0\%
AATAREE
ZEICF
~ATEA
Total 209,519,000 - - - (18,519,000) 191,000,000
st
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Note:

All share options granted by the Company shall vest in three tranches
within a period of 3 years in proportions of 30%, 30% and 40%, i.e. 30%
of the share options granted shall vest on the 1st anniversary of the
grant, another 30% shall vest on the 2nd anniversary of the grant, and
the remaining 40% shall vest on the 3rd anniversary of the grant. In this
table, “exercise period” begins with the 1st anniversary of the grant
date.

A summary of principal terms of the Share Option Scheme is set
out below:

On 19 June 2012, the Company adopted the Share Option
Scheme at the AGM, under which the Board may, at their
discretion, invite full-time employees and directors of the Group,
advisors or consultants to the Group, providers of goods and/
or services or customers of the Group, shareholders of any
member of the Group or any other person who, as determined by
the Board, has contributed to the Group, to subscribe for Shares
at any time during ten years from the date of grant.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract,
retain and motivate talented participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group.

By reason of voluntary resignation or by termination of
employment in accordance with the provisions of employment
contract, other than on redundancy, or because the relevant
employing company ceases to be a member of the Group, all
share options granted to the relevant person, to the extent of
those not already exercised, shall lapse and the date of the
lapse shall be determined by the Directors.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme unless
the Company obtains a fresh approval from the Shareholders.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of Shares
in respect of which share options may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme together with any share options
outstanding and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue
from time to time.
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The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted to each participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) in
any twelve-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of Shares in issue.

Share options granted under the Share Option Scheme must
be accepted within 28 days from the date of grant. Upon
acceptance, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company as
consideration for the grant.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board and notified to
an eligible participant and shall be no less than the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant,
which must be a business day;

(ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.

As at 29 March 2022, 571,179,548 share options to subscribe
for a total of 571,179,548 Shares, representing approximately
2.55% of the Company’s total number of issued Shares as at
the date of this annual report were available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme. No share option has been cancelled
during the Year.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years after its adoption date and shall be valid until June 2022.
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RIZE-__E=ZR-+hB BEBERES
2> AP REEST1,179,548 1B % (BE
RARBRAERBAPSETRODBE LY
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EQUITY INCENTIVE SCHEME

Prior to the acquisition of CSPG by the Group in 2013, the EIS
was adopted by CSPG to the effect that 25,000,000 ordinary
shares of the CSPG with a par value of US$0.01 each were
issued to a trustee company (the “Trustee”).

As part of the acquisition of CSPG, 20,010,000 Shares, Series
A convertible bonds with a principal amount of HK$40,020,000
and Series B convertible bonds with a principal amount of
HK$40,020,000 were issued by the Group to the Trustee in
exchange for the shares of CSPG held by the Trustee. All Series
A convertible bonds and Series B convertible bonds held by the
Trustee had been converted into the Shares before the year
under review.

CSPG has passed written resolutions of directors and shareholder
in March 2022 to unilaterally terminate the EIS and will engage
professional parties to effect the termination of the EIS and settle
all outstanding matters in due course.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the register of substantial
Shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO shows that the following Shareholders (other
than those disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures”) had notified the Company or the Stock Exchange
of relevant interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company.
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Long position in the Shares and Underlying Shares MR RABRARGD ZFE

Total number of

Number of Shares/ Shares/ Approximate

underlying underlying  percentage of the

Shares held Shares held issued Shares”

Name of Shareholder Capacity FriEiRin,/ FrisRgin,/ EERITRG

By 13 HERRGHE HEARREH 2B R

Beijing Energy Investment Beneficial Owner 7,176,943,498% 7,176,943,498 32.00%

RERE BnlEAA

CMG Interest in controlled corporation 2,430,781,089% 3,442,019,329 15.35%

REREE RRELEZ #a

Interest in parties acting in concert pursuant to an 1,011,238,240%
agreement under Section 317 of SFO

IRIEEH MG RO BT R E B
R ALz s

CMNEG Beneficial owner 579,944,250 3,442,019,329 15.35%
BEMERER BnEAA
Interest in parties acting in concert pursuant to an 1,519,688,513%
agreement under Section 317 of SFO
IRIEEH MG RO BT R E
R ALz s

Other 1,342,386,5667
Hith
NEX Beneficial owner 274,055,449 2,099,632,763 9.36%
BanERAA
Interest in controlled corporation 186,627,621
INCREI NP S

Interest in parties acting in concert pursuant to an 1,638,949,6937
agreement under Section 317 of SFO

RIEEF MG RO EILTIHEPT R E B
R ALtz s

China Huarong Interest in controlled corporation 3,048,927,933¢ 3,048,927,933 13.59%
HEIER NCRLI NP S
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Total number of

Number of Shares/ Shares/ Approximate
underlying underlying  percentage of the
Shares held Shares held issued Shares”
Name of Shareholder Capacity FriEikin,/ FriERRin / HEETR?
R4 L) HERREE HERPEHK 2B R
Huaqing Solar Power Limited Beneficial owner 3,048,750,0009 3,048,750,000 13.59%
EERRERAA BEREAA
China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled corporation 1,397,798,937%9 1,397,798,937 6.23%
BHEESRNHERAT REELE R
China Structural Reform Fund Co., Interest in controlled corporation 1,216,793,3094% 1,216,793,309 5.43%
Limited (“China Structural Reform”) RS AE 2
FEEECEEEREESRHBR
AF (MPEEE R EEERE)
Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd.  Interest in controlled corporation 1,216,793,309%? 1,216,793,309 5.43%
HEBHEERITRIDERAE REELE R
Zeng Xiangyi Beneficial owner 7,903,800 2,107,536,563 9.40%
BHE BEREAA
Beneficial owner of a trust 6,403,2004%
FEREA
Interest in controlled corporation 50,948,548
REELE R
Interest in parties acting in concert pursuant to 2,042,281,015%9

an agreement under Section 317 of SFO
REEFRPERAIELTHMRTE B
R-BTALZ R
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Notes:

1.

These percentages are calculated based on 22,427,948,432
listed Shares in issue as at 31 December 2021.

These Shares were held by Beijing Energy Investment, which is a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of BEH.

(i) 508,450,273 Shares were held by Snow Hill Developments
Limited (“Snow Hill”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CMG;
(i) 579,944,250 Shares were held by CMNEG, which is indirectly
owned as to 79.36% by CMG; (iii) the economic interests of
1,216,793,309 Shares were beneficially owned by Shenzhen
Guotiao China Merchants Merger and Acquisition Equity Investment
Fund (LP)* CRIIBEABEHEREREESSBEE BRSG
2%)) (“Shenzhen Guotiao”), which is managed by Shenzhen City
China Merchants Huihe Equity Investment Fund Management Co.,
Limited* (RUITIBERERELEEEBIEBRARE) as general
partner, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CMG; and (iv) the
economic interests of 125,593,257 Shares were beneficially
owned by Shenzhen City Guoxie First Equity Investment Fund (LP)*
FITEB—AREREESaB 0 (BRE%)) (“Guoxie
First”), which is managed by Shenzhen City China Merchants

Guoxie First Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Limited*
(RITHEEERERRELEETEERMRRE) as general

partner, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CMG.

These Shares were held by a group of Shareholders acting in
concert with CMNEG, including NEX, Pairing Venture Limited,
Magicgrand Group Limited and Sino Arena Investments Limited,
pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of the SFO. CMG was
taken to be interested in 1,011,238,240 Shares.

These Shares were held by a group of Shareholders acting in
concert pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of the SFO.
CMNEG was taken to be interested in 1,519,688,513 Shares.

Shenzhen Guotiao and Guoxie First, being the associates
of CMNEG, beneficially own 1,216,793,309 Shares and
125,593,257 Shares respectively.

These Shares were held by a group of Shareholders acting in
concert pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of the SFO.
NEX was taken to be interested in 1,638,949,693 Shares.

These Shares were held by the subsidiaries of China Huarong
Overseas Investment Holdings Co., Limited* (FPEZERLEINE
HEIERARAT]), which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of Huarong Huagiao Asset Management Co., Ltd.* GERIEEE
EEERMABEMAT), owned as to 91% by Huarong Zhiyuan
Investment & Management Co., Ltd.* GERI 2R EEEH/EET
RAD.

By sE
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(i)508,450,273RKRMMP I HIBBHRER
2 &M /E /A S Snow Hill Developments
Limited (F'Snow Hill)) ¥75 ;(ii)579,944,250
RGBT RBEMERERTA  BAWE
BEBHRBESEEBEFTET79.36% K ;
(iii)1,216,793,3098% f& 17 BV A Z 1 3 T4 BRF I
‘Eﬁiﬂﬁfﬁﬁéﬁxmx:ﬁ%%A%zm% (BRE
%) (MRYIRRA) BEaEs  FUEAHEE
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N
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HERAIEILTERFIRERETE - BEMA
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

These Shares were held by Huaqing Solar Power Limited, which is
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of QCCI.

Among these Shares, 55,412,371 Shares were held by China
Merchants Fund Management Co., Ltd.* (BEESEERFREA
5]), which is owned as to 45% by China Merchants Securities
Co., Ltd., and 1,342,386,566 Shares were held by Bosera Asset
Management Co., Limited* (IBRESEEAFRAT), which is
owned as to 49% by China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd.

The economic interests of these Shares were beneficially owned
by Shenzhen Guotiao, which is owned as to 75.81% by China
Structural Reform. China Structural Reform is indirectly owned as
to 38.2% by CCB Trust Co. Ltd.* (B55sEBREEAT) and
22.9% by China Chengtong Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (FRERH; @
REMEEBR/AT), and managed by Chengtong Fund Management
Co., Ltd.* GR:EEEEEHR/AT) as general partner.

Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd.* (FEEEHE IRITRH
BFR/AE]) is beneficiary of a trust named CCB Trust — Indus tree
collective fund trust plan (asset allocation class 26 investment
unit)* GEE1E:T - BBIE S E G2 EELEH26REKE

BE5T)) which has long position of these Shares.

These Shares were held by Sino Arena Investments Limited under a
trust arrangement.

These Shares were held by Sino Arena Investments Limited, which
is held as to 100% by Zeng Xiangyi.

These Shares were held by a group of Shareholders acting in
concert pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of the SFO.

Base on the record of disclosure of interests on the Stock
Exchange, Mr. Li Alan beneficially owned 99,005,000 Shares and
had interest in controlled corporation of 510,859,422 Shares
as at 31 December 2021. He was also taken to be interested
in 3,071,800,907 Shares in parties acting in concert pursuant
to an agreement under Section 317 of the SFO. To facilitate
effective investor relations, the Company undertook a shareholder
identification exercise according to Section 329 of the SFO in
July 2021. The results showed that Mr. Li Alan had interest in
controlled corporation of 493,203,422 Shares and was taken to
be interested in 3,070,795,907 Shares in parties acting in concert
pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of the SFO.

Further to the Shareholders as set out above, as at 31 December
2021, each of Sino Arena Investments Limited, Magicgrand Group
Limited and Pairing Venture Limited, was holding 57,351,748
Shares, 492,685,935 Shares and 517,487 Shares respectively,
each being a party acting in concert with CMNEG, Snow Hill and
NEX pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of the SFO.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
person (not being a Director or a chief executive) who, as at
31 December 2021, had an interest or a short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or was recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO or who (other than a member of the Group) was directly or
indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of any member of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group conducted the following connected transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

(1) Yantai Jishun Sales and Leaseback Agreement

On 26 March 2021, the Group and Shenzhen Jingneng
Leasing entered into Yantai Jishun 50MW Photovoltaic
Power Station System Equipment Financing Sales and
Leaseback Agreement ("Yantai Jishun Sales and Leaseback
Agreement"), pursuant to which Shenzhen Jingneng
Leasing agreed to purchase photovoltaic power station
system equipment owned by Yantai Jishun Photovoltaic
Power Technology Co., Ltd.* (ARAZIBXBREAR
‘A&]) (“Yantai Jishun”) at a consideration of RMB140
million, and lease such equipment to Yantai Jishun and
charge Yantai Jishun lease payment, subject to the terms
and conditions provided therein. The lease term under
Yantai Jishun Sales and Leaseback Agreement shall be
for eight years, from 26 March 2021 to 25 March 2029.
The total lease amount payable (including total principal
lease amount, estimated total interest and management
fee) to Shenzhen lJingneng Leasing under Yantai Jishun
Sales and Leaseback Agreement is approximately RMB180
million. Several security arrangements were entered into
including electricity fee rights pledge agreement, equipment
mortgage agreement, escrow account agreement, share
pledge agreements and guarantee agreement.
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(2)

As Shenzhen lJingneng Leasing is a subsidiary of BEH, the
controlling Shareholder of the Company, Shenzhen Jingneng
Leasing is a connected person of the Company. Accordingly,
Yantai Jishun Sales and Leaseback Agreement constituted
a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the above connected transaction were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 26 March
2021.

Deemed Disposal of no more than 29.43% equity interest
in UP Changzhou

On 25 February 2021, UP Changzhou, Qingdao ICBC
Shengjing Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd.* (F& T RiE%
SREREESBREMELQE) (the “Investor 17), ICBC
Financial Investment No. 3 (Tianjin) Equity Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (L& & =5 (X
) RERESHLE (BRE®)) (the “Investor 27), UP
Shenzhen and Beijing Energy International Investment
Limited ("BEII") (formerly known as New Light Technology
Limited) entered into the capital increase agreement
(the "Capital Increase Agreement"), pursuant to which,
Investor 1 conditionally agreed to inject RMB1 billion
into UP Changzhou by way of cash contribution in return
for RMB793,853,739 in the registered capital of UP
Changzhou, which accounts for approximately 12.21%
of the enlarged equity interest in UP Changzhou.
Parties also agreed that Investor 1 and Investor 2
(collectively, the "Investors") are entitled to, but not
obliged to, subsequently inject in aggregate of not more
than RMB2 billion within six months after the effective
date of the Capital Increase Agreement in return for
RMB1,587,707,478 in the registered capital of UP
Changzhou. After completion of the capital increase and
the potential subsequent capital increase, Investors would
be interested in an aggregate of not more than 29.43%
of the enlarged equity interest in UP Changzhou and UP
Changzhou shall become an indirect non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Therefore, the Group’s interest
in UP Changzhou shall be diluted from 100% to not less
than 70.57% after the completion of the capital increase
and the potential subsequent capital increase. According
to Rule 14.29 of the Listing Rules, the relevant dilution
was considered to be deemed disposal of the Company’s
interest in a subsidiary.

(2)
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As a condition precedent to the completion of the capital
increase, Investors, BEH, UP Changzhou, UP Shenzhen and
BEIl will enter into the equity interest transfer agreement,
pursuant to which, upon the written request from Investors,
BEH may agree to or designate its nominee to purchase the
whole or partial equity interests in UP Changzhou held by
Investors when any of the specific circumstances occurs.

BEH is a controlling shareholder of the Company, indirectly
holding approximately 32% of the issued share capital
of the Company and is therefore a connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Taking into consideration that (i) the Capital Increase
Agreement is conditional upon the execution of the equity
interest transfer agreement; (ii) if BEH selects to purchase
the whole or partial equity interests in UP Changzhou
held by the Investors upon the occurrence of any of the
specific circumstances, all or part of the equity interest
in UP Changzhou will be effectively acquired by BEH, the
transactions under the equity interest transfer agreement
effectively constituted connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The parties thereafter agreed to change the contract party
to the Capital Increase Agreement from the Investors to
ICBC Financial Asset Investment Co., Ltd.* (TiE&RE
EXEABREAT) (“ICBC Investment”). For this purpose,
on 7 May 2021, (i) the parties to the Capital Increase
Agreement entered into an agreement to terminate
the Capital Increase Agreement; (ii) ICBC Investment,
UP Shenzhen, BEIl and UP Changzhou entered into an
agreement with the same terms and conditions as set out
in the Capital Increase Agreement (apart from the parties
clause); and (iii) ICBC Investment, BEH, UP Shenzhen, BEII
and UP Changzhou entered into an equity interest transfer
agreement, the salient terms of which are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 25 February 2021, 9
March 2021 and 30 April 2021.

Further details of the above connected transactions were
disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 25
February 2021, 9 March 2021, 30 April 2021, 7 May 2021
and 18 June 2021, and the supplemental circular dated 2
June 2021.
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(3) Tibet Nimu Sales and Leaseback Agreement

On 22 December 2021, Tibet Nimu County Zangneng New
Energy Development Co., Ltd.* (P52 A& AL HTAE R
B2 APMRAT) ("Tibet Nimu") (an indirect non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) and Beijing Jingneng
Leasing entered into Tibet Nimu 20MW Photovoltaic
Power Station System Equipment Financing Sales and
Leaseback Agreement ("Tibet Nimu Sales and Leaseback
Agreement"), pursuant to which Beijing Jingneng Leasing
agreed to purchase the leased assets owned by Tibet
Nimu at a consideration of RMB110 million, and lease
the leased assets back to Tibet Nimu for lease payment
subject to the terms and conditions provided therein.
The lease term under Tibet Nimu Sales and Leaseback
Agreement shall be for five years, from 27 December 2021
to 26 December 2026. The total lease amount payable
(including total principal lease amount and estimated total
interest) to Beijing Jingneng Leasing under the Tibet Nimu
Sales and Leaseback Agreement is approximately RMB122
million. Several security arrangements were entered into
including electricity fee rights pledge agreement, equipment
mortgage agreement and share pledge agreement.

As Beijing Jingneng Leasing is a subsidiary of BEH, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, Beijing Jingneng
Leasing is a connected person of the Company. Accordingly,
the Tibet Nimu Sales and Leaseback Agreement constituted
a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the above connected transaction were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 22
December 2021.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of continuing connected transactions that are
subject to the reporting requirements under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2021 is as below:

A. Provision of Solar Electricity by the Group to CMLH and its
Affiliates

On 16 December 2014, China Merchants Zhangzhou
Development Zone Silk Road Ark Carbon Asset
Management Co., Ltd.* ({BE/EE M B &4 B8 75 /3B
ZEEBIEBPRAT) (formerly known as China Merchants
Zhangzhou Development Zone Trendar Solar Tech Limited*
(HERENBEZEREAEZELBERARBERAR), a
subsidiary of the Company, and China Merchants Logistics
Holdings Co., Ltd.* BEBYREEBRAF) (“CMLH")
entered into a rooftop solar power plants framework
agreement (the “Rooftop Solar Power Plants Framework
Agreement”) pursuant to which, among others, CMLH
agreed to lease to the Group certain rooftops of five
of warehouses, distribution centres and other logistics
network buildings being built or to be built by CMLH.

On 30 November 2016, pursuant to the Rooftop Solar
Power Plants Framework Agreement, the Group entered
into the following power purchase agreements with the
designated subsidiaries of CMLH for the sale of electricity
generated by the rooftop solar power plants installed by the
Group on the rooftop leased for a term of 20 years:

(a) power purchase agreement entered into between
Kunming Bangye New Energy Power Company
Limited* (BREFREMBEREZEEAR AT and China
Merchants Logistics Group Yunnan Co., Ltd.* (337
BYIREEZERARAT), for the sale of electricity
generated from a 2.4MW rooftop solar power plant
located in Kunming, the PRC; and

(b) power purchase agreement entered into between
Ningbo Bonded Area Zhaolian Lvbang New Energy
Company Limited* (B R R @ BH IR BIEA
&) and China Merchants Logistics Group Ningbo Co.,
Lid.* BERMREREKEERAE]), for the sale of
electricity generated from a 3MW rooftop solar power
plant located in Ningbo, the PRC.

((a) — (b) together, the “Power Purchase Agreements”)
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Term — 20 years.

Pricing — Having negotiated on an arm’s length basis
according to the principles of fairness and reasonableness
between CMLH and the Group, electricity will be supplied
at a unit price which shall be calculated based on the
government prescribed price (exclusive of tax) with a
discount rate of 14% per kWh having considered the
nature of the long term electricity supply agreement, the
projected consumption of electricity generated by the
rooftop solar power plants installed at the leased rooftops
from subsidiaries of CMLH with favourable lease terms to
the Group and comparable prices offered to independent
consumers by other electricity suppliers with a discount
at the range of 15% to 10%. The government prescribed
price on the supply of electricity is determined by the price
bureau of the relevant provincial governments, which is
subject to adjustment from time to time.

CMLH is a subsidiary of CMG, and a fellow subsidiary
of CMNEG, which is (together with its parties acting
in concert) a substantial Shareholder of the Company.
Therefore, CMLH and its subsidiaries are associates
of CMNEG, hence, connected persons of the Company.
Accordingly, the above transactions constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Finance Lease Business Framework Agreement

On 15 May 2020, the Company and Shenzhen Jingneng
Leasing entered into the finance lease business framework
agreement (as supplemented by the supplemental
agreement entered into on 5 August 2020 between the
Company and Shenzhen Jingneng Leasing) (the “Finance
Lease Business Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which
Shenzhen lJingneng Leasing and/or its associates agreed
to provide direct lease services to the Group for the three
years ending 31 December 2022, subject to the terms and
conditions provided therein.

Term — 3 years.
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Pricing — Having negotiated on an arm’s length basis
according to the principles of fairness and reasonableness,
the annual caps and other terms of the Finance Lease
Business Framework Agreement were determined with
reference to the scale of the upcoming photovoltaic power
generation projects, the financing requirements of past
photovoltaic power generation projects, and current and
history costs of photovoltaic power generation projects.

BEH is the controlling Shareholder of the Company,
indirectly holding approximately 32% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Therefore, BEH is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. As
Shenzhen Jingneng Leasing is a subsidiary of BEH,
Shenzhen Jingneng Leasing is also a connected person
of the Company. Accordingly, the Finance Lease Business
Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Financial Services Framework Agreement

On 3 July 2020, the Company and BEH Finance Co., Ltd*

(HAEEEBI B EPRAF) (“BEH Finance”) entered into
the financial services framework agreement (the “Financial
Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which BEH
Finance agreed to provide to the Group deposit services,
loan services and other financial services for the three
years ending 31 December 2022, subject to the terms and
conditions provided therein.

Term — 3 years.

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLuREIRBIRE LA PR A F]
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —% ——4E4EH]

EEB-KEBAFEARGERAAFRE
B RMEHEXRERREIEELR
R EAMERTL 2 Z B E TR 8
BEARE BAFNXREETEANRE
EREMAREEEBNBER RES KA
& TE °

REEBEBSEATNERRE BEFE
TRBEHTRAENI2% - At RIE L
HRAD REEEREATHBEAL-
MR RIIREEESREEBZNER
8 BRI REBE T BT RATBIRE
AL A RIFELEHRAFBL4AZ > B
BEHEEXEBERGRZ AR THETH
RZBUERBDNFHEFAERS -

ERIIRFEIELS &

N ZETEFTA-H ARAEREE
EEFEERAR (TREMKY) 571
THIRBERGZ ((SRRBEZR D
2 BRI TEPRE B IRGR
RT REMBERENBEE_ZT__
F+_B=+—HLEZEFEFERLEER
REHERRE ERRBEREMEHR
FEo

HAPR—3%F -



Pricing — Having negotiated on an arm’s length basis
according to the principles of fairness and reasonableness,
the annual caps for the maximum daily deposit balance
(including any interest accrued thereon) with BEH Finance
and other terms of deposit services were determined with
reference to the maximum daily deposit balances of the
Group (including interest incurred) following the completion
of the subscription of Shares by BEH in February 2020, for
the three months from February to April 2020, the existing
business scale and operation, as well as the cash flow
requirements of the business development plan of the
Group for the next three years and the expected interest
income from BEH Finance. The annual caps and other
terms for other financial services fees were determined
with reference to the Group’s demand for entrusted loans
and credit verification services for the financial year ended
31 December 2019, the Group’s expected demand for
other financial services covered by the Financial Services
Framework Agreement for the three years ending 31
December 2022, and the Group’s plan to streamline its
financial vendor management through engaging selected
non-bank financial institution(s) to enhance management
efficiency.

BEH is the controlling Shareholder of the Company,
indirectly holding approximately 32% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Therefore, BEH is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. As
BEH Finance is a subsidiary of BEH, BEH Finance is
also a connected person of the Company. Accordingly,
the Financial Services Framework Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Commercial Factoring Business Framework Agreement

On 17 August 2021, the Company and Shenzhen Jingneng
Leasing entered into the commercial factoring business
framework agreement (the "Commercial Factoring Business
Framework Agreement"), pursuant to which Shenzhen
Jingneng Leasing agreed to provide factoring business
services to the Group for the three years ending 31
December 2023, subject to the terms and conditions
provided therein.

Term — 3 years.

Pricing — Having negotiated on an arm’s length basis
according to the principles of fairness and reasonableness,
the annual caps and other terms of the Commercial
Factoring Business Framework Agreement were determined
with reference to the historical recovery amount of
government subsidies from the Group’s renewable power
generation projects, the expected sales of electricity
volume of its renewable power generation projects and the
corresponding amount of new energy subsidy receivables
receivable by the Group, based on the current installed
capacity of the Group’s solar power plants in operation,
the prevailing market conditions of the fees charged for
commercial factoring services and the availability of capital
funding for the factoring business services of Shenzhen
Jingneng Leasing.

BEH is the controlling Shareholder of the Company,
indirectly holding approximately 32% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Therefore, BEH is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. As
Shenzhen Jingneng Leasing is a subsidiary of BEH,
Shenzhen Jingneng Leasing is also a connected person
of the Company. Accordingly, the Commercial Factoring
Business Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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The following table sets out the actual transaction
amount and the proposed annual caps for the year ended
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TR AR LAKEREXRSBET
T —F+"A=+t—HLEFEZER

31 December 2021 in respect of the above continuing

connected transactions:

REERMEZFELR:

Transaction
amount for
the year ended

Annual cap for
the year ended

31 December 2021 31 December 2021
Major type of BEE-—& BE_ZT—-_—&
Continuing Connected Transactions products/services +-B=+-H +ZB=+-H
HERERS TEER/ REEY LEEZRG5EE LEEZFEELR
A. Sale of electricity by the Group to the designated  Solar electricity RMBO0.42 million HK$9 million
subsidiaries of CMLH under the Power Purchase ~ KIEAEE /1 AE#0.42BETT BEIRETT
Agreements
FERREZERERZRBERMR
NIEEMBARHESS
B. Provision of direct lease services by Shenzhen Direct lease services RMB62.48 million RMB500 million
Jingneng Leasing to the Group under the Finance ~ B ERH ANEM62.48EE T AREBE00EE 7T

Lease Business Framework Agreement
AR EEEREREBEXHERZ
h$$@kf tE B R

C. Provision of financial services by BEH Finance
to the Group under the Financial Services
Framework Agreement
REMBRESRERBERGE
mAER RS HRE

D. Provision of factoring business services by
Shenzhen Jingneng Leasing to the Group under
the Commercial Factoring Business Framework
Agreement

AR EEEREH X REXFERNZ
h$$@kf LRI XTSRS

Deposit services
FRmRH%
Other financial services

gkt e

Total factoring amount
RIBMRE
Factoring service fees

RERGE

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed

RMB1,949 million
ARH1,9498 8T
RMBO0.36 million
AR0.36EEBTT

RMB137.56 million
AR13756EE T
RMBO.14 million
ARB014EET

BIUFATEFCERZSTHERSZ R

RMB2,500 million
AR 2 5008 & T
RMBZ10 million
AREI0HET

RMB1,000 million
ARH1,00088 T
RMB15 million
ARKEISHET

the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2021 were entered into: (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of the business of the Group; (ii) either
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; (iii) in accordance with the pricing policy of
the Group; and (iv) in accordance with the relevant written
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and are in the interests of the Shareholders as
a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2021 in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The Company’s auditor has issued the unqualified letter
containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
in this annual report in accordance with rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

In respect of the disclosed continuing connected
transactions, the Company’s auditor has confirmed to the
Board that:

(a) nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

(b) for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the
transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(c) nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(d) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions set out in the
table of continuing connected transactions above,
nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by
the Company.
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Save for the transactions disclosed above, all applicable
percentage ratios of the annual caps of the other
continuing connected transactions which took place during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are lower than 5% and
the annual caps are all less than HK$3 million, and are
therefore fully exempted from independent shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements.

Details of the significant related party transactions of
the Group are set out in Note 34(b) to the consolidated
financial statements. Save as disclosed in the sections
head “Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this annual report, those significant
related party transactions of the Group constituted
continuing connected transactions but were exempted
from the reporting, announcement, annual review and/or
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATION UNDER
RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

Facility Agreements and Letters of Guarantee

On 9 April 2020, the Company (as borrower) entered into two
facility letters with China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation
Limited (“China Construction Bank”) (as lender) in relation to
two loan facilities for the purpose of financing the Group’s
general corporate funding requirements and refinancing the
debts of the Group (the “Facility Agreements”). Pursuant to
and subject to the satisfaction of the conditions precedent and
conditions subsequent set out in the Facility Agreements, China
Construction Bank agreed to make available to the Company,
two separate committed term loan facilities of up to US$125
million (the “Loan Facility 1”) and US$25 million (the “Loan
Facility 2”) (equivalent to approximately HK$971.16 million
and HK$194.23 million, respectively) (collectively, the “Loan
Facilities”), respectively. The final repayment date of the Loan
Facilities of US$125 million and US$25 million will be the date
falling on 36 months and 12 months after the first utilisation of
the respective facility, and utilisation is the date on which the
relevant loan is to be drawn.

On the same date, BEH entered into two letters of guarantee
(the “Letters of Guarantee”) as guarantor pursuant to which BEH
provided a corporate guarantee in favour of China Construction
Bank as a security for the Loan Facilities.
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The Facility Agreements and the Letters of Guarantee provided
that if at any time: (i) BEH ceases to be, directly or indirectly, the
single largest shareholder of the Company; (ii) the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of People’s
Government of the Beijing Municipality* Gt ARBFEAE
EEEEEEEET)or any other agencies designated by the
State Council of the People’s Republic of China* (FH#E A R+
B 75 B5%) (the “Commission”) ceases to be, directly or indirectly,
the single largest shareholder of BEH; or (iii) the Commission
ceases to be able to direct the affairs of BEH and/or to control
the composition of the board of directors or equivalent body of
BEH, then the Loan Facilities may, upon notification by China
Construction Bank, be cancelled and all outstanding amounts
will become immediately due and payable.

For further details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 9 April 2020.

The Company has repaid the loan made under the facility
agreement of the Loan Facility 2 in April 2021 and the specific
performance obligations imposed on BEH and the Commission
under the facility agreement of the Loan Facility 2 have been
released.

As at the date of this annual report, the specific performance
obligations imposed on BEH and the Commission under the
facility agreement of the Loan Facility 1 continued to exist.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to date of this
annual report, no Director is considered to have interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group, pursuant to the
Listing Rules, other than those business of which the Directors
were appointed as Directors to represent the interest of the
Company and/or the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the
“Report of Corporate Governance” of this annual report.

BB W3 SIERERE MR EREE ()R
EEETBERUBERTABZE—&RX
RES(WERTARBNFRBEEEEEEE
ZEgREMHEMPEARENBEEFE kS
KNREHE (Z8F) TBERABES
REEBZE—RARE; H((iilZEETH
FEMIE T RAEER 2 EB R HIEFIREEE
BzEFeRSEAKB AR IERRE
ARPEERBTELBNREH FIAE
REECERBRIBREN

ERE—FTHB FE2REAQTEHHEAZTE
“EFEMANABZRE.

ARBEN B —FHAEERBEENR
B2 EMRFHNERRRBEERME?2
REHZENTREERRZEGNHETE
BHEBEW MR-

KRR A RIE SRS LR E
My RAEEEREEE Y BERNSEBEE
27 o

EENHFUHET 2 ES
REE_E_—F+_A=+—HLEFEK
BEEAERHB BELHRI MEESEN
RAEBXBRBERIANEGRFNEREE
Bhmakn (BREAER HEZTEZEA
RERAAB R,/ AEEEARZMSE T ER
ABRIN o
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees, including the Directors,
based on their performance, experience, qualifications,
competence and prevailing market comparables. Remuneration
packages generally comprises salary, incentive scheme,
contribution to pension schemes and bonuses relating to the
individual’s performance and his/her contribution to the Group’s
business. The remuneration policy of the Directors is reviewed
by the Remuneration Committee.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an
incentive to directors, consultants and eligible employees.
CSPG, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has the EIS
in place to reward the directors, employees and consultants of
CSPG and its subsidiaries with shares of the Company. Details
of the Share Option Scheme and EIS are set out under the
sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Equity Incentive
Scheme” in this annual report.

The remuneration policy of the Directors is reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee. The determination of emolument of
the Directors had taken into consideration their expertise, job
specifications and prevailing market comparables.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The senior management’'s total remuneration paid/payable
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (including all executive
Directors) by band is as follows:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HH WY

B <= BU R

AERZEES (BFEES) 2Xk7 - BR-&

BNBENRIBITHIBEILERER » 45 F 1 S

2o MEFRE—REFHEABARTEREEHAK

EEEFRESMERZ e RETE - BIAKRST

%Mﬂ&hﬂ CEBZIHMBERI HFME
EITER

AT EHWNBRESS URBES BN
REEREE - FXAA2EMBATPEX
BREENEERAEREEBFE  REAQHT
ROBBTHIEAXGEBNERREWER
BINEE - EEKRERM -BRES B RRER
BistBI s BRH IR AFR BRETE K
Bg2edE g IR

EEXHWNBRAFNEEEER -BEES
ZHEREERRFZEXZNH  TIFHLE
RIFBITHHBI AT LERE R -

EEREREIERE R FM

BHE_ T - F+"B=+—HLEEFE B
N/ ENESHREERE (BE2ENTES) W
HriMsEzEEEN T ¢

Number of
Remuneration bands senior management
HroNEEE SHREERE A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T F A #1,000,0007T 13
HK$1,000,001—HK$1,500,000 781,000,001t — & #1,500,0007T -
HK$1,500,001—HK$2,000,000 711,500,001t — % #2,000,0007C 3
HK$2,000,001—HK$2,500,000 7B 1%2,000,0017t — A& #2,500,0007T 3

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JustfETRBRE%AE A PR 23 )

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 — % ——4E4E#)

113



114

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
WY

PUBLIC FLOAT

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 12 May
2020, the Company noted Snow Hill increased its shareholding
in the Company by 268,420,000 Shares, representing
approximately 1.2% of the total issued share capital of the
Company. As Snow Hill is a party acting in concert with CMNEG
pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of the SFO, the
number of Shares held by it shall not be counted into the public
float of the Company.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 14
September 2021, the Company was informed by Snow Hill
that following a series of on-exchange disposals between
22 February 2021 to 6 September 2021, an aggregate of
35,554,000 Shares were disposed, representing approximately
0.16% of the total number of issued Shares. Accordingly, the
minimum public float of the Company has been restored and
the Company is in compliance with Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing
Rules.

Save as disclosed above, based on information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained sufficient public float
as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2021.

NBERE
HMAATAPEA_E_SERA+-HN
NEFRE > K RBEREISnow HillE B
NN E)268,420,0000% %15 A RBE2HE
BT A491.2% © FHF Snow HillT5 1R IEEE
KREBE R EILTIRFT R EHE S BB
BREBEZ—BRTHAL HFIFRHAES
ARABZARFTRE-

HUMWEAATHAEA S _—FHLA+TEEW
NEFTIRE > A ABZEESnow HIllIE > B
S —F "R+ __HE_Z_—FHAAN
HIEBERBRET—RIWEER HEGH
H 35,554,000 %15 > (B8 1TRIDAEH
£90.16% AL KRB ZRELARIFTRED
mE BRAB RS LT HREE8.08(1)(a)f%
ZHE o
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FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES THROUGH ISSUE OF
EQUITY/CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES

The Company has conducted fundraising activities through issue
of convertible bonds during the year ended 31 December 2021.

On 29 June 2021, the Company completed the issue of 3.8%
convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount of US$50
million due 2024 to no less than six independent placees
(who are independent individual, corporate and/or professional
investors) through the sole lead manager. The last closing
price of the Shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 22
June 2021, being the trading day on which the subscription
agreement was signed, was HK$0.275 per Share, and the initial
conversion price is HK$0.33 per share. Based on the initial
conversion price and assuming full conversion of the convertible
bonds at the initial conversion price, the convertible bonds
will be convertible into a maximum of 1,176,560,606 new
Shares. The gross proceeds from the issue of convertible bonds
was US$50 million. The net proceeds from the issue of the
convertible bonds was approximately US$49 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB316 million), among which approximately
US$40.5 million is intended to be used for repayment of
offshore debt, approximately US$2 million is intended to be
used for offshore projects and approximately US$6.5 million
is intended to be used as general working capital. Based on
such net proceeds and assuming the full conversion of the
convertible bonds, the net price per share is approximately
HK$0.326.

The Directors were of the view that the issue of convertible
bonds will not have an immediate dilution effect on the
shareholding of the existing Shareholders and can provide the
Company with additional funds at lower funding cost. In the
event that the convertible bonds are converted into new Shares,
the Company can improve its capital base, which in turns
benefiting the long-term development of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, approximately
US$38 million and approximately US$3 million of the net
proceeds from the convertible bonds had been utilised for
repayment of offshore debts and general working capital
respectively, which were used according to intentions previously
disclosed by the Company in the announcement dated 23 June
2021. The remaining balance of approximately US$8 million is
expected to be fully utilised by 31 December 2022. According to
the plan, the remaining balance of approximately US$2.5 million
will be used for repayment of offshore debt, approximately US$2
million will be used for offshore projects and approximately
US$3.5 million will be used as general working capital.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HH WY
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established its Audit Committee since 14 March
2000. Currently it consists of three members, including two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Li Hongwei
and Mr. Zhu lJianbiao, and one non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Zhao Bing. The Audit Committee is chaired by Ms. Li
Hongwei who is an independent non-executive Director having
the relevant professional qualification and expertise in financial
reporting matters.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITOR

Grant Thornton was appointed as the auditor of the Company by
Shareholders following the retirement of PricewaterhouseCoopers
at the adjourned AGM held on 3 November 2020.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been audited by Grant Thornton, who will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming AGM. A resolution for re-appointment of Grant
Thornton as auditor of the Company will be proposed at such
meeting.

EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

Details of the events of the Group occurring after the date of
statement of financial position are set out in the Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors’ report was approved by the Board on 29 March
2022 and signed by the chairman of the same board meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Zhang Ping
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

O GrantThornton
#[E

To the shareholders of Beijing Energy International Holding
Co., Ltd.
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing
Energy International Holding Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 127 to 294, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

FAsEEstFIR
WEBSFADRERMANEEAEG  BR
“TKHH%/?éEﬂ&ﬁ%%E’Jéaﬁi%%gﬁ’]%
cREFEDNEMEBABERREMBR
%‘E&ﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁLﬁﬁEﬁ BT EHZE
FREHEBNER

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key Audit Matters
RSBt EIR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HANESMAREEZEE

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustment on electricity sales

B E EEBRBINA T

Refer to Note 4.1(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

F2RR AV BREMEEL.13) °

We identified the recognition of the Group’s revenue
on tariff adjustment on electricity sales as a key audit
matter due to the significant management judgement
involved in determining whether each of the Group’s
operating power plants had qualified for, and had met,
all the requirements and conditions as required under
the prevailing government policies and regulations for
entitlement of the tariff adjustment and accordingly,
the timing and eligibility of accruing revenue on tariff
adjustment.

EME BEEBENHEEEMEMNWARIEHANS
FEESEE HTHREE S£EEZLEETURES
SERUNSENEEML 2 RITBUNB R RRFIIE
TRENFRAAEERRGSG  EMBEESEBEmMUMAUA
B9 B [ R 38 AR M B AR RO e B KV B 1R HII B o

The Group recognised revenue on tariff adjustment on
electricity sales of approximately RMB1,903 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 in which the
applications for tariff adjustment of certain on-grid solar
power plants of the Group are still pending as there is
an ongoing process where the period for application is
opened on a batch by batch basis.
HE_ZT—F+°“A=+—HLEFEE> BE£ERER
HNENHEESERENKRANA AREL,9038E T
B EEEETHAKBEZBELNESREDE
BnED BN EYERAZHARERER  WERE
Daﬂ-j?_ T—IEF‘ °©

Our audit procedures in relation to the recognition of
the Group’s revenue on tariff adjustment on electricity
sales included:

Hfipt EEEBENHEESEMENRARRDETH
B REFEE

obtaining an understanding of key controls
in connection with the recognition of tariff
adjustment;

TRERISEEBHLARNIZZEFNREE ;

obtaining an understanding of the policies and
regulations set by the government authorities on
tariff adjustment on sales of electricity in this
industry;
THRBUFHBMITERENHEESBEBRLGIERY
BERER ;

obtaining relevant supporting documents, for
example, power purchase agreements and tariff
approvals issued by the PRC government; and

ESHEAZ MG BB HE R ERAE L
Bﬁﬁfﬁttﬁz b4

assessing whether the previous applications
of the group entities operating the solar power
plants for the entitlement of the tariff subsidy
were successfully completed against the historical
record of the Group.

2R EEEBTELH TEEEXGE '*E'%JEB’]
ERBRANFFENEEHMESCIER M
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Key Audit Matters
Bt EIA

Impairment assessment of intangible assets

EIEEER R EE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HANESMAREEZEE

Refer to Note 4.2(a) (critical accounting estimates and
assumptions) and Note 18 of the consolidated financial
statements.
LR SN BHRRNE4.2(a) BIRGSHEETRERR
K ffiEE18 0

The Group has development rights to develop and
operate hydropower projects (“Development Rights”)
in the People’s Republic of China. As at 31 December
2021, the Development Rights amounted to RMB869
million and classified as intangible assets.
EEEBEERPEARENBEMRAE REEKEEEN
A (TFEE#) N BE-_—F+-A=+—H"H
ERSEAARKESIBE T NEARTEE-

Management tests for impairment of the Development
Rights annually or when there are impairment
indicators. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group did not recognise impairment loss of
intangible assets as detailed in Note 18. Independent
professional valuations are obtained to support
management’s estimates on the recoverable amounts
of the intangible assets. The estimated recoverable
amounts of Development Rights are determined based
on value in use using the discounted cash flows
approach and various key assumptions and estimates
including;:
BIEBSFEIN LR BE RS EEETRER
Aol sF18Fstn HE_E_—&F+_H=+—H
LtFE EERTERIBEVEEANEHBE EEE
BERBIEXEE UXFHEETLEEYI WE T
L5t - NG IR BB IRBERTIRES
MEZETENERABERSERRRRNGEHEE &
N

the probability to utilise these Development Rights
to develop the relevant hydropower plant projects;
MAZEREEREAEEKEIRIEENAAEE ;

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of the Group’s intangible assets included:
BMn EEEEFLEENRENGETHNSEAER
B4 -

inquired of management on the market intelligence
of the development and changes of renewable
energy industry policies in the PRC and made
reference to industry and analyst research reports
in considering if there are impairment indicators;
MEEEARNPH OB REERRNERMN
BENTHBER L2ETEMDMEMATRE >
ZREEFTERETR ;

considered the competency, capability and
objectivity of the independent professional valuer
by considering its qualification, relevant experience
and relationship with the Group;
BRTERBUSXHEMNERE HESE K
B BEENEG TRE TS EGHEMNBRIE
BN RERMN ;

we involved our engaged valuation specialist
in our discussion with the external valuer and
management to understand the rationale and
assess the appropriateness and consistency of
the methodology used and the assumptions and
estimates applied;
BaHMEZENEEER2 I HFIE I BB G EE
REIBEN WU T BT A A A RFTER R
MG ETAVIEE > s ER B A — %

obtained the Group’s development plan and
inquired of management about the status of the
construction of the hydropower plant projects and
their plans to be executed within the expected
timetable;

WG SEEEMNZERSE UM EREHRKEL
HENEREERKENTBRFERARZEDN

3 ;
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Key Audit Matters
RSBt EIR

Impairment assessment of intangible assets (Continued)

B EER B ET G (B

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HANESMAREEZEE

utilisation hours, electricity price growth rate,
operating expenses for maintaining the power
plants and construction costs of the projects; and
AN BEEEEX EEEBHNESERKIA
BERAA ; &

discount rates used for individual projects for
Development Rights.
P EENIEEFERANITHRE.

We focused on this area because the carrying
values of the intangible assets are significant to the
consolidated financial statements and the impairment
assessment requires the use of significant judgements
and estimates to determine the recoverable amounts.
These estimations are also subject to uncertainties.
EMERRTEAE REABRTEENKREERGS
MBHRRMEBER > MAET G EE-EHAERHE
e At 5t 2R HEE PI W Bl & 88 o 52 B 5t IR R E A REE M o

assessed the appropriateness of the utilisation
hours, electricity price growth rate, operating
expenses for maintaining the power plants and
construction costs by reference to the historical
and current industry data for the renewable energy
industry in the PRC, which are obtained through
market research and interview with relevant
authority, and the historical operating data of the
Group; and
2EBBTEMAKREEFRAERHKEUSHFE
ABEEERTENEBTIREAMTEINEER &5
EMNFEESEHE ThAARNS - BEERER
HEBNEERIRESMANBEENY ; &

evaluated whether the discount rates used for
individual projects for Development Rights are
within reasonable ranges by considering each
individual project’s risk profile, the probability of
the completion of the hydropower plant projects
of Development Rights through industry data
obtained.

BBERSEEENARERNK R MBS ITERE
S HTERR R SRR K B L I8 B B AT 8514 » sT{E1E Bl
HENEEEMANITRERSENSIEHERN-
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Key Audit Matters
Bt EIA

Business combination

EETH

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HANESMAREEZEE

Refer to Notes 4.1(b) and 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.
IR MR S M R R MI5E4.1(b) 320

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
completed several acquisitions. Management assessed
the nature of the acquisitions by assessing if there
are economic resources and business processes
associated with them. Management determined
whether the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
under respective acquisitions constituted a business
and therefore the transactions were accounted for as
business combinations.

REE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HILEEE> SE£EEZ=
RETIWESE - BIBERBET HESFEE M EIE
EEAMZKEERIEBREMLMKESES
Ho-BHEEEENHBAWESETPIWE B E R AE
ZEBEREBM—IBERS L5 T 72 7S i A8 B
RBBEBEHIER

Accounting for business combinations requires the
Group to allocate the purchase price to the assets
acquired, liabilities assumed, and identified intangible
assets based on their estimated fair values at the date
of acquisition.

(BEeHARBERTE S5EEENWEHRZERH
B ARENEBEEBRENEEE RKEEEKREH
A EE -

Independent external valuations have been obtained
by the Group to support the fair values of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. In aggregate,
goodwill and bargain purchase gain recognised in the
consolidated financial statements as at and for the
year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to RMB103
million and RMB263 million.
EEEEREBEIISHEUREREEERKESA
BzRraE BERZEBBEREN T -_—F+_A8
=T —HEBEZBLEFEZRGMBRRA D HIE
AmaHARBIO3EE TR ARK263BE T

Our audit procedures in relation to the business
combination included:

P EBSHETHNESEFERE !

discussed and inquired of management
on their basis in determining the nature of
the transactions to assess the economic
resources or business processes associated
with the acquisitions and thus management’s
assessment of the acquisitions being accounted
for as business combinations;

Nt MEREEEHEAEMEENREER
MERZELE DETHESET AR EREEE
BRZKBE RS EDRIZ ML EREY
32 R EFB S H IR ;

considered the competency, capability and
objectivity of the independent external valuer by
considering its qualification, relevant experience
and relationship with the Group;

BIEEEBE G EMNER B SR &
0 BEENMAFR TREBUIISGHEMZSEHE
B HEsE W REEMN ;

discussed with the external valuer and
management to understand the rationale and
assess the appropriateness and consistency of
the methodology used and the assumptions and
estimates applied;

ERSNER A (B BT f B IR B 5 5 LA T MR B | 0 ST A
PRk A EURFIE A MBS REETHNE S M &
—E%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
LoRA T R

Key Audit Matters
RSBt EIR

Business combination (Continued)

EBEH (8

How the matter was addressed in our audit

I

B NMAREZEER

The fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed were determined by using the discounted
cash flow (“DCF”) approach and various key
assumptions and estimates including:
WEEERAEERZ ANEEAGRITRRESRE
(TITIRBERE)) ERLEAEBRBRIRMGFEE 6
eI

- insolation/utilisation hours, electricity price
growth rate, operating expenses for maintaining
the power plants and construction cost of the
projects; and
BER /FHNHS EEEEX HEBTHNES
BRREBEEERNE ; &

- discount rate.

IR o

We focused on this area because the carrying values
of the identifiable intangible assets and the bargain
purchase amount are significant to the consolidated
financial statements and the valuation methodology
and key assumptions require the use of significant
judgements and estimates. These estimations are also
subject to uncertainties.

BAFHREIE s E RERCH#ETEENREIE
REEBESHHAGEMBRRMS BEA > MEstE
ik T2 REFEZHEBERFE K (5T ZFMLETIRE
EREEMN -

assessed the appropriateness of the insolation/
utilisation hours, electricity price growth rate,
operating expenses for maintaining the power
plants and construction costs by reference to
the industry data obtained for the renewable
energy industry in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) and the historical operating data of the
Group as well as those of the acquirees;
R2EGRHREAREME (TR TBEEERIT
EWMENENEEE SEERBRREBLRELS
BHEIGEHR MARY SEERE fE
BUNEERSIMESMEZEBEN ;

evaluated the appropriateness of the discount
rate by considering each individual project’s risk
profile; and
FEipEREENIEE R R EITIRENE
M &

evaluated the management sensitivity analysis
on the key assumptions and estimates applied
within the DCF.
TEERNITRBEES RSB ENERERRE
st EEB SR IED T
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in
the 2021 annual report of the Company, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible
for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
T AL

HithErl

EEFEMHEMENAESE EMENEE
HER BRAAZZEZ—FFRANMEE
o R B AR S R B R R PRI BED
W&o

RAHGEEVHFRENBERENREEME
o BATAEZEEMENEREAELI
EEB SR o

BERMAEGEMHBRERNES RANE
EARBHMER FILERT > ZTREME
MESREREMBRERAKMEBSFBRESD
FTTRNBERFREEANEEBRELUFEFEE
RIBRBRAMAYIE N - RIBHFIERITH T
HEMARSEMENFEERERERM > 3K
MEEREZFE-RMATLETELERE
RENEE-

EFNGEMBRREAENTE

EXEERBERAESMAERMNETEY
BREERREB(REFRG) B ERE #
BEEMATHEEMHRE UHARS
PEFREGMBREROEE S FERIRGFIE
RMENNEANERRAFABNIALEEE

Ho

ERBEEEMBERRE EERETNM 85
ERFECENRE N TAEBRABR TIRER
FREZEARNER UKERFELEER
SHER RIFEFARR EEEFENF
LIRS R EEMBRNEA S

EFRETEERZEGNRY TEE &
EENMBREBE-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
LoRA T R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

ﬁi%ﬂlﬁﬂﬁt%%ﬁ%éﬂﬂ‘%iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂ%
a5

HPNER DHESYBRERERERES D
7712 R R 5F BX 85 5 1T 5 B0 AY 28 X 88 53 R it BY
SEERFRRD THASERME R
BE-HRMARBREBRE-—NN—F(RFTE)H
Q0f%fEm T ((FREE) WS FRILZ4
ARG EEMB AT TRAREH
NEBEREMALTE ENABEERSE-

BEFRZBDEKTHRE  EFERERR
BEBSENETHES  ER —EXIER
R 2t 7 7 By 4B A 35 R o SE R R 40 BT LA A BX5F
HERSIE HEERRRSERIUERE
RAEFEGOMBRREBERERSY
B R FTEH BV ORTE > RI A RIRY SRR
AT ARIEE N o

EREEEESFENETESNBEBRED > &K
PMERTEXHE  RETERXRREE -
375

#A M ERFF R R MER R G M
BREGFEENBRRANER &5t
RATEAEFUBREZFERAR UKk
ENEMBEENESRE  FREM
ERNER AR IEFRIES R BR B
B-EBRER ERERI SUEER A
BEZ o FIEREZREARFEMER
BYE A SH R R B ELBR B 5 R SE 38 3R A
HEER T BBV E KRB SRR B R B -

TR EST AR A MEEIE ) LREE
ENESIEF BEMNLIFE S£H
RNEREEEMAMMERER -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
T AL

R E RS MBRRKIENE
£ (%)

FEEFEFMEAEStBUERIEE SR F
HEsHE S AAR R EN SR -

HEERARKBCESTERNGEN
TR i - IRIRPTENRBEHERR BT
EEGHERSEENBRAERMNERTE
EM - MAIEERE SEENFE
REENELEERRBE - HEAMAIAE
EERIEEN BB O EEZBENR
SPRFERELIEFRGUHFRRDH
HEARE - REFBNKETE  BMES]
HFANER - BRANGERIOREEEX
AN S B AP EVE R E S /RE - A
M RREFEXBERATEER S&EH

45 3 2 43 L R
BAEKE-

FEGEMBFRENERINEBL &
BNARS GEKRE UREEMBERE
BREAFTRBEBARXZMER-

7 BEEEANERNEFTLIINMHTE
HENTERBENESRE UWEY
HMEMBRRERER -RMEE &
EEBFNEE BEEMRIT - HMAERM
B R RAEESSE-

BREMEEIN RMALEBEREZEGER T
BB BERTEZHUARERESER
E BERMEBSPHANDABEENE
(BEPNAED

HPTFRMEZZESFHEHE RARME
NMEEMBLMNERERERER LA
REBBEAIECEMKIAETERMS
UMNFAERMGNEMSEE UREERN
BRT  BLUHGHBIMEELERMEBNITH
S EREN Y [h S FE T o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
LoRA T R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11th Floor

Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong SAR

29 March 2022
Chiu Wing Ning
Practising Certificate No.: P04920

R E RS MBRRKIENE
£ (#8)

RHEBZZEGEBNSZET HMAEEHR
TGN BRERNEBFRREEZSE
18 > (KT A% ol B SR B 51 518 o I AIE IR AT R
EREEZEER RIFABRIERT AT
AAREZTER AAEBRFROBRT
HEERAERMARS T EERETHENN
EEHBRRBBELEN AR AIFHFIRE
TERERSTBEBZFER

HE (FE) S EHMAERAE
HETEET

15 5 7S

B 82857

A E—H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

n‘T I:lj: Jﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+_A=1T—HLEE

Note 2021 2020
e —E—F —ETEH
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEETT ARBBEET
Sales of electricity BEHE 922 664
Tariff adjustment BEmA 1,903 1,485
Revenue WA 5 2,825 2,149
Other income Har A 6 17 64
Employee benefits expenses BERH X (FEEMUKRS
(excluding share-based payment  AEBRI %)
expenses) 7(a) (201) (101)
Maintenance costs BHER A (83) (42)
Legal and professional fees FREREEER (32) (31)
Tax and surcharges mERKME (27) (23)
Other expenses Hhz 8 (102) (49)
EBITDA?# EBITDA? 2,397 1,967
Acquisition costs arising from E=BEHEEZWEBR A
business combinations (25) -
Depreciation of property, plant and #) % KB R B EITE
equipment 16 (765) (575)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets & EHTE 17 (33) (29)
Bargain purchase gain arising from ¥ &HELEZ
business combinations ZEEE NS 32 263 1
Fair value losses on financial BAREBESTABEZ
assets at fair value through profit SRIEEZ AN EKIE
or loss 9 (3) -
Fair value losses on financial BAREBETTABRZ
liabilities at fair value through TRAaEZ A ANERIE
profit or loss 10 (40) -
Finance income B UA 11 129 80
Finance costs =% 12 (1,110) (1,110)
Impairment charge on property, ME -BERLZEHERESH
plants and equipment 16 (7) (3)
Write-back on other receivables B O H M EUFRIE - 1
Impairment charge on financial THMEERESH
assets 3.1(b) (65) (1)
Share-based payment expenses  MURIPAER S ZHx 7(a) - (4)
Share of profits of investments IS EREREAARZ
accounted for using equity KEHF
method 20 16 2l
Loss on termination of leases #IEEE B8 - (1)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BMERKEZ
plant and equipment 518 - (2)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZEE 19(c) (6) (1)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HrofEiR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—FF+"HA=+—HILFE

Note 2021 2020
B 5T —E-—F —ECEHE
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARBEET
Profit before income tax BRET1SR AEF 751 344
Income tax expense TS 13 (101) (82)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEHF 650 262
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 5 AL RELEF
Equity holders of the Company KANBHERTFTAA 564 241
Non-controlling interests JEFER 86 21
650 262
EARNINGS PER SHARE EREERTFTE AEMN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY ERER
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 15
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) HAKREE (AEED) 2.51 1.12

& EBITDA represents earnings before depreciation, finance income,

finance costs, income tax expense, fair value adjustments, non-
cash items, non-recurring items, bargain purchase gain arising from
business combinations, impairment charge of financial assets,
write-back on other receivables, share-based payment expenses,
share of profits of investments accounted for using equity method,
loss on termination of leases, loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment and loss on disposal of subsidiaries. EBITDA is not
a measure of performance under Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, but is widely used by management for monitoring
business performance of a company from operational perspective.
It may not be comparable to similar measures presented by the
other companies.

#
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
W:ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+_A=1T—HLEE

2021 2020
—EZ—F —ETEF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEETT ARBEET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEEEF 650 262
Other comprehensive income Hihz2mika=s
Item that may be reclassified to  BIFEE# FIEZEEm 2 IEH
profit or loss
Currencies translation EsihE =58
differences 81 175
Other comprehensive income AEEEMEEE  ARRIE
for the year, net of tax 81 175
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ZNFE2EUREE4%E
FOR THE YEAR 731 437
Total comprehensive income for TFATELAFEEREIRTELEEE
the year attributable to
Equity holders of the Company KATERTFTEA 645 416
Non-controlling interests JEERE = 86 21
731 437
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ISl LR IR

As at 31 December 2021

RSy — A =1+—H
Note 2021 2020
B 5 —E—&F T TEE
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEEET AREBEET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y R B Bkt 16 26,172 14,097
Right-of-use assets FRESE 17 1,083 325
Intangible assets mEEE 18 972 869
Investments accounted for using ERAETEARZEE
equity method 20 279 263
Other receivables, deposits and ~ HMEWIE 2% K&
prepayments FE{TFRIE 23 1,038 406
Pledged deposits BIRIRER 24 939 379
Deferred tax assets FIEFRIBE & 28 5 27
Total non-current assets ERFEELREE 30,488 16,366
Current assets MENE E
Financial assets at fair value BARBTAEBRZ
through profit or loss THEE 21 39 42
Trade, bills and tariff adjustment ~ FEWBRIE - ZHE K BB
receivables A & IR BR 1 22 7,552 4,344
Other receivables, contract HMEWRHIE - aEE
assets, deposits and & RIENRIE
prepayments 23 3,175 2,743
Pledged deposits BIRREMR 24 91 974
Restricted cash ZIRHIIRE 24 - 42
Cash and cash equivalents BENRREEEEY 24 4,814 1,577
Total current assets MENEELEEE 15,671 9,722
Total assets BEMRTE 46,159 26,088
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEkaE
Equity attributable to equity EATERFE AELER
holders of the Company
Share capital &N 25 1,924 1,924
Reserves #E 4,169 3,393
6,093 5,317
Non-controlling interests JEFERE T 3,191 338
Total equity R AR A 9,284 5,655

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIBER A IR A ]

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 — % —{E4EH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BRI BRI

As at 31 December 2021
RIET—F+ZRA=1+—H

Note 2021 2020
B =E B —F TECEF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETT ARBBEET
LIABILITIES afR&
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Financial liabilities at fair value WA RES AEBR
through profit or loss TRIEE 26 346 =
Bank and other borrowings SR1T R L& =k 27 24,261 12,284
Lease liabilities HEESE 17 563 123
Deferred income IRIEUT A 16 1
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIE AR 28 366 268
Total non-current liabilities RSB FEELE 25,552 12,676
Current liabilities B =R
Other payables and accruals HME N RIBE R EE R 29 3,507 2,442
Lease liabilities HEER 17 38 10
Bank and other borrowings R1T R E M ERR 27 7,778 5,305
Total current liabilities Bt h= Rk 11,323 7,757
Total liabilities I=REFEC] 36,875 20,433
Total equity and liabilities EaKkaEREEE 46,159 26,088
These consolidated financial statements on pages 127 to 294 HNRFE127E204B 7 ZE 56 BRED
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 KEEGR _ET-__F=F_+HB#EF
March 2022 and were signed on its behalf. BOWHTNINEERKRES
Mr. Zhang Ping Ms. Li Hongwei
RELE FAHBLL
Chairman Director
FE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e R 5B

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—FF+"HA=+—HILFE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company
FATRERA AR

Shares held
under equity
Share-hased incentive Non-

Share Share payment scheme Warrant  Translation Other Statutory ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve (“EIS") reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity

RIERE

8

NRRE  (RELE

Rz HENET  2RER

RE  RGRE  OREE  SENRG BF  BHEBE  HRE  iEER 2R 4t EREE  ERSE
RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'millon ~ RMB'millon ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million  RMB'million
AEHBER ARWEER AREET ARMBEn ARWEER ARWESn ARBEEn ARMEER ARWEER ARWEET AREEER ARWEER

At 1 January 2020 RZF-FE-B-H 1,285 8,194 26 (13) 53 (308) 10 280 (6,343) 3324 317 3,641
Comprehensive income 2EBA

Profit for the year KEERH - - - - - - - - 241 241 pil 262
Other comprehensive income HEft2EBA - - - - - 175 - - - 175 = 175
Total comprehensive income 2EBALE - o o o o 175 = = 241 416 pil 31

Transactions with equity holders AREREAZRR

Expiry of warrants RREEER - - - - (53) ) B - 54 - - -
Issue of shares (Note 25) HiTkip (325) 639 934 - - - - - - - 1573 - 1573
Lapse of share options BREEH = o (33) o o = = = 3 = = =
Share-based payment expenses (Note 7) MM AERZ{IFES (1) - - 4 = B = B - - 4 - 4
Transfer to statutory reserves BRTIRER - - - - - - - 154 (154) - - =
639 934 (29) - (53) 1) - 154 (67) 1577 - 1577
At 31 December 2020 RZ8_%F+-F=+-A 1,924 9128 197 (73) - (134) 10 434 (6,169) 5317 338 5,655
At 1 January 2021 WZ%--5-B-8 1,924 9,128 197 (73) - (134) 10 434 (6,169) 5317 338 5,655
Comprehensive income 2EUA
Profit for the year AEEER - - - - - - - - 564 564 86 650
Other comprehensive income Ht2ERA - - - - - 81 - - - 81 - 81
Total comprehensive income 2EBALE - - - - - 81 - - 564 645 86 731

Transactions with equity holders AREREAZRR

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32)  WEKBAT (Hi32) - - - - - - - - - - 10 10
Lapse of share options BRESN - - (4 - - - - - 4 - - -
Capital contribution by noncontroling BB ERELIEE

interests - - - - - - 121 - - 121 2819 3,000
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 19(c) ~ HEMEAT (H519(c) - - - - - - - - - - (21 @
Release of reserve upon deregistration of sESHBARE R 2 Gl

a subsidiary - - - - - - 10 - - 10 (10) -
Dividends declared to noncontroling ~ FIFERERS KRS

interests - - - - - - - - - - (85) (85)
Transfer to statutory reserves BRTIRER - - - - - - - 179 (179) - - -

- - (4) - - - 131 179 (475) 131 2,767 2,898
At 31 December 2021 WoEz-#+2A=+-A 1924 9128 193 ) - (53) 1 613 (5,780) 6,093 3191 9,284
132 BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLntRERBIREEE A B2

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —-% . —4E4EH}



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

OBl R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
F+ZHE=+—HILFE

Note 2021 2020
ibE —5F —ETEF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEETT ARBBEET
Cash flows from operating KETEHRAERE
activities
Cash generated from operations A EFEFAELRS 31(a) 1,097 1,483
Income tax paid BENPTER (111) (67)
Net cash inflow from operating  EE EFHIRERARE
activities 986 1,416
Cash flows from investing KETHRERE
activities
Payment for acquisition of PUEEM B R BT
subsidiaries, net of cash acquired IfREUEEIRS 32 (2,099) (22)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from HEWB AR Z FRE
disposal of subsidiaries () RA 19(c) (5) 28
Increase in deposits for KERBIEN
investments (1,853) (918)
Repayments from amounts due FEWL B & A Bl RIB 2 3B AR
from associates 6 41
Advances to associates Bl =Nk - (11)
Changes in consideration payables W EEHMI B A BIEMEZ
for acquisition of subsidiaries k) 120 (104)
Proceeds from government grant BT BN PR 187018 - 4
Interests received BUF 2 91 32
Capital expenditures on property, YZ -BME&KREBEEALAZH
plant and equipment (2,845) (284)
Net cash outflow from investing REEZHIREHHFE
activities (6,585) (1,234)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
A Bl RR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+_A=1T—HLEE

Note 2021 2020
B 5 —E—&F —EBTEHF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEET ARBEET
Cash flows from financing MEEHRERE
activities
Capital contribution by BRIEERERIEE
non-controlling interests 3,000 -
Payment of dividend to BEIFERERZGRE
non-controlling interests (85) -
Principal elements of lease HENMRNEAEE D
payments 17 (9) -
Interest paid on lease liabilites B AS&EFE 17 (7) (6)
Interests paid on bank and other B FIR1T R EfMEFIR
borrowings (961) (848)
Interests paid on convertible bonds B 13RI i& &5 8 B 26 (6) =
Decrease in pledged deposits BRI ERR D 539 1,415
Decrease/(increase) in restricted S PREIIRE R /L, (HE0)
cash 42 (22)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERZFRERIE 14,440 6,272
Repayment of bank borrowings BRIBITEMN (6,153) (2,875)
Proceeds from loans from financial 2% B <& Rl >
institutions B TS MIE 1,720 743
Repayment of loans from financial &3 & Rbi%iE > S
institutions (2,852) (1,555)
Repayment of medium-term notes {EiEFHEIZIE (300) (32)
Repayment of senior notes BEBLEE (720) (1,750)
Repayment of corporate bonds EEABES - (1,530)
Proceeds from other loans REHMERZ FAFRIE 56 142
Repayment of other loans EEHMER (154) (312)
Proceeds from issue of new shares ZX{TH S5 2 FR {18 25 - 1,598
Transaction costs for issue of new 21T I&1H 2 X 57 Al Zs
shares 25 - (25)
Proceeds from issue of convertible 21T R E % 2 FRiE 18
bonds 26 320 -
Transaction costs for issue of BTAMKRES 2SR
convertible bonds 26 (4) -
Net cash inflow from financing MEEHRERAFE
activities 8,866 1,215
Net increase in cash and cash RERREEEYILMFEEE
equivalents 3,267 1,397
Cash and cash equivalents FHRERREEEY
at beginning of year 1,577 239
Effect of foreign exchange rate EEXEH &
changes (30) (59)
Cash and cash equivalents EXRRERREEEY
at end of year 24 4,814 1,577
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.
The principal place of business in Hong Kong is Unit
1012, 10th Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong. The ordinary shares
of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Beijing Energy Investment, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability and wholly-owned by BEH,
is a direct controlling shareholder holding approximately
32% of the issued share capital of the Company. BEH is
a state-owned company in the PRC indirectly wholly-owned
by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of People's Government of Beijing Municipality.

The Group is principally engaged in the development,
investment, operation and management of power plants
and other renewable energy projects. These consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB and rounded to
the nearest million (“million”), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
presentation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The consolidated financial statements are for the Group
consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

R e S AR B

—REH
AKpelms—BREREFMRIZE
fR A~ B o 5F it % =5 B # Ak & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermudac fE T B F Z & =
I EBTHEEF168-20058 5 EH 0
A 101E1012% o RA T 2 E BRI B
RPFEMR LT

RERE (—BREBEMAIL R EREE
EEZEBRAMNARAR) BREAFE
BERKRR  FAEARTN2%2HTR
KoREEEL—BHIERTARBF
HEEELEEEELZECREEERA
WHERAERE-

FEETENERE - RE - GEKREE
SEMREMABERERER BB E
RPEBIN ZFEGHUBRERDUAR
B2 RFIBEBEANBEREELN
BEu (&) -

FEGFBREE

2SR BRASAEANTIE
FETBURF M T - FRBARBAEIN X
SHREERMEBRRABZINEE-
REMBERRYMEAER (BEAFATR
HINBAR) lmE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These annual consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. The consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and include the applicable requirements of the Listing
Rules.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for the revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and the financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss which were carried at fair
values.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’'s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIBER A IR A ]
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —% ——4E4EH]

2 FTEEFHRHE (B

21 REEE

ZEFEGGMBREDRESE
A E (EBESHAE)) B
MONERBYHREER (FEBMB
BEER)) (EMBEEFRMBEER
MENEEMBHREERN FES
stEER (MEB G ER) k2 MU
RERBADEFRAUNER -RERH
BRETHEGEEADRANER
RERE BFEELHRAUNE
FARE °

A MBRERTDEE LN AL R
O ERANEFABDTZEME
ERBAMES ABZZEMERE
ZEWMEEDRAAETER

BRI mMUGREMBREREE
REstfhs kR -BELSFMGE
DUEEBRRTEHNRTHZ
REDARAE B EE  HEBRE
RERAGHEZFMLHATE IR
SEFEHEREL AHEEHH
BEMEBEZZRRKRMEFZIE
o IR EEARER o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:-T (&) Ej‘ i’% %ﬁiélﬁj‘

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

2 IE n‘fﬁﬁﬁg (uﬁ)

2.1 RUEE (B)
(a) BE

(a) Investigation

In May 2020, the Board was informed by the
predecessor auditor of certain findings during the
audit of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2019. As a result, the Board established an
independent investigation committee which had
engaged an external independent professional
advisor to conduct the Investigation on certain
matters brought to the attention of the Board.
Based on the findings of the investigation, the
Board had identified (1) certain deposits were
made to NEX and its related entities, including
Renewable Energy (Hong Kong) Trade Board
Limited (“EBODHK”), which is a subsidiary of NEX,
of HK$598 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB522 million) and certain other payments
were made to EBODHK and CMNEG, a related
company of NEX Group, of totalling HK$88 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB72 million);
(2) deposits were made to Shenzhen Zhiyuan
Renewable Energy Company Limited (“SZZY") of
RMB500 million; and (3) certain payments on
behalf of NEX Group of approximately RMB303.7
million were made to one of the limited partners
of Changzhou Haozhen Venture Investment Centre
Limited Partnership* (£ MBESAIZEKET L (B
FE&%5)), a then joint venture of the Group. The
amount of approximately RMB303.7 million was
recorded as an amount due from NEX Group and
included in the outstanding amounts due from
NEX Group as at 31 December 2019. Further
details of the investigation, financial impact and
responses by the Board are described in the
Company’s 2019 and 2020 annual reports and
announcements dated 12 May 2020, 13 May
2020, 9 June 2020, 19 July 2020, 31 July 2020,
28 September 2020 and 30 March 2021.

A_E_TFRHB EETE
FIZEMENEESTART
BE_ZT—NE+_B=+—
BEEEGEaHERRBRETD
METERE-FIL - BE=FEMIL
THEIAETEZE T BB
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EMNETEESHAS - RBiE
DH@“D%’§$@E§ETT§U
HTHERESEE (L)ENEXKRE
HEEEEE (BENEXMHE AT
ABE4AER (B8 XZERA
& (TEBODHKJ)) & F3%
S BIS08FHET (WEARE
522B & 7t) ° MU AEBODHK
RBEHERER (NEXEEZ
FEAR) ZNETHMRIEBES
HEBISHET (Wa AR
T2EEIT) 5(2)[FFIIE =HAE
RERAT (Tszzy)) X% %E
ARMB00E8E T 5 &(3)L&E
NEXEERAEBRERNGE
NEEMNESRERESRL (B
REaB NEF—ZLEREBA
TN ETHRIEBNOAREKI03.7
BEBT - WARMK3I03.788
TTHBR 2 FE WWNEX S B 718 »
Wt ABE_ZE—NLE+_A
=+— B EWRNEXEBR/ &K
EETHE BHAT UBE
REEZOENESHBHN
KPR _E—HERZTZ
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“ECZFEELRA+ABA T
“EFTAS+_G T 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(a) Investigation (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
impairment charge of approximately RMB1,094
million was recognised in the profit or loss in
respect of the abovementioned deposits made
to NEX Group and related entities and SZZY
and amounts due from EBODHK and CMNEG as
described in items (1) and (2) above.

On 28 September 2020, in light of the limitations
encountered during the investigation, the
significant sums involved and the findings in
the investigation, after consulting with the legal
advisers, the Company reported the incidents of
prepayment of the deposits to the Commercial
Crime Bureau of the Hong Kong Police Force
(“CCB”). For the purpose of the investigation of
the incidents of prepayment of the deposits, the
Company will provide assistance to the CCB.

During the Year, NEX Group transferred (i) equity
interests of a company operating solar power
plants in the PRC with valuation of RMB40 million
and (ii) a medium-term note of the Company
held by NEX Group with maturity date on 17 April
2021 amounted to approximately RMB161 million
(including both principal and interest) to the
Group for purpose of settlement. Management
considered there is an increase in credit risk on
the remaining balances due from NEX Group.
Accordingly, an expected credit loss of RMB43
million was recognised for the Year.

2 FEF

stEUCRBEE ()

21 RNEE (B)
(a) HZE ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:-T (&) Ej‘ i’% %ﬁiélﬁj‘

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

2 IE n‘fﬁﬁﬁg (uﬁ)

2.1 RUEE (B)
(a) HE (#)

(a) Investigation (Continued)

On 28 March 2022, the Group entered into the
Second Revised Settlement Agreement with
NEX Group, which was an extension of (i) the
settlement agreement signed on 24 August 2020
and (ii) the first revised settlement agreement
signed on 29 March 2021 between the Group and
NEX Group (details are set out in the Company’s
2019 and 2020 annual reports respectively), on
certain new and revised settlement arrangements
in relation to the outstanding net balances due
from NEX Group of approximately RMB174 million

RZTE-_—_F#=B=-+N\H>
NEFHENEXEBTIIE M
RIETEEHE NBBEBA
EEENEXEERMNR T = —
F+ZA=+—HEWNEXE
EXEEARIFEOARR
174§%n5’3 S T E] R iR AE
SIEE T ZE T IEEG)R
:E_gfﬁ/\ﬁ +OH
MEEmZE RN _E_—F
_)ﬂ TAEEZENEHEE

as at 31 December 2021. T#EEHE GEBEO &SN AR
E_g—hiﬂz:;ﬁ:;@fﬁi
EIRE) o

Pursuant to the Second Revised Settlement BIEE _HEE mn%ﬁ%m’

Agreement, NEX Group agreed to transfer (1)
equity interests of certain companies operating
solar power plants in the PRC in which the
fair value of those equity interests amounted
to approximately RMB39 million; (2) cash of
approximately RMB32 million upon disposal of
certain subsidiaries and investments held by
NEX Group; and (3) approximately 274 million
shares of the Company held by NEX Group
amounted to approximately RMB57 million as at
28 March 2022, to the Group for settlement of
the net balances due from NEX Group, which are
expected to complete on or before 31 December
2022. In addition, NEX Group agreed to pledge
approximately 460 million shares (including
approximately 274 million shares as mentioned in
(3) above) of the Company held by NEX Group as
collaterals to the NEX Settlements to cover any
remaining unsettled balance.

NM%IHEW$$IE§
£ P [ & & K 5 B f‘fﬁJEEﬁE
FRBDWKRE ZERENQ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O B R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(a) Investigation (Continued)

(b)

During January to March 2022, NEX Group
transferred (i) equity interests of certain
companies operating solar power plants in the
PRC with valuation of approximately RMB4 million
in total and (ii) cash of RMB12 million to the
Group for purpose of settlement.

The Company commits to keep its shareholders
and the public informed of all material information
to appraise the Company’s position by way of
announcements on the websites of the HKEXnews
and the Company, including but not limited to
market updates of all material information where
applicable.

Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures

(i)  Amended HKFRSs that are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021

In the current year, the Group has applied for
the first time the following amended HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant to
the Group’s operations and effective for the
Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2021:

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Covid-19 Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to Interest Rate
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Benchmark Reform —
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4  Phase 2
and HKFRS 16
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(i)

(1))

Amended HKFRSs that are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021 (Continued)

The adoption of the amended HKFRSs had
no material impact on how the results and
financial position for the current and prior
periods have been prepared and presented.

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these
consolidated financial statements, certain
new and amended HKFRSs have been
published but are not yet effective, and have
not been adopted early by the Group.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
and related
amendments?

Amendments to Reference to the

HKFRS 3 Conceptual
Framework*

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture®

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021°

Amendments to
HKFRS 16
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures

(Continued)
(ii) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to Classification of
HKAS 1 Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and
related amendments
to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5
(2020)2

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of
Accounting Policies?

Amendments to Definition of
HKAS 8 Accounting
Estimates?

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Deferred Tax related
to Assets and
Liabilities arising
from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and
Equipment —
Proceeds before
Intended Use?

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract*
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to Annual Improvements
HKFRSs to HKFRS Standards
2018 - 2020*
Accounting Merger Accounting for
Guideline 5 Common Control
(Revised) Combinations*

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 June 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023

& Effective date not yet determined

8 Effective for business combination/
common control combination for which the
acquisition/combination date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O B R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Reference to the
Conceptual Framework”

The amendments update the reference
to the latest version of “Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting” issued
in March 2018, and add an exception
to the requirement for an entity to refer
to “Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting” to determine what constitutes an
asset or liability.

Besides, the exception also specifies that,
for liabilities and contingent liabilities
that would be within the scope of HKAS
37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” or HK(IFRIC) — Int 21
“Levies” if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3
should apply the criteria in HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 respectively (instead of
the “Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting”) to determine whether a present
obligation exists at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Reference to the
Conceptual Framework” (Continued)

Furthermore, the amendments also explicitly
state that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective
for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 and apply
prospectively. Earlier application is permitted
if, at the same time or earlier, an entity also
applies all of the amendments contained
in the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards.
The Board expects that the amendments
have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)”

The amendments provide further guidance
to clarify how to classify debt and other
liabilities as current or non-current which are
summarised as follows:

It clarifies that a liability is non-current if an
entity has a right (instead of unconditional
right as stated before the amendments) to
defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months from the end of the reporting
period, regardless of whether the lender
tests for compliance at the date or at a
later date; Any expectations about events
after the reporting period do not impact
the assessment made at the end of the
reporting period as to the classification of
the liability; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)” (Continued)

“Settlements” are newly defined as a
transfer to the counterparty that results
in the extinguishment of the liability. The
transfer could be of cash, other economic
resources (e.g. goods or services), or
entity’s own equity instruments. Thus, if the
counterparty conversion option is classified
as liability under HKAS 32 “Financial
Instruments: Presentation”, the transfer
of equity instruments by exercising the
conversion option constitute settlement
of liability for the purpose of current or
non-current classification of liabilities. One
exception to the definition is that if the
counterparty conversion option is classified
as equity in accordance with HKAS 32, the
transfer of equity instruments by exercising
the conversion option does not constitute
settlement of liability and would be
disregarded when determining whether the
liabilities are current or non-current.

Amendments to HKAS 1 is effective for
annual reporting period beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and apply retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. The Board
expects that the amendments have no
material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021”

The amendment extends the availability of
the practical expedient in paragraph 46A
of HKFRS 16 so that it applies to rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally
due on or before 30 June 2022, provided
the other conditions as stated in paragraph
46B of HKFRS 16 for applying the practical
expedient are met.

A lessee that chooses to apply this
practical expedient would be required to
apply it consistently to all lease contracts
with similar characteristics and in similar
circumstances, irrespective of whether the
contract became eligible for the practical
expedient as a result of the lessee applying
this amendment or Amendment to HKFRS
16 “Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions”.
Additional disclosures are required if this
practical expedient is used.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021”
(Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 is effective for
annual reporting period beginning on or
after 1 April 2021. A lessee shall apply
the amendment retrospectively, recognising
the cumulative effect of initial applying
the amendment as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits (or other
component of equity, as appropriate) at
the beginning of the annual period in which
the lessee first applies the amendment.
Earlier application is permitted. The Board
expects that the amendments have no
material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies”

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities
to disclose material accounting policy
information instead of significant accounting
policies in its financial statements. The
amendments also provide some guidance
on how material policy information are being
identified and provide some examples of
when accounting policy information is likely
to be material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies” (Continued)

In March 2021, HKICPA issued HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality
Judgements” to provide entities with non-
mandatory guidance on how to make
materiality judgements when preparing their
general purpose financial statements in
accordance with HKFRS. HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 was subsequently revised
to provide guidance and examples on
how to apply the concept of materiality to
accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective
for annual reporting period beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 and are applied
prospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. Except for the disclosures of
accounting policies in note 2 to consolidated
financial statements may need to be revised
to cope with the above changes, the Board
expects that the amendments have no other
material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 “Definition of
Accounting Estimates”

The amendments clarify how entities
should distinguish changes in accounting
policies from changes in accounting
estimates by introducing a definition for
accounting estimates, which is now defined
as “monetary amounts in the financial
statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”.

Besides, the amendments also clarify the
relationship between accounting policies
and accounting estimates by specifying that
an entity develops an accounting estimate
to achieve the objective set out by an
accounting policy. Accounting estimates
typically involve the use of judgements or
assumptions based on latest available
reliable information. A change in accounting
estimate that results from new information
or new development is not correction of an
error. Therefore, the effects of a change
in an input or a measurement technique
used to develop an accounting estimate are
changes in accounting estimates if they do
not result from the correction of prior period
errors. In addition, two illustrative examples
are added to illustrate how to apply the new
definition of accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for
annual reporting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and are applied
prospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. The Board expects that the
amendments have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 “Property, Plant
and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended
Use”

The amendments prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds received from
selling items produced before that asset is
available for use (i.e. proceeds while bringing
the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating
in manner intended by management).
Instead, an entity should recognise such
sales proceeds and related costs in profit
or loss. The entity should measure the cost
of those items in accordance with HKAS 2
“Inventories”.

Besides, the amendments also clarify the
meaning of “testing whether an asset is
functioning properly” and require additional
disclosures for the amounts of proceeds and
cost included in profit or loss that relate to
items produced that are not an output of the
entity’s ordinary activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 “Property, Plant
and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended
Use” (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 are effective
for annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2022 and apply retrospectively,
but only to items of property, plant and
equipment that are available for intended
use by management on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in
the financial statements in which the entity
first applies to the amendments. It is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the financial effect until the Board
completes a detailed review.

Except for those mentioned above, the Board
anticipates that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group’s accounting
policy for the first period beginning
on or after the effective date of the
pronouncement, and these are not expected
to have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of Consolidation and Equity Accounting

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power over the entity,
only substantive rights relating to the entity
(held by the Group and others) are considered.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains and losses on transactions
between group companies are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of Consolidation and Equity Accounting
(Continued)

(b) Associates and Joint Ventures

(c)

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting (see (c)
below), after initially being recognised at cost.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions relating about
relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

Equity Method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
of the investee in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, and the Group’'s share of
movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount
of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the other entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of Consolidation and Equity Accounting
(Continued)

(c) Equity Method (Continued)

(d)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
2.10.

Changes in Ownership Interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control
as transactions with equity owners of the Group.
A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of Consolidation and Equity Accounting
(Continued)

2 FEGHERBE (8
2.2 AHRARMED®EE ()

(d) HBEEEZIEE ()

(d) Changes in Ownership Interests (Continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss
of control, joint control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in consolidated statement
of profit or loss. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of
other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of
other comprehensive income are reclassified
to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss or transferred to another category of the
consolidated statement of changes in equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business Combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

equity interests issued by the Group

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Business Combinations (Continued)

The excess of the:
consideration transferred,

amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference, after
reassessment, is recognised directly in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase.

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are
accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. Cost also
includes capital contribution relating to Equity
Incentive Scheme for investments in subsidiaries. The
results of subsidiaries and associates are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the Chief Operation Decision-Maker (“CODM”). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Board that makes strategic
decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and Presentation Currencies

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the functional and
presentation currencies of the Company.

Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are generally recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, within “finance costs”.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated (i.e. only translated using the
exchange rates at the transaction date).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation (Continued)

2 FTEEFHRHE (B

2.6 SMNEIE (B)
(c) EERE

(c) Group Companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of Foreign Operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the company are reclassified to
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction
in progress as described below) is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment charges, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEGHHEERHEE @)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 2.7 ME -BERSRE @

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

ME-BERKRKENTENDERE
BOAST B IR EMAS P EREH
RIBGERBFREER  DEREFEN
PRI T :

Buildings 20 years BF 204
Leasehold Over the unexpired periods MEYxEE RKRHEEXREWBE
improvements of the leases or their NEFERFRS
expected useful lives of 3 A3 (UBFREER
years, whichever is shorter eEAE)

Power generating
modules and
equipment

Plant and machinery 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 — 5 years
office equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

25 - 30 years

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction and pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment charges, if any. Cost includes the costs
of construction of buildings and the costs of plant
and machinery. No provision for depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and are available for
the intended use. When the assets concerned are
brought into use, the costs are transferred to other
property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEGHHREE (B

POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

2.8 Intangible Assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over (ii) the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date. When (ii) is
greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase. Goodwill is stated at cost
less accumulated impairment charges. Goodwill
arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested
annually for impairment.

(b) Development Rights

Development rights which represent the rights
to develop certain solar power and hydropower
plants. Goodwill and development rights
acquired in a business combination are initially
recognised at fair value. Development rights will
be redesignated to property, plant and equipment
when the relevant power plants are developed,
acquired or operated by the Group. Development
rights are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated impairment charges, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

2 FTEEFHRHE (B

29 FEMEERME

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events on changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment charge is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. Impairment charge is charged
pro rata to the other assets in the cash generating
unit, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less
cost of disposal, or value in use, if determinable.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or group assets (cash-generating units). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment charge at each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O B R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and Other Financial Assets

(a)

(b)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

amortised cost;

fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”")

fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”)

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and Derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and Other Financial Assets (Continued)
(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are
expensed in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

(i)  Debt Instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the financial
asset and the cash flow characteristics of
the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in
the consolidated statement of profit or
loss presented together with foreign
exchange differences. Loss allowances
are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The Group’s trade, bills and
tariff adjustment receivables, other
receivables, deposits, pledged deposits,
restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents fall into this category of
financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and Other Financial Assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

(i)  Debt Instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest,
are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified from consolidated
statement of changes in equity to
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVTPL is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
in which it arises.

2 FTEEFHRHE (B

210 REKRHEMEMEE (B)

(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:-T (&) Ej‘ i’% %ﬁiélﬁj‘

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and Other Financial Assets (Continued)

2 FTEEFHRHE (B

210 REKXHEMERMEE (B)
FtE (8)

(c) Measurement (Continued) (c)

(ii)  Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all
equity investments at fair value. Where
the Management has elected to present

(i) 1z T A
REBEHERAAETE
FTEEaRE - FEHE
EEENEHMEEWRES

fair value gains and losses on equity 2IEZEEZ A REN
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent m B iR Bl EAR ISR
reclassification of fair value gains and losses KEER E@Tﬁﬁ%@ﬁ
to the consolidated statement of profit BEWm~kEEENDE
or loss following the derecognition of the ReiEmRe

investment.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets BARBEFABREZ M

at FVTPL are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment charges (and reversal of
impairment charges) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

(d) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
of the expected credit losses (“ECL”) associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade, bills and tariff adjustment receivables
and contract assets, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the

(d)

BEZANEBEINGES
BmiAER WER) -
% AnEFAEMEREU
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Sz (B imt B 32 8 E) &
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EX L
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receivables, see Note 22 for further details. EHESDE W AR IE R T LUREST o
ERE—TEB F2EME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and Other Financial Assets (Continued)

(d) Impairment (Continued)

Loss allowance on financial assets other than
trade, bills and tariff adjustment receivables
and contract assets are measured as either
12-months ECL or lifetime ECL, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. If a
significant increase in credit risk of a receivable
has occurred since initial recognition, then loss
allowance is measured as lifetime ECL.

In applying the forward-looking approach of ECL
assessment, a distinction is made between:

financial instruments that have not
deteriorated significantly in credit quality
since initial recognition or that have low
credit risk (“Stage 1”) ; and

financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low
(“Stage 27).

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have
objective evidence of impairment at the reporting
date.

12-month ECL are recognised for the Stage 1
category while lifetime ECL are recognised for the
Stage 2 category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over
the expected life of the financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:-T (&) Ej‘ i’% %ﬁiélﬁj‘

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and Other Financial Assets (Continued)

2 FTEEFHRHE (B

210 REKXHEMERMEE (B)

(d) Impairment (Continued) (d) E1E #E)

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial assets at the reporting
date with the risk of default occurring on the
financial assets at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following assessment criteria is
taken into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
regulatory, business, financial,
conditions or technological environment that
are expected to cause a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations; and

economic

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and Other Financial Assets (Continued)
(d) Impairment (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit

2 FTEEFHRHE (B

211 BBHRATRZ SR EE (B)
(d) JE1E (%)

B LA EEROMA £&E
BRESHONRANBEI08
> 15 B B B2 B 4 18 b 58 LUK

risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the end of each reporting period. A
debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if it has a low risk of default, the borrower
has strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and adverse
changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfill its
contractual cash flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

2 FTEEFHRHE (B

211 BBHEMATIRZEREE
(a) FEZREIE

(a) Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities include other payables, lease
liabilities and bank and other borrowings.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities)
at amortised cost are recognised initially at
fair value net of transaction costs incurred
and subsequently stated at amortised cost,
using effective interest method. Any difference
between proceeds net of transaction costs
and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over
the period of the financial liabilities using the
effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Accounting policies for lease liabilities are set out
in Note 2.24.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEGHHREE (B

POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost (Continued)
(b) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows under
the new terms, including any fees paid net of any
fees received and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is at least 10 percent
different from the discounted present value of
the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability.

2.12 Financial Liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL included
convertible bonds.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading or contingent consideration of an acquirer
in a business combination may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9 permits the
entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12

213

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

For financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. For financial
liabilities that contain embedded derivatives, such as
convertible bonds, the changes in fair value of the
embedded derivatives are excluded in determining
the amount to be presented in other comprehensive
income. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in
other comprehensive income are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are
transferred to accumulated losses upon derecognition
of the financial liability.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position where the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the company or the counterparty. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such
as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O B R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

214

215

2.16

Trade, Bills and Tariff Adjustment Receivables

Trade, bills and tariff adjustment receivables are
amounts due from customers for electricity sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade, bills and tariff adjustment receivables are
recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at
fair value. The Group holds the trade, bills and tariff
adjustment receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Contract Assets

A contract asset is an entity’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the entity has
transferred to a customer. A contract asset becomes
a receivable when the entity’s right to consideration
is unconditional, which is the case when only the
passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due. The impairment of contract
assets is measured, presented and disclosed on the
same basis set out in Note 2.10.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

2 FEF

2.14

215

2.16
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17

2.18

Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised when a performance obligation
is satisfied by transferring control of the promised
products or services to a customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration expected to be collected in
exchange for those products or services. The revenue
recognition of the Group is determined through the
following five steps:

(i) Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a
customer;

(ii) Identification of the performance obligations in
the contract;

(iii) Determination of the transaction price;

(iv) Allocation of the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract;

(v) Recognition of revenue when, or as, a
performance obligation is satisfied.

At contract inception, an assessment is required to
identify a performance obligation for each promise
to transfer to the customer a product or a service
(or bundle of products or services) that is distinct.
To identify the performance obligations, the Group
considers all the products and services promised in
the contract with the customer based on the Group’s
customary business practices, published policies, or
specific statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEGHHREE (B

POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:

provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Revenue Recognition (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when the specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below:

(a) Sales of Electricity and Tariff Adjustment

Revenue from sales of electricity and tariff
adjustment is recognised at a point in time when
electricity is generated, transmitted and delivered
to the offtakers. Revenue from these sales is
recognised based on the price specified in the
power purchase agreements. The electricity
generation will be confirmed with the offtakers
regularly, therefore, it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur.

Revenue from sales of electricity is based on
the respective on-grid electricity rates. Tariff
adjustment represents subsidy received and
receivable pursuant to prevailing government
policy in respect of the Group’'s renewable
energy projects. Tariff adjustment is recognised
at a point in time at fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the additional tariff
will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions, if any.

Revenue from tariff adjustment is based on the
difference between the feed-in tariff (“FIT”) regime
implemented by the PRC government for the
provision of subsidy to the solar and wind power
plant operators in the PRC and the revenue from
sales of electricity.

(b) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset.

wR e M BRI aE

2 FEGHHRME (@

2.18 IREHEER (18)
RAEAEENSETHEFTERFEN
THREZ S ARERHRIBWRE M
Fratt

(a)

(b)

THHEREERHA
REBNHERBEFENK
mBR BB BERRMA T X
5 0 By B9 B P B R BT © BR B &%
FHEN KR REBENZ
BN EBR T LSS - AR
B E R A RE R R It
RAREASTELER I
mAYEREE -

BHHERAHENREB LB
BEE-BEMUERBRETR
RERMAERZ A BEER
BEEZEWKREWHNER B
BHEERE-—SBMBBANE
HESD o 1A E 5 IR E & UL
BHNEBEBEHAEERTERA
s R GnA) o

BB AL W m T AR 1% 1 B B
w13 o B K B BE Ko JBl /7 3% BB
EENREHMBMEMERN LA
BE(TLHEEE) HERSE
HEWRD BN EREAE -

FUS A

F B WA R ERN X ERE
BILLAI B ERER - BN REE
EERENRBIHEMAEFEN
TREEMS  BERMEER
REERREE-

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JuatfETREREEA A PR 2 6]

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 — % — —4E4E )

179



180

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Revenue Recognition (Continued)

219

(c) Dividend Income

Dividends are received from financial assets
measured at FVTPL. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the right to receive payment
is established. This applies even if they are paid
out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
an investment.
(d) Operation and Maintenance Service Income
Income arising from operation and maintenance
service is recognised in the accounting period in
which the service is rendered.

Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time (generally
over 6 months for renewable power projects) to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Current and Deferred Income Tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’'s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

(a)

Current Income Tax
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(a) ETHGFRTZ

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company, its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures operate and
generate taxable income. The management of
the Company (the “Management”) periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

(b) Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax
is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realised or
the deferred tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Current and Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period the liability is settled or the asset realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Employee Benefits

(a) Short-Term Obligations

(b)

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits and accumulating sick
leave that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Post-Employment Obligations

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong are
required to participate in a defined contribution
scheme as defined in mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”). The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group under independently administered funds.
Contributions to the schemes by the employers
and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. Under the MPF
Scheme, each of the company (the employer)
and its employees make monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. The monthly contributions of each of
the employer and the employees are subject to a
cap of HK$1,500 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary. The Group has no further obligations
for the actual payment of post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Employee Benefits (Continued)

(b) Post-Employment Obligations (Continued)

(c)

Employees of the Group in the PRC are required
to participate in defined contribution retirement
schemes administered and operated by municipal
governments. The Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC contribute funds to the retirement scheme
to fund the retirement benefits of the employees
which are calculated on certain percentage of
the average employee salary as agreed by the
municipal government. Such retirement schemes
are responsible for the entire post-retirement
benefit obligations payable to the retired
employees. The Group has no further obligations
for the actual payment of post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or when an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
(a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the
offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Share-Based Payments
(a) Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment

Transactions

The Group operates an employee share option
plan. The fair value of options granted under the
employee share option plan is recognised as an
employee benefits expense with a corresponding
increase in equity. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

including any market performance conditions
(for example, the entity’s share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining as an employee of the entity
over a specified time period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement
for employees to save or hold shares for a
specified period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which
all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each reporting period,
the entity revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based on
the non-market vesting and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Share-Based Payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment
Transactions (Continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

After vesting date, when the share options are
forfeited prior to the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in the “Share-based
payment reserve” will be transferred to the
“Accumulated losses” within the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium.

Share-Based Payment Transactions Among
Group Entities

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees of
subsidiaries in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investment in subsidiaries, with
a corresponding credit to the Company’s equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Provisions 2.23 #15

2 FTEEFHRHE (B

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Leases

Definition of a Lease and the Group as a Lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers
whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease
is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that
conveys the right to use an identified asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange
for consideration’. To apply this definition, the Group
assesses whether the contract meets three key

evaluations which are whether:

the contract contains an identified asset, which
is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the time
the asset is made available to the Group;

the Group has the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use,
considering its rights within the defined scope of

the contract; and

the Group has the right to direct the use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Group assess whether it has the right to direct
‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used

throughout the period of use.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased

asset is available for use by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

2 FTEEFHRHE (B

2.24 THE (48)

Definition of a Lease and the Group as a Lessee
(Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments).

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

(i) where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

(ii) uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Company, which does not have
recent third party financing; and

(iif) makes adjustments specific to the lease, for
example, term, country, currency and security.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24

2.25

Leases (Continued)

Definition of a Lease and the Group as a Lessee
(Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance for
each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability and any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date. Right-of-use assets are generally
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life. Payments associated
with short-term leases are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less.

Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Related Parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial

statements, a party is considered to be related to the
Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group.

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group.

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEGHHREE (B

POLICIES (Continued)
2.26 Related Parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third party.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If the
Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a) above.

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial Risk Factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. Risk management
is carried out by the senior management of the
Company under policies approved by the Board of
Directors.

(a) Market Risk
(i)  Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

The functional currency of the Hong
Kong reporting entities is HK$ and the
transactions are mostly denominated in
HK$ and United States dollar (“US$”).
For transactions or balances denominated
in US$ which are reasonably stable with
the Hong Kong dollars under the Linked
Exchange Rate System, the directors are
of the opinion that the Company does not
have significant foreign exchange risk,
the exposure to fluctuation in exchange
rates will only arise from the translation
to the presentation currency of the Group.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is
performed.

The functional currency of the PRC reporting
entities is RMB and the transactions are
mostly denominated in RMB, the conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the rules and regulations of the foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O B R R B o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(a) Market Risk (Continued)

()

(1)

Foreign Exchange Risk (Continued)

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk primarily through financing, capital
expenditure and expenses transactions that
are denominated in a currency other than
RMB, which is the functional currency of
the major subsidiaries of the Group. The
Group manages its exposures to foreign
currency transactions by monitoring the
level of foreign currency receipts and
payments. The Group ensures that the net
exposure to foreign exchange risk is kept to
an acceptable level from time to time. The
Group is presently not using any forward
exchange contract to hedge against foreign
exchange risk as Management considers its
exposure is not significant.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk through the impact of rates changes
on interest-bearing borrowings which mainly
bear floating interest rates. In addition, the
Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk through the fixed rates lease liabilities.

The Group monitors closely its interest rate
exposure by maintaining an appropriate mix
of fixed and floating rate borrowings and
considers hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise. The position
is regularly monitored and evaluated by
reference of anticipated changes in market
interest rate.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S AR bR
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMERKER (8)

3.1 MBAREZR (&)
(a) HEEE ()

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(a) Market Risk (Continued)

(i) Interest Rate Risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, if interest rates on
bank and other borrowings had been 50
basis points (31 December 2020: 50 basis
points) higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, profit before income tax
would have been approximately RMB117
million lower/higher (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB61 million lower/higher)
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk arises if a customer or other
counterparty fails to meet its contractual
obligations. The credit risk of the Group mainly
arises from trade, bills and tariff adjustment
receivables and contract assets, other
receivables and deposits and cash deposits.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 33% (31 December
2020: 46%) of its trade and tariff adjustment
receivables and contract assets were due
from two largest customers (31 December
2020: three), which were mainly state-owned
enterprises. To measure the ECL, trade and tariff
adjustment receivables and contract assets
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and days past due. Considering
the track record of regular settlement of trade
receivables and based on the Group’s experience
with respect to the collection of trade and tariff
adjustment receivables and contract assets,
which are well supported by the government
policy, the Board of Directors are of the opinion
that the risk of default by these customers is not
significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(b) Credit Risk (Continued)

The Group has policies that limit the amount
of credit exposure to any financial institutions.
Substantially all the deposits in banks are held
in reputable financial institutions located in Hong
Kong and the PRC, which Management believes
are of high credit quality and Management
does not expect any losses arising from non-
performance by these counterparties.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group has three types of assets that are
subject to the ECL model:

Trade and tariff adjustment receivables and
contract assets

Other receivables and deposits
Bills receivables and cash deposits

(including cash at banks, restricted cash and
pledged deposits)

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)
(b) Credit Risk (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

(i)

Trade and tariff adjustment receivables and

contract assets

The trade and tariff adjustment receivables
and contract assets of the Group were
arising from sales of electricity and were
mainly due from state-owned enterprises.
As described in Note 22, except for 16 solar
power plants and 4 wind power plants with
aggregate installed capacity of 1,365MW (31
December 2020: 9 solar power plants with
aggregate installed capacity of 214.7MW),
all of the Group’s solar power plants that
are entitled to tariff adjustment receivables
were successfully enlisted in the List (as
defined in Note 22). Management are of the
opinion that the tariff adjustment receivables
will be settled in accordance with prevailing
government policies and prevalent payment
trends of Ministry of Finance. There is no
due date for settlement. Given the track
record of settlements of receivables from
sales of electricity and the collection of tariff
adjustment receivables are well supported
by the government policy, Management are
of the opinion that the risk of default by
these customers is not significant and does
not expect any losses from non-performance
by the customers. Therefore, ECL rate of
trade and tariff adjustment receivables and
contract assets are assessed to be close
to zero and no provision was made as at 31
December 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O B R R B o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)
(b) Credit Risk (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

(if)

Other receivables and deposits

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIBER A IR A ]

Impairment charge on other receivables and
deposits are measured as either 12-months
ECL or lifetime ECL on individual basis,
depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase
in credit risk of a receivable has occurred
since initial recognition, then impairment
charge is measured as lifetime ECL.
Certain long-aged deposits for investments
and other receivables with an aggregated
gross carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,122 million as at 31 December
2021 (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB1,070 million) are assessed individually;
and the Group has recognised impairment
charge of approximately RMB1,122 million
in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: approximately RMB1,070
million) for these deposits for investments
and other receivables (see Note 2.1(a) and
Note 23(a)). Management considered there
is a significant increase in credit risk on
these balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Er e A A T
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBREEIE (@
3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued) 3.1 HEAKREZE (@&
(b) Credit Risk (Continued) (b) EEEE (4B)
Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued) THEEHE (&
(ii) Other receivables and deposits (Continued) (iiy HMEWERE RZE (&)
The movements of impairment loss KRERS R EMEKRIE
for deposits for investments and other FREBEESHNT .
receivables are as follows:
2021 2020
2 —F —ECEF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEBETT AEBEET
Stage 1: F—BEEL
At 1 January ®w—B—H 1 =
Increase in impairment ThEME U A
charge recognised on other R EE
receivables eunpi=pil 22 1
At 31 December ®+=-—B=+—H 23 1
Stage 2: 5 PEER ¢
At 1 January ®—B—H 1,069 1,094
Increase in impairment charge FiZEILE K E M
recognised on deposits FEWFIBERE B
for investments and other A 10
receivables 43 _
Exchange difference PE R ZE%A (13) (25)
At 31 December ®W+=ZB=+—H 1,099 1,069
Total st 1,122 1,070
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O B R R B o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)
(b) Credit Risk (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

(if)

Other receivables and deposits (Continued)

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLEREIRBIRE A PR A F]

As it is detailed in Note 2.1(a), on
28 September 2020, in light of the
limitations encountered during the
investigation, the significant sums involved
and the findings in the investigation,
after consulting with the legal advisers,
the Company reported the incidents of
prepayment of the deposits of approximately
RMB1,069 million to the CCB. Considering
the case is currently under investigation
by the Hong Kong Police Force, no reversal
of the impairment charge of approximately
RMB1,069 million is suggested by the
Board for the Year. During the Year, a
further impairment charge of approximately
RMB43 million is suggested by the Board
after having reviewed the settlement status
subsequently.

As detailed in Note 2.1(a) to the
consolidated financial statements, on
28 March 2022, the Group entered into
the Second Revised Settlement Agreement
with NEX Group in respect of the NEX
Settlements.

The remaining other receivables and
deposits, which are not related to the above
incidents as detailed in Note 2.1(a), are
separately assessed. Management considers
that the credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition with
reference to the counterparty historical
default rate, adjusted by current and forward
looking information, but an impairment
charge of approximately RMB22 million is
based on the 12-month expected credit
losses for the Year (31 December 2020:
approximately RMBZ1 million).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:-T (&) Ej‘ i’% %ﬁiélﬁj‘

j?’“ﬂ. ,'Sqii (l\E)
3.1 MERAMREZER (@&
(b) 15EEE ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(b) Credit Risk (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

(iii) Bills receivables and cash deposits
(including cash at banks, restricted cash
and pledged deposits)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
deposits are placed in reputable banks and
financial institutions in the PRC and Hong
Kong. Most of the bills receivables are

THEERE (&)
(iiiy BWEBEKRIREER (B1F

RITHRE RREFEER
ERRER
RTEBEC—FR-TFETE
F+ZRBR=+—H ' &
FHRRPEREBEER
i?? E’Jf@"&%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ ° R

issued from state-owned banks in the PRC. DEKRERNETHS
The credit quality of bills receivables, cash at ':F‘ B AV B A R 1T o lE U 2=
banks, restricted cash and pledged deposits BRITTIRE SR RHIR
has been assessed by reference to external EREEHBRERNEESR

credit ratings or to historical information
about the counterparty default rates. The
existing counterparties do not have defaults
in the past. Therefore, ECL rate of bills
receivable, cash at banks, restricted cash
and pledged deposits is assessed to be
close to zero and no provision was made as
at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:

ZEZREZNBEETRS
EREFHENENBE
BERETTHGH - RAERF
F5 PR 8 1 o fR B AV 5E &R ©
R o AR 5T (e B U 22 35 ~ #R
TR ZTRAIRBRERE
KR FRHNEBEERE
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Nil). +ZBA=+—HuEsiE
FEE CE_SFE+2
B=+—H : #) o
(c) Liquidity Risk (c) FEEZRLE

Cash flow forecasts are prepared by

RERERABEEERRE -

Management. Management monitors rolling EEESGEEAERNREBES
forecasts on the Group’s liquidity requirements BRzEEFEEN BERAER
to ensure the Group maintains sufficient liquidity HEFE TR R ESHE A

reserve to support sustainability and growth
of the Group’s business. Currently, the Group
finances its working capital requirements through
funds generated from operations,
new shares, senior notes, medium term notes,
corporate bonds and obtaining bank and other
borrowings.

issue of
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBRAKEIR (&)
3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued) 3.1 HERAKREZE (@&

(¢c) Liquidity Risk (Continued) (c) TBEZEE (4)
Management monitors rolling forecasts of EEEKEERARERE &
the Group’s liquidity reserve on the basis of EREBRRBESHREZEE
expected cash flows. The Group’s policy is to FER e REB KA THEE
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity TERI MRTERARESE T ERK
requirements and its compliance with lending HBFERZLHB R HmiE
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient RAEEERF T ERESHEEBU
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines RETETHEBAEREDN
of funding from major financial institutions to EHES UENHEEHERE
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and Bz REEEE K.
long term.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial TRZEREEEAR BP AR
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings EHRESHEE B Z TR
based on the remaining period at the end of B HEAEEzEHBEETS
the reporting period to the contractual maturity MeERARBEZEBAESN
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the HERITIWIRE RS
contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Carrying
Within 1 year 2nd year 3-5 years Over 5 years Total Amount
—ER FoE ZERE REULE 4zt IREE
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
ARKEET AREEER ARKEER ARBEER ARKEER AREKEER
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—-&
+ZA=t+-H
Other payables HAhfEFHIE 3,427 - - - 3,427 3,427
Bank and other borrowings and $§17 R EMEF R
corresponding interests TARER & 9,122 7,681 14,638 5,310 36,751 32,039
Financial liabilities at FVTPL ~ #/A R B ABRZ
SHEE 12 12 361 - 385 346
Lease liabilities HEBE 56 56 154 669 935 601
12,617 7,749 15,153 5,979 41,498 36,413
At 31 December 2020 RIB-EE
+ZB=+—-H
Other payables HAthfEF 7B 1,617 = = = 1,617 1,617
Bank and other borrowings and $£17 R EMETR
corresponding interests RER S 6,252 3,720 7,119 3,677 20,768 17,589
Lease liabilities HE&E 17 17 34 146 214 133
7,886 3,737 7,153 3,823 22,599 19,339
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Capital Risk Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
condition. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may obtain bank and other
borrowings, issue of convertible bonds, issue of senior
notes, medium-term notes and corporate bonds or
placing of new shares. The Group monitors capital on
the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debts divided by total capital. Net debts is
calculated as total borrowings (including current and
non-current bank and other borrowings and convertible
bonds as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) less cash deposits (including cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits and restricted
cash as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position). Total capital is calculated as “total
equity” as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position plus net debts.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.2 Capital Risk Management (Continued)

3.3

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2021 and 2020

were as follows:

MEEEERE (&)
3.2 AXARERE ()

ATEC—ERTE-TE+ A
=t—RZEBEFEREROT:

2021 2020

—E_—fF S

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBBEERT ARBEET

Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMERR 32,039 17,589

Convertible bonds AR ES 346 =
Total borrowings and convertible B ABEE K A B (& 55

bonds 32,385 17,589

Less: Cash deposits B IREER (5,844) (2,972)

Net debts FETE 26,541 14,617

Total equity T AR EE 9,284 5,655

Total capital BERAREE 35,825 20,272

Gearing ratio BABMEALEX 74.1% 72.1%

Fair Value Estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried
at fair values, by valuation method. The different levels

have been defined as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) and not
using significant observable inputs (level 2).

Significant inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data (that is,

unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fr o B A b RE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBRAREIR (&)
3.3 Fair Value Estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREZMAE @
The following tables present the fair value hierarchy of TREBIN _ S _—FR_FT_F
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that were F+_A=+—HEXEBULARE
measured at fair value at 31 December 2021 and HEZEMEBEENRBREZARNER
2020. Ao
Level 3
E
RMB’million
ARBBETT
At 31 December 2021 W_E-_—+”"A=+—H
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVTPL (Note 21) BAnEst ABmzEMEE (f15E21)
Guaranteed electricity output ERENEHEH 4
Unlisted investments JELEHERE 35
Liabilities af&
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Note 26) BAnEst ABmzEfEE (f5E26)
Convertible bonds AHmRES 346
At 31 December 2020 R-E"Z2F+”°"A=+—H
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVTPL (Note 21) BAnEst ABmzEMEE (f15E21)
Guaranteed electricity output ERENEHEH 4
Unlisted investments JELEMEE 38
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there was no N B FR_E_EFE+_H
financial instrument included in level 1 and level 2. —t+—H #HEEHMTAESTAE—
BB o
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on HW—EXZLEEEH A SEWIER
observable market data, the instrument is included in BOBREmEHEET IZETL
level 3. Het AE=%-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MHERKER (8)
3.3 AREZHE (@)

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial RfEAtm I AGENFKEMER
instruments include: M EdE -

3.3 Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

Guaranteed electricity output was estimated
based on the shortfall of electricity pursuant to
sale and purchase agreements mutually agreed
between the Company and vendors in respect of
acquisition of subsidiaries.

Unlisted investments were determined mainly
based on the sum-of-the-parts approach (31
December 2020: sum-of-the-parts approach).
The Group has engaged an external independent
valuer to assess the fair value of unlisted
investment. The significant unobservable inputs
include the fair value of the assets and liabilities
of the investee company.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (i.e. convertible
bonds) was determined based on binomial model.
The Group engaged an external independent
valuer to assess its fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The significant unobservable
inputs include the discount rate, volatility rate
and expected dividend yield. Details of the
key assumptions are set out in Note 26 of the
consolidated financial statements.

BERENBHDRELAT A
BEORKENB RS EBRE
NWEBRZENBIRERET
flr st e

LEFRETDEFERELER
EHNE(CE_EFE+_H
=+—H REFTRIHDZE B
E - AEBEZE—ZIEE
U AEMMGEGHIELTREZ
NABE - BAFRAEHEH A
BEEREHR R NREERS
BEZNEe

BARBEFABRZEMERE
(BNAJ R E ) ThiRE — 18
BABFE AEEEZE—%
SN EB AR 37 1B B LT R E R R
EHERZAARB - ERATEH
R ABBEEITIRE  FE
ERBAAREX -BREITER
REBEH N RS M RERN
5E260 0

RBEE_E_—FR-ZBEF
+ZB=+—HLEFE - F—HK %
“HREFE=ZRANEDEERZE
TEEAETHMEENEREEE-

There were no significant transfers of financial assets
or liabilities between level 1, level 2 and level 3 fair
value hierarchy classifications during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

BHHRRERE (8
3.3 AnfEZfhEt (B
TRENE=ZRIENKEE &

The following table presents the changes in level 3

instruments for the Year. Eo
Financial
Financial assets liabilities at
at FVTPL FVTPL
BRARE
stAEEZ
RAMESABEZEHEE THERE
Guaranteed
electricity Unlisted Convertible
output investments bonds
ERELEL FLHRE AR ES
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARBEERT AR¥EETR
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—-%—HA—H 4 38 -
Additions, net of transaction AE R 5 A
costs - - (316)
Interest payment EANE=! - - 6
Fair value loss recognised in the RiRSRTERT
consolidated statement of AN W (= 5=
profit or loss - (3) (40)
Exchange difference VB E - - 4
At 31 December 2021 WIEZ—F
+-HB=+—H 4 35 (346)
Total loss for the year included  FIERFIEEEERER
in the consolidated statement SFAGREEERZ
of profit or loss for assets and ~ FERFIE4EEE
liabilities held at the end of
the year - (3) (40)
Change in unrealised losses NERFFEEERER
for the year included in the STAGREERERY
consolidated statement of FRRBIREBED
profit or loss for assets and
liabilities held at the end of
the year - (3) (40)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2020.

BB ERERE (8

3.3 AREZ ML @)
TE2HEMTARBE_S=
SE+-A=+—ALEEZS
& o

Financial assets

at FVTPL
BARESABTZTRMEE
Guaranteed Unlisted
electricity output investments
BRENBL FLHKE
RMB’million RMB’million

ARBESTT ARBEST

At 1 January 2020 and RZE-FEF—HB—HK
31 December 2020 ZEZEF+ZAH
=+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fr o B A b RE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBERERE ()
3.3 Fair Value Estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREZMES @
Sensitivity Analysis of Observable and Unobservable AHER T AHEEGA BEHRE
Inputs T
As described, the fair values of financial assets and WEXFTM DEBAFE=RRARE
liabilities that are classified in level 3 of the fair value hzeMEBEERBEANETfE
hierarchy are determined using valuation techniques BYIERBEIHEERTSEBIECEE
that make use of significant inputs that are not based MABBZEELIEE ZZELR
on observable market data. These fair values could ErfEHBEELEAASEZ RE
be sensitive to changes in the assumptions used BHBRABK  TRMBEEH A
to derive the inputs. The table below illustrates the FEREAHMSIET1TEH ABIE
sensitivity of the significant inputs when they are B2 SR E ¢
changed to reasonably possible alternative inputs:
Significant Range of  Favourable/(unfavourable)
Description Fair value at 31 December Valuation techniques inputs inputs changes in profit or loss
R R+ZB=+—-B2zA%E B EXHARE WANBEE HEIEN/ (FH) 23
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEZ-& CZIZF CFZ-H CZTIZF ZEZ-F C"ZTZE
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AR¥EERT ARKEET ARKEERT ARKEET
Financial assets at FVTPL
BARE AR ZERMEE
Unlisted investments 35 38 Sum-of- Sum-of-  Discount rate +0.5% (0.2) (0.7)
FLEmERE the-Parts the-Parts of 8.82% -0.5% 0.1 0.2
Approach Approach  (2020: 8.5%)
et e 8.82%HIRE
TRABSE FEBHE CIITE:
8.5%)
Revenue +0.5% - 0.7
with growth -0.5% (0.1) 0.7)
rate of 5%
(2020: 5%)
5%
BEX
(CBZZF:
5%)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
BAREFABEZEMER
Convertible bonds 346 - Binomial - Volatility +5% (7) -
AR ES Model w8 -5% 8 =
ZIEER
Share price +HK$0.1 (86) -
B -HK$0.1 7 =
+A1#0.17T
-B10.17T
Discount rate +0.5% 2 —
of 21.6% -0.5% (1) =
(2020: Nil)
21.6%ITIRE
(C2Z5F:
&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

4.1 Critical Accounting Judgements

Apart from those involving estimations (see below),
the following are the critical judgments which
Management has made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

4.1 Critical Accounting Judgements (Continued)

4 EBEXRGsHERER (@)

4.1 FASEE T HER (48)
BHHEZ EIEHH AR

(a) Revenue Recognition on Tariff Adjustment on (a)

Sales of Electricity

During the Year, the Group recognised tariff
adjustment of RMB1,903 million (31 December
2020: approximately RMB1,485 million) in the
sales of electricity. As disclosed in Note 22,
certain solar power plants of the Group were still
pending to be enlisted in the List (as defined in
Note 22) as of 31 December 2021, which was
an on-going process as the List was opened for
registration on a batch by batch basis under
the prevailing nationwide government policies.
Accordingly, the tariff adjustment of certain
power plants to be enlisted in the List were
only recognised to the extent that it is highly
probable that such recognition would not result in
significant revenue reversal in the future on the
basis that these power plants had been qualified
for and had met all the requirements and
conditions for the entitlement of the tariff subsidy
under the prevailing nationwide government
policies on renewable energy for power plants.
Hence, the Group’s operating power plants are
able to be enlisted in the List subsequent to the
Year and the accrued revenue on tariff subsidy
are fully recoverable. During the Year, the Group
recognised tariff adjustment as revenue of
approximately RMB116 million and RMB15 million
relating to solar power plants and wind power
plants respectively not yet enlisted in the List (31
December 2020: approximately RMB91 million
relating to solar power plants).

A

RAFEE > NEBEREHH
ENEERHMARTKEL,9038
Brx(CE_2F+_A=+—
H:#ARK1,485FH8T) °
UM EE22FTIRE  BHE_T
_—H#+"_BA=+—H &x&
EETFTXBEZEBILDEF
ABE (EERBMWE22) B8
AIREBIRTE R BT BEEEH
BB LA ERNAE
ETHR AL EFAERFTINA
BEMNAMGEZEHNEEM
ER U T EREES AR
BROTBEBUBEEREEIL
MEZRBER ZENBEXSE
A BRI EREWERES
BB ER R GEHNER
o MBERERRIUENRHER
TEEREAWALEL AL
AN EE BB VE R K5 AE & B b AE
N AEERIIABE MEB
B 7/ G B FE 51 U A BT 3 2 B
Bloe RAFE » AERE K AR
RKIWABEZKGREEEiIL A
R /78 Bk 8 BB AL D B FE
DBAHWANANREE116H & T
RARBISEB T (ZE2EZZE
F+ZA=+—H AR
VBB THEMKGEZE) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

4.1 Critical Accounting Judgements (Continued)
(b) Business Combinations

Accounting for acquisitions require the Group to
allocate the cost of acquisition to specific assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair values at the date of acquisition.
The Group has undertaken processes to identify
all assets and liabilities acquired, including
acquired intangible assets. Judgements made
in identifying all acquired assets, determining
the estimated fair value assigned to each class
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as
well as asset’s useful lives, could materially
impact the calculation of goodwill, bargain
purchase gain and depreciation and amortisation
charges in subsequent periods. Estimated fair
values are based on information available near
the acquisition date and on expectations and
assumptions that have been deemed reasonable
by Management. Determining the estimated
useful lives of tangible and intangible assets
acquired also requires judgement.

Different conclusions around these judgements
may materially impact how these investments
presented and measured in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group.

4.2 Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

4.2 Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

4 EBEXRGsHERER (@)

4.2 fEEtREEM (@)
(a) WE -BERREURELE

(a) Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

and Intangible Assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested
annually for impairment; or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
have been determined based on the higher of
value in use calculations or fair value less costs
of disposal. These calculations require the use
of judgements and estimates. Management
judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that the
related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use (i.e. net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business); and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by Management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment assessment and as a result affect
the Group’s financial condition and results of
operations. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets were approximately RMB26,172
million (net of impairment of approximately
RMB968 million) and RMB972 million (net of
impairment of approximately RMB831 million),
respectively (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB14,097 million (net of impairment of
approximately RMB961 million) and RMB869
million (net of impairment of approximately
RMB831 million), respectively).

ERE
BEEREEFHCEESFE
TRENR  HMEEFER
15 R 8RBT R ERE A
EREETAEANA HEME
ENZEEFERBRESME
T BR T B 2K 4 B YR (] B 28 1T Rk
BEAIH o 7] W [El & 28 5 1R 3R 1F
BEEdZ2HAAEREENK
AMEZRSEBETE MLHFot
HEFERYE REE o LER
AEEEIGHU TS ERES
BEERESBERAE ()EF
BEEL B NEMEEEE
FAROAWEIZEH (NEEZ
REEEST U WEIEEE BA
B R A AR K BB 1A (BT
BREEREFERNTEERAE
EMtzRKRKIBEREZ FIR
B) 2®8eE) X7F 5 K(iii)iw 2
ReERSBAFERAZEE
FTERR BEZERE T2
BARSERBELEITER
ENEEBMAB UG REM
ERZRRX (BEReEREEA
ZITREFEEXRRR) AR
FERETGFIEZRRE
R EARERZ MR TR
MG RIE N BT —F4 =
B=1+—B Y% BEKXH
UEREFEENREED L
AANRK26,1725 8 7T (&
REHAREISSHE TT) KA
Eiso728E 7t GABRBELN A
RkK831EE T (ZTEEHF
+ZB=+—H 29888 A
Ei1&14,097EH 8t GORBEE
HARKIc1IEET) RAREE
869E BT (KRR EN AR K
831HET)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

4.2 Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

(b) Impairment of Trade, Bills and Tariff Adjustment

Receivables, Contract Assets, Other Receivables
and Deposits

The Group makes provision for impairment of
trade, bills and tariff adjustment receivables,
contract assets, other receivables and deposits
based on assumptions about risk of default and
ECL rate. The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Note 3.1(b) provides the basis
of the calculation of the loss allowance. As at 31
December 2021, the aggregate carrying amounts
of trade, bills and tariff adjustment receivables,
other receivables and deposits amounted to
approximately RMB7,552 million and RMB3,175
million (net of ECL allowance of approximately
RMB1,122 million), respectively (31 December
2020: trade, bills and tariff adjustment
receivables, other receivables and deposits and
contract assets of approximately RMB4,344
million, RMB2,715 million (net of ECL allowance
of approximately RMB1,070 million) and RMB28
million, respectively).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

4.2 Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities were determined by using various
valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions, including the discount
rates, which are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in assumptions used could
materially affect the fair value of these balances
and as a result affect the Group’s financial
condition and results of operation. As at 31
December 2021, the fair values of the financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL were
approximately RMB39 million and RMB346
million (31 December 2020: financial assets
of approximately RMB42 million) respectively.
Details of the fair value measurement are
disclosed in Note 3.3.

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. As at
31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the
property, plant and equipment was approximately
RMB26,172 million (net of impairment charge of
approximately RMB968 million) (31 December
2020: approximately RMB14,097 million (net
of impairment charge of approximately RMB961
million)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The CODM has been identified as the Board. CODM
reviews the Group’s internal reports in order to assess
performance, allocate resources and determine the
operating segments.

The Group is pursuing expansion and involvement in clean
energy technologies, including solar power, wind power and
hydropower. During the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, the Group has one reportable segment which
is solar and wind power segment. No material revenue,
EBITDA, segment profit nor total assets had been attributed
by the hydropower segment as it is still under development
stage and therefore CODM does not regard hydropower as a
reportable segment. Information relating to segment assets
and liabilities is not disclosed as such information is not
regularly reported to the CODM. Accordingly, reconciliation
of segment profit to the Group’s profit is not separately
presented.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
major operating entities of the Group are domiciled in
the PRC and accordingly, all of the Group’s revenue from
external customers were in the PRC.

The Group’s non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets by geographical area
are as follows:

SERE R
TREERREERADEFTE -2
éil?ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁzﬁﬁlzm*‘ﬁﬁi » B

FEEE - IRERREELEDE -

AEERRFSREARSRBFZERK
i (@E:&Bﬁ BEN R HERIKEEHE) o
RB8E—T_—FR_FT_TF+_H
=t— EIJJ:EFE rEBEEE—EAZ
w o Ep EZ R ARBEKRBIEED

=R o K 7K BE *%’ﬁéﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁéﬁh G 4
B~ EBITDA~ 3 30 im F S 4B & EE (E
%ixaf;‘k’lﬁt TEEERSETLRE
ZKBEBEEDIRIERI 2R DI - B RE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ;&%faaﬁ‘éﬂﬂﬁﬁ%&% e 75
BARZEERNTIEERAEEZERSE
EZ2W-EIL D HEAN R AERGER 2
HIRWEEBIFHE Y o

%{nu

BE_S-_—SKR_ZF_TF+_1
=St-BLEFE FERFTRLERE
IEEHE > FHit - AEBMATARAIRE
F BRI AR B R E

rEBZME AN ZIERBEE (RER
TRRIEERBEEIN 01T :

2021 2020
—E-—f —E-=x
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETRT ARBEET
The PRC =8 28,341 15,557
Australia R 165 =
Hong Kong 58 4 11
28,510 15,568
For the Year, there was one (31 December 2020: three) RAEAEE $%lﬁ H(ZEZEF
customer which individually contributed over 10% of the +ZHB=+—H: =% FF ZFBHXK
Group’s total revenue. The revenue contributed from each £E ,H&lﬂﬁﬁlﬁkﬁf_lo%°ﬂ5§§?§?§
of these customers was as follows: PEENWASRUWT :
2021 2020
e —T-E
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEET AEBEET
Customer A ZHA 662 473
Customer B (Note) ZFB (M) - 233
Customer C (Note) FEC (f355) - 215

Note: These customers did not contribute over 10% of total
revenue of the Group in 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Er e A A T
OTHER INCOME 6 EHfhgA
2021 2020
—E_—fF TR TE|F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETRT AREBHET
Government grant (Note) BT 6B (M3 5E) - 8
Operation and maintenance service BT R HEERR TR WA
income 6 7
Compensation income FEUWA 5 1
Over-accrual of consideration payables E2ULEE S RIRIFE (SR B
in relation to acquisitions FBREFE ST - 24
Over-provision of land use tax in prior  @FFE Li{ERRBEE
years BB 1 23
Others Hith 5 1
17 64
Note: Government grants were mainly provided by the government Mz BB EERBNMAERR
in respect of the Group’s effort to facilitate the city REMMEREMEH 2SS/ AERK
development and such grants were unconditional. o
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 7 EERAAX

(a) EERAFAX (BEESEME)

(a) Employee Benefits Expenses (including Directors’
Emoluments)

2021 2020

—E—F —ETEF

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEETRT ARBEET

Salaries, wages and bonuses e TBRIEAL 166 93
Contributions to retirement B ETEHR (5D

contribution plans (Note) 35 8

201 101

Share-based payment expenses URMDAERS 2R - 4

201 105

Note: Due to the impact of Coronavirus Disease 2019, MizE . AN Z2019F BB R mE R

a number of policies including the relief of social
insurance have been promulgated by the PRC
government since February 2020 to December 2020
to expedite resumption of economic activities, which
resulted in the relief of certain contributions to
retirement benefit scheme contributions during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

During the Year, the Group had no forfeited
contributions under its retirement contribution plans
which may be used for reducing the existing level of
contributions (31 December 2020: Nil).

E H_T_TE_ARE_ZT
ZEFE+Z > PEBFBGEE
BHETRERREEANNSER
o MUMRMELTEEE B
BHE_ZZF+"HE=+—H
IEFERRE TERAKENHEIH

EoN
A °

RAFE > REBBRAKERE
BT I B ROR WA kB T
A LURERANERKTE (&
Z_EFL+_A=+—H 8\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued) 7
(b) Five Highest Paid Employees

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, one (31 December 2020: two) was director
of the Company, whose emoluments is included in the
disclosure set out in Note 7(c) below. The emoluments
of the remaining 4 (31 December 2020: three) highest
paid individuals except directors are as follows:

EERFIRAX (&)

(b)

LuRE#HES
REEERUESHFALTFR > —1U
“EEE+ZRA=+-H:'®W
i) REARBDES  H &N TX
MYEET7(c)IREE - FREFIh > BR T UL
—E-EE+-A=+—H:=
i) &EFMA LMW T :

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET AEBEET
Salaries and bonuses e RIEAL 6.77 3.93
Retirement benefit scheme RIKEH AR
contributions 0.04 0.03
Share-based payment expenses URMHAERS MY - 0.10
6.81 4.06
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MENFUTEHRE :
Number of individuals
A#
2021 2020
—E—F —ECEF
Emolument bands: A= E -
HK$1,000,001 — 7B 1#£1,000,0017C —
HK$1,500,000 B 11,500,000 - 1
HK$1,500,001 — 151,500,001 7C —
HK$2,000,000 712 000,0007T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 — 782 000,00175—
HK$2,500,000 A2 500,0007T 2 -

During the Year, no emolument was paid or payable by
the Group to any of the directors or the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for the loss of
office (31 December 2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:-T (&) Ej‘ i’% %ﬁ?%l‘fl‘

7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued) 7 EEEIRXZ (@)

(¢) Directors’ Emoluments (c) EEfE
The emoluments paid or payable to each director were ENHEMENESTZMESWT !
as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—_E-_—F+_HF=+—HIF
FE
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of director's other services Emoluments
in connection with the management of the affairs of paid for
the Company or the subsidiary undertaking receivable
HRESHERFNAREMBARAZHEMZEMRHEAAEYZNE  in respect of
a person’s
services as
a director,
whether of
Retirement the Company
benefit ~ Share-based or its
Discretionary scheme payment subsidiary
Fees Salaries bonuses  contributions expenses undertaking Total
fERES
(FER
VNG
HItBAR
£
RAERES
RENHE URNDAER: WERH
&R i RETA #R F2hE% kM azt

RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
AE%BEr AREEERT AREKBER AREEErR AREEEx ARBEER AREESRD

Executive directors: BTES:
Mr. Zhang Ping (Note (i) RS (HEkG) - 0.61 0.86 0.18 - - 1.65
Mr. Lu Zhenwei (Note (ii ii) - - - - - - -

)

i) BRI E (i

Mr. Wang Heng (Note (iii)) TS (=K - - - - - - -
Mr. Xu Jianjun (Note (iv)) BREERE () - - - - - - -

Non-executive directors: 3F¥M‘T§§
Mr. Su Yongjian (Note (v)) BoKRRE () - - - - - - -
Mr. Zhao Bing (Note (vi)) %EM (B & (vi)) - - - - - - -
Mr. Li Hao FRELE 0.16 - - - - - 0.16
Mr. Sui Xiaofeng (Note (vil)) PEREI ST 4 (Mf3E(vii) - - - - - - -
Ms. Xie Yi (Note (viii)) e L (ki) 0.08 - - - - - 0.08
Mr. Chen Dayu (Note (ix)) BAFEE (Hi5(x) - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUEHTES:
directors:
Ms. Jin Xinbin (Note (x)) syt () 0.16 - - - - - 0.16
Ms. Li Hongwei (Note (xi) ?ilf%zzzi (Rt 5 (xi)) 0.09 - - - - - 0.09
Mr. Zhu Jianbiao (Note (xii)) REIFZ SR (it sE(xii)) 0.09 - - - - - 0.09
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong (Note (xiii)) BABIE 554 (HsE(xiii) 0.08 - - - - - 0.08
Mr. Chen Hongsheng (Note (xiv) B4 54 (i5E(xv)) 0.08 - - - - - 0.08
Mr. Yen Yuen Ho, Tony (Note (xv)) BR7eis e (HizE(xy)) 0.08 - - - - - 0.08
Total ] 0.82 0.61 0.86 0.18 - - 2417
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued)

(c) Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

7 EEEHRR (@)
(c) EFEMS (@)

HE_E_FF+_/F=+—HI

FE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of director's other services Emoluments
in connection with the management of the affairs of paid for
the Company or the subsidiary undertaking receivable
HESHREEANIRENBLAAZHERZEMRBESAEBZME  in respect of
a person’s
services as
a director,
whether of
the Company
Retirement Share-based orits
Discretionary  benefit scheme payment subsidiary
Fees Salaries bonuses  contributions expenses undertaking Total
fEREZ
(FER
KAFH
HINB AR
£%)
RS
BAERE  UROHBER me[s
= e BBt R SfizEE EhAHE it
RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
AREEER AREEERT AREEER AREBEER ARKEER AREEER ARBESR
Executive directors: BTES:
Mr. Zhang Ping (Note (i)) RS (H3EG) 0.06 0.30 0.75 = = = 111
Mr. Lu Zhenwei (Note (ii)) EIREE (H3ki) - - - = 0.41 = 0.11
Mr. Xu Jianjun (Note (iv)) HRRERE (Hiv) = = - - - - _
Mr. Huang Hui (Note (xvi)) HELE (MaEevi) 0.06 0.07 0.02 = = = 0.15
Ms. Zhong Hui (Note (xvii)) BELT (ki) 0.03 0.44 0.05 = = = 0.52
Mr. Chen Qinglong (Note (xviii)  BREZSESEAE (HisE(viii)) 0.03 047 = = = = 0.20
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Li Hao FERE 0.18 - - = = = 0.18
Mr. Zhao Bing (Note (vi)) BERE (i) - - - - - - -
Mr. Sui Xiaofeng (Note (vi)) PEREI ST 4 (MfaE(vii) - - - - - - -
Ms. Xie Yi (Note (viii)) e (Mzkviii) 0.18 = = = = = 0.18
Mr. Chen Dayu (Note (ix)) BAFEE ((x) - - - - - - -
Mr. Yu Qiuming (Note (xix)) FHOREE (5 (xix) 0.12 = = = = = 0.12
Mr. Wang Heng (Note (iif) T (ki) - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUEHTES:
directors:
Ms. Jin Xinbin (Note (x)) st () - - - - - - -
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong (Note (i) BAEIS 554 (s (xiii) 0.18 = = = 0.07 = 0.25
Mr. Chen Hongsheng (Note (xiv)) B4 554 (5 (xiv)) 0.18 = - = = = 0.18
Mr. Yen Yuen Ho, Tony (Note (xv)) BR7eis e (HizE(xy)) 0.18 = = = 0.07 = 0.25
Mr. Shi Dinghuan (Note (xx)) REELE (if3Exx) 0.18 = - = = = 0.18
Total st 1.38 0.98 0.82 - 0.25 = 343
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued)

(c) Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Mr. Zhang Ping was appointed as an executive Director,
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer on 21 February 2020. He resigned as the Chief
Executive Officer on 18 September 2020 but remains
as an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board.

Mr. Lu Zhenwei resigned as the Chairman of the Board
on 21 February 2020 but remains as an executive
Director. He agreed to waive his entitlement to
director’'s fee for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

Mr. Wang Heng resigned as a non-executive Director
on 29 June 2020. He agreed to waive his entitlement
to director’s fee for the period from 1 January 2020 to
29 June 2020. He was then appointed as an executive
Director on 27 January 2022.

Mr. Xu Jianjun resigned as an executive Director on 29
December 2021. He agreed to waive his entitlement
to director’s fee for the period from 1 January 2021 to
29 December 2021 and the year ended 31 December
2020.

Mr. Su Yongjian was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 25 February 2022.

Mr. Zhao Bing was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 29 January 2021. He agreed to waive his
entitlement to director’'s fee for the period from 29
January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Mr. Sui Xiaofeng was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 29 June 2020. He agreed to waive his
entitlement to director’s fee for the year ended
31 December 2021 and the period from 29 June 2020
to 31 December 2020. He resigned as a non-executive
Director on 25 February 2022.

Ms. Xie Yi retired as a non-executive Director on 18
June 2021.

7

wR e M BRI aE

EERFIRAX (&)

(c) EEME @
M5t

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

RERER_E_TF_H_+—
HEZTANTES ESTERE
REBHRITE R _ZE_ZTFA
B+ N\BREEENTEBIEE
HTEEREEZEFE

BEREEER_Z_ZTF_A
Tt HBEEEFEEIFEENE

FHTES - HEEREHE_Z
T ERIEBEIEFE+A=+—
HIEFENEEHRE-
FHEER _BE_FFE, B+
HREERTES HEERHRER

R _Z_ZTF-—RB—BE_ZT_
EFERABTAHLEBRENES
BE - REBR _ZT__F—8
—tEHEZERRITES-

hEEEREN _BE_—%+_A1
“t+ABBRERTEE - HERK
EHRN _ZE"_—F—HB—HE_Z
T F+ "B -+ANBIESEERE
EE_EBF+_A=+—HLE
ENEERE-

BxBEER_E-__F#_A1
“t+HREEEAERTES

HMERER_ZE-_—F—HB_+Ah

BEZTEAFEANTEE -HEEK
EHEHRN_Z"_—F—HB-+AhBH=E
TS+ "HB=+—HLHH

NESHE-

BEER EAE N B 2% XA
T HNHEZEAEENTES K
BRREHE_Z_—+_-8
—t+t—HEFERRZZZZEX
BZ+ABEZS-_S&H5+_-8
=+—HILHRNEERE KR
TE_ A +EHBTEIEHR
TESo

HEZETN _Z_—F<A+/\H
BEFATES-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O B R R B o

7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued)

(c) Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Mr. Chen Dayu was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 29 June 2020 and resigned as a
non-executive Director on 29 January 2021. He agreed
to waive his entitlement to director’s fee for the periods
from 29 June 2020 to 31 December 2020 and from
1 January 2021 to 29 January 2021.

Ms. Jin Xinbin was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 31 December 2020.

Ms. Li Hongwei was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 18 June 2021.

Mr. Zhu Jianbiao was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 18 June 2021.

Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong resigned as an independent
non-executive Director on 18 June 2021.

Mr. Chen Hongsheng resigned as an independent non-
executive Director on 18 June 2021.

Mr. Yen Yuen Ho, Tony retired as an independent
non-executive Director on 18 June 2021.

Mr. Huang Hui was appointed as an executive Director
and the Chief Financial Officer on 21 February 2020. He
resigned as an executive Director on 29 June 2020 but
remains as the Chief Financial Officer.

(xvii) Ms. Zhong Hui resigned as an executive Director and

the Chief Executive Officer on 21 February 2020.

(xviii) Mr. Chen Qinglong resigned as an executive Director on

(xix)

(xx)

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIBER A IR A ]
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 % .

21 February 2020.

Mr. Yu Qiuming retired as a non-executive Director on
2 September 2020.

Mr. Shi Dinghuan resigned as an independent
non-executive Director on 31 December 2020.

AREAF

7

EERFFXZ (&)
(c) EEM=E (&)

MIsE -

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(€=))

BMAFEER_ZE_ZFEXA
“t+NBEZESRFEATES L
RIZ2-—F—HB "+ HEHEF
HOTEE - HREMEAR-ZTZ
TERBZTAHEZZ_ZTHF
+TZB=+—HLEBHBEERR_-Z
—_—&—HA-HBE_E_——H
“TAHLERENESEE-

MWL LITN _ZE_Z2F+_A8
ST HEZERBIUIFNTE
=o

FABZEINR_B_—F<A+N
HEZERBIIFNTES-

REERER T -_—FXATN
HEZERBIIFNTES-

BREREN 2 -—FA+N
HEHEBIIFMTES
BRHEERENR 2 - —FA+N
HEHEBIIFRMTES
BUAERER T -_—FXATN
HEREBIIFRTES-

BEAER _EEE_/A " t+—
HEZEANCTEZTRERYH

B BN -ZEZZEFBEZ+LH
HERTES BNETEEMH
Eo

BELLR B SE-A -
AR ERTEEREEATE

WiREBREEAENR _-_Z_Z2F_A
“+t—HRERTES-

(xix) FROEEENR_Z_FTFNAH
i@EiFiﬂﬁ%%o

xx) AEERENR_ZT_TE+_H

= t+t—HREBEIFRTES



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(8)

(h)

Directors’ Retirement Benefits

Retirement benefits of approximately RMBO.18
million were paid to or receivable by any directors
in respect of their other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company or
its subsidiaries undertaking during the Year (31
December 2020: Nil).

Directors’ Termination Benefits

No payment was made to directors as compensation
for the early termination of the appointment during the
Year (31 December 2020: Nil).

Consideration Provided to Third Parties for Making
Available Directors’ Services

No payment was made to the former employer
of directors for making available the services of
them as a director of the Company during the Year
(31 December 2020: Nil).

Information about Loans, Quasi-Loans and Other
Dealings in Favour of Directors, Controlled Bodies
Corporate by and Connected Entities with Such
Directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the Year
(31 December 2020: Nil).

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’'s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company or an entity connected to a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year (31 December 2020: Nil).

wR e M BRI aE

7 BEERFMAX (&)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(8)

(h)

BEERHKERN

RAEE BEEMERALATRNE
B ABSXENEFEENHMR
KEESHHERZEBARBNOS
ARIEOISEHET (CE_FF+_
B=+—H: &) -

EFMREEN

RAEFE WERDEFFHERRE
AR IEZENBENIR(CEZE
F+ZA=+—HB: 8-

MEMEZRRBRF=FRHNOK
(]

RAEFE UEANEEF/EQE
EERMRFMAZEZNAERE
ENREBECEBF+_A="+—

B8 -

ERUER ZEFEE2REZER
MEERARHAZENR EEMK
HtZXH2Z2E#

REFE BEUNEF RFEFZ
REFERBEEEARTAZE
TCEERREMRE (TEZFE
+ZA=+—H:8-

EENRZ EHAGONEA#ER

ARBBEIELADERTHESE
AREFARENBERERNERE
BEAEAREmD  NERINEREM
RENAFENARERTEBHN
BEARG ZHREN (CEZEFE
+ZA=+—H: 8-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

8 OTHER EXPENSES 8 HfhziH
2021 2020
g% TECEE
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEEETT AREBHBET
Auditor’'s remuneration — audit services 1Z BT B — B IZIRTS 5 7
Poverty alleviation and charitable HKERAESIHE
donation 14 6
Foreign exchange difference PEREER 2 (4)
Water and electricity KEE 17 13
Insurance {RBas 5 5
Expense related to short-term leases  EASSHATHE AR EX 6 5
Business trip expenses EBERE 13 4
Others Hih 40 13
102 49
9 FAIR VALUE LOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AT 9 BAAEtARERZZEHEEZ
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS NREERE
2021 2020
B T EHE
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETT AREBETT
Unlisted investments FELEHEE 3 =
10 FAIR VALUE LOSSES ON FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 10 EAfEAREEZSZESHEEZ
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS NRERE
2021 2020
—E-—F TECEF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEET ARBEE T
Convertible bonds AR (&S 40 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Er e A A T
11 FINANCE INCOME 11 FREBEUA
2021 2020
—EZ—F B EF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETRT ARBEET
Interest income on bank balances and  fR1745 8 K72 0 A B UK A
deposits 20 32
Amortisation of imputed interest income BIRIFEFEEEF B A
on pledged deposits iy 38 48
Interest income upon redemption of EOMBELEENHN B WA
senior notes 1 _
129 80
12 FINANCE COSTS 12 REM A
2021 2020
—E-—f —E_T
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETRT ARBEET
In relation to bank and other borrowings A BIIR1T & ELfthf&=x
Interest expenses M ERRX 978 961
Loan facilities fees EXRREER 125 143
1,103 1,104
In relation to lease liabilities BRAEEARE
Interest expenses MEHEEZ 7 6
Total finance costs BB AL 1,110 1,110
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group’s operations in the PRC are subject to the
PRC Corporate Income Tax. The statutory PRC Corporate
Income Tax rate is 25%. Certain subsidiaries of renewable
energy projects are entitled to preferential tax concession.
Income tax on profits assessable outside the PRC has been
provided at rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The income tax charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represented:

13 FieRAX
FEBRPEZEBRAGANPEESR
FRigMe FEIEEMBRINEERES
25%° FIBEREREENETHWBATE
EEBRERR PEIEINERREF
PSR BB A RBRBITIRE
SR B -

SPAGGRERZAEMRASE

2021 2020
T T T
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEET ARBEET

Current income tax BRHBPR 1SR
Current year KEFE (117) (73)
Over-provision in prior years BIEFEEBEREEE 3 2
Deferred income tax (Note 28) IEIEFT1SHR (M95E28) 13 (11)
(101) (82)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:-T (&) Ej‘ i’% %ﬁiélﬁj‘

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the PRC

13 FRiSMmAx= (&)
7< £ [ PR P19 TR A1 A 2 R T B2 7 4R A
REREFMESRREATEH BRY

corporate income tax rate as follows: B EZREAT ©
2021 2020
T —ETHE
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBETT ARBBET
Profit before income tax BRPRSHR Al a4 751 344
Less: Share of profits of investments & : FEIEEREREARZ
accounted for using equity method Esca—piapill (16) (21)
735 323
Tax charge, calculated B E25% T EIRIE
at the rate of 25% (2020: 25%) XS (TE2EZZF [ 25%) (184) (81)
Effect of different tax rates of REMBZEEL S 2
subsidiaries operating in other WBARZ R REIMREZ
jurisdictions wE (17) (18)
Tax effect of PRC tax concession FERIBERRE 2R E 126 114
Tax effect of expenses not deductible RIS 2 M E
for tax purposes (57) (60)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax HBERMWA Z NI E 74 9
Tax effect of temporary differences not RIERERFEZREZ NBLE
recognised (Note) (FF %) 17) =
Tax effect of tax loss for which no Al R SRR IE PR 1S 1R
deferred income tax amount was SREZNIBEEEZ
recognised METE (52) (44)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax )& 1E 1 R FED
losses RIER R 10 7
Reversal of previously recognised BOISRER 2 BRERR
temporary difference 13 (12)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBREEE 3 2
Income tax expense FrisiRMx (101) (82)
Note: Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of Mok o MR Th I BB R E A FEUEIE R R E

temporary differences which were mainly attributable to the
impairment charge on other receivables of approximately

RMB65 million.

X HH AR IE65E & oAy By &= 2R
RIELERIAE E ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

14 DIVIDEND

No dividend has been paid or declared
during the Year (31 December 2020: Nil).

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE

14 RE
by the Company RAEE > KRBT ERKNREIRRKE
TETEFE+"H=+—H &) o

15 SiREF

(a) Basic (a) ExX
Basic earnings per share was calculated by dividing BREABAEBARAGDERFTAE A
profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company EhaFBRUBEE T - —F K _
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in ZTEF+A=+—HIEFEEB
issue during the year ended 31 December 2021 and BITEBRZMEFEOHAR-
2020.
2021 2020
—EZ—F —ETEF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEET ARBBEET
Profit bl
Profit attributable to the equity KABIERTFTEA
holders of the Company FEME &= F] 564 241
Weighted average number of BRTEERZ
ordinary shares in issue INHEF 9L
(million shares) (BER) 22,428 21,487
RMB cents RMB cents
ARESD AR
Basic and diluted earnings per EREFRREBERTN
share 2.51 1.12
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share was calculated based on
profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
and by adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion/
exercise of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. For
the Year, the Group had two (31 December 2020:
one) categories of potential ordinary shares including
convertible bonds and share options (31 December
2020: share options).

Convertible bonds were not assumed to be converted
because the conversion price of the convertible bonds
was higher than the average market price of shares
for the period from the date of issue to 31 December
2021.

For the share options, a calculation has been done
to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market share price of the Company’s shares)
based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding share options. The
computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s share options
because the exercise price of those share options was
higher than the average market price of shares for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

wR e M BRI aE

15 SRREF (@)
(b) 5

ERBEFRMN B ATDEDFA
AEMEEF > WIRRREH]R T
e AREXENEESBRMSA
BETHENSBERZMEFHHE
B-RAFEE AEREAME (T
ETEE+"A=+—H:—8AE
TEEKR BEARRESMERE
TECEES+_A=+—H'B
) o

HRITBRRESHNERESRET
HEZZZ-—F+"H=+—HH
B M FHEHEE SBREATBRR
BEEFETER-

MEREMS  ~2BREBERTHE
BREBHNRBENEEKEEE
THE BEUARAE BEAEA
BRMDZzFHEETHERE) WEZ
BHh#HE BE_E_—FR_FT
—EE+_RB=1+—HLEE &
EERBERITERKRARNTZ
EREETE FREZEERE
ZIOEBEBERRHZ M E.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 Y% -MEKRRE

Power Furniture,
generating fixtures
Leasehold  modules and Plant and and office Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements equipment machinery equipment vehicles in-progress Total
BERA il RER
BF HEMRRE k& BEREER HAERE RE TEIR it
RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million
AREEER AREEER ARKEER AREEER ARKEER ARKEER AREEER AR¥EESR
At 1 January 2020 RZB-2%5-H—-H
Cost %S 47 13 16,165 78 43 13 1,044 17,403
Accumulated depreciation Rithe (16) 8) (2,111) (20) (34) (10) - (2,199)
Accumulated impairment REbAfE - - (797) - - - (161) (958)
Net book amount REFE 31 5 13,257 58 9 3 883 14,246
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-EE
+ZRA=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 31 5 13,257 58 9 3 883 14,246
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32)  EEIBAF (H5£32) = = 317 = = = = 317
Additions HE - 1 79 = 6 1 27 114
Disposals HE - - - - ) - = V)
Depreciation charge TEEHR 2 ) (555) (11) (4) ) - (575)
Impairment charge RESH - - 3) = = = = 3)
Transfer 3 - - 711 1 - = (712) =
Closing net hook amount FRIEEEE 29 4 13,806 48 9 3 198 14,097
At 31 December 2020 RZEZ%E
+ZB=+-8
Cost A& 47 12 17,288 79 45 14 359 17,844
Accumulated depreciation Rithe (18) 8) (2,682) (31) (36) (12) - (2,786)
Accumulated impairment REtAE - - (800) - - - (161) (961)
Net book amount RE#fE 29 4 13,806 48 9 3 198 14,097
Year ended 31 December 2021 HECZ--E
+ZR=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FNRmEE 29 4 13,806 48 9 3 198 14,097
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32)  EEIBAF (H5£32) i - 6,608 326 3 2 5,250 12,260
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 19(c))  HERBAT (i519(c)) - - (169) - - - - (169)
Additions HE - 2 - 17 6 2 740 767
Depreciation charge TEER (3) (2) (735) (19) (4) 2) - (765)
Impairment charge RESH - - - - - - (7 M
Transfer 3 - - 1,224 2 - - (1,226) -
Exchange difference ERES - - - - - - (11) (11)
Closing net hook amount FREEPE 97 4 20,734 374 14 5 4,944 26,172
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ-%
+ZR=+-H
Cost 7% 122 14 25,729 503 56 19 5,112 31,555
Accumulated depreciation [EHTE (25) (10) (4,195) (129) (42) (14) - (4,415)
Accumulated impairment ZERE - - (800) - - - (168) (968)
Net book amount REFE 97 4 20,734 374 14 5 4,944 26,172
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
Note:

As at 31 December 2021, power generating modules
and equipment with carrying values of approximately
RMB6,740 million (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB7,822 million) were pledged as security for the Group’s
bank borrowings of approximately RMB4,496 million
(31 December 2020: approximately RMB4,860 million),
RMB6,611 million (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB3,224 million) were pledged as security for the
Group’s loans from financial institutions of approximately
RMB4,689 million (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB3,117 million) and RMB23 million (31 December
2020: Nil) were pledged as security for the Group’s other
loans of approximately RMB27 million (Note 27(a)).

As at 31 December 2021, construction-in-progress
with carrying values of approximately RMB73 million
(31 December 2020: Nil) and RMB1,960 million were
pledged respectively as security for the Group's bank
borrowings of approximately RMB61 million (31 December
2020: Nil) and loans from financial institutions of
approximately RMB1,406 million (31 December 2020: Nil)
(Note 27(a)).

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 97 solar power
plants and 7 wind power plants (31 December 2020: 55
solar power plants) with an aggregated installed capacity
of approximately 4,168.02MW (31 December 2020:
approximately 2,070.40MW). During the Year, there was no
substantial change in the operating conditions for most of
the Group's power plants and there was no indication for
further impairment as compared to 2020. Therefore, no
further impairment test was required for the Year.

wR e M BRI aE

16 % -BER=&E (&)

MYEE

A+ "HBA=+—H FKEE
HWARKG,74088T (CTE_ZTFE+Z
BH=— El:é’g/\ﬁﬁé%?,szzﬁﬁﬁ)m
BEBEARRERBESERIRITMER
ﬁ’])\%ﬂ%4496§%7{:(_7_7¢+_
B=+—H 85 AE#4,8608587T)
EiR>MARKE 61IEE T (T2
FH+"H=+—H S AREM3,2248 8
o) WEEAEERESREEZER
WARMEL4,6890F 8T (CE_TF+Z
B=+—H A AR¥3,117887T) B9
B UK ARK2IEET (CE 5
+-_RBA=+— E.m)%&)ﬂﬂ?x%lﬁ
E A AREE27H B T I (s
27(a)) ©

N B —F+_"_HA=+—H KkEE
DAY AREISEET(CE_EF+—
B=+—H: 8 KARE¥K1,9608 8T
NERTIERABERERETEROA
Ee1lEE T CE_EF+_-_A=+—
H:E) REETRILEZEFNARE
1,40688 T (Z“TE_F+_A=+—
H : &) W (fF5E27(a)) °

ME-BERKBEUREBEEENRS
HraiE R e R AR E E R B B U (el
By (ERL BRI &L

AZS_—F+B=+—0 A%E
PEHOTIEA R A 5 Bk R 7B AL B Bk
(C2-FE+-HA=+—8 : 55K
PRAEEE B k) » MM A E544,168.02
KR (ZCE=FE+=—H=+—8 &
2,070.403F) R AFE  AEEHA
204 B 15 AL ROR B — B T4
b 3R 8 A B ARG - I — 5 A
2 Bt AEERBE— S BRAER
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Management performed impairment assessment on
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
with impairment indicator as at 31 December 2020 and
reflected the latest market conditions and other relevant
parameters in the assessment. Each power plant is
identified as a cash generating unit. The estimated
recoverable amounts of power plants are determined
based on value in use calculations using discounted cash
flow approach (“DCF”). The calculation uses cash flow
projections covering the useful lives of those property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets in relation to the
relevant power plants. The Group has engaged an external
independent valuer to assess the recoverable amount of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

The key assumptions used for the cash flow projections are
as follows:

16 ME - -BER=HE (&)

EEER _T_ZE+__B=+—
BB REREZHYE BE KRR
EURERESEETRENDS
A6 FA A o0 e PR R 3 T O R E A AR
2% REESLHHARE
EXBA BBHNMGTIKES
BILERITRIREERE2% (TFTIRIB
EMEBL) BIEBEEABEFTEME
EoZsTEHFEAEMEEHNYE-
T 55 R 5% 8 LA e {56 R HE 5 /2 ] 12 A
FHEMNRERERA - AEBEE
BE — 2 N ER 8 3L (i (B B LS
¥ BERKBEULRERAEEEY
AU EE&E

RenERAMERZEEZ/RU
Lk

At 31 December 2020
ATB-ZEL TR

Er=[
Capacity RE 345MW
345)KE

Utilisation/insolation hours /A, BEREE ()
(Note)

Degradation factor RICAE
FIT (Note) EREE ()
Discount rate FIRE

Operating expenses per watt SR EER (i)
(Note)

Note: The above utilisation/insolation hours and operating
expenses are specific to each individual power plant
depending on its geographical location. The FIT of each
power plant is based on respective actual unit tariff and
the approved government subsidy per kWh.
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906 to 1,892MWh/MWp

906%1,892
KEBRJKER
0.5% per annum

F0.5%

RMBO.6 to
RMB1.0/kWh
AR0.60E
AR®1L.07t,/ TR
8.5%

RMBO0.01 to RMBO0.37

AR#0.015E
AR #0.377T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

As a result of the impairment assessment, the Group
recognised an impairment charge on property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB3 million as at 31
December 2020.

The table below illustrates the sensitivity of significant
inputs to the cash flow projections above when they are
changed to reasonable possible alternate inputs:

16

wR e M BRI aE

ME B ER=E (&)

REREFGEER  AEER_T-F
F+R=+—HERXDE -BEAR
BZREXHANARBIEE T

TRAHEEANBDARBERDTEN
BREERBARER  HY RS R
ERANERE

Unfavourable
change in profit or

Range of inputs loss

WA SRR RHIEHEE

2020

—EoEE

RMB’million

ARBBEETT
Insolation hours H R & -5% (92)
FIT LHEEB -5% (123)
Discount rate HrIR=E +0.5% (64)

During the Year, an impairment charge on property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB7 million (mainly
construction-in-progress) was recognised for abandoned
projects.

LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group
is a lessee.

The Group's right-of-use assets and lease liabilities mainly
arise from lease of various land use rights for power plant
projects, office premises and staff quarters with typically
lease terms of 2 to 27 years as at 31 December 2021
(31 December 2020: 7 to 27 years). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants.

17

REFE BMERESERIME -KE
RzH (EERTEIR 2REXHY
ARBTEET

HE
A AEEAREA S HERMEE
Ko

RS- —F+-B=+—H &c&H
NERAREERMEABETEREEE
BE BMAEYMEKRETIES B LM
FRENEE HEEH—KRA2E27TE

—_ECEFE+"/A=+—H:7&827
F) cFHEKRRIZENREEEm -HE
5% AR IN{E Al 2248 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fr o B e RE
17 LEASES (Continued) 17 A5 (@)
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the RERBERAIREIIUTERBAENE
following amounts relating to leases: L
2021 2020
kSl S “ERITE
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEET ARBBEET
Right-of-use assets FERESE
Land use rights T A 1,071 293
Buildings BF 12 32
1,083 325
Lease liabilities HEaR
Non-current JETRE 563 123
Current TRED 38 10
601 133
Information in respect of the remaining contractual B EEHEESGHR TENARZE
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities are set out in ELER AR & M SRR MIEE3.1(c) °

Note 3.1(c) to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fr o B A b RE
17 LEASES (Continued) 17 fAE (&)
The movements of right-of-use assets are analysed as FTREEENESDMUWT -
follows:
2021 2020
B % —BIEF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEET ARBBET
At 1 January ®—HB—H 325 307
Additions NE 114 61
Depreciation charge TEER (33) (29)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) W B KT BB A B (MI5E32) 691 10
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 19(c)) HENRBERR (Fi5E19(c)) (13) =
Termination of leases ®IFEE (1) (24)
At 31 December ®W+=ZB=+—H 1,083 325
At 31 December ®W+=ZB=+—H
Cost A4S 1,240 386
Accumulated depreciation REtiTE (139) (43)
Accumulated impairment KR E (18) (18)
Net book amount IRERE 1,083 325
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

17 LEASES (Continued) 17

The movements of lease liabilities are analysed as follows:

HE (&)
BEAENEHIAMT

2021 2020

—EZ—-F 2

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEET AREBBET

At 1 January n®—HA—H 133 121
Additions =1 33 31
Interest expenses M EREX 7 6
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) We BBk B A Bl (fisE32) 456 4
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 19(c)) HEKE AR (FsE19(c)) (11) -
Termination of leases ®IFEE (1) (23)
Lease payments HEN (16) (6)
At 31 December ®+=ZA=+—H 601 133

During the Year, the total cash outflow for leases, including
the payments made in relation to lease liabilities of
approximately RMB22 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB11 million), which included expenses
relating to lease payments and short-term lease payments
of approximately RMB16 million and RMB6 million (31
December 2020: approximately RMB6 million and RMB5
million), respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fr o B A b RE
18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 BB E
2021 2020
ZECT—f —BCERF
Development Development
Goodwill Rights Total Rights
[k L #mst R

RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million  RMB'million
AEBEET ARWEER ARKEERT ARBAEET

At 1 January ®—B—H

Cost A - 1,700 1,700 1,700
Accumulated impairment REtRfE - (831) (831) (831)
Net book amount RERE - 869 869 869
Year ended 31 December REE+-A=1+—HILEE

Opening net book amount FURAZE - 869 869 869
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEIN B AR (EE32)

(Note 32) 103 - 103 -
Closing net hook amount FRIREFE 103 869 972 869
At 31 December ®+ZB=+—H
Cost A 103 1,700 1,803 1,700
Accumulated impairment RERE - (831) (831) (831)
Net book amount RERE 103 869 972 869
During the Year, goodwill resulted from the acquisitions RAFE > BERBUERE K E
of subsidiaries in the PRC. The carrying amount of NE-HEZEEEBESEKEEAERR S
goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units BREMRSELBMA - REELEEMNZ
of wind power plants. The recoverable amount for the W EERE IR HEFMAFEEE T
cash generating unit was determined based on value-in- Bz FREESEMERT  WiZ XA
use calculations covering a detailed five-year budget plan HIEREXEHBRRERAE - EEEXR
followed by an extrapolation of expected cash flows at the MIBSTELBMNERGHNRBFEHER
growth rates stated below. The growth rates reflect the X ARG EGCREENTERREE
long-term average growth rates for the product lines of the 0%BIIE R ZEH6.7%ZE9.0%HIITIRZ o )¥
cash generating unit. The key assumptions used for value KEE AEREEERESREEL
in use calculations includes growth rate of 0% and discount B U 0 R (B ©
rate of 6.7%9.0%. During the Year, Management of the
Group determined that no impairment on the respective
cash generating units.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18 B EE (4B)
The Group recognised development rights in relation EER_E—tFWERB AR A&
to hydropower projects with an expected capacity of EURFREAREAEIIEZNERESE
approximately 5.2GW in Tibet and Sichuan Province, the #5205 R /KAE S BIEE U KR60IKEH
PRC, and 60MW solar power projects in Tibet through KIGREZEIEE NS

acquisition of subsidiaries in 2017.

In December 2020, the People's Government of the Tibet A _ETEF+ A oAEBBREAR
Autonomous Region ("Tibet Government") published B (TAERA) 2MAREEEAR
the "Notice of the People's Government of the Tibet BN BEESREIDHEESENBH)
Autonomous Region on Appropriately Lowering Partial (T E2[2020]125% 1) o R UL E > &
Electricity Prices" (B EAE ARBUFRENEERE EEKNEBERH LPEEHIFTARE
o EHEBEMNBE ) ("Zangzhengfa 2020 No. 12"). As 0.3417w/ FTREF ZBKRB _ZT_—&
affected by policy, the on-grid electricity price of the Group's —A—HiE#iTe

hydropower projects remained at RMBO0.341/kWh. This
policy is implemented with effect from 1 January 2021.

Management performed impairment assessment to EEBEETREN G LEEHEE
determine the recoverable amount of the development EEMEENWEIEE -IEmES > &
rights based on value in use. In this connection, EBECMKELZEEEREIRERERE
Management prepared cash flow forecasts for the B WRERUTRHEE (BFEEARRER) :
hydropower projects, taking into account of factors, PR BAREZ BT S S5 %R
including but not limited to, the above revision of EIrPEEENTEEATESTEE A B
government policies, probability as well as the estimated ZEREEREERRKELIEE M BE
extent of the revision of FITs after year 2020, probability MNBREAUNREZEFTE - ANEEEZR
to utilise these development rights to develop the -2 B EMUE ERE SR
relevant hydropower plant projects, construction costs AW EEEE  RIEHEN AR WER
and development plans. The Group engaged an external AEERIEEERESZE (CE2E_24
independent valuer to assess the recoverable amount +—HA=+—H:8&) -

of development rights. As a result of the impairment
assessment, no impairment charge on development rights
was recognised for the Year (31 December 2020: Nil).

238 BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIBER A IR A ]
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —% ——4E4EH]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wR e M BRI aE

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18 | EE (4B)
The key assumptions used for the cash flow projections of KeeEEIEHRENRERAFRERZE

hydropower projects are as follows: Z21R

®RWME

At 31 December

®W+=ZB=+—H

2021 2020

—E-—F —EIETF
Capacity 3,794MW 3,494MW
B5E 3,794 K 3,494k’
Utilisation hours 4,223 to 4,700MWh/MWp 4,210 to 4,700MWh/MWp
F AR 4,223F 4,700k FLFJKIE 4,210F 4,700k LB/ JKIE R
Electricity price — Tibet RMBO0.35/kWh in 2022; RMBO0.35/kWh in 2021; RMBO0.36

RMBO0.36 to RMBO0.57/kWh in
2023 to 2040 with growth rate
of 2.7% per year thereafter till
the end of the useful life (Note)

EE-AR RIEZZHFAR¥0.357T F
R, R_E_=ZEEZ_FENE
FAR0.36 TEARM0.577T
/S TEREREREEEERFERE
HERSFIERE2.7% (MizE)

Discount rate 10.5%

R =

Construction costs per watt RMB13.5

SREERMAE AR #13.55T

Operating expenses per watt RMBO0.18 with annual growth rate
of 2%

SREEMRX AR#0.18TT R FIE REK2%

Note: On 30 June 2019, Tibet Government published the Tibet MI5E -

Notice 2 to reduce the electricity price of the FIT of
hydropower in Tibet of the Group from RMBO0.35/kWh to
RMBO0.341/kWh. According to the Tibet Notice 2, such
policy is on temporary trial since 1 July 2019 until further
notice.

In December 2020, Tibet Government published
Zangzhengfa 2020 No. 12 that the electricity price of
the FIT of hydropower in Tibet of the Group remained at
RMBO0.341/kWh. This policy is implemented with effect
from 1 January 2021.

to RMB0.60/kWh in 2022 to
2040 with growth rate of 1% per
year thereafter till the end of the
useful life (Note)

A —F AR#0.357T,F
ER, R _FF_FTNE
FANER0.3670E AR #0.607T
S TREREEEEAFERE
HERESFERE1% (i)
10.5%

RMB13.5

AK#13.570

RMBO0.19 with annual growth rate
of 2%

AR #0.1970 & F 1 R ZE2%

RIZE—hhEAB=+H> BEBHF
B TEE2SEA > A E B AR A K
HEEBER LPEERARK0.357T
S TRETHREARKO0.3417T,/ TR
o RIBEAFFEN  ZHEKE_Z
—hWEtB—HBRERT BEERTE
Ao

AZE_EBE+ZF R BN
H 3 [2020]1258 @A » NE B R AR
BKkDEEEEH LPEEEHEFTARKE
0.3417t,/ TRE ZBHEBE_ZT_-—
F—HB—HiEHnTe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fr o B e RE

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18 B EE (4B)
The table below illustrates the sensitivity of the significant TRAFAEZEMARBRERHMSIE
inputs when they are changed to reasonable possible AT A SRR 2 BURE ¢

alternative inputs:

Range of inputs Unfavourable change in profit or loss

WABEEE HBm A EF)

2021 2020

—E—F “EIERF

RMB’million RMB’million

Development Rights B 1 ARBEETT ARBEBET
Utilisation/insolation hours I A5 & B AR BT 8K ~5% (1,377) (949)

FIT LRAEE -5% (1,377) (949)
Discount rate EIETES +0.5% (1,571) (950)
Construction costs per watt & 5 2% 572 +5% (1,165) (928)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 SUBSIDIARIES 19

The Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021
are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares that are
held directly by the Group, and the proportion of ownership
interests held equals the voting rights held by the Group.
The country of incorporation or registration is also their
principal place of business.

(a) Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries

wR e M BRI aE

(g /NC]
AEER-_ZE-_—F+ZB=+—H2
TEWBABHINMT FREARAN
REFEEZRAEQAELERERETA
zE&Bk HAMAEERLEAMBER
AERFAZRER - EMAMIZAIE
RN mHEETEEEMEL-

(a) EEMBABTZF1E

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Particulars of issued share Ownership interest held by the
Name of entity operations capital/registered capital Group Principal activities
R/ i/
ERAE BRME BRTRE/ERES FEEMBREEEANL IEEH
2021 2020
8§ CZTCEZf
Anhui Zhaolian Clean Energy Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and paid up 100% 100% Operation and management of a
RMB200,000,000 solar power plant
ZHARBRERERAT alE] HRRESR EEREEAGREEN
AE%200,000,0007
Beijing Energy International Investment Hong Kong Issued and fully paid HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited (Formerly known as New Light
Technology Limited)
FREREREERRAT &8 BETREAR 10,0007 REER
(3 7@New Light Technology Limited)
Beijing United Rongbang New Energy The PRC Registered RMB880,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding and operation
Technology Co., Ltd. Paid up RMB135,385,000 and management of a solar
power plant
FRBAREHE R ARAT alE] s A FE #880,000,0007T RERRUREEREEAGE
B#E AR %135,385,0007 REI
Changji Yijing Photovoltaics Technology The PRC Registered RMB200,000,000 100% N/A  Operation and management of a
Co., Ltd. Paid up RMB191,000,000 solar power plant
EERENABNEERAT alE] & A FE 200,000,007 TER EEREEAGAZSL
42 AR %191,000,0007
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19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

19 MIEAT (&)
(a) EEMBAFZHE @

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Particulars of issued share Ownership interest held by the
Name of entity operations capital/registered capital Group Principal activities
R/ &M/
BRafE EEY BRTRE/FRES FEEFMERARAENE TEEH
2021 2020
ZE-F C2°Zf
China Solar Power Group Limited British Virgin Issued and fully paid 100% 100% Investment holding
Islands ("BVI")  US$5,750,000
HEXGEENERERAT BEMARHEE BETREHER REER
(H@&RR  5750,000%7
B#B)

China Technology New Energy Limited BVI Issued and fully paid US$1 100% 100% Possession of exclusive rights
in developing roof-top solar
power plants

REREHERERAR HRMEARHEE BETREHRIER REEREEAGAREEZ S
Filg

Datong United Photovoltaics New Energy ~ The PRC Registered and paid up 100% 100% Operation and management of a

Co., Ltd. RMB200,000,000 solar power plant

AEBERRFERERAE HE HRRESR BEREEAGREEL

AR #200,000,0007
Guangzong County Guorui Energy The PRC Registered RMB2,000,000 100% N/A  Operation and management of a
Co., Ltd. Paid up RMBO solar power plant
BErEERERERAT alE] A E#2,000,0007T TER EEREEAGAEEH
EfEARERT
Guigangshi Green Ark New Energy The PRC Registered and paid up 100% 100% Operation and management of a
Co., Ltd. RMB10,000,000 solar power plant
EEMABARNTERERAR alE] HRREAE EEREEAGREEN
AE#10,000,0007
Guodian Kezuozhongai The PRC Registered and paid up 99.40% 99.40% Operation and management of a
Photovoltaics Co., Ltd. RMB169,700,000 solar power plant
EENEHRELREEERAR alE] ARREAR EERERAGEEE
AE%169,700,0007
Hainanzhou Yahui New Energy Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and paid up 100% 100% Operation and management of a
RMB351,000,000 solar power plant
BENEENERENERAR ol HRREAR EERERAGEEE
AR #351,000,0007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

19 MfiBAE

(&)

wR e M BRI aE

(a) FEMBARZFHE (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Particulars of issued share Ownership interest held by the
Name of entity operations capital/registered capital Group Principal activities
R/ i/
BERAHE EEY BRiTRE/HRES FEEFMERARENE TEEH
2021 2020
ZBT-F IZI%F
Hubei Jingtai Photovoltaics The PRC Registered and paid up 100% 100% Operation and management of a
Power Co., Ltd. RMB250,000,000 solar power plant
HEERXRENBRAT HE HRRESR BEREEAGEEEL
AR 1250,000,0007
Inner Mongolia Guorun (Chayougiangi) The PRC Registered and paid up 100% 100% Operation and management of a
Electricity Co., Ltd. RMB194,000,000 solar power plant
NELER AR EBERAT HE HRRESR EEREEAGRESE
AE 194,000,000
Inner Mongolia Jingneng New Energy The PRC Registered and paid up 100% 100% Investment holding
Technology Co., Ltd. (Formerly known RMB1,000,000,000
as Inner Mongolia Xingbang United
Photovoltaics New Energy Co., Ltd.)
NE L RENERR AR HE HRRESR REAR
(FIBAR G EDE AR AE%1,000,000,0007
MAERERAR)
Longyao County Guochang New Energy The PRC Registered RMB2,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Technology Co., Ltd. Paid up RMBO
BEMESHERRKERAT HE i A %2,000,0007T REAR
BHEAREOL
Mulei Tongchuan Fengguang New Energy ~ The PRC Registered and paid up 100% N/A  Operation and management of a
Co., Ltd. RMB50,000,000 wind power plant
AERBE) B HERERAD HE HRRESR TER 2EREERNEEL
AE50,000,0007
Nangong Guolong New Energy Technology ~ The PRC Registered RMB2,000,000 100% N/A  Operation and management of a
Co., Ltd. Paid up RMBO solar power plant
mEmEENERNRERAR alE] AR #2,000,0007T TER EEREEAGAREH
BRAEARROT
Nangong Guoshun New Energy Technology  The PRC Registered RMB2,000,000 100% N/A  Operation and management of a
Co., Ltd. Paid up RMBO solar power plant
RBEmEENERRRERAR HE sH AR %2,000,0007 TER EEREBRAGEESH
BEHRAREOT

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JuatfETREREEA A PR 2 6]
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 — % —4E4E#;

243



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fr ey A B R B AR
19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19 HiEAT (&)
(a) Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries (Continued) (a) FEMBLATZFE (@)
Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Particulars of issued share Ownership interest held by the
Name of entity operations capital/registered capital Group Principal activities
R/ &M/
BRafE EEY BRIKE/HRES FEEFMERARAENE TEEH
2021 2020
ZBT-F IZI%F
Nanjing Silk Road New Energy The PRC Registered MB659,610,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Co., Ltd. Paid up RMB514,037,600
ARMEZ B RBRAR HE &\ K 1659,610,00070 REER
E&E AR 514,037,6007
Ningxia Zhongzi Photovoltaics The PRC Registered and paid up 100% 100% Operation and management of a
Co., Ltd. RMB340,000,000 solar power plant
EEREABEAREEERAT alE] HRRESR EEREEAGRESH
AE 340,000,000
Tibet Zangneng Corporation The PRC Registered and paid up 75% 75% Possession of development
RMB400,000,000 rights for hydropower and
solar power projects
AEEERABRAR alE] SREERE BEKEEERARRES 2H
AE#400,000,0007 B
Tibet Zhongzi New Energy The PRC Registered and paid up 100% 100% Investment holding
Technology Co., Ltd. RMB340,000,000
BEREMERRIERAT alE] HRREAE RERR
A E340,000,0007C
United Photovoltaics (Changzhou) The PRC Registered RMB8,091,741,200 70.57% 100% Investment holding
Investment Group Co., Ltd. Paid up RMB7,701,435,500
WaXxik BN REEBERAT HE AR 8,091,741,2007T REZR
BARART,701,435,5007
United Photovoltaics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Registered HK$1,000,000,000 100% 100% Design and installation of solar
Paid up HK$499,988,588 power systems, research and
development of solar power
products and solar technology
BAAK (R BRAR alE] s ##1,000,000,0007 FEARZEXGRRR HEX
B#R%1£499,988,5887 e NG
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ey A B R B
19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19 MiBATE (&)
(a) Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries (Continued) (a) FEMBLATIZFE (@)
Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Particulars of issued share Ownership interest held by the
Name of entity operations capital/registered capital Group Principal activities
R/ i/
BRaHE EEY BRIKE/HRES FEEFMERARENE TEEH
2021 2020
—EZ-F C"ZZE
Yulin City Jiangshan Yongchen New Energy  The PRC Registered and paid up 100% N/A  Operation and management of a
Limited RMBZ,200,000,000 solar power plant
BT RIAERERAF HE HRREARE TER SERERAGEEEN
AR #41,200,000,0007
Zhongli Talesun (Jiayuguan) Photovoltaic The PRC Registered and paid up 100% 100% Operation and management of a
Power Co., Ltd. RMB500,000,000 solar power plant
HFIRE (RIBRH) AREEERAF HE HRREAR EEREEAREEEE
AE 500,000,000t
Zhongli Talesun Gonghe New Engergy The PRC Registered and paid up 100% 100% Operation and management of
Co., Ltd. RMB342,000,000 solar power plants
R EEARNERERAR HE ARREAR EEREEAREEEE
A 342,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O B R R B o

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Unless otherwise stated, the principal place of
operation of each company is the same as its place of
incorporation/establishment.

(ii)  The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the
best effort by Management to translate their Chinese
names, as these subsidiaries do not have official
English names.

(iii) The cash at bank and other financial institutions of
approximately RMB5,284 million (31 December 2020:
RMB2,925 million) held by the PRC subsidiaries
were subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provided for
restrictions on exporting capital from the country other
than through normal dividends.

(iv) All the above PRC-incorporated subsidiaries are limited
liability companies.

(v) The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Board, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Board,
result in particulars excessive length.

Material Non-Wholly Owned Subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2021, the total non-controlling
interests was approximately RMB3,191 million (31
December 2020: approximately RMB338 million).
As at 31 December 2021, the Group re-assessed
those subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests
that are considered material to the Group based on
their relative size in terms of installed capacity, total
assets, revenue and EBITDA.

On 7 May 2021, a capital increase agreement was
entered into by two indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company and UP Changzhou (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company as at the date of
entering into the capital increase agreement) with a
company wholly owned by a financial institution. The
transaction constituted a deemed disposal of 29.43%
equity interest in UP Changzhou without losing its
control for a consideration of RMB3,000 million.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 25 February 2021, 9 March
2021, 7 May 2021 and 18 June 2021, and the

circular dated 2 June 2021.

19 MiEAE (%)

(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19 B AT (&)

(b) Material Non-Wholly Owned Subsidiaries (Continued)

Set out below are the summarised financial
information for (i) UP Changzhou and its subsidiaries
and (ii) Tibet Zangneng and its subsidiaries which have

(b) EEFZERBAE (B
XN EREERIFERED Z()
B S Se R E M R E M B AT B (i)
e fel BE e LI /B 2 B) 2 M B B R

material non-controlling interests. Fo
2021 2020
ZE--&§ “ETEE
UP Tibet Tibet
Changzhou Zangneng Zangneng
and its and its and its
subsidiaries subsidiaries subsidiaries
BENKRENM AEEER  EEEER
REMBAR HBAT HiIBAR
RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
AREGERT AREEER AREEER
Assets and liabilities as at BK+-ZB=+—-Hz
31 December BERER
Current assets mBEE 11,921 268 295
Non-current assets FERBEE 10,511 1,459 1,506
Current liabilities mBEE (3,179) (702) (602)
Non-current liabilities FREaE (9,343) (210) (389)
Carrying amount of non-controlling FERER 2 REE
interests (2,993) (135) (147)
Profit or loss for the year ended 31 B5E+-A=1t—-H
December HFEEZER
Revenue WA 1,708 45 37
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive wA/ (B8 &
income/(loss) 2ENE/ (BB 85 414 6 (5)
Profit/(loss) allocated to non- DEEEFFERER Y
controlling interests ikl (B518) 98 (12) 1
Dividend paid to non-controlling PFEERER L TRE
interests 85 - =
Cash flows for the year ended BE+-A=1t—-H
31 December HEEZRERE
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from mETHRSE () /
operating activities AR (1,259) (2) 65
Net cash outflow from investing KREZHRSTHFE
activities (1,033) (6) (12)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BREIBRESRN
financing activities () S %8 3,421 (99) 53
1,129 (107) 106

The information above was the amount before inter-

company eliminations.

U EEMBABEMBEARIEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fr o B e RE
19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19 MEAE (4&)
(c) Disposal of Subsidiaries (c) HEMBAR
During the Year, the Group disposed certain of its non- RAEFE AEBHEEETIES
wholly owned subsidiaries to their respective non- ENBAR FTZELADZENIEE
controlling shareholders, the effect on the financial RERE HUYBRRATE ZEHE
position, the total consideration received and loss on FEN AR EBARRE R ESIEBUIT ¢

such disposals:

2021 2020
—E-—f —E-E
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETT AREBBAET
Consideration 1B
Cash (Note) R (M) 23 51
Net assets disposed of FTEEFEE
Property, plants and equipment S IEN Y=Y E (169) =
Right-of-use assets FREEE (13) -
Trade and tariff adjustment FEUNBRIE K BB B AL
receivables FEUR AR I8 (2) =
Other receivables, deposits and HtEWERIE -I2S~
prepayments T RIE (6) (87)
Cash and cash equivalents RENRIVEEEY (5) 9)
Other payables and accruals HMEA BN ESEH 18 44
Bank and other borrowings IR1T R EMER 109 =
Deferred tax liabilities IRERIEE R 1 =
Lease liabilities HEAaR 11 =
(56) (52)
Non-controlling interests upon HERFRIEERR R
disposal 27 -
Net loss on disposal HEBIRFEE (6) (1)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow R Rd) /HRAEEE
Cash received BWIRE - 37
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : FTHERS &
disposed of REEEY (5) 9)
(5) 28
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c) Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: As at 31 December 2021, a partial consideration
of approximately RMB21 million was settled by
setting off with other payables and the remaining
consideration of approximately RMB2 million was

included in other receivables.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a partial
consideration of approximately RMB37 million
was settled and the remaining consideration of
approximately RMB14 million was included in other
receivables as at 31 December 2020.

20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY
METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position are as follows:

wR e M BRI aE

19 [IB AT (&)
(c) WEMBAT ()

MIsE -

A—E_—F-A=+—§>
BAREOAR BT HERE
24 54 FE YRR IO 75 S A5 B R T
BB ARB2EETES A
HA MR

RRE_S_SE+-F=+—
AL B2 REQAR KT
EERCAERIBREOAR
IUEETER BBt
A=+— B ARMERRE"

20 ERAE@mEAARZIRE

KRG BRI KRR Z N T -

2021 2020

—E-— —s-=x

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEETRT AREBHET

Investments in associates REE AR ZIRE 279 263

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss are as follows:

RiFEHRmRPERZEERAT -

2021 2020

—E-—& —EoTi

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEET ARBEBET

Share of profits from associates FE{L B = A BLEF 16 21
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY 20 {FREHEARZIZE (4B)
METHOD (Continued)

Investments in Associates

REBEQBNZKRE

2021 2020

—ET—-F “BIEF

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEETT AEBEET

At 1 January ®w—B—H 263 297
Dividend received BEUWELR B - (55)
Share of profits from associates FE{L B = A B EF 16 21
At 31 December ®W+=ZB=+—H 279 263

TR EEER AN AEEBE
AWK -S-_—ER_Z-SF
+-B=t—BrBEAT-

Set out below are the associates which, in the opinion of
the Board, are material to the Group as at 31 December
2021 and 2020.

Place of
Name of entity establishment % of ownership interest  Principal activities
EiReaE vt BEEZASL ITEEH
2021 2020
—E-F ITZ°ZTH

Fengxian Huize Photovoltaic The PRC 50% 50% Operation and management of
Energy Limited* solar power plants
(“Fengxian Huize”) (Note)

SREECRERERAT & SEREEAGEREEL
(T2 (i)

Shenzhen Chuangxin Silk Road The PRC 38.64% 38.64% Finance lease arrangement for
Leasing Company Limited* the operation of solar power
(“Shenzhen Chuangxin”) plants

YR 4A 4 2 IR B E HE AipEE B ENMERE
BRAE (TRYIAIH) 25

Note: The Group is eligible to appoint two directors to represent izt . AEEFEREAMBESAEKER

BIHESMEZESE (HEREEM
BR) c ERERZERAIBBHERSH
NEEFNERE EFRDREER

the Company in the board of directors of Fengxian Huize
which constituted by five directors. Considering the
resolutions can be passed by poll with simple majority,
the Board is in the opinion that the Group only exercises EHEREEMNEAZELFER
significant influence over Fengxian Huize and recognises Eﬁ?ﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁx%fﬁ AANBE AT Z
its equity interest in Fengxian Huize as an investment in an =1

associate.

The English names of the associates represent the best
effort by Management to translate their Chinese names, as
the associates do not have official English names.

HRBEADLEE D B AHE  HE
XaBHERBERAZARERXS
BEES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY 20 {FREHEARZIZE (48)
METHOD (Continued)

Investments in Associates (Continued) REERQATZRE (8

All associates are private companies and there are no FrE#E NG ABIARE  HRMHDIE

quoted market prices available for their shares. There were BRRZHHERE- R —F+=
= iy N

no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's investments B=+—H BESHMARERHEA

in associates as at 31 December 2021 (31 December ?Z&%ﬁ?@%ﬁﬁ%(:;ﬁ:;ﬁéﬁ—f—:ﬁ
2020: Nil). =t—B:®-

TXHINETEBEQATHE_ZSZ ——F
;_E_EF+"_A=Z+—HIEEFEEZ

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
the material associates for the years ended 31 December

2021 and 2020. MBS R
Shenzhen Chuangxin Fengxian Huize
FYIEHR LREE
2021 2020 2021 2020
“EZ-F TZZ%F ZFZ-H TTEZHF

RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AREGERT AR®HEER AR¥KEER ARKEER

Assets and liabilities R+ZB=+—HZEBER
as at 31 December &
Current assets REEE 456 476 109 71
Non-current assets ERBEE 327 367 306 321
Current liabilities nEAE (32) (75) (224) (231)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (300) (317) (14) (15)

Profit or loss for the year ended #HZE+_B=+—HLEEEZ

31 December i
Revenue KA 19 46 66 64
Profit and total comprehensive FERHREEmN R

income for the year - 11 31 31
Dividend received from BREARUEBZKRE

associates - - - 54

Reconciliation to carrying IREEHK

amounts:
Opening net assets HEERE 451 440 146 222
Dividend BE - - - (107)
Share of profit iyl - 11 31 31
Closing net assets HREEZE 451 451 177 146
Group's % of ownership AEENERELH 38.64% 38.64% 50% 50%
Group's share (RMB million) rEERE NREEET) 174 174 89 73
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY 20 {FREHEARZIZE (4B)
METHOD (Continued)

Investments in Associates (Continued) REEQATZRE (8)
Set out below are the summarised financial information for T X EH SR N EHAE BB E R E K2 B
the remaining associates which were individually immaterial ENBZMBERBEE -

to the Group.

2021 2020
—E-—F TEIEF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEETT ARBBAET
The Group’s share on: NEBEFES
Profit and other comprehensive FEMNREMEE R E
income for the year - 1
Carrying amount of investments S EREE 16 16
As at 31 December 2021, the cash and cash equivalents RNZE_—F+_B=+—H> mi=
of approximately RMB59 million (31 December 2020: RENFEEREFAENESRYOARES9
approximately RMB27 million) that were held by PRC BExT (CEIZF+ZA=1t—"HB: 4
entities of the associates were subject to local exchange ARE2TEET) WIRENRIREEEYA
control regulations. These local exchange control SEMEREREARNRRE ZEE M
regulations provided for restrictions on exporting capital EREG i HANEZERHBHESELY
from the country other than through normal dividends. MR CGEiB—RARRR B RRIM) o

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21 HBARESTAERZEMEE
PROFIT OR LOSS

2021 2020

—EZ—F TETERE

RMB’million RMB’million

AREEET ARBEET

Guaranteed electricity output (Note (a)) E{RE & H (HzE()) 4 4
Unlisted investments (Note (b)) JELEFRE (fI5E(b)) 35 38
39 42
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

According to certain sale and purchase agreements entered
into between the Group and the vendors in respect of
acquisition of subsidiaries, the vendors undertook to
guarantee certain level of electricity output generated by the
underlying solar power plants for a period of time and the
shortfall would be payable by the vendors. The fair value was
arrived at after considering the contractual terms, the actual
shortfall in electricity generated and the outcome of the
negotiation with the relevant vendors.

Unlisted investments represent equity investments in unlisted
companies engaging in renewable energy related business.
The Board intends to divest these investments in the
foreseeable future and accordingly, they were classified as
financial assets at FVTPL.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s unlisted investments
included investments in investee companies engaging in
the provision of Engineering, Procurement and Construction
(“EPC”) service and investment in solar power plant projects.
The aggregate fair value of one of the investee companies as
at 31 December 2021 were approximately RMB21 million (31
December 2020: approximately RMB24 million) which were
determined with reference to a business valuation report
issued by an external independent valuer. A fair value loss
of approximately RMB3 million was recorded for the Year (31
December 2020: Nil).

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the 5% equity
interest was approximately RMB14 million (31 December
2020: approximately RMB14 million), which was determined
based on the recent market transactions of similar
businesses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

22 TRADE, BILLS AND TARIFF ADJUSTMENT

RECEIVABLES

22 BIRIRIE - RBEREEMRMEY
iRIE

2021 2020

—EZ—-F 2

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEETRT ARBEET

Trade receivables [EULERTE 254 63

Tariff adjustment receivables BB EWERIE 7,287 4,115

Trade and tariff adjustment receivables FEUXARIE & BB R

FE U BRIE 7,541 4,178

Bills receivables FEU 2= 4% 11 166
Trade, bills and tariff adjustment FEUWERIE ~ 245 K BB AL

receivables FE U AR 18 7,552 4,344

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables of
approximately RMB254 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB63 million) represented receivables from
sales of electricity and are usually settled within one to six
months.

Tariff adjustment receivables mainly represented the central
government subsidies on renewable energy projects to be
received from the State Grid and Inner Mongolia Power
based on the respective electricity sale and purchase
agreements for each of the Group’s solar power plants and
prevailing nationwide government policies.

The Board considers that the ECL for trade, bills and tariff
adjustment receivables is insignificant as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 (Note 3.1(b)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

22 TRADE, BILLS AND TARIFF ADJUSTMENT
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis by invoice date, which approximates
revenue recognition date, of trade and tariff adjustment
receivables was as follows:

22

FEUARIE - RIBR BEMRMEW

ARIE (%)

FEWERIE K BEFLEUAREZERAH

(B s B AR 2 BREGDATINT ¢

2021 2020
—E_—f TEIEF

RMB’million RMB’million

AREBEET ARBEETT

Unbilled (Note) FFAEE (M:H) 7,402 4,074
1 - 30 days 1ZE30H 99 29
31 - 60 days 31E60H 7 -
61 — 90 days 61ZE90H - 1
91 — 180 days 91ZF180H - 7
181 - 365 days 181%F365H - =
Over 365 days BiB365H 33 67
7,541 4,178

Note: The amount represents unbilled trade and tariff adjustment
receivables. The aged analysis of the unbilled trade and
tariff receivables, which is based on revenue recognition

M : ZERERAEREBUIREREEM
A A U AR TR o B0 Uan b 52 B AR R FH
BERWIRIEREEMMEWIRIEZ

date, are as follows: ERECDATAT -
2021 2020
—E=—f It Y
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBBEER ARBEET
1 — 30 days 1&E30H 323 180
31 - 60 days 31FE60H 226 132
61 — 90 days 61Z290H 188 141
91 - 180 days 91F180H 640 433
181 - 365 days 181%F365H 1,241 770
Over 365 days BiE365H 4,784 2,418
7,402 4,074
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

22 TRADE, BILLS AND TARIFF ADJUSTMENT 22 BIWRIBE-ZEH R EEMLEW

256

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the maturity dates of bills
receivable were within one year (31 December 2020:
Same). The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date was the carrying value of each of the
receivable mentioned above. The Group did not hold any
collateral as security. Trade, bills and tariff adjustment
receivables are denominated in RMB (31 December 2020:
RMB).

Pursuant to Caijian 2012 No. 102 Notice on the Interim
Measures for Administration of Subsidy Funds for Tariff
Premium of Renewable Energy (F] B4 5 R BB MNAHENE
£ EIEEITHHE) jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance,
the National Development and Reform Commission
(“NDRC"), and the National Energy Administration in
March 2012, tariff adjustment receivables will be settled
upon successful registration in the Renewable Energy
Tariff Subsidy Catalogue (“Catalogue”). Caijian 2013
N0.390 Notice issued in July 2013 further simplified the
procedures of settlement of the tariff adjustment.

Pursuant to Guo Neng Xin Neng 2015 No. 73 Notice on
the Implementation plan for photovoltaic power generation
construction (YA EERE NS %) issued by the
National Energy Administration in March 2015, the approval
process for solar power plant projects was delegated to
the local government level from the Central Government.
Such projects require only regional filings with regional
power authorities authorised to administer the application
process. Once the application has been submitted and
approved, the local grid companies will install grid-
connections and such projects will be eligible for tariff
adjustment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 TRADE, BILLS AND TARIFF ADJUSTMENT

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

In January 2020, the Ministry of Finance, the NDRC, and
the National Energy Administration jointly issued Caijian
2020 No. 4 Notice on Several Opinions of Promoting the
Healthy Development of the Power Generation of Non-Water
Renewable Energy (BIFMREIEK I BEREREBRELRE
MZETER). Pursuant to Caijian 2020 No. 4 Notice, the
Central Government will no longer publish the Catalogue.
On the other hand, the procedures for settlement of tariff
adjustment is intended to be further simplified whereby
it is indicated in Caibanjian 2020 No.6 Office of Ministry
of Finance’s Procedures in relation to Commencement of
Approval Procedures of Renewable Energy Tariff Subsidy
Project List (MAEESI ABERAN AR B A EREEHA
BEBEEZA B IIERNEL) that all qualified renewable
energy power plants ('FE2IEH) (the “Qualified Power
Plants”) which fulfil certain requirements are eligible to
be enlisted in the Tariff Subsidy Project List (the “List”)
(#HB5TBE758). The Qualified Power Plants include all
1st to 7th batch Catalogue power plants, which will be
automatically enlisted in the List.

The Group submitted application for all qualified power
plants of the Group and Management are of the opinion
that 16 solar power plants and 4 wind power plants (31
December 2020: 9 solar power plants) with aggregate
installed capacity of 1,365MW (31 December 2020:
214.7TMW) shall be further enlisted in the List. During
the Year, the Group has 20 solar power plants and 3
wind power plants (31 December 2020: 16 solar power
plants) with aggregate installed capacity of 345MW (31
December 2020: 678.1MW) successfully enlisted in the
List. Management are of the opinion that the registration
is an administrative procedure and the tariff adjustment
receivables will be settled in accordance with prevailing
government policies and prevalent payment trends of
Ministry of Finance. There is no due date for settlement.
The tariff adjustment receivables are fully recoverable
considering that the background of customers are mainly
state-owned enterprises and such tariff adjustment is
only subject to timing of allocation of funds by the PRC
government.

wR e M BRI aE

22 BUNERIA RIB R EEMHME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

22 TRADE, BILLS AND TARIFF ADJUSTMENT 22 BIWRIBE-ZEH R EEMLEW

258

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Given the track record of regular repayment of receivables
from sales of electricity, all trade receivables from sales
of electricity were expected to be recoverable. For tariff
adjustment receivables, they are settled in accordance
with prevailing government policies and prevalent payment
trends of the Ministry of Finance.

During the Year, the Group received an aggregate amount
of approximately RMB734 million mainly for the subsidies
in relation to the solar power plant projects enlisted in the
List (31 December 2020: approximately RMB1,289 million
for the subsidies in relation to the solar and wind power
plant projects enlisted in the List). The Ministry of Finance
does not set out a rigid timetable for the settlement of
tariff adjustment receivables. However, given the collection
of tariff adjustment receivables is well supported by the
government policy, all tariff adjustment receivables were
expected to be recoverable. As the collection of tariff
adjustment receivables is expected in the normal operating
cycle of the business, they are classified as current assets.
Consequently, no loss allowance of trade receivables was
recognised as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
Nil).

As of 31 December 2021, all trade receivables were
expected to be recoverable. The carrying amounts of trade
and bills receivables approximate their fair values (31
December 2020: Same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Er e A A T
23 OTHER RECEIVABLES, CONTRACT ASSETS, 23 HthEKRRIE-FHNEE-BRER
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS FE{IFRIE
2021 2020
2 —F —ETFHF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETT ARBBETT
Non-current JETRED
Value-added tax recoverable AU EIE EFR 1,033 389
Prepayment for property, plant and Y B E KRR ETENIE
equipment 1 3
Others Hih 4 14
1,038 406
Current TRED
Deposits for investments KRERE 2,223 918
Value-added tax recoverable AU EIEER 406 656
Amounts due from associates (Note (b)) F&UE:= A B7IE (I 5E(b)) 126 137
Deposits paid to NEX Group (Note (a), BEfINEXEREZE (f:E(@a)>
Note 2.1(a)) MizE2.1(a)) 984 997
Amounts due from NEX Group (Note (a)) FEUINEXE EFIE (FI:E(a)) 174 979
Contract assets BHEE - 28
Other receivables, deposits and HEWIRE K&
prepayments SENENEE] 384 98
4,297 3,813
5,335 4,219
Less: Accumulated impairment (Note (a)) & : EstRE (FizE(a))
Impairment for deposits paid to EINEXEE R %
NEX Group (Note (a)) BE (M) (984) (997)
Impairment for amounts due from FEUSNEXSE B =B R E
NEX Group (Note (a)) (Fi5%(a)) (115) (72)
Impairment for other receivables HEWRIBRE (23) (1)
(1,122) (1,070)
Total st 4,213 3,149
BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JuatfETREREEA A PR 2 6] 259
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

23 OTHER RECEIVABLES, CONTRACT ASSETS,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
Group entered into several conditional sale and purchase
agreements and framework agreement in relation to proposed
acquisition of project companies which own renewable energy
projects. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had Deposits
to NEX Group of HK$598 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB522 million) and the Deposits to SZZY of RMB500
million remained outstanding. As at the same date, the Group
also had amounts due from NEX Group of approximately
RMB1,488 million (before impairment provision) and amounts
due to NEX Group of approximately RMB1,132 million.

Considering the findings of the investigation as set out
in Note 2.1(a), Management considered there was a
significant increase in credit risk in these counterparties
and Management assessed that only a portion of the
receivables was expected to be recovered. Consequently,
impairment charge of approximately RMB1,094 million was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019. The
amounts included the impairment charge of approximately
RMB1,022 million for the Deposits to NEX and SZZY and
approximately RMB72 million for the amounts due from NEX
Group. Information about the impairment charge on other
receivables and deposits and the Group’s exposure to credit
risk is set out in Note 3.1(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the Year, NEX Group transferred (i) equity interests
of a company operating solar power plants in the PRC with
valuation of RMB40 million and (ii) a medium-term note of the
Company held by NEX Group with maturity date on 17 April
2021 amounted to approximately RMB161 million (including
both principal and interest) to the Group for purpose of
settlement. Management considered there is a significant
increase in credit risk on the remaining balances due from
NEX Group. Accordingly, an expected credit loss of RMB43
million was recognised for the Year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 OTHER RECEIVABLES, CONTRACT ASSETS,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Deposits to NEX Group of
HK$598 million (equivalent to approximately RMB484
million) (31 December 2020: HK$598 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB497 million) and the Deposits to SZzZY
of RMB500 million (31 December 2020: RMB500 million)
remained outstanding. As at the same date, the Group also
had amounts due from NEX Group of approximately RMB174
million (before impairment provision of approximately
RMB115 million) (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB979 million (before impairment provision of
approximately RMB72 million)) and no balance (31 December
2020: approximately RMB611 million) for amounts due to
NEX Group (Note 29).

During January to March 2022, NEX Group transferred (i)
equity interests of certain companies operating solar power
plants in the PRC with valuation of approximately RMB4
million in total and (ii) cash of RMB12 million to the Group for
purpose of settlement.

As it is set out in Note 2.1(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into an agreement with NEX
Group on 28 March 2022 in respect of the NEX Settlements.

As at 31 December 2021, the amounts due from associates
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand
(31 December 2020: Same).

wR e M BRI aE

23 HtEWRIE-SNEE - BER
TR RIE (88)
s - ()

(a)

(b)

(&)

HE_ET_—F+_HA=+—H>MANEX
E@ES RSB IE8TE T HER
WARBLI84EET) CETE+Z
B=+—H : 859878t GHERY
ANRBA4TEET)) REISZZYEL %
T ARKBS00EE T (ZETF+
B=+—H: AR#¥5008&77T) HARK
EloFH > ANEBMEWRNEXEBRIBELN S
ARB17T45 8T GHEREBEBEBELOA
Ri#€11558xhl) (CETEE+ZA
=+—H Y ARKITIEE T GHERA
BEEENARKI2EETA) KR EE
AINEXEBMNESR (ZTTEZZ2F+A
=+—H: Y ARK611BET) (fizE
29) o

R_E - _F—BE=HBE NEXER
MAEEERIHETRPREKE KB
BEHNATNRE HESHEAB A
RE4AFE T RINVREARKI12BE
T AREERGE

U 4R & M FF IR R M sE2.1(a)FR &) > 2
ERRN T _F=H_+/\HENEXE
B FANEXAE B 5T 3 5%

RIE_—F+"F=+—H B\
NEREEELIF  RERBERERER
(CEBEZBEE+"HA=1+—H 48[ °

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JuatfETREREEA A PR 2 6]

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 — % — —4E4E )

261



262

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

24 CASH DEPOSITS

24 RWEEFENR

2021 2020
2 —F “ETEF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEET AEBEET
Non-current JEENHA
Pledged deposits (Note (b)) BEEREMR (F5E(0)) 939 379
Current ENHA
Pledged deposits (Note (b)) EEREMR (ko)) 91 974
Restricted cash ZIREIIRE - 42
Cash and cash equivalents BERIREEEY 4,814 1,577
4,905 2,593
Total 45t 5,844 2,972
Notes: B EE
(@) As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank balances of (@) NIEBE_—F+-_B=+—H x&EE

approximately RMB5,284 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB2,925 million) were deposited with banks
or other financial institutions in the PRC. The remittance
of these funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government.

Pledged deposits represented deposits pledged to banks
or other financial institutions to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group (Note 27(a)). Deposits of approximately
RMB939 million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB379
million) were pledged to secure long-term borrowings granted
to the Group which are due after one year, and therefore
classified as non-current assets. The remaining deposits
were pledged to secure short-term borrowings and therefore
classified as current assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares (million)

wR e M BRI aE

25 g7

Share capital

BRONYE (EEK) R s
2021 2020 2021 2020
B CBZEf " -5 _TTE
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBET AREBEETR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each ~ EREEBE0.1TZ EER
Authorised EE
At 1 January and 31 December ~R—BA—HR+ZBE=+—H 30,000 30,000 2,525 2,525
Issued and fully paid BREIRAR
At 1 January R—E—H 22,428 15,251 1,924 1,285
Issue of shares (Note (a)) BTRRAD (H3E@)) - 7,477 - 639
At 31 December B+ZB=+—H 22,428 22,428 1,924 1,924
Notes: M 5E -
(a) Issue of shares (@) EETRD

On 18 February 2020, the Company issued an aggregate of
7,176,943,498 subscription shares at HK$0.25 per share.
The net price for the shares issued was approximately
HK$0.25 per share. The market price of the Company’s
ordinary shares listed on the Stock Exchange on 18
November 2019, being the last trading day before the date
on which the terms of the subscription were fixed, was
HK$0.23. The directors were of the view that the subscription
represented a good opportunity for the Company to raise
funds to strengthen its capital base, to improve its financial
position for the Company’s future development and to
introduce strategic investors to the Company. As at 31
December 2020, the net proceeds from the issue of new
shares of approximately HK$1,766 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,573 million) have been fully utilised
for the repayments of indebtedness in accordance with the
announcements dated 19 November 2019 and the circular
dated 11 December 2019.

All shares issued during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 rank pari passu in all respects with the existing
shares of the Company.

===k Sy = e ol AN = [ /NS B S
B£0.25708 175 £7,176,943,498% 53
BRO - BEOTROEENASREBE
0.257c° R _E—hAE+—HB+/\B B
EERBEERRBSENI—X2H) »
ARBEHRRA ETHNSERTEAS
#0.237T - BEER A BEEEA KX AR
HARECERMNESMERRIZEER
B A REARNBNHBRERLAKAT
SIAKRBEEE REAHRAZS—NE
+—B+ABZAERBHA-ZE—AN
F+TAHA+—HZBR > B1THRHBER
BRIEFENBEL766E BT HHER
HMAR®L5738ET) ERNZE_F
+ZB=1+—BEHAREERR

FRERBE_ZE_—GFRrR_EBE_ZTF
+ZE=+—HIEEEZHTZRMHELX
RERBERGESHFEZA RSN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

25 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 25 fg# (48)
Notes: (Continued) Mzt © (48)
(b) Share options (b) FERGHE
Certain share options were granted under the share ARNBREBR_ZE—"FB+NLBEH
option scheme adopted on 19 June 2012 to directors and MZERESAE D AERESEREESR
employees of the Group. The option granted are subject to a HETHERE- RENEREBHS —
vesting scale in three tranches of 30%, 30% and 40% with a BEEFEERG E—F MER=ZFENE
vesting period of 1, 2 and 3 years respectively starting from BHA ) B1£30% ~ 30% % 40% 2 LEE 5
the 1st anniversary and become fully vested on the 1st, 2nd “HEB TANRRENE— F IR
and 3rd anniversary of the grant respectively. In the table E-EBFATBHEB - R TERA 0]
below, “exercisable period” begins with the 1st anniversary of TEBAEI R EEHBENE—EEFHGH
the grant date. 4a o
Details of the share options movement during the year are as FRBIRESEEFHFBUT
follows:
Exercisable period Number of share options
AT iRy
As at As at
1 January During the year 31 December
Date of grant From To Exercise price 2021 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2021
N RER ?
2% ZZZ-F
-A +ZA
RiBH Iz} E 7168 =3 ] 7t i) 5% =+-H
HK$
BB
Directors
B2
28.1.2016 28.1.2017 27.1.2021 0564 1,500,000 = = - (1,500,000) =

“E-RE-BZ+N\H ZE-tfF E-f

—AZ+NB —-BZ+tH
28.1.2016 28.1.2018 27.1.2021 0564 1,500,000 = = - (1,500,000) =
Z2—RE-BZ+NB ZEF-N\FE 3%

—AZ+NB —-BAZ+tH
28.1.2016 28.1.2019 27.1.2021 0564 2,000,000 = = - (2,000,000) =
“Z-R"E-BZ+tN\H ZE-AE E—f

—AZ+NB —-BZ+tH
16.6.2017 16.6.2018 15.6.2022 1076 3,300,000 = = - (1,800,000 1,500,000
Z2—tERBtARE  ZE-N\E ECCE

~NATAE NATER
16.6.2017 16.6.2019 15.6.2022 1076 3,300,000 = = - (1,800,000 1,500,000
2—tERBtAE  ZE-AE ECCE

~NATAE NATER
16.6.2017 16.6.2020 15.6.2022 1.076 4,400,000 = = - (2400,000) 2,000,000
2—tERBtRE  ZEIEE ECCE

~NATAE NATER

16,000,000 - - - (11,000,000 5,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ey A B R B
25 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 25 B&7 (48)
Notes: (Continued) MisE © ()
(b)  Share options (Continued) () EEBRHE ()
Exercisable period Number of share options
AfTHEHE ERENE
As at As at
1 January During the year 31 December
Date of grant From To Exercise price 2021 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2021
i RER i3
% %
-A +ZB
BHAH g E 758 ! ik fifE B3 E3 =+-A
HK$
BET
Other officers, employees
and others
HthEHREBAR:
EER AL
28.1.2016 28.1.2017 27.1.2021 0.564 768,899 - - - (768,899) -
“2—E-AZ+NB ZE-tF B -f
—-AZ+\B —-BZ+tH
28.1.2016 28.1.2018 27.1.2021 0.564 1,392,899 - - - (1,392,899) -
SPRE-AZHAE IR0 ZBI-f
—-AZ+\B —-BZ+tH
28.1.2016 28.1.2019 27.1.2021 0.564 1,857,202 - - - (1,857,202) -
“2-RE-RAZtN\B ZE-AE B -f
—-AZ+\B —-BZ+tH
16.6.2017 16.6.2018 15.6.2022 1.076 56,850,000 - - - (1,050,000) 55,800,000
Z2—tFABtRE ZE-N\E I CE
~ATARE ~At+HEA
16.6.2017 16.6.2019 15.6.2022 1.076 56,850,000 - - - (1,050,000) 55,800,000
2—tFABtRE  ZE-AE T E
~ATARE ~At+HEA
16.6.2017 16.6.2020 15.6.2022 1.076 75,800,000 - - - (1,400,000) 74,400,000
“2—tENAtRE  ZECEE T E
~ATARE ~At+HEA
193,519,000 - - - (7,519,000) 186,000,000
209,519,000 - - - (18,519,000) 191,000,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 209,519,000 191,000,000

RERAFIE

No share option was granted, exercised or cancelled during
the Year (31 December 2020: Nil).

)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

25 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Share options (Continued)

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the share options are based on Management’'s
best estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of a number of subjective assumptions. Any
change in the variables so adopted may materially affect
the estimation of the fair value of an option. The significant
assumptions used in the binomial model to derive the fair
value at the date of grant were as follows:

25 g7 (88)
Wi o (@)

(b)

BRIE (B

BRstEBREANENEERERRTD
REEENREGAAEE - BRES
BERZEETHERKNVABDEEMART
B o FTER iV B B E R & S FT sEH FE AR 1
NARBERFTEREAT E-E_ENE
BARERANRSRHARAREZER
RRWT :

16 June 2017
Date of grant EHBEH —E—tHFRA+H
Risk free rate i B PR A = 0.984%
Expected volatility B IE 50%
Expected dividend yield TEFTRRE=X 0%
Life of option (year) FEIREERR () 5

Closing share price at grant date
Exercise price per share
Weighted average fair value per share option

BRITEE

The expected volatility is calculated based on the historic
volatility of share prices of the Company and comparable
companies based on publicly available information. Expected
dividend yield is based on historic dividends.

During the Year, there were no share-based payment
expenses (31 December 2020: approximately RMB4 million)
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
relation to share options.

RERUBEBRZRHWTE
SHBRENNETEIARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

During the Year, the Company issued three-year convertible
bonds to independent third parties as follows:

Principal

Date of issue amount
BITHH P4
US$ million

BEBET

29 June 2021 50

BT —F5AZTNHE

The bondholders are entitled to convert the bonds into
shares credited as fully paid at any time during the
conversion period:

(a) at any time on and after the day falling 41 days after
the date of issue to the close of business on the date
falling 10 days prior to the maturity date (both days
inclusive); or

(b) if the bonds have been called for redemption before
the maturity date, then up to and including the close
of business on date no later than 10 days prior to the
date fixed for redemption.

wR e M BRI aE

26 BAREFABGZEMER

REFE  ARBARABILE=FET=

FHARRESWT !
On inception
EEESS
Net proceeds Financial
(equivalent to liabilities at
Interest rate approximately) FVTPL

FSRIESE  BAREHA

= (B EEEE) Bz Emaf
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEET AREBBEET

3.8%p.a. 316 316
S%3.8%

BERA ANA B B %A A B &R
BHFBBRB/ARIBEREZRN !

(a) FITHHRRB4BAEBREARFER
ZREEFHHAERMSBI0HEREZE
ERE (BEMBEEERN) ; &

(b) AERFEIHBZAKERERD
AIEEAEREEER B #1108
ZB (BFEZBER) EXERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

26 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Summarised below is the movement of financial liabilities

at FVTPL during the Year:

26 BAREFABRDZZERMAR
()
SESHBORAFEEZ EBHBMT :

RMB’million

AEBEET

At 1 January 2021 RZIEZ—f—HF—H =
Initial recognition upon issue of BIT O AR B S R VI TR

convertible bonds 320

Transaction costs RS BAER (4)

Interest payment ZAME (6)

Subsequent re-measurement fair value loss H@BSHtE 2 AnERIE 40

Exchange difference b 2 2= RB (4)

At 31 December 2021 RZE2_—H+°“HA=+—H 346

The fair value of convertible bonds were determined
by using the binomial model, with the following key

assumptions:

AMRESFHNARENDBBERA BN
REMEE > T2RRUT :

At 31 December

2021

A TE 5

+ZR=+—H

Discount rate IrIR= 21.6%
Fair value of each share of the Company (HK$) ZNATIGRREMN 2 A nE GBI 0.295
Conversion price per share (HK$) R0 2 EIRE BE) 0.33
Coupon rate EmFIE 3.8%
Redemption price BEOE 106%
Risk-free interest rate 1 B B ) =2 0.74%
Time to maturity (years) ZHAEF R (5F) 285
Expected volatility FE A 1 46.55%
Expected dividend yield FEHARR B W m = 0%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wR e M BRI aE

27 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 27 SRITREHMfE™R
2021 2020

—EC-fF S

Current Non-current Current Non-current
portion Portion Total portion portion Total
ENERERS  FEENERERS toH BEREE S FERREAEED st
RMB’million  RMB’million  RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AREEER ARXKGEER AREEERT AREEER AREEERT ARKEER
Bank borrowings (Note (b)) TR (H5EDb)) 6,142 15,466 21,608 3,741 8,333 12,074

Loans from financial institutions (Note (¢)) ~ RESRI&EZ &R

(tzE(c)) 1,584 8,884 10,468 1,260 3,403 4,663
Senior notes (Note (d)) BEER (M) - - - - 753 753
Medium-term notes (Note (d)) A (5 () - - - 300 = 300
Other loans (Note (e)) Htt&z (fzke)) 94 105 199 62 34 96
7,820 24,455 32,275 5,363 12,523 17,886
Unamortised loan facilities fees REHEDHEER (42) (194) (236) (58) (239) (297)
7,718 24,261 32,039 5,305 12,284 17,589

The Group’s bank and other borrowings were repayable as KREREEEZIRTREAMERTOT !
follows:
2021 2020
ZEI-F “BTER
Bank Other Bank Other
borrowings borrowings Total borrowings borrowings Total
BITER HitiE® st FATRER EffER @zt
RMB’million  RMB’million ~ RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AE%BER AR¥KBER ARKEERT ARBEEn ARBEER ARKEETR
Within 1 year —FR 6,142 1,678 7,820 3,741 1,622 5,363
Between 1 and 2 years —EME 3,413 3,251 6,664 1,827 1,351 3,178
Between 2 and 5 years MERF 10,714 2,467 13,181 4,773 1,294 6,067
Over 5 years &% 1,339 3,271 4,610 1,733 1,545 3,278
21,608 10,667 32,275 12,074 5,812 17,886
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

27 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowings and loans from
financial institutions were secured by the following:

(i) pledged deposits (Note 24(b));
(ii)  power generating modules and equipment (Note 16);

(iii) pledge of the fee collection rights in relation to the
sales of electricity; and

(iv) mortgage over the equity interest in certain
subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2021, bank loans included loans from
a subsidiary of a controlling shareholder of approximately
RMB3,000 million (31 December 2020: Nil). The loans were
unsecured and bore interest rates ranging from 3.75% to
4.50% per annum.

As at 31 December 2021, bank loans included loans from a
controlling shareholder of approximately RMB4,500 million
(31 December 2020: Nil). The loans were unsecured and
bore interest rates ranging from 3.85% to 4.50% per annum.

As at 31 December 2021, loans from financial institutions
included loans from an associate of approximately RMB299
million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB360 million).
These loans were secured by property, plant and equipment
of approximately RMB474 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB486 million) and bore interest rates
ranging from 4.90% to 4.95% per annum (31 December
2020: 4.90% to 4.95% per annum).

As at 31 December 2021, loans from financial institutions
included loans from a subsidiary of a controlling shareholder
of approximately RMB468 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB286 million). The loans were secured by
property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB460
million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB404 million)
and bore interest rates ranging from 4.46% to 4.60% per
annum (31 December 2020: 4.60% per annum).

27 SRITRHEMBER (&)
B EE :

(a)

(b)

(c)
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RIEBE-—F+"A=+—H RITEN
RREEREEZEMUTIIEE TR

(iy BIEFEER FE24(00));
(i) FBEEAKRKE (I16) ;
(i) BRMBEIHEREREZIET &

(iv) BTHEBARZRERE-

R_ZE_—F+_B=+—H EITEX
BEXE—RERBREZ—RENBAG
ZEFHNAREI0005BT (CE -
E+"HA=+—08 ) -ZEEIER
G 3R FEF R T F3.75%E4.50%5T B o

A B —FE+"HA=1+—HETER
BIEREBERKEREZERNOAREL500
BExT (CEZZEH5+"B=+—H:
) ZERABEBRIREMNENTF
3.85% £4.50% 5t 8 °

R_E_—F+_B=+—H KE&/
B EREERE—BHELASZE
T ANRE209F BT (CTESE+
A=+—H N AR3605ET) &%
LFERUE -BEREZHENARKLTA
BET(CEIZEF+ZAE=1T—H: 4
AR¥A86E EIT) (FIERIF > Wi ER X
N F4.90%F4.95% (ZCE_BF+_8
=+—H:S8F4.90%%E4.95%) 5t B o

N _E_—F+ZHA=+—H k8%
KB ERERERE— 2 ERKREY
—RHRBATZERNARKI68HE T
(ZEZZEF+ZA=+—H AR
W286 A EBIT) R EERUME - HE
EREBEBHAREI0EET (CE_ZT&E
+ZB=+—H: AR K4I04EET)
EIR3 > WIRFEFEN F4.46%F4.60%
(&2 _FFE+_-_RB=+—8 . 8&
4.60%) 5T 8 °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

28

27 $RITK
Bis

wR e M BRI aE

Hithfam (nﬁ)
<,.ﬁ)

(d) As at 31 December 2020, senior notes were unsecured, (d RIZEZIEF+ZRA=+—H > BERE
bore interest at 8% per annum and repayable in 2022, and AEIEF-BREFESR T ERBARE
medium-term notes were unsecured, bore interest rates at T THER PHERAEIKE 2ER
7.5% per annum and repayable in 2021. During the Year, RIG%TERBER B - —FEE -
senior notes and medium-term notes were fully settled. REE BAEBEATHHREEEERE

(e) As at 31 December 2021, other loans included a loan from e) NIE—_—F+"B=+—H HEMER
an associate of approximately RMB60 million (31 December BEKRKE—EBEEQATNERNARE
2020: approximately RMB60 million). This loan was 60EET CEEF+A=+—H:
unsecured, bore interest rate between 3.80% and 3.85% per HWARMEEOEET) -2 EXRARIEE
annum and repayable on demand (2020: between 3.85% and FFERES. 80%:.:3 85%2 Bt BRI &
4.15% per annum). KRER (CEZTFE | FHEXILR3.85%E

4.15%2 ) ©

(f)  The principal of bank borrowings and loans from financial () BEBFXRFENRITERRLEESR

institutions which bore floating interest rates were as follows: B2 ERARZWT
2021 2020
—EZ—F —ERE
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEET AREBAET
Bank borrowings RITER 13,013 8,048
Loans from financial institutions RETRIEEZEN 10,457 4,117
23,470 12,165

(8) The effective interest rate per annum of bank and other (8 MIT-—F+"A=+—H RITKH
borrowings as at 31 December 2021 was approximately 4.4% ERZERFEFENEZLA% (22
(31 December 2020: approximately 4.7%). The weighted ZEF+"HA=4+—H  H4.7%) -N_F&
average life of bank and other borrowings as at 31 December T —F+ZR=+—H  RITREMER
2021 was approximately 4.29 years (31 December 2020: ZNEFHFEROH4.29F (ZEZEFE
approximately 4.86 years). +ZHA=1+—H :44.865F) °

DEFERRED TAX 28 IRIETRIA

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are netted off when the HWRESRERZNBER L & EE

taxes relate to the same tax authority and where offsetting TIKH AR ERIBEEREBH T LU

is legally enforceable. The following amounts, determined Ko TH BB KBS HIEBRET I

after appropriate offsetting, are shown separately on the NG BERREEFTDHEES :

consolidated statement of financial position:
2021 2020
T —ETFF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETRT AREBHET
Deferred tax assets IR IR E B 5 27
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE (366) (268)
(361) (241)

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JuatfETREREEA A PR 2 6]

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 — % — —4E4E )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

28 DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The net movement in the deferred tax during the Year is as
follows:

28 ERIEMRIE (8B)

BIERMBRAEERFEHUT !

2021 2020
B % “BIEF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEET ARBBET
At 1 January ®—HB—H (241) (229)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) W EEHT B AT (FI5E32) (134) (1)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 19(c)) HEMRBAR (FizF19(c)) 1 =
Credited/(charged) to consolidated RizaBmist A (0R)
statement of profit or loss (Note 13) (FF5E13) 13 (11)
At 31 December ®+ZHA=+—H (361) (241)
(a) Deferred Tax Assets (a) EERIBEEE
2021 2020
—E_—fF S
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEEET ARBBEET
At 1 January ®w—HA—H 60 57
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEK B AR (i5E32)
(Note 32) 4 _
Credited to consolidated statement st A4z & Em#*E
of profit or loss 11 3
Deferred tax assets before set-off IXIHAIIRERIEE E 75 60
Set-off of tax EEHTR1E (70) (33)
At 31 December w+=ZB=+—H 5 27
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Deferred Tax Assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has unrecognised
deferred tax assets of approximately RMB193 million
(31 December 2020: approximately RMB232 million)
in respect of tax losses of approximately RMB809
million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB939
million), that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. As at 31 December 2021, these
tax losses of approximately RMB801 million (31
December 2020: approximately RMB908 million) will
expire at various dates up to and including 2026 (31
December 2020: 2025).

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred taxation, representing fair value adjustment,
is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using taxation rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period in the respective jurisdictions. The movements
in deferred income tax liabilities are as follows:

28 ERIEMRIE (8B)

(a)

(b)

fr ET I B PR b
IEERAR & ()

A ZE - —F+ZHE=1+—H'&
EEABRNARKESIHE T (T
“ZFE+_A=1t—H HARE
930E B t) xMEEBEZ RAER
BIERIBEBEEAAARK1935E T
“EZFE+"HA=+—H'H
ARME2325E T) » HAJ AR K E
FRWAGEE R - —F+ =
B=+—H ZEREBEBBOAR
go1EE T (ZEZZ2F+A4
=+—H: N ARK0SHEE T I
BEE_ARE(CEZF+A
=+—H:ZZEZHF) IF (BI1F%
F) NEZERERRE-

EIERARR

BIERE ARADERE  KAE
EREMNRESEHREAEEEEM
HEERMZRERREEENGHF
EBTHEE - ELEWRARNEBERE
BT

2021 2020
—BC—fF —E°THF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARBEET
At 1 January ®—B—H (301) (286)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHI B A B (Mf5£32)
(Note 32) (138) (1)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWRB AR (FizE19(c))
(Note 19(c)) 1 -
Credited/(charged) to consolidated R4FE1Em
statement of profit or loss st (ORR) 2 (14)
Deferred tax liabilities before set-off XSS AT ELEIRIEE 15 (436) (301)
Set-off of tax IR IR 70 33
At 31 December nr+-B=+—H (366) (268)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O B R R B o

28 DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Continued)
Notes:

(M)

(ii)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in the
PRC.

As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax liabilities of
approximately RMB88 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB112 million) have not been
recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable
on the remittance of earnings of PRC subsidiaries.
The related unremitted earnings totalled approximately
RMB1,759 million at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: approximately RMB2,244 million), and the Group
does not intend to remit these unremitted earnings
from the relevant subsidiaries to the Company in the
foreseeable future.

29 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

28 RIEFRIE (4B)

(b) IRIEFMIEEE (48)
MIsE -

() MREBPEITERSRE RPERK
YZHBREEROIEREES
kAR B RIZ10% IR TEIN R © i
Bl ESNEREEZBERE R R
TR B 17 5% 0 B BT 8 A BE A0
M AL > AEME SEMRIN PE
PRILZ MY B R BP9 Tk 2 IR B AT
TAHIRR

(i) RZEBEZ—F+ZH=+—H'=&
& [ 3 >R P R B /A B Bk R BN B
HEA N EMTEIDRERIERERIE
EBENARKBSSEHEET (T %
F+_B=1+—H HAE1128
Bx) oM_E_—F+-HB=1+—
B HEEAERRBIEGEENOAR
1, 759B B L (ZE T F+Z
B=4+—H AR M2,2445 8
70)  RAEBEEER A R AR K
5 A8 B8 Bt /3B A B AU K BB W 2R ) BE 1
Ep /N

29 HthfEtRIBEREERA

2021 2020
—E—F “ETEF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARBBEET
Construction costs payable SRS AR 1,584 441
Consideration payable in relation to BRAWEEBEZENRE
acquisitions 405 43
Amounts due to sellers for advanced FE{T 858 5 B FIE
payments 983 -
Deferred income 405 S U A 1 -
Value-added tax payables ETIEETR 20 473
Amounts due to associates (Note (a)) FETHE ATRIA (MizE(a)) 8 8
Amounts due to NEX Group FEINEXSE B =R IE
(Note 23(a)) (FzE23(a)) - 611
Provision for legal claims (Note (b)) EERBEREE (EEDb)) 16 15
Receipt-in-advance (Note (c)) U IE (FdsE(c)) - 300
Other payables and accruals HMENHRIBERESTER 490 551
3,507 2,442
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2021, the amounts due to the associates
of approximately RMB8 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB8 million) were unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2019, the provision mainly related to a
legal case lodged by an EPC contractor against the Group.
On 30 December 2019, a favourable judgement was handed
down against the Group in respect of this legal claim made
by the EPC contractor. However, after taking appropriate
legal advice, the directors have given careful consideration
regarding the likelihood of an appeal filed by the EPC
contractor and the possible legal claim exposures. If the
court concluded an unfavourable judgement to the Group,
payment of approximately RMB16 million (31 December
2020: RMB15 million) would be required. The recognised
provision reflects the directors’ best estimate of the most
likely outcome. The EPC contractor filed an appeal against
the case decision on 10 January 2020 and the court
concluded an overriding unfavourable judgement to the Group
on 29 May 2020. The payable balance of the respective claim
is expected to be settled on or before 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2020, other payables and accruals
included a consideration received in advance from a
third party of approximately RMB300 million in relation
to proposed disposals of certain of the Group’s solar
power plants. The amount was unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The proposed disposal was
subsequently terminated and the entire balance was refunded
to the third party in January 2021.

wR e M BRI aE

29 HtERIEREFER (&)
st

(a)

RIEBE-_—F+"A=+—0 EH=
NBREBHNARKSEE T (CE 24
+ZA=+—H N ARESEET) AE
IR BRI EREREER

R_B—hFE+_B=+—H Z&EE
EH—ZEPCREREHEAEBIRHIERE
TARGEE-RZE—NE+ZB=1+
H> AEEMZEPCREEIE LA ARER
RETERMAR AT REEEE
BRRERRB EECBEZTEXEPCAER
BE EFBEIAEME RZ AR RNEE
BB o K 5K Be 3 AN S B E L R F R A
EERBAZNNARKEI6EE T (T
“EE+"HA=+—H: AR¥1558
TT) cBHEREERMEZHE A DA
FRE R REMSH o ZEPCK B i st ¥
EHHRAR T _TE—B+HREH L
o MERRN S SFE 1 - +h B
AEEFELEAMEARFIH R -HERE
MEMGREREBN _ S __F+_4
=+—HZzH#EE-

RIE-ZTF+_HB=+—H  EMEH
REKREFEREEXRE—2FE=ZAN
BRABYARKEI008E T Z2IEH
ERHEXAERNETABREZEEHE
ozt RAEIRF RREITARERE
B EEHEHBN _E_—HF—AK
b W2 EERERETE=-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30

The Group held the following financial instruments:

ERMIASE
FERFAUTSMIA:

2021 2020
—E—F “ETEF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET AREBEET
Financial assets EHEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEETAEBRZ
TREE 39 42
Financial assets at amortised cost B IH B AT AR 2
TREE
Trade, bills and tariff adjustment FEURERIE s ZEE K
receivables BEEmAEUERIE 7,552 4,344
Other financial assets at amortised BEIE R AT R 2
cost HhomMEE 2,528 2,062
Cash deposits REFEMR 5,844 2,972
15,963 9,420
Financial liabilities ERBE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAREStAB@mL
ERIBE
Convertible bonds MR ES 346 =
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R EH AL AT R >~
=N
Bank and other borrowings SRIT R EMER 32,039 17,589
Other payables =R NEEE 3,427 1,617
Lease liabilities HEAaR 601 133
36,413 19,339

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with
the financial instruments is discussed in Note 3.1. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying amount of each class of financial
assets mentioned above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Er e A A T
31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 31 REREEN
(a) Cash Generated from Operations (a) RBEFREHRE
2021 2020
—E_—HF TR TE|F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEETT ARBBET
Profit before income tax PRPFIGIRATEF 751 344
Adjustments for MU TRIEEL AR
Government grant BT 4B - (8)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERREZ
plant and equipment E518 - 2
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries  HEMBAT 2 &1 6 1
Bargain purchase gain arising XBEeHEEZEERES
from business combinations U & (263) (1)
Depreciation for property, plant ME- -BERKRBITE
and equipment 765 B7S
Depreciation for right-of-use EREEEITE
assets 33 29
Loss on termination of lease KIFFRE 218 - 1
Fair value losses on financial BAREFABER
assets at FVTPL TREENANERIE 3 =
Fair value losses on financial BARBESTAEBRZ
liabilities at FVTPL ETRBaEZzANERE 40 =
Finance income G ON (129) (80)
Finance costs AR A A 1,110 1,110
Impairment charge on property, MR KRR ERE
plant and equipment T H 7 3
Impairment charge on STHEERESH
financial assets 65 1
Write-back on other 5 o] H h FE SRR IE 2 SR B
receivables, net - (1)
Share-based payment expenses UBmAERS MY - 4
Share of profits of investments L EAEREARZ
accounted for using equity K& &N
method (16) (21)
Over-accrual of consideration BN EERRMNEMRE
payables in relation to FBRARE T
acquisitions - (24)
Over-provision of land use tax in BEFELMERR
prior years FBREE A (1) (23)
Operating profit before working EEESEE 2 &EET
capital changes 2,371 1,912
Changes in working capital EEETHES
Trade, bills and tariff adjustment  FEURERIE s ZE & EE M
receivables Bh FE W BR T8 (1,282) (441)
Other receivables, contract HthEWHIE - aEE
assets, deposits and e BN
prepayments 476 666
Other payables and accruals HthE B EE R (468) (654)
Cash generated from operations RERRISRE 1,097 1,483
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing

(c)

31 REREER (B)
(b) BAEEBFfEESERR

Activities
Loans from
Bank financial Senior Corporate Medium- Other  Convertible Lease
borrowings institutions notes bonds  term notes loans Bonds liabilities
REEREE
RITER 287 BARE AREH THRE HthER  AHRRES HEaR
RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB’million ~ RMB'million
ANEEEER AR¥BER AREEErR AREBEER AREBEER AREEET AREEET AREEER
At 1 January 2020 RZEZ%25-B—-H 8,775 4,911 2,505 1,512 331 267 = 121
Cash flows REm
Principal and related KERIERLHER
arrangement fees 3,397 (812) (1,750) (1,530) (32) (70) - -
Interest paid BRFIE - - (89) - - = = 6)
Non-cash flows ERER
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM BAE
(Note 32) (Mz232) - 195 - - - - - 4
Addition of leases EMEE - - - - - - - 31
Termination of leases KIFTRE - - - = = = = (23)
Finance costs BERES 17 112 151 18 1 - - 6
Exchange difference ERER (155) = (64) = = ) = =
At 31 December 2020 RIB_EE
+ZR=+-H 12,034 4,406 753 - 300 % - 133
At 1 January 2021 RZBZ-%-F—-H 12,034 4,406 753 - 300 96 - 133
Cash flows Rem
Principal and related K RENTHER
arrangement fees 8,287 (1,132) (720) - (300) (98) 316 (9)
Interest paid BFE - - (60) - - - (6) (7
Non-cash flows ERER
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WENBAT
(Note 32) (GEXY) 1,338 6,962 - - - 201 - 456
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR
(Note 19(c)) (RH&E19(c)) - (109) - - - - - (11)
Addition of leases EAE - - - - - - - 33
Termination of leases HILRE - - - - - - - (1)
Fair value loss (Note 10) AREEE (f1:10) - - - - - - 40 -
Finance costs RMEME 15 131 35 - - - - 7
Exchange difference EREE (92) - (8) - - - (4) -
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ-%
+-B=+-8 21,582 10,258 - - - 199 346 601

Major Non-Cash Transactions

During the Year, the major non-cash transactions
included (i) a receivable of RMB40 million from NEX
Group having settled against consideration for the
acquisition of a subsidiary; and (ii) certain other
payables of approximately RMB548 million having
offset against deposits for investments.

(c) FEFRERS
REFE X=

EIRERX 5 ()

FENEXEBENEKRZIEARE40
BET (Eﬁéu&ﬁ% BB AT Z

B ;&

|| E:Fﬁ,f‘mﬁ_%'fj‘r)\ ,\/\\l]

ARMBE48EET (CHRREREH

) o

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIBER A IR A ]

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 — %

AREAF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

It is the Group’'s strategy to identify suitable investment
opportunity to acquire renewable energy projects with good
prospects and potential for stable returns.

(a) Business Combination

During the Year, the Company completed the
acquisitions of thirty-eight power plants (31 December
2020: two) in the PRC from independent third parties
through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries. The
acquisitions have immediately enabled to supplement
the Group’s existing renewable power plant portfolio
and further expand its scale of business in the
renewable energy sector to enhance return to the
shareholders of the Company.

The key assumptions used for the post-tax cash flow
projections for the purchase price allocation, which are
based on past experience of the Group and external
sources of market information, are as follows:

wR e M BRI aE

32 IKEBIEAR

rEBZRERSYMEE

BzREKS

N Em R R RAEBN A HRRZER

WZAIBERE

(a)

RIRHE e

EBaHt
REFE ARBDZEBHEBEEZE
MEAR MBS =7 M IE38

EB(CEEF+_A=+—H'W
FE) i % A B A9 2% BE U o K BB R TERD
REETAEEZRBEABERLER
HBMKREMEG T HE */F?E@E
RABEERTEZEBRE

M 7% 25~ 5] BR AR BRENE K [E] ¥R

BEESEZGERERESRERR
(REBEAEBBEERKRINETHES
BRRRERR IRz ETE2RKRN
T

2021 2020

—E-—f —F-%F
Capacity (subject to impairment) 1,161.97MW 50MW
AE (BstERE) 1,161.97JKE 50JKFL

Utilisation/insolation hours

FA, HREFH 568%E2,718JK LB JKIE R
Degradation factor 0.5% to 0.75% per annum
BRIERE S 50.5%%F0.75%

FIT RMBO0.39 to RMB1.00/kWh
LTHEEE AR0.39tE AR #1.007T

/TR

Discount rate 6.68% to 12.34%

568 to 2,718MWh,/MWp

1,070 to 1,277MWh/MWp

1,070%F 1,277k BB, JKIER

0.5% to 0.83% per annum

FF0.5%%0.83%

RMBO0.88 to RMB1.00/kWh

AR #0.887tE AR #1.007T
/TR

7.73% to 8.5%

7.73%%8.5%

RMBS8.73

IR 6.68%%F12.34%
Construction costs per watt RMB4.02 to RMB9.81
FRESRMAE AR#4.02tE AR 9.817T

Operating expenses per watt

BREEMX

RMBO0.21 to RMBO0.58 with
annual growth rate of 2%
AR#0.21tE AR #£0.587T

REBRE2%

AERH8.737T

RMBO0.13 to RMBO0.42 with
annual growth rate of 2%

AR#0.1370E AR #0.427T
Fe B 8 R 2%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 32 KEEHIEB AT (1)
(b) Acquisitions of Assets (b) EEIKE

During the Year, through the indirect wholly-owned RAFEE AR BEEBEZE2ER
subsidiaries, the Company acquired 100% equity BAElR—%BIE=FWEAMR
interest of Wollar Solar Development Pty Ltd (“WSD”) JINEIWollar Solar Development
in Australia from an independent third party at a Pty Ltd (TWSD)) B9&ZBR%HE > (LB
total consideration of AUD22.4 million (equivalent MERA22. AR BRI (IHERWAR
to approximately RMB112 million). WSD has ¥112FE7T) cWSDE &R E A Z
been consolidated into the consolidated financial EBZEEMBHR=R LT UER
statements of the Group. The acquisition is considered HABEEWE-

as an acquisition of assets.

During the Year, the Company also acquired the RAFEE  ARBNEBEBES
equity interests of certain companies in the PRC from ERBATNRABILE=HWESD
independent third parties through its indirect wholly- H%:F/\TEI’J % 1 o B BC P IR BE BN
owned subsidiaries. These acquisitions are considered MEEZARBERE—HBLEM
as acquisition of assets as the fair value of the gross AHNNEE ZSWEHELE
assets acquired is concentrated in group of similar EWEB -FIEZERATABEEHA
identifiable assets. All these companies have also KEBZIFEHRE-
been consolidated into the consolidated statements of
the Group.

The following table summarises the details of the TREMFFWEER B AT Z5F 15

subsidiaries acquired.

Power plants acquired

FRUs i 5 Bk
Equity
Month of interest Cash Number of Installed
Name of the company acquisition acquired consideration  Type Location plants capacity
R Wekg A 17 P g B 1 ReERE Eh fiE BitgE HHRE
RMB'million MW
ARBEER KR
Year ended 31 December 2021
HEZZ-—S+-A=+—HLEE
Accounted as business combination
ARAEBEH
Jinzhong Jinhe New Energy Limited* January 2021 100% - Solar Shanxi 1 -
ERBEHMERERAR i S | KiEeE WA
Inner Mongolia Minghua New Energy Co., Ltd.* February 2021 100% 282 Solar Inner Mongolia 6 115.0
AR LPRERERRMERAD S | KfEiE ARS
Zhenglangi State Power Photovoltaic Co., Ltd.* March 2021 100% 210  Solar Inner Mongolia 1 50.0
FERESAREEERAR “E-—£=R KBE  ARDG
Dezhou City Lincheng Qu Qianchao Brothers Energy Technology  April 2021 100% 26 Solar Shandong 1 20.0
Co., Ltd.*
EINTEREZ B R B RRRERA “2°-—FMmA K5 LR
280 BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLntREJRBIREERE A B2 F]

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 — % —{E4EH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

32 WIEKME AR (&)

Power plants acquired

FrUREE & Bk
Equity
Month of interest Cash Number of Installed
Name of the company acquisition acquired consideration  Type Location plants capacity
AGEL Weig A 17 FrUs R ReRE R i & BitYE  HHRE
RMB’million MW
AEBBET KR
Changji Yijing Photovoltaics Technology Co., Ltd.* April 2021 100% 2 Solar Xinjiang 1 200.0
ESRENRHKBERAF “Z”—-FMmA PN i
Yulin City Jiangshan Yongchen New Energy Limited* April 2021 100% 1,178  Solar Shaanxi 1 300.0
BRI RNERERAT “EZ—FMA KfGeE  MA
Xinjiang Xinyou New Energy Power Co., Ltd.* June 2021 100% - Wind Xinjiang 1 50.0
HRERNEREESERAR ZEZ-£/A [EAE Gk
Wulate Hougi Yuanhai New Energy Co., Ltd.* June 2021 100% 47 Solar Inner Mongolia 4 50.0
RHREIERENEREREEAT S | KFE  ARS
Pingshan Xian Tianhui Energy Technology Co., Ltd. * December 2021 100% 34 Solar Hebei 1 20.0
FLBEXEERREARAT T K Ak
+ZA
Pianguan County Sineng Wind Power Co., Ltd. * December 2021 100% 193  Wind Shanxi 1 50.0
REARGHEERERRAS - [EBE T
+ZA8
Yangqu County Weilan New Energy Co., Ltd. * December 2021 100% 262  Wind Shanxi 1 46.8
R R BT RERAR —ET-fF 53 1T
+ZA
Heshun County Sineng Wind Power Co., Ltd. * December 2021 100% 234 Wind Shanxi 1 40.0
B EAERERRAF T 5 L7
+ZA
Hunyuan Sineng New Energy Co., Ltd. * December 2021 100% 212 Wind Shanxi 1 50.0
BRI ERAR AR - [EBE T
+ZA8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M

32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 32 KK E B (48)
Power plants acquired
FrUREE & Bk
Equity
Month of interest Cash Number of Installed
Name of the company acquisition acquired consideration  Type Location plants capacity
ASEL Weig A 17 FrUk R 1 ReRE HA i g BitYE  HHRE
RMB’million MW
AEBBET KR
Baicheng Huaru New Energy Development Co., Ltd. * December 2021 100% 1 Solar Jilin 1 15.0
B ERREREEERAR T KGR Stk
+ZA
Zhejiang Apoxilun Photovoltaic Technology Co., Ltd. * December 2021 100% 124 Solar Zhejiang 1 29.6
IR ER AR ARAH R KiFgE L
+ZA8
Yangchun Guangyan Photovoltaic Power Co., Ltd. * December 2021 95% 40  Solar Guangdong 1 75.0
BEMAZAREEERAT 2 KfGeE  ER
+ZA
Beijing Tongli Risheng New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. * December 2021 100% - Solar Hebei 8 35.02
TRBNHAMERNEERAT T K Ak
+ZA
Henan 3 10.29
bl
Zhejiang 3 5.26
#L
Accounted as acquisitions of assets
AEAEERE
Wollar Solar Development Pty Ltd March 2021 100% 112 Solar Australia 1 -
Wollar Solar Development Pty Ltd “E"—%=8 KBeE BN
Dezhou Jusheng New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. * September 2021 91% - Solar Shandong 1 -
ENR IR ERAR —E_—FhA KiFE  WE
Mulei Tongchuan Fengguang New Energy Co., Ltd. * October 2021 100% - Wind Xinjiang 1 49.5
AEHB) BN HERERAT T —fF+H 5 Gk
Nanjing Ansheng New Energy Co., Ltd. * October 2021 100% - Solar Shandong 1 -
HARERMERERAT “E-—#+8 ABE  WR
Wulian County Pengguang New Energy Co., Ltd. * November 2021 100% - Solar Shandong 1 -
EBHRBERERAT ZET-F K5 WR
+-8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

32 WIEKME AR (&)

Power plants acquired

Fii W B 2% B ok
Equity
Month of interest Cash Number of Installed
Name of the company acquisition acquired consideration  Type Location plants capacity
AGEL Weig A 17 FrUs R ReRE R i & BitYE  HHRE
RMB’million MW
AEBBET KR
Nangong Guolong New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. * December 2021 100% - Solar Hebei 1 170.0
FEmEEHNERRKERAR T K5 AL
+ZA
Nangong Guorui New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. * December 2021 100% - Solar Hebei 1 30.0
BEmERN AR ARAR - KFsE G
+ZA8
Nangong Guoshun New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. * December 2021 100% - Solar Hebei 1 130.0
e mEIEERRKERAT R K5 At
+ZA
Guangzong County Guorui Energy Co., Ltd. * December 2021 100% - Solar Hebei 1 213.8
BREERERERAT T KGR AL
+ZA
Longyao County Guochang New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. * December 2021 100% - Solar Hebei 1 181.0
EZREEMERNRERAR - KFsE G
+ZA8
Qinghai Sixun New Energy Co., Ltd. * December 2021 100% - Wind Qinghai 1 40.0
BERAMERERAT —ET-fF 53 58
+ZA
2,957 49  1,976.27
Year ended 31 December 2020
HEZT-TE+-RA=t+-HIEE
Weixian Tianhai Photovoltaic Power Co., Limited* December 2020 100% 22 Solar Hebei 1 30
BHEKEAREEFRAT Z2°%F K5 e
+ZA
Shandong Xintai Loudejia Photovoltaic Power Co., Limited* December 2020 100% 18  Solar Shandong 1 20
LR RBEERREEERAT T FE KiFsE  WE
+Z8
40 2 50
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R Bk

32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

32

The following table summarises the consideration paid,

kB M B AT ()
TRERETRE FARETREE

the fair value of identifiable assets acquired, liabilities FTEAEEERIIFERERNESBWER
assumed and the non-controlling interests as at the N ARE :
respective acquisition date:
2021 2020
—E- & ZEIEF
Business Acquisition Business
combination of assets Total combination
£Bat BEEKE wmat B
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AREGER ARKEGER ARKGER ARKBER
Consideration HE
Cash RE 2,845 112 2,957 40
Recognised amounts of fair value of PR EEmT RI E E AL
identifiable assets acquired, liabilities BRIFEREZNARE
assumed and non-controlling interests Sy iEE b
Property, plant and equipment I ENETYSE AR
(Note 16) 7,216 5,044 12,260 317
Right-of-use assets (Note 17) FREEE (F17) 204 487 691 10
Value-added tax recoverable BE{EEEE 440 564 1,004 14
Trade and tariff adjustment receivables  FEUARIE & B (B AL FE W BR 18
(Note (ii)) (P Gi)) 1,818 110 1,928 95
Other receivables, deposits and HtEWRIE  BERBELX
prepayments B 337 174 511 2
Cash and cash equivalents RehREEEY 172 17 189 2
Pledged deposits BIEEER 178 - 178 15
Other payables and accruals HtnEARBREER (1,881) (2,650) (4,531) (213)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER (5,300) (3,201) (8,501) (195)
Lease liabilities (Note 17) HESE (f:F17) (23) (433) (456) (4)
Deferred tax assets RIEREEE 4 - 4 -
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEERE (138) - (138) 1)
Income tax payable FEIFTEH (12) - (12) (1)
Total identifiable net assets AR EE R EEE 3,015 112 3,127 41
Non-controlling interests (Note (iv)) R R (H5Ev)) (10) - (10) =
Bargain purchase gain recognised in the M AEBERTEIZEE
consolidated statement of profit or loss EEla (263) - (263) 1)
Goodwill recognised in the consolidated RREHBERRRTERZ
statement of financial position (Note (v)) 2 (ff&(v)) 103 - 103 =
2,845 112 2,957 40
Net cash outflow arising from the BREEEZRERHFE
acquisitions
Other payables (including consideration — ELffifEfI 7B (BIFLEIER
payables in relation to acquisitions) AR ELRE) 388 7 395 16
Offsetting with other receivables RS E EUGRIE (P (vi))
(Note (vi)) 234 - 234 -
Settlements with amounts due from NEX 45 & FEIINEXE B R IB
Group (Note 2.1(a)) (Fftz£2.1(a)) 40 - 40 =
Cash and cash equivalents acquired TR E RIREEEY 172 17 189 2
Less: Cash consideration B RERE (2,845) (112) (2,957) (40)
(2,011) (88) (2,099) (22)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(1)

(ii)

Revenue and profit contribution

The table below illustrates the revenue and the profit
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss since
acquisition dates contributed by the acquisitions.

wR e M BRI aE

32 WBEMEATE (&)
B 3 -

(1)

WA R iz # J R

TREJIWBEEEWE L REEMT
FTAGREEm R ZUA KR o

2021 2020

Total Total

—F-—F T F

#Est 4a st

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBBEET AREBAET

Revenue WA 538 2
Profit contributed to the Group BAREBEFROEF] 194 1

Had the consolidation taken place at 1 January 2021, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss would show pro-
forma revenue from sales of electricity and tariff adjustment
of approximately RMB3,408 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB2,203 million) and profit of approximately
RMB855 million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB275
million), respectively.

Acquired receivables

The gross contractual amount of these trade and tariff
adjustment receivables due in aggregate was approximately
RMB1,928 million (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB95 million), which approximate to their fair value.
Management of the Company considered the ECL is
insignificant.

(ii)

MEaAER-_SE-—F—F—H#&
T iR RBEIIERBENHER
BEAEEZERANARES408EET
(ZZ2_EHF+_A=+—H: HAE
12,203 B T) Kiafi AR K855 8
T(CEEF+_B=1+—080 YR
MO7T5H B IT) ©

B2 FEIRARIE

Z L E 2 FE R BRIE K BB i B FE U BR
ENBENERSHO/ARKL,9288
Brx(CE2F+-"HA=+—H:HA
RigosEEL BHARBERE) - &R
AEEERARMEERBLTELN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

33

(iii) Provisional fair value of acquired identifiable assets under

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

business combination during the Year

The fair value of the acquired identifiable assets under
business combination during the Year was provisional
pending receipt of the final valuations of those assets.
Deferred tax has been provided in relation to these fair value
adjustments. Management performed retrospective review
of the fair value of the acquired identifiable assets under
business combination during the year ended 31 December
2020 and considered no retrospective adjustment was
required.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests were recognised at their
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquirees’
identifiable net assets.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recognised in the acquisitions of the equity
interests of Pianguan County Sineng Wind Power Co., Ltd.,
Yangqu County Weilan New Energy Co., Ltd., Heshun County
Sineng Wind Power Co., Ltd. and Hunyuan Sineng New Energy
Co., Ltd. for amounts of RMB19 million, RMB36 million,
RMB38 million and RMB10 million, respectively. Management
of the Company are in the opinion that these acquisitions
created synergy benefits with the Group’s existing operations
and enhanced the renewable power plant portfolio of the
Group.

Offsetting with other receivables

At the date of acquisition, amount of approximately RMB234
million was receivables from the vendors by certain acquired
subsidiaries. As set out in the respective sale and purchase
agreements, the considerations of the acquisitions and
receivables were settled on net basis.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2021,

the Group had capital

commitments in respect of property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately RMB1,793 million (31
December 2020: approximately RMB183 million).

32 WIEKME AR (8)

M5E -

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

33
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Names and Relationships with Related Parties

34 FEALRS
(a) BAEATHRBERAHERME

Related parties are those parties that have the ability
to control, jointly control or exert significant influence
over the other party in holding power over the investee;
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control or joint
control.

The following companies are related parties of the
Group that had balances and/or transactions with the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

Name of related parties

MEALDZEBERENES HF
RSN TERENREGENE
tMAETEEARZESN  RH2ER
EXRNEMEAAEE®RAAZE
BER, TAENERENKEY
SHENTEREELDRTEHIA
iOﬁﬁéAixAﬂﬁﬁYW
TS RETHRADERE

T@ NAABE_S_—FE_F

EE+_HA=Z+—HIEFEHEAK
%lﬁ%ﬁ&/% 2 REEN
RAE AN Lo

Relationship with the Group

FEALTHHE B 75 £ [ A9 RR 1
Fengxian Huize Photovoltaic Energy Limited An associate
SHEECAEERERAT —fEEE A F]

Shenzhen Chuangxin Silk Road Leasing Company Limited

RNTFRIFHE 2 RMEBAERRAT

Huaqing Solar Power Limited

EENARBRAT
China Merchants Group Limited
EHBREEBRAE

China Merchants New Energy Group Limited
BEMERERFRAR

China Huarong Overseas Investment Holdings Co., Limited

PEERSINREZERARAT

China Huarong Asset Management Co., Limited

FEEREEEERMNARAS

Beijing Energy Holding Co., Ltd.
IERERERERSERR

BEH Finance Co., Ltd.
REEEMBARRE
Shenzhen Jingneng Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.

FYRERMBEHEERRAR
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An associate

—fEHERE

A substantial shareholder

—REERR

An affiliated company of a
substantial shareholder

—HEBRRZBEB AT

A substantial shareholder

—%FERE

A substantial shareholder

—RHIERR

A substantial shareholder

—%FERE

A controlling shareholder

—RERKR

A subsidiary of a controlling
shareholder

—HERRRZME AT

A subsidiary of a controlling
shareholder

—HERKRRZHB AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Significant Related Party Transactions

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the following is
a summary of the significant transactions carried
out between the Group and its related parties in the
ordinary course of business during the years ended 31

34 FAEANLTRS (B)

(b) EXEALTRS
BABEATIRGRESHHBRRE
HMWEHmmiEEEN  AEFEHEA
EAINREBEE _TE-_—FK_F
TEF+"_B=Z+—HIEEE—K
ERBRETETHEARSHBEN

December 2021 and 2020. Tve
2021 2020
—E”_—F —EEF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET AEBEET
Interest expenses made to MREEHZF ERE
shareholders (Note (i)) (P 5EGi)) - 2
Interest expenses made to [ — % PR AR 2 [T B A F)
subsidiaries of a controlling ER A BB (BEEd))
shareholder (Note (ii)) 100 4
Interest expenses made to an m—EBE AR EHZFIE
associate (Note (iii)) sz (B 5E(iii)) 17 25
Loan facility fees made to a B—2IERKREZ B AR
subsidiary of a controlling EHHNERMEE R
shareholder (Note (iv)) (B 5 (iv)) 1 3
Loan facility fees made to an m—EBEABMEHZER
associate (Note (v)) MEER (IsE\v)) - 6
Loan guarantee service fees made M—RIERKRRIEHZER
to a controlling shareholder HRIRFEE (FI5E(vi)
(Note (vi)) 12 12
Interest expenses made to a B — R IERREEHZF B
controlling shareholder (Note (vii)) B3z (Fff 5% (vii)) 11 —
Business trip expenses made to M — % ERREZHE AR
a subsidiary of a controlling EHMNERERERS
shareholder 1 1
Maintenance costs for power [ — %R R 2 B AT
plant made to a subsidiary of a YEH BYBY 25 B 3B 4 R AN
controlling shareholder - 1
Rental expenses made to a B—RFEERRZHBAE
subsidiary of a substantial EENHESE R
shareholder 1 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Significant Related Party Transactions (Continued)
Notes:

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2020, interest
expenses on loans from Huaqging were charged at an
interest rate of 13.41% per annum. The respective
loans were fully repaid and settled during the year 31
December 2020.

(ii)  For the Year, interest expenses on loans from Shenzhen
Jingneng Leasing and BEH Finance were charged at an
interest rates ranging from 1.85% to 5.99% per annum
(31 December 2020: 4.6% per annum)

(iii) For the Year, interest expenses were charged for loans
from an associate at interest rates ranging from 3.80%
to 4.95% per annum (31 December 2020: 3.70% to
4.95% per annum). As at 31 December 2021 and
2020, the loans from an associate were repayable on
demand (Note 27(c)).

(iv) For the Year, loan facility fees for the loans from
Shenzhen Jingneng Leasing amounted to approximately
RMBZ1 million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB3
million).

(v) During the Year, there were no loan facility fees made
to an associate. For the year ended 31 December
2020, loan facility fees of approximately RMB6 million
made to an associate were conducted at normal
commercial terms and conditions with aggregate fees
of approximately RMB19 million. Such fees were
amortised over the period of the loan facility.

(vi) For the Year, the loan guarantee service fees made to a
controlling shareholder of approximately RMB12 million
(31 December 2020: 12 million).

(vii) During the Year, interest expenses on loans from BEH
were charged at interest rates ranging from 3.85% to
4.50% per annum (31 December 2020: Nil).

Significant Related Party Balances

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, there are no other significant
related party balances as at 31 December 2021 and
2020.

34 FRE

(b)

(c)

wR e M BRI aE

|

A i % (II\E)

EAREALRS (@
PE

iy REBEEZZ-ZTF+"B=1+—H
IEEE AESERNHEEEE
FERFKIZ41%E T - RBE_SZ
TE+_A=+—HILEEEBE
REBHEERER -

(i) MAEEE> AFIREMERRAE
ERMBETNANERZ BN TE
F=1.85%F5.99% % (ZE -
F+"B=+—08: FHXRL6%) °

(i) RAFE RE—HEHEQARDENR
ZHERZENFEFEI.SO%E
4.95% (CE-_ZFEF+"_HB=+—
H: EXZE3.70%%E4.95%) 2o
RN_E_—FR_FE_EF+_"H
=t+—HB kE—EBBHEQARAZE
FBREXREE FIsE27(c)) ©

(ivy REEE > AR REREETN
EXMEERNARBIEE T (T
EBE+A=+—H HAR
WIHETT) ©
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ERMEER REE_T_ZTF
+-B=+—BILEE m—MEH
ENEMEHZERMEEROAR
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HET BERNAARKIORE
T HME Aff%mﬁ,éﬁﬁﬁﬁlfqﬁﬁ
7=

(vi) ﬁéxirg’ﬁ—%%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁz
ERERREENAAREBL2EE
TCECEBEF+_A=+—RH:4

)\Emlzﬂé%ﬁ)o

(viiy RAFE REFEEBERZH
BN FEFHIZEI.85%F4.50%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(d)

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34 FABEANLR S (B)
Key Management Compensation (d) FEEEASFHHM

2021 2020

—EB-—F TTF

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEETRT AEBEET

Short-term employee benefits ZHAE B EH 2 6

35 EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidation financial
statements, the followings are other events after the date
of statement of financial position.

(a)

(b)

EPC Contract relating to 100MW Photovoltaic Power
Project

On 30 January 2022, Datong City Yungang District
Jingneng New Energy Co., Ltd.* (K[E ™ =& R AEH
FERAFR/A B (“Datong Jingneng”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a EPC
contract with SEPCOIII Electric Power Construction Co.,
Ltd.* (UERENEFRFE=TEBRLXE) (“SEPCOII").
Pursuant to the EPC Contract, SEPCOIIl acting as
the contractor, will provide EPC services to Datong
Jingneng, as the principal, for the construction of the
photovoltaic power project at the consideration of
approximately RMB409.53 million. The photovoltaic
power project is located in Datong City, Shanxi
Province, the PRC with planned construction capacity
of 100MW.

Acquisition of Equity Interests in Companies owning
Wind Power Projects in the PRC

On 1 March 2022, Beijing United Rongbang (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), as
the purchaser, and Shanghai Sineng Investment Co.,
Ltd.* (B8 HTRER BB BRA ) (“Shanghai Sineng”), as
the vendor, entered into equity transfer agreements,
pursuant to which Beijing United Rongbang
conditionally agreed to purchase and Shanghai Sineng
conditionally agreed to sell, the entire equity interests
in each of Shuozhou City Pinglu District Honggou Wind
Energy Co., Ltd.* (AN T FEGAERESRAR)
(“Honggou Wind Energy”), Xiyang County Sineng Wind
Energy Co., Ltd.* (B[Z5AHTAER BB R A ) (“Xiyang
Wind Energy”) and Youyu County Sineng Wind Energy
Co., Ltd.* (EEBETBEEREARAFE) (“Youyu Wind
Energy”), and also 49% equity interests in Xiyang
County Sineng New Energy Co., Ltd.* (£ [ 5% Hr SE 37 AE
JRAR AT (“Xiyang New Energy”).

35 BHRARBBHARER

PRz e MBI A E M PR EEE I -
UTFmMBRRxBHRZHEMER

(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

35 EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Acquisition of Equity Interests in Companies owning
Wind Power Projects in the PRC (Continued)

Upon completion of these acquisitions, Honggou Wind
Energy, Xiyang Wind Energy and Youyu Wind Energy
will become indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company and Xiyang New Energy will become
an associate company of the Company. Details
of the acquisitions are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 1 March 2022.

Adjustment of Annual Cap of Direct Leasing Services
provided by Shenzhen Jingneng Leasing

On 9 March 2022, the Company entered into a
supplemental agreement with Shenzhen Jingneng
Leasing to adjust the annual cap of the direct leasing
services providing to the Group under the finance
lease business framework agreement entered into
between the Company and Shenzhen Jingneng Leasing
in 2020 for the year ending 31 December 2022.
Details of the adjustment of annual cap are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 9 March 2022.

Leasing Office Spaces from Beijing Jingneng Housing
Leasing Operation Co., Ltd.* Jt R FAEE EHERKE
IR EEAF) ("Beijing Jingneng Housing Leasing”)
On 15 March 2022, the Company entered into a lease
agreement with Beijing Jingneng Housing Leasing,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the controlling
shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which
Beijing Jingneng Housing Leasing agreed to lease
office spaces to the Company for a term of 3 years
from 15 March 2022 to 14 March 2025. Details of
the lease arrangement are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 15 March 2022.
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AEZRRHE (&)
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o B R
36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 6 FATIMBRAKRFEEEEHR
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of Financial Position of the Company (a) ARTEAFENRAT
2021 2020
—EB-—F ToTF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETRT AREEHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERMEE
Interests in subsidiaries [ 8 A B #e = 4,391 1,368
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS I B8 /A B 7218 7,809 6,751
Total non-current assets ERFEELEEE 12,200 8,119
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables, deposits and HMEWIRIE -2 K
prepayments TR FRIE 32 2
Restricted cash T RAIIRE - 29
Cash and cash equivalents RENRIREEEY 445 17
Total current assets MENE ELEEE 477 48
Total Assets BEHETE 12,677 8,167
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EankasE
Equity attributable to ERFKRR
shareholders of the Company FE{L i =
Share capital f& s 1,924 1,924
Reserves (Note 36(b)) fEfE (fF5E36(0)) 5,517 2,770
Total equity HE4a%E 7,441 4,694
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities ERIMEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 2,304 1,563
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BRREETA
Bmztmas 346 =
Total non-current liabilities ERBIBEEHREE 2,650 1,563
Current liabilities mENaE
Other payables and accruals HMERIBERETE R 31 61
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE(THY /B A B RIE 140 229
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 2,415 1,620
Total current liabilities MBBEERE 2,586 1,910
Total liabilities BEELE 5,236 3,473
Total equity and liabilities En kB EEEE 12,677 8,167

The statement of financial position of the Company
was approved by the Board on 29 March 2022 and

was signed on its behalf

Mr. Zhang Ping

FRBUBRAREEFTEN _F
“—HFZRATNABMETRENR

R"E

Ms. Li Hongwei

RELELE FA/IL
Chairman Director
FE EZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R B
36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36 AARMB IR RIEREER
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (48)
(Continued)
(b) Reserve Movement of the company (b) EATHEES
Share-hased
Share payment  Shares held Warrant  Translation Other  Accumulated
premium reserve under EIS reserve reserve reserve losses Total
URHAER RERE:HE
BIVEE ZREE THANRG DRESRMHE BEGE Hitfit 2HBR by

RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million
ANEEEER AR¥EER AREEER AREBERT ARKEET AREEET AREEER AREEER

B s N 8184 ____ 2 0 __ 8 B ¥ __ 6k 2m
Comprehensive loss 2EHER

Loss for the year TEEFE - - - - = = (221) (221)
Other comprehensive loss ~ Eft2E#5E - - - - (233) = = (233)
Total comprehensive loss 2EERLE - - - - (233) - (221) (454)

Transactions with equity AEBRBEAZRS

holders
Issue of shares (Note 25) %717 (ft3£25) 934 = = - - - - 934
Lapse of share options BRELH - (33) = = - - 33 -
Share-based payment NRBAERZ I
(Note 7) (Mz7) - 4 - - - - = 4
Expiry of warrants RREEER - - = (53) (1) = 54 -
934 (29) - (53) 1) - 87 938
At 31 December 2020 RZZZE%
+-B=+-H 9,128 197 (73) - (80) 37 (6,439) 2,770
At 1 January 2021 HZ¥--%-B-H 9,128 197 (73) - (80) 37 (6,439) 2,770
Comprehensive loss 2EHER
Loss for the year TEEFS - - - - - - (196) (196)
Other comprehensive loss ~ Hft1 2E - - - - (80) - - (80)
Total comprehensive loss 2 EHE - - - - (80) - (196) (276)
Transactions with equity HAERRBEAZRS
holders
Acquisition of a subsidiary upon FMEEE AU
group reorganisation —BEfBA= - - - - - 3,023 - 3,023
Lapse of share options BIRERN - (4) - - - - 4 -
- o - - - 3,023 4 3,023
At 31 December 2021 RZB--%
+zBA=+-A 9,128 193 (13) - (160) 3,060 (6,631) 5,517
BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLntfETRBIRE R A B 23] 293
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(b) Reserve Movement of the company (Continued)

Note:

Amount mainly represented the contributed surplus
of the Company, which is the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by
the Company and the underlying net assets of
subsidiaries which were acquired by the Company
pursuant to a group reorganisation during the year
ended 31 March 2000.

During the Year, a capital contribution reserve of
approximately RMB3,023 million was recognised in
relation to the acquisition of a subsidiary upon group
reorganisation.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), contributed surplus is available for
distribution to shareholders of the Company. However,
a company cannot declare or pay dividends, or make
a distribution out of contributed surplus, if: (i) the
Company is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii) the
realisable value of the Company’'s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

37 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been represented to
conform to current year's presentation.

36@%%%%%%&%%@@%

(b) FAEEEES (B
ek : ARESBRIBRARBZESR
#Ro IR RBE#HITRAZEE
BARNBREBEBE_ZZTF=
B=+—HLEFEETZERE
EFTIE Z B AR R E E%

BEmEEdH-

RAEFE  ARANEBREMERI
B—ENBABRNIEERFEHA
R¥3,0235 8t 2R

BEBRE-NAN—FR8ZE
(F&MERD) » BHAEBAIHDIKT
KRB RE AM > i HIR T
B AR B A B IR AR
B S EEBERFH DK ()4
NERIRA B BRI FEZ
HEBAEE; Hi)E2AEEZ
FEREEREIEMER S
TRAR RGN EERZ HBEE -

37 LEREF
ETHRUFT LB M EAERE 2T
—%o
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TAEA B

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for HNEBERBELETBEE 228 - BER
the last five financial years is set out below: BEBEHINWT

For the years ended 31 December

BETZR=1+—HLEE
Results 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ES ZEZ-f& ZEITR ZEZ-hE IZE-N\F CZEt&
RMB’million ~ RMB’million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB’million
AR¥BET AREEER AREEER AREEER AREEER

(Restated)
(AR E5))

Sales of electricity ENHE 922 664 629 599 419

Tariff adjustment EBR 1,903 1,485 1,539 1,424 1,103

Revenue KA 2,825 2,149 2,168 2,023 1,522

EBITDA EBITDA 2,397 1,967 1,920 1,700 1,198
Profit/(loss) for the year: ERiaf]/ (58) -

From continuing operations RERERELE 650 262 (3,499) (469) 153

From discontinued operation RECRIEREEH - = 4 15 =

650 262 (3,495) (454) 153

As at 31 December
®+ZB=+-H

Assets and Liabilities 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

BERERE “E--F IZZIZF ZZ-NFE 2 N\E ZCZT-tE

RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB’million

ARBERERT AREHERT ARKEER AREEER ARKEER

Total assets BEERE 46,159 26,088 25,456 30,775 28,594

Total liabilities EBEEE (36,875) (20,433) (21,815) (24,905) (22,166)

9,284 5,655 3,641 5,870 6,428
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS
BAASH AN

ANNOUNCEMENT OF 2021 ANNUAL RESULTS

29 March 2022

INFORMATION ABOUT SHARES

Board Lot: 2,000 Shares
Issued Shares as at
31 December 2021: 22,427,948,432 Shares

Issued Shares as at

29 March 2022: 22,427,948,432 Shares

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 00686
Bloomberg: 686 HK
Reuters: 0686.HK

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACTS

Telephone: +852 3112 8461
Fax: +852 3112 8410
Email: irpr@bjei.com

Address: Unit 1012, 10/F., West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,

168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

Wechat Public Account QR Code:

NE_E-_—Fr2FHE
—_E_HF=B”+AhNH

&
BFEFEMN: 2,0000%
RN B4
+ZB=+—H
BEITRG 22,427,948,432 &
i ——
=RAZ+n1H
BEITRMD : 22,427,948,432 &

B AR L3R
EAHIIPT 00686
18 686 HK
IRiEFT  0686.HK

KREERRBA

BE5E 1+852 3112 8461

fEH :+852 3112 8410

BRFE | irpr@bjei.com

ik - FAETEEER168-2005F 5 EHOFAEE
10181012F

MAS AT RS
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DEFINITIONS

R

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings as set

forth below:

RAFHEA BXESBAEN TIHREEBUTHEE

“AGM”
MRERBERE]

“Audit Committee”
EZiZEZEE)

“Authorised Representative”

MERAR

“BEH”
MRAESEEL

“Beijing Energy Investment”
MREERE]

“Beijing Jingneng Leasing”
NERRAEHEE]

“Beijing United Rongbang”
ME R Bk S 5 F8

“Board”
=ci=ch-

“Bye-Laws”
rEf2 418

“CG Code”

MbEERTAN

“China Huarong”
Mo B 22 fih

“Chief Executive Officer”

MEFERTE

“Chief Financial Officer”

TERVEE]

annual general meeting of the Company

FABRRBFEARG

the audit committee of the Company
KRFIBEZEESG

the authorised representative of the Company under Rule 3.05 of the

Listing Rules

BiE EHRAE3.06MF 2 R AT FREAX

Beijing Energy Holding Co., Ltd.*
ERERERBREETAF

Beijing Energy Investment Holding (Hong Kong) Co., Limited

BRERREER (F8) ARAH

Beijing Jingneng Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.*

BRREMEEERERAR

Beijing United Rongbang New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.*

R ERAHERMARAF

the board of Directors of the Company
KRBEEFE

the Bye-Laws of the Company
KAT 2 EFRHAY

the corporate governance code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing

Rules

EHARAIM SR 14PR S 2 X E S TAI

China Huarong Asset Management Co.,
FERERBEEEERNDERAE

the chief executive officer of the Compa

RABEERITE

Limited*

ny

the chief financial officer of the Company

TABERMBE
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DEFINITIONS

B

“CMG” China Merchants Group Limited

EmEERE 15 AERERBRAR

“CMNEG” China Merchants New Energy Group Limited

MBE AR E E B HBEHEREEARAS

“Company”, “BJEI”, Beijing Energy International Holding Co., Ltd.
“we” or “us”

IRABTRERKISHFEM B IIRERERERAERAF

“Company Secretary” the company secretary of the Company
A B 15 AADADWE
“CSPG” China Solar Power Group Limited
MhE K PGREE NEE = FEAGEENEESRAR
“Director(s)” the director(s) of the Company
&%) 5 KARES
“EIS” the equity incentive scheme adopted by CSPG
RS REAZ B 5T &1 = FR B K P A5 B D R B HR A 2 BE HESE R 51 &
“FITs” feed-in tariffs
lF4EEE 5 +FHAEE
“GW” gigawatt(s)
r&EE B &R
“Grant Thornton” Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
= dEil 5 A (FA) EstESEHEAAERAR
“Group” the Company and its subsidiaries
MR E ] = RABIREWEAF
“HKFRSs” Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
IEBM ;RS EER 5 BEMBREER
“Independent non-executive the independent non-executive directors of the Company
Directors” or “INEDs”
DEILIFMITESE) 5 KABBIIEHITES
“Inner Mongolia Power” Inner Mongolia Power (Group) Co., Ltd.
TR SHE = REEEN (&EEH) BREFERA
“kWh” kilowatt-hour(s)
M+ R 5 T EE
298 BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIBER A IR A ]
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“Listing Rules”

FEmRA

“Model Code”

MR 2ESF R

MW
MIKELL

“MWh”
TIK R B

“NEX”
I'NEX |

“NEX Group”
INEXE B

“Nomination Committee”
MERZEZEE)

“PRC”
THA

“PRC Corporate Income Tax”

Meh B b & PSR

“Qccl”
'S S

“Remuneration Committee”

FHMEZE S

“RMB”
TAR®)

“Risk Control Committee”
TR fEEREZE g

“Share Option Scheme”

Mg e e st 81

DEFINITIONS
R

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

HAZPrEE 25 ERA (EARHERT ~ RS AH 75 E2D

the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

EHRAMERIOPRE Z L ETAEFETES R 7 2 RETRY

megawatt(s)

KE

megawatt-hour(s)

JK LB

New Energy Exchange Limited
R ZFAAERAE

NEX and its subsidiaries
NEXK E [ B A E)

the nomination committee of the Company
TRFIRBEEE

the People’s Republic of China
FREE A A

the corporate income tax of the PRC

FPEIE PSR

Qingdao City Construction Investment (Group) Co., Ltd.*
EERmERKRE (BEE) SREEAF

the remuneration committee of the Company
TRFFHMEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AR PEZERR

the risk control committee of the Company

TABEBRIERIEZESR

the share option scheme approved and adopted by the Shareholders at
the AGM held on 19 June 2012
BRERZZE—ZHFRATNABRETHNRREBES KNG LHERIRMER
st &
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DEFINITIONS

R

“SFO” Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time

M58 75 K ER G 15 51l 5 HARAEFIESTIER F RPE R (KRAEE MRl UE s 1E
250

“SGM” special general meeting of the Company

MR R RS = RABIRRFRARE

“Shareholder(s)” holder(s) of issued shares of the Company

Mg 58 5 AT BBITROHNFTEA

“Shenzhen Jingneng Leasing” Shenzhen Jingneng Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.*

DRIIRAEHE = Y REMEHRERRAR

“State Grid” State Grid Corporation of China

M X BB 4 5 BREAERAE

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Tt 22 T = ERABMERZMBRATE

“Strategy Committee” the strategy committee of the Company

ML E g 5 KATHEESESR

“UP Changzhou” United Photovoltaics (Changzhou) Investment Group Co., Ltd.*

ME S AR E N = HaXRK (BN KEEBFRAE

“UP Shenzhen” United Photovoltaics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.*

M & SRR 5 &R CFRI) BRRAR

“Year” for the year ended 31 December 2021

TRFE = HE_ TS+ _B=+—HLEE

*  For identification purposes only
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£3  eseEERRER AR S

—_ Beijing Energy International Holding Co., Ltd.
REEERE Pelne ey Bce

Unit 1012, 10/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
AT EEEH168-2005%
FEPOAERE10181012E

www.bjei.com
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